
 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

NOTICE OF AND AGENDA FOR A WORKSHOP AND REGULAR MEETING  
TO BE HELD BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
DATE:  TUESDAY, OCTOBER 26, 2021 
TIME:  5:30 PM 
PLACE:  PHARR CITY HALL  

2nd FLOOR CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS 
  118 SOUTH CAGE BLVD. 
  PHARR, TEXAS 78577   
 

PRESIDING: S. DAVID DEANDA, JR, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ARE WELCOME TO PARTICIPATE REMOTELY  
 DIAL-IN NUMBER :       +1 (408) 650-3123 

                                                                       Access Code:                 527-921-021# 
                                  WEBLINK:    https://www.gotomeet.me/CityofPharr/hcrma-board-meeting-3 

 
 

                              An electronic copy of the agenda packet can be obtained at www.hcrma.net  
 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
INVOCATION 
 
CALL TO ORDER OF A WORKSHOP 
 

1. Review of proposed Fiscal Year 2022 Operating and Capital Budget. 
2. Review of Quarterly Investment Report for Period Ending September 30, 2021 – HCRMA Staff. 

 
ADJOURNMENT OF WORKSHOP 
 
CALL TO ORDER AND ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM FOR A REGULAR MEETING 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

1. REPORTS 
 
A. Report on Program Manager Activity for 365 Tollway Project and IBTC Environmental Clearance Document 

– Eric Davila, HCRMA. 
B. Report on 365 Tollway Project Financing Activities – Richard Ramirez, Hilltop Securities. 

 



 
2. CONSENT AGENDA (All matters listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Governing 

Body and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items; however, if 
discussion is desired, that item(s) will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
The Governing Body may also elect to go into Executive Session on any item on this agenda, whether or not 
such item(s) are posted as an Executive Session Item, at any time during the meeting when authorized by 
provisions of the Open Public Meeting Act.) 
 
A. Approval of Minutes for the Regular Meeting held September 28, 2021. 
B. Approval of Project & General Expense Report for the period from September 9, 2021, to October 6, 2021. 
C. Approval of Financial Reports for September 2021. 
D. Approval of the Quarterly Investment Report for Period Ending September 30, 2021. 

 
3. REGULAR AGENDA  

 
A. Resolution 2021 – 40 – Approval of Award of Contract with Raba Kistner, Inc. for construction material 

testing services for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority.  
B. Resolution 2021 – 41 – Approval of Work Authorization 1 with Raba Kistner, Inc. for material testing in the 

365 Tollway Project. 
C. Resolution 2021 – 47 – Approval of Award of Contract with Atlas Technical Consultants for construction 

material testing services for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority. 
D. Resolution 2021 – 48 - Approval of Work Authorization 1 with Atlas Technical Consultants for material 

testing in the 365 Tollway Project. 
E. Resolution 2021 – 49 – Approval of Work Authorization 8 with Blanton & Associates, Inc. for environmental 

services for development of site soils and planting strategies (including monitoring) for the 365 Tollway 
Wetland Mitigation site.  

F. Resolution 2021- 50 – Approval of Contract Amendment 7 to the Professional Service Agreement with 
Blanton & Associates, Inc. to increase the maximum payable amount for Work Authorization Number 8. 

G. Resolution 2021- 51 – Approval of Work Authorization 5 with HDR Engineering, Inc. for engineering support 
for the design and construction of the 365 Tollway Wetland Mitigation site. 

H. Resolution 2021 – 52 - Approval of Contract Amendment 3 to the Professional Service Agreement with 
HDR Engineering, Inc. to increase the maximum payable amount for Work Authorization Number 5. 

 
4. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 

 
A. None. 

 
5. TABLED ITEMS 

 
A. None. 

 
6. EXECUTIVE SESSION, CHAPTER 551, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, SECTION 551.071 (CONSULTATION WITH 

ATTORNEY), SECTION 551.072 (DELIBERATION OF REAL PROPERTY), AND SECTION 551.074 (PERSONNEL 
MATTERS)  

 
A. Consultation with Attorney on personnel matters related annual evaluation of the Executive Director 

(551.074 T.G.C.) 
B. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to an Interlocal Cooperative Agreement with the City 

of Mission to provide Right of Way Acquisition Services (Section 551.071 T.G.C.) 
C. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the Texas Department of Transportation State 

Infrastructure Bank Loan for the 365 Tollway Project (Section 551.071 T.G.C.)  



D. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to Professional Service Agreements for Engineering, 
Surveying and Environmental Services (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 

E. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the voluntary acquisition of real property for 
various parcels for the 365 Tollway Project and International Bridge Trade Corridor Project (Sections 
551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.). 

F. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the acquisition, including the use of Eminent 
Domain, for property required to complete the project alignments of the 365 Tollway Project (Sections 
551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.). 

G. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the Environmental Clearance Document for the 
International Bridge Trade Corridor Project (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 

H. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the issuance of one or more Series of Hidalgo 
County Regional Mobility Authority bonds and related agreements and provisions relating to the subject 
(Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 

I. Consultation with Attorney on personnel matters related to the COVID-19 pandemic (Section 551.074 
T.G.C.). 
 

 ADJOURNMENT OF REGULAR MEETING 
 

C E R T I F I C A T I O N 
 

I, the Undersigned Authority, do hereby certify that the attached agenda of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority Board of Directors is a true and correct copy and that I posted a true and correct copy of said notice on the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Web Page (www.hcrma.net) and the bulletin board in the Hidalgo County 
Court House (100 North Closner, Edinburg, Texas 78539), a place convenient and readily accessible to the general 
public at all times, and said Notice was posted on the  20th   day of October 2021 at 5:00 pm and will remain so posted 
continuously for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting in accordance with Chapter 551 of the 
Texas Government Code. 
                                    Maria E. Alaniz     
        Administrative Assistant 

 
Note:  If you require special accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act, please contact Maria E. 
Alaniz at 956-402-4762 at least 96 hours before the meeting. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT POLICY 
Public Comment Policy: “At the beginning of each HCRMA meeting, the HCRMA will allow for an open public 
forum/comment period. This comment period shall not exceed one-half (1/2) hour in length and each speaker will be 
allowed a maximum of three (3) minutes to speak.  Speakers addressing the Board through a translator will be allowed 
a maximum of six (6) minutes.   
 
All individuals desiring to address the HCRMA must be signed up to do so, prior to the open comment period. For 
meetings being held by telephonic or videoconference, individuals may contact Maria. E. Alaniz at (956) 402-4762 
before 5:00 pm day of the meeting.  
  
 The purpose of this comment period is to provide the public an opportunity to address issues or topics that are under 
the jurisdiction of the HCRMA. For issues or topics which are not otherwise part of the posted agenda for the meeting, 
HCRMA members may direct staff to investigate the issue or topic further. No action or discussion shall be taken on 
issues or topics which are not part of the posted agenda for the meeting. Members of the public may be recognized 
on posted agenda items deemed appropriate by the Chairman as these items are considered, and the same time 
limitations applies.” 



 
Note:  Participation by Telephone/Video Conference Call – One or more member of the HCRMA Board of Directors 
may participate in this meeting through a telephone/video conference call, as authorized by Sec. 370.262, Texas 
Transportation Code.    
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Workshop 
Item 1 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                     1                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           10/15/21                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        10/26/21  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  REVIEW OF PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2022 OPERATING AND CAPITAL 

BUDGET             
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Review of proposed Fiscal Year 2022 Operating and Capital Budget     
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Review only.           
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       _X   None 
 
11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X   None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X   None 

 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X   None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Workshop 
Item 2 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                     2                                 

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED          10/19/2021                                                          
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE       10/26/2021 
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  WORKSHOP ITEM 2– QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT FOR THE   

PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021.         
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Presentation of the quarterly investment report.        
 

2. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Public  
Funds Investment Act Section 2256                  

 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Report Only.           
 
6. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:         Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
   
9. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X_    None 
 
10. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:         Approved          Disapproved       X  None 
 
11. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:         Approved          Disapproved        X  None 
 
12. Executive Director’s Recommendation:         Approved          Disapproved        X  None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





















 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 1A 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

         
AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

 
 

                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                  1A                                
PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED        10/20/2021                                                               
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE     10/26/2021     
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  REPORT ON PROGRAM MANAGER ACTIVITY FOR 365 TOLLWAY PROJECT 

AND IBTC ENVIRONMENTAL CLEARANCE DOCUMENT                                        
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Report on 365 Tollway and IBTC Projects                                           
   
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Report only.                            .            
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X_  None 
 
11.  Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:   X    Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X_  None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved        _  None 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

11
h

tt
p

:/
/w

w
w

.h
c

rm
a

.n
e

t

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F
 D

IR
E
C

TO
R

S
 M

E
E
TI

N
G

 

F
O

R
 O

C
TO

B
E
R

 2
0

2
1

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 H

C
R

M
A

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti
v

it
y

C
h

ie
f 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

E
n

g
in

e
e

r 
–

E
ri

c
 D

a
v

il
a

, 
P

E
, 
P

M
P

, 
C

C
M

H
C

R
M

A
 B

o
a

rd
 o

f 
D

ir
e

c
to

rs

S
. 

D
a
v
id

 D
e

a
n

d
a

, 
J

r.
, 

C
h

a
ir

m
a

n

F
o

r
re

s
t 

R
u

n
n

e
ls

, 
V

ic
e

-C
h

a
ir

m
a

n

E
z
e

q
u

ie
l 
R

e
y
n

a
, 
J

r.
, 

S
e

c
re

ta
r
y
/T

re
a

s
u

re
r

A
lo

n
z
o

 C
a

n
tu

, 
D

ir
e

c
to

r

P
a

u
l 
S

. 
M

o
x

le
y
, 
D

ir
e

c
to

r

F
ra

n
c

is
c

o
 “

F
ra

n
k

”
 P

a
rd

o
, 

D
ir

e
c

to
r

J
o

a
q

u
in

 S
p

a
m

e
r,

 D
ir

e
c

to
r 

H
C

R
M

A
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti

v
e

 S
ta

ff

P
il
a

r 
R

o
d

ri
g

u
e

z
, 
P

E
, 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 D
ir

e
c

to
r

E
ri

c
 D

a
v
il
a

, 
P

E
, 
P

M
P
, 

C
C

M
, 

C
h

ie
f 

D
e
v
. 

E
n

g
.

R
a

m
o

n
 N

a
v
a

r
ro

 I
V
, 

P
E

, 
C

F
M

, 
C

h
ie

f 
C

o
n

s
tr

. 
E

n
g

.

C
e

li
a

 G
a

o
n

a
, 
C

IA
, 

C
h

ie
f 

A
u

d
it

o
r/

C
o

m
p

li
a

n
c

e
 O

fc
r.

J
o

s
e

 C
a

s
ti

ll
o
, 

C
h

ie
f 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
O

fc
r.

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
E

n
g

in
e

e
ri

n
g

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
t

H
D

R
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

, 
IN

C
. 



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

2
h

tt
p

:/
/w

w
w

.h
c

rm
a

.n
e

t


O

V
E
R

V
IE

W

❑
3

6
5

 T
O

LL
 P

ro
je

c
t 

O
v

e
rv

ie
w

 

❑
IB

TC
 P

ro
je

c
t 

O
v

e
rv

ie
w

❑
O

v
e

rw
e

ig
h

t 
P

e
rm

it
 S

u
m

m
a

ry

❑
C

o
n

st
ru

c
ti
o

n
 E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

s 
U

p
d

a
te

M
IS

S
IO

N
 S

TA
TE

M
E
N

T:

“
To

 p
ro

v
id

e
 o

u
r 

c
u

st
o

m
e

rs
 

w
it
h

 a
 r

a
p

id
 a

n
d

 r
e

lia
b

le
 

a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 s
a

fe
 a

n
d

 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

m
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
, 
g

o
o

d
s 

a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s”



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

H
C

R
M

A
S
TR

A
TE

G
IC

 P
LA

N

3

D
E
V

E
LO

P
 T

H
E
 

IN
F
R

A
S
TR

U
C

TU
R

E
 T

O
 

S
E
R

V
E
 A

 P
O

P
U

LA
TI

O
N

O
F
 A

P
P

R
O

X
IM

A
TE

LY
 

8
0

0
,0

0
0
 R

E
S
ID

E
N

TS

A
N

D

5
 I

N
TE

R
N

A
TI

O
N

A
L

P
O

R
TS

 O
F
 E

N
TR

Y

P
h

a
rr

-R
e
y
n

o
s
a
 P

O
E

A
n

z
a
ld

u
a
s
 P

O
E

H
id

a
lg

o
 P

O
E

D
o

n
n

a
-R

io
 B

ra
v

o
 P

O
E

I-
6

9
 

C
o

n
n

e
c

to
r



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

4


P

O
S
T

2
0

2
1

 U
TP

 A
P

P
R

O
V

A
L

❑
A

p
p

ro
v

a
l 
o

f 
2
0
2
1
 U

TP
 (

A
u

g
 2

0
2
0
)

▪
3

6
5

 T
o

ll:
 g

a
p

-f
u

n
d

e
d

 c
o

n
st

ru
c

ti
o

n
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 w

a
s 

b
u

d
g

e
te

d
 in

 2
0

2
1

 U
TP

 U
p

d
a

te
 in

 1
2

/2
0

2
0

. 
O

n
 

0
6

/2
0

2
1

 a
 2

n
d

F
A

A
 w

a
s 

g
ra

n
te

d
 t

o
 a

ss
ig

n
 t

h
e

 
g

a
p

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 c
o

n
ti
n

g
e

n
t 

u
p

o
n

 s
u

c
c

e
ss

fu
l 

c
o

n
tr

a
c

t 
e

x
e

c
u

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
a

le
 o

f 
to

ll 
re

v
e

n
u

e
 

b
o

n
d

s.
 

▪
IB

TC
: 
fu

n
d

s 
lis

te
d

 u
n

d
e

r 
C

a
t 

1
2

 /
 T

B
D

 n
e

e
d

s 
re

v
is

e
d

 P
D

A
 a

n
d

 d
ir
e

c
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 T
x
D

O
T 

a
s 

to
 

w
h

e
th

e
r 
a

p
p

ro
v

e
d

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 c
a

n
 b

e
 u

se
d

 f
o

r 
a

d
v

a
n

c
e

d
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 (

e
.g

.
d

e
si

g
n

, 
R

O
W

, 
a

n
d

/o
r 

u
ti
lit

y
) 

w
o

rk
.

❑
W

h
a

t’
s 

in
 t

h
e

 R
G

V
M

P
O

 (
Lo

c
a

l 
P

la
n

)

▪
3

6
5

 T
o

ll 
P

ro
je

c
t 

(T
IP

 /
 M

TP
) 

th
ru

 c
o

n
st

ru
c

ti
o

n

▪
IB

TC
 P

ro
je

c
t 

(T
IP

 /
 M

TP
) 

th
ru

 d
e

si
g

n
 (

p
e

n
d

in
g

 
fu

n
d

in
g

 c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
st

ru
c

ti
o

n
)

S
Y

S
TE

M
 

W
ID

E
P

D
A

–
P

ro
je

ct
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t

FA
A
–

F
in

an
ci

al
 A

ss
is

ta
nc

e 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t

T
IP

–
T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

ro
gr

am
 (

S
ho

rt
 

ra
ng

e)

M
T

P
–

M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 

T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

P
la

n 
(L

on
g 

R
an

ge
)



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

3
6

5
 T

O
LL

 S
E
G

S
. 

1
 &

 2
 L

IM
IT

S
 F

R
O

M
 F

M
 3

9
6
 /

 A
N

Z
. 
H

W
Y

. 

TO
 U

S
 2

8
1
 /

 B
S
IF

 C
O

N
N

E
C

TO
R

 (
3
6

5
 S

E
G

. 
3
)

3
6

5
 T

O
LL

 S
E
G

. 
4
 L

IM
IT

S
 F

R
O

M
 F

M
 1

0
1
6

 /
 C

O
N

W
A

Y
 A

V
E
 

TO
 F

M
 3

9
6
 /

 A
N

Z
. 
H

W
Y

. 
(F

U
TU

R
E
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
)

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

5

M
A

J
O

R
 M

IL
E
S
TO

N
E
S
:

N
E
P

A
 C

LE
A

R
A

N
C

E
 

0
7

/0
3

/2
0

1
5

9
8

%
 R

O
W

 A
C

Q
U

IR
E
D

P
H

 1
: 

3
6

5
 S

E
G

. 
3

 –
LE

T:
 0

8
/2

0
1

5

C
O

M
P

LE
TE

D

P
H

 2
: 

3
6
5

 T
O

LL
 

S
E
G

S
. 
1

 &
 2

 –
R

E
-L

E
T:

 2
0

2
1



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

6


S

C
H

E
D

U
LE

:

❑
E
a

rl
y

 0
8

/2
0

2
1

, 
Tx

D
O

T 
p

ro
v

id
e

s 
“
re

le
a

se
 t

o
 a

d
v

e
rt

is
e

” 

❑
0

8
/0

8
/2

0
2

1
 -

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

, 
H

C
R

M
A

 a
d

v
e

rt
is

e
s 

th
e

 3
6

5
 T

o
ll 

(6
6

 

d
a

y
s)

, 
h

o
ld

 p
re

b
id

 0
8

/3
1

/2
0

2
1

, 
a

n
d

 o
p

e
n

e
d

 b
id

s 
1

0
/1

3
/2

0
2

1
,

❑
1

0
/1

9
/2

0
2

1
, 
H

C
R

M
A

 A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 A

w
a

rd
 o

f 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
t,

❑
1

0
/2

0
/2

0
2

1
 -

1
2

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

, 
In

it
ia

te
 /

 n
e

g
o

ti
a

te
 C

O
#

1

❑
1

2
/0

1
/2

0
2

1
, 
R

e
c

e
iv

e
 T

x
D

O
T 

P
H

R
/C

S
T 

c
o

n
c

u
rr

e
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 a
w

a
rd

 

o
f 

c
o

n
tr

a
c

t,

❑
1

2
/2

1
/2

0
2

1
, 
P

o
te

n
ti
a

l H
C

R
M

A
 B

o
a

rd
 a

p
p

ro
v

a
l o

f 
C

O
#

1
, 

❑
0

1
/0

4
/2

0
2

1
 -

0
1

/1
4

/2
0

2
1

, 
H

C
R

M
A

 m
e

e
ts

 w
it
h

 r
a

ti
n

g
 a

g
e

n
c

ie
s,

 
p

ri
c

e
s 

b
o

n
d

s,

❑
0

2
/1

0
/2

0
2

1
, 
H

C
R

M
A

 c
lo

se
s 

to
ll 

re
v

e
n

u
e

 b
o

n
d

s,

❑
0

3
/2

0
2

2
, 
C

o
m

m
e

n
c

e
 4

2
-m

o
n

th
 c

o
n

st
ru

c
ti
o

n
, 
a

n
d

 

❑
0

9
/2

0
2

5
, 
O

p
e

n
 t

o
 t

ra
ff

ic
.

3
6

5
 

TO
LL



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

7

M
A

J
O

R
 M

IL
E
S
TO

N
E
S
:

O
B

TA
IN

E
D

 E
A

 E
N

V

C
LA

S
S
IF

.:
 1

1
/2

0
1

7

E
S
T.

 N
E
P

A
 C

LE
A

R
A

N
C

E
: 

LA
TE

 F
A

LL
 2

0
2

1

E
S
T.

 O
P

E
N

: 
E
A

R
LY

 2
0

2
7

7

IB
TC

 S
E
G

S
. 

1
 –

3
: 
F
R

O
M

 T
H

E
 

IN
TE

R
C

H
A

N
G

E
 W

IT
H

 3
6

5
 T

O
LL

 A
N

D
 

F
M

 4
9

3
 T

O
 I
N

TE
R

S
TA

TE
 2

IB
T

C



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

8


IB

TC
 S

C
H

E
D

U
LE

IB
TC

20
21

20
22

20
23

En
vi

ro
n

m
e

n
ta

l (
O

n
go

in
g)

Su
rv

e
ys

 (
65

%
)

R
O

W
 T

it
le

 R
e

se
ar

ch
 /

 A
p

p
ra

is
al

s

R
O

W
 A

cq
u

is
it

io
n

 (
R

e
m

ai
n

in
g)

P
la

n
s,

 S
p

e
cs

.,
 &

 E
st

im
at

e
s

U
ti

li
ty

 C
o

o
rd

 /
 R

e
lo

ca
ti

o
n

C
o

n
st

r.
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
Le

tt
in

g 
P

h
as

e

C
o

n
st

r.
 A

w
ar

d
 /

 C
o

m
m

e
n

ce

Se
p

O
ct

N
o

v
D

e
c

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

 F
R

O
M

 2
02

4-
20

27

M
ar

A
p

r
M

ay
Ju

n
Ju

l
A

u
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
o

v
D

e
c

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

A
p

r
M

ay
Ju

n
Ju

l
A

u
g

Fe
b

In
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

ri
d

g
e

 T
ra

d
e

 C
o

rr
id

o
r 

(I
B

T
C

) 
(C

S
J

: 
0

9
2

1
-0

2
-1

4
2

)

(F
ro

m
 t

h
e
 I
n
te

rc
h
a
n
g
e
 w

it
h
 3

6
5
 T

o
ll 

a
n
d
 F

M
 4

9
3
 t

o
 I
n
te

rs
ta

te
 2

)

P
ro

je
ct

 M
il

e
st

o
n

e
s

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

A
p

r
M

ay
Ju

n
Ju

l
A

u
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
o

v
D

e
c

Ja
n



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

9


A

D
V

A
N

C
E

P
LA

N
N

IN
G

❑
E
n

v
.:
 C

la
ss

if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 L

e
tt

e
r 

a
n

d
 S

c
o

p
in

g
 T

o
o

lk
it
 S

u
b

m
it
te

d
 A

u
g

 2
0

1
7

❑
H

e
ld

 I
B

TC
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
K

ic
k
 o

ff
 w

it
h

 T
x
D

O
T 

P
H

R
 /

 E
N

V
 A

p
ri
l 6

, 
2
0

1
8

. 

❑
V

R
F
 U

TP
 M

a
tc

h
in

g
 F

u
n

d
s 

re
q

u
e

st
 p

ro
c

e
ss

e
d

 a
t 

th
e

 H
C

M
P

O
—

p
e

n
d

in
g

 a
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 b

y
 

Tx
D

O
T 

a
t 

S
ta

te
 L

e
v
e

l. 

❑
A

ll 
e

n
v
. 

fi
e

ld
w

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

: 
W

a
te

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 U

S
 a

n
d

 A
rc

h
e

o
lo

g
ic

a
l t

re
n

c
h

in
g

—
In

te
rn

a
l 

R
O

E
 e

ff
o

rt
s 

w
e

re
 i
n

st
ru

m
e

n
ta

l 
to

 a
c

c
e

le
ra

ti
n

g
 t

h
is

 w
o

rk
. 

❑
M

e
e

ti
n

g
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h

 E
P

A
/T

C
E
Q

/T
x
D

O
T 

to
 d

is
c

u
ss

 D
o

n
n

a
 R

e
se

rv
o

ir
 s

it
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 H

a
zm

a
t 

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 N

E
P

A
 D

o
c

u
m

e
n

t 
O

c
t 

2
0

1
8

.

❑
P

u
b

lic
 M

e
e

ti
n

g
 t

o
o

k
 p

la
c

e
 a

t 
D

o
n

n
a

 H
ig

h
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
M

a
rc

h
 2

9
, 

2
0

1
9

.

❑
A

ll 
m

a
jo

r 
m

ile
st

o
n

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

s 
su

b
m

it
te

d
 a

n
d

 u
n

d
e

rg
o

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s:

 P
ro

je
c

t 
D

e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
, 

H
a

zm
a

t,
 H

is
to

ri
c

 R
e

so
u

rc
e

s,
 P

u
b

lic
 M

e
e

ti
n

g
 S

u
m

m
a

ry
 R

e
p

o
rt

, 
W

a
te

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 U

S
, 

a
n

d
 

A
rc

h
a

e
o

lo
g

ic
a

l R
e

so
u

rc
e

s.
  

❑
P

e
n

d
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 /

 a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
fr

o
m

 T
x
D

O
T 

o
n

: 
N

o
is

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

, 
A

rc
h

a
e

o
lo

g
ic

a
l M

it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 

P
la

n
, 

a
n

d
 C

IC
 R

e
p

o
rt

 –
so

 t
h

a
t 

fi
n

a
l d

o
c

u
m

e
n

t 
c

a
n

 b
e

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
. 

  


O

TH
E
R
: 

❑
S
u

rv
e

y
s 

(6
5

%
 c

o
m

p
le

te
) 

–
a

n
ti
c

ip
a

te
 n

e
w

 s
u

rv
e

y
 p

o
o

l 
p

ro
c

u
re

m
e

n
t 

o
n

c
e

 T
x
D

O
T 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

s 
n

e
w

 f
e

d
e

ra
liz

e
d

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c

e
d

u
re

s 
b

y
 e

n
d

 o
f 

F
a

ll 
2
0

1
9

. 
  

❑
R

O
W

 A
c

q
u

is
it
io

n
 (

5
%

 c
o

m
p

le
te

) 

❑
U

ti
lit

y
 R

e
lo

. 
(S

U
E
 1

0
0
%

, 
c

o
o

rd
in

a
ti
o

n
 in

it
ia

te
d

, 
O

v
e

ra
ll 

2
0

%
) 

❑
D

e
si

g
n

 (
P

S
&

E
, 

5
0

%
 c

o
m

p
le

te
):

 O
n

 H
o

ld

IB
TC



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

1
0

D
E
S
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
:


P

R
O

J
E
C

T 
LE

N
G

TH
 ~

2
7

 M
IL

E
S
 


F
R

O
M

 I
-6

9
C

 I
N

 H
ID

A
LG

O
 C

O
U

N
TY

 T
O

 
I6

9
-E

 I
N

 C
A

M
E
R

O
N

 C
O

U
N

TY


K

E
Y

 P
A

R
A

LL
E
L 

C
O

R
R

ID
O

R
 T

O
 I

-2
 W

IT
H

 
IM

P
O

R
TA

N
C

E
 T

O
 M

O
B

IL
IT

Y
 P

R
O

J
E
C

TS
 

B
Y

 T
X

D
O

T,
 C

C
R

M
A

 A
N

D
 H

C
R

M
A


TX

D
O

T 
C

O
M

M
IT

TE
D

 S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

TA
L 

D
E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T 
A

U
TH

O
R

IT
Y

 F
U

N
D

S
 F

O
R

 
TH

E
 E

N
TI

R
E
 2

7
 M

IL
E
 C

O
R

R
ID

O
R

 A
S
 A

N
 

E
X

P
R

E
S
S
W

A
Y

 F
A

C
IL

IT
Y

.


TX

D
O

T 
H

A
S
 C

O
M

M
IT

TE
D

 T
O

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

 
TH

E
 D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T 
O

F
 T

H
E
 

S
C

H
E
M

A
TI

C
 D

E
S
IG

N
 A

N
D

 
E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E
N

TA
L 

D
O

C
U

M
E
N

TS
.


F
E
A

S
IB

IL
IT

Y
 S

TU
D

IE
S
 K

IC
K

E
D

 O
F
F 

W
IT

H
 

A
 S

TA
K

E
H

O
LD

E
R

 M
E
E
TI

N
G

 O
C

T 
2
0

1
9

. 


P

U
B

LI
C

 M
E
E
TI

N
G

 O
N

 F
E
A

S
IB

IL
IT

Y
 

S
TU

D
IE

S
 H

E
LD

 D
E
C

E
M

B
E
R

 2
0

1
9

. 

(C
O

LL
A

B
O

R
A

TI
O

N
 W

/ 
TX

D
O

T,
 

C
C

R
M

A
, 

A
N

D
 H

C
R

M
A

)

I-
6

9
 C

o
n

n
e

c
to

r
I-

6
9

 C
o

n
n

e
c

to
r

C
o

ll
a

b
o

ra
ti

o
n



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

1
1

D
E
S
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
:


C

O
M

B
IN

E
D

 P
R

O
J
E
C

T 
LE

N
G

TH
:

3
8
 M

IL
E
S
 F

R
O

M
 F

M
 1

0
1
6
 /

 C
O

N
W

A
Y

 A
V

E
 

(M
IS

S
IO

N
/M

A
D

E
R

O
) 

TO
 I
-6

9
C

 (
N

O
R

TH
 E

D
IN

B
U

R
G

)


LI

K
E
LY

 T
O

 B
E
 C

LA
S
S
IF

IE
D

 A
S
 A

N
 E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

TA
L 

IM
P

A
C

T 
S
TA

TE
M

E
N

T 
(E

IS
) 

N
E
P

A
D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T 
(3

6
 T

O
 4

8
 

M
O

N
TH

S
)—

TO
 B

E
 E

N
G

A
G

E
D

 A
F
TE

R
 I

B
TC

E
N

V
.


P

O
TE

N
TI

A
L 

F
O

R
 C

LA
S
S
 I

 R
A

IL
 W

IT
H

IN
 T

H
E
 R

O
W

 
P

E
N

D
IN

G
 D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

TS
 F

O
R

 R
A

IL
 C

R
O

S
S
IN

G
 I

N
 

M
IS

S
IO

N
 A

R
E
A

. 


IN

TE
R

LO
C

A
L 

A
G

R
E
E
M

E
N

T 
IN

 P
LA

C
E
 W

IT
H

 C
IT

Y
 O

F
 

M
IS

S
IO

N
 F

O
R

 H
C

R
M

A
’S

 A
S
S
IS

TA
N

C
E
 W

IT
H

 
E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E
N

TA
L 

C
LE

A
R

A
N

C
E
 E

F
F
O

R
TS

.


M

A
R

C
H

 2
0
2
0
 -

H
E
LD

 A
N

 I
LA

 K
IC

K
 O

F
F
 M

E
E
TI

N
G

 W
IT

H
 

TH
E
 C

IT
Y

 O
F
 M

IS
S
IO

N
 T

O
 B

E
G

IN
 A

LI
G

N
IN

G
 E

N
V

. 
C

LE
A

R
A

N
C

E
 E

F
F
O

R
TS

 W
IT

H
 T

H
E
 C

IT
Y

’S
 I
N

TE
N

D
E
D

 
O

V
E
R

A
LL

 P
R

O
J
E
C

T 
P

LA
N

. 


M

A
Y

 2
0
2
0
 –

H
C

R
M

A
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 C
IT

Y
 O

F
 M

IS
S
IO

N
 W

 
D

R
A

F
T 

S
C

O
P

E
S
 F

O
R

 E
N

V
 /

 T
R

A
F
F
IC

 E
N

G
.

F
O

R
 T

H
E
IR

 
P

R
O

P
O

S
E
D

 E
N

V
. 
C

LE
A

R
A

N
C

E
 E

F
F
O

R
TS

 A
T 

TH
E
 

P
R

O
P

O
S
E
D

 R
A

IL
 B

R
ID

G
E
 C

R
O

S
S
IN

G
. 


S
E
P

TE
M

B
E
R

 2
0

2
0

 –
TX

D
O

T 
A

P
P

R
O

V
E
D

 C
IT

Y
 O

F
 

M
IS

S
IO

N
 P

R
O

C
U

R
E
M

E
N

T 
R

U
LE

S
 T

O
 A

LI
G

N
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E
 

“
F
E
D

E
R

A
L 

P
R

O
C

E
S
S
”

S
E
C

TI
O

N
 A

(W
E
S
T)

 /
 S

E
C

TI
O

N
 C

*C
O

M
P

LI
M

E
N

TS
 P

R
O

P
O

S
E
D

 M
IS

S
IO

N
/M

A
D

E
R

O
-R

E
Y

N
O

S
A

 

IN
TE

R
N

A
TI

O
N

A
L 

B
O

R
D

E
R

 C
R

O
S
S
IN

G
 (

B
Y

 O
TH

E
R

S
)

W
E

S
T

 L
O

O
P

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
Ty

p
ic

a
l 
S
e

c
ti
o

n
 

w
/ 

R
o

a
d

w
a

y
 &

 R
a

il
 f
o

r 
W

e
st

 L
o

o
p

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

1
2



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

1
3


O

V
E
R

W
E
IG

H
T

R
E
P

O
R

T
F
O

R
P

E
R

IO
D

:

J
A

N
1
, 
2
0
1
4
 –

S
E
P

3
0
, 
2
0
2
1

O
W

To
ta

l 
P

e
rm

it
s 

Is
su

e
d

:
2

1
6

,0
8

3

To
ta

l 
A

m
o

u
n

t 
C

o
ll
e

c
te

d
:

3
4

,7
6

0
,4

8
8

$
  
 

 ■
 C

o
n

v
e

n
ie

n
c

e
 F

e
e

s:
7

0
7

,6
8

8
$

  
  
  
  

 ■
 T

o
ta

l 
P

e
rm

it
 F

e
e

s:
3

4
,0

5
2

,8
0

0
$

  
 

–
 P

ro
 M

ile
s:

6
4

8
,2

4
9

$
  
  
  
 

–
 T

x
D

O
T:

2
8

,9
4

4
,8

8
0

$
  

–
 H

C
R

M
A

:
4

,4
5

9
,6

7
1

$
  
  



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

1
4


O

V
E
R

W
E
IG

H
T

R
E
P

O
R

T
F
O

R
P

E
R

IO
D

:

J
A

N
1
, 
2
0
2
1
 –

S
E
P

3
0
, 
2
0
2
1

O
W

To
ta

l 
P

e
rm

it
s 

Is
su

e
d

:
3

1
,4

0
4

To
ta

l 
A

m
o

u
n

t 
C

o
ll
e

c
te

d
:

6
,3

5
6

,3
2

8
$

  
  
 

 ■
 C

o
n

v
e

n
ie

n
c

e
 F

e
e

s:
7

5
,5

2
8

$
  
  
  
  
  
 

 ■
 T

o
ta

l 
P

e
rm

it
 F

e
e

s:
6

,2
8

0
,8

0
0

$
  
  
 

–
 P

ro
 M

ile
s:

9
4

,2
1

2
$

  
  
  
  
 

–
 T

x
D

O
T:

5
,3

3
8

,6
8

0
$

  
  

–
 H

C
R

M
A

:
8

4
7

,9
0

8
$

  
  
  
 



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

2
,9

4
7

2
,3

4
5

3
,1

8
9

2
,1

1
0

3
,7

5
0

4
,0

1
6

3
,6

1
7

3
,5

1
0

2
,5

8
5

2
,7

8
8

2
,6

3
6

2
,5

4
7

3
,2

9
2

2
,6

2
3

3
,7

6
8

3
,6

3
8

4
,0

7
4

4
,4

1
7

3
,5

2
6

3
,2

0
0

2
,8

6
6

2
,0

0
0

2
,2

5
0

2
,5

0
0

2
,7

5
0

3
,0

0
0

3
,2

5
0

3
,5

0
0

3
,7

5
0

4
,0

0
0

4
,2

5
0

4
,5

0
0

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

A
p

ri
l

M
ay

Ju
n

e
Ju

ly
A

u
g

Se
p

t
O

ct
N

o
v

D
ec

O
ve

rw
ei

gh
t/

O
ve

rs
iz

ed
 P

er
m

it
 C

o
u

n
t 

2
0

2
0

 -
2

0
2

1
 M

o
n

th
ly

 C
o

m
p

ar
is

o
n

2
0

2
0

2
0

2
1

N
o

te
s:

1
.

Th
e

 p
e

rm
it
 c

o
u

n
t 

fo
r 

2
0

2
0

 (
3

6
,0

4
0

) 
e

n
d

e
d

 w
it
h

 a
 +

6
.7

%
 i
n

c
re

a
se

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t
o

 2
0
1
9
 (

3
3
,7

9
0
).

 

2
.

M
o

n
th

ly
 p

e
rm

it
 c

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

3
,2

0
0
 r

e
p

re
se

n
ts

 a
 +

1
0

.9
%

 i
n

c
re

a
se

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 s
a

m
e

 m
o

n
th

 i
n

 2
0
2
0
. 

+
1
0
.9

%
 

(N
o

te
 2

)


O

V
E
R

W
E
IG

H
T

R
E
P

O
R

T
F
O

R
P

E
R

IO
D

:

J
A

N
1
, 
2
0
2
1
 –

S
E
P

3
0
, 
2
0
2
1

O
W

1
5



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

1
6

S
o

u
rc

e
: 
M

c
G

ra
w

 H
il
l 
C

o
n

st
ru

c
ti
o

n
 E

N
R


C

O
N

S
TR

. 
E

C
O

N
O

M
IC

S
O

C
T

2
0
2
1

C
E

1
.0

%

2
.0

%

3
.0

%

4
.0

%

5
.0

%

6
.0

%

7
.0

%

8
.0

%

9
.0

%

1
0
.0

%

2
0

1
5

2
0

1
6

2
0

1
7

2
0

1
8

2
0

1
9

2
0

2
0

2
0

2
1

% CHANGE

Y
E
A

R

C
o

n
st

ru
c

ti
o

n
 C

o
st

 I
n

d
e

x
 (

C
C

I)
 C

h
a

n
g

e
 (

%
)

Y
e

a
r-

to
-Y

e
a

r 
fo

r 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
m

o
n

th

C
o

st
s 

In
c

re
a

se
d

 

+
8
.0

%
 Y

TD

U
P

D
A

TE
 F

O
R

M
U

LA
 

O
N

 D
A

TA
 B

Y
 A

 
C

O
LU

M
N

 E
A

C
H

 



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t


C

O
N

S
TR

. 
E

C
O

N
O

M
IC

S
O

C
T

2
0
2
1

C
E

1
7



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



Item 1B 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

 BOARD OF DIRECTORS    X AGENDA ITEM          1B 
PLANNING COMMITTEE   DATE SUBMITTED   10/14/21 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING DATE  10/26/21 
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 

1. Agenda Item:  REPORT ON 365 TOLLWAY PROJECT FINANCING ACTIVITIES.

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No

Report on 365 Tollway Project Financing Activities – Richard Ramirez, Hilltop Securities.

3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas
Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy

4. Budgeted:  Yes   No     X   N/A 

5. Staff Recommendation: Report only.

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:   Approved  Disapproved       X   None 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved        Disapproved       X   None 

8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:   Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:   Approved    Disapproved       X   None 

11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved  Disapproved    X   None 

12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved       Disapproved        X   None 

13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:      Approved  Disapproved        X   None 



Item 2A 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                     2A                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           10/19/21                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        10/26/21  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING HELD SEPTEMBER 28, 

2021.              
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and Approval of Minutes for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Board 

of Directors Regular Meeting held September 28, 2021.       
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve the minutes for the Board of Director’s Regular  

Meeting held September 28, 2021, as presented.        
 
6. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Finance Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved       _   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   _   Approved          Disapproved       X_   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X_  None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X_  None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:  X    Approved          Disapproved        _  None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



HCRMA Minutes – September 28, 2021 1  

 
STATE OF TEXAS 
COUNTY OF HIDALGO 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
 
The Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Board of Directors convened for a Regular Meeting on Tuesday, 
September 28, 2021, at 5:30 pm at the Pharr City Hall, 2nd Floor City Commission Chambers, 118 S. Cage, Blvd, Pharr, TX 
78577, with the following participating: 

 
Board Members:   S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 
    Forrest Runnels, Vice-Chairman  
    Alonzo Cantu, Director (Teleconference) 

Paul Moxley, Director (Teleconference) 
Frank Pardo, Director 

   Joaquin Spamer, Director  
 

         Absent:                    Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Secretary/Treasurer 
   

                          Staff:  Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director  
    Ramon Navarro, Chief Construction Engineer  

Eric Davila, Chief Development Engineer  
Celia Gaona, Chief Auditor/Compliance Officer 
Jose Castillo, Chief Financial Officer 
Maria Alaniz, Administrative Assistant III 

    Luis Cardenas, Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP, Legal Counsel 
    Richard Ramirez, Hilltop Securities, Financial Advisor 
       
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
Chairman Deanda led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
INVOCATION 
 
Ms. Gaona led the Invocation. 
 
CALL TO ORDER FOR REGULAR MEETING AND ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
Chairman Deanda called the Regular Meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

No Comments. 
 

1. REPORTS 
 

A. Report on Program Manager Activity for 365 Tollway Project and IBTC Environmental Clearance Document – 
Eric Davila, HCRMA.  
Mr. Eric Davila reported on Program Manager Activity for 365 Tollway Project and IBTC Environmental 
Clearance Document. No action taken. 
 

B. Report on 365 Tollway Project Financing Activities – Richard Ramirez, Hilltop Securities.  
Mr. Colby Eckols, Hilltop Securities, reported on the 365 Tollway Project Financing Activities. No action taken. 
 



HCRMA Minutes – September 28, 2021 2  

2. CONSENT AGENDA.  

Motion by Forrest Runnels, with a second by Joaquin Spamer, to approve the Consent Agenda.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
A. Approval of Minutes for the Regular Meeting held August 24, 2021. 

Approved the Minutes for the Regular Meeting held August 24, 2021. 
 

B. Approval of Project & General Expense Report for the period from August 7, 2021 to September 8, 2021.  
Approved the Project & General Expense Report for the period from August 7, 2021 to September 8, 2021. 

  
C. Approval of Financial Reports for August 2021.  

Approved the Financial Reports for August 2021. 
 

D. Resolution 2021-28 – Approving the 3rd Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement for Administrative 
Services with the City of Pharr.  
Approved Resolution 2021-28 – Approving the 3rd Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement for 
Administrative Services with the City of Pharr. 
 

E. Resolution 2021–44 – Approval of Work Authorization 10 to the Professional Services Agreement with Melden 
& Hunt to provide boundary survey services for the 365 Tollway Wetland Conservation Easement in the 
amount of $2,105.00.  
Approved Resolution 2021–44 – Approval of Work Authorization 10 to the Professional Services Agreement 
with Melden & Hunt to provide boundary survey services for the 365 Tollway Wetland Conservation Easement 
in the amount of $2,105.00. 
 

F. Resolution 2021–45 – Approval of Contract Amendment 8 to the Professional Services Agreement with 
Melden & Hunt to increase the maximum payable amount for Work Authorization 10.  
Approved Resolution 2021–45 – Approval of Contract Amendment 8 to the Professional Services Agreement 
with Melden & Hunt to increase the maximum payable amount for Work Authorization 10 for a revised 
maximum payable amount of $93,095.50. 
 

3. REGULAR AGENDA 
 

A. Resolution 2021–35 – Approval of One Year Extension to the Professional Service Agreement with Shepard 
Walton King to provide Insurance Broker Services to the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority.   
Motion by Joaquin Spamer, with a second by Forrest Runnels, to approve Resolution 2021–35 – Approval of 
One Year Extension to the Professional Service Agreement with Shepard Walton King to provide Insurance 
Broker Services to the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 

B. Resolution 2021 – 36 – Approval of Award of Contract with L&G Consulting Engineers, Inc. for construction 
material testing services for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority.   
Motion by Joaquin Spamer, with a second by Frank Pardo, to approve Resolution 2021 – 36 – Approval of 
Award of Contract with L&G Consulting Engineers, Inc. for construction material testing services for the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority in the amount of $2,765,349.03. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

C. Resolution 2021 – 37 – Approval of Work Authorization 1 with L&G Consulting Engineers, Inc. for material 
testing in the 365 Tollway Project.   
Motion by Joaquin Spamer, with a second by Paul Moxley, to approve Resolution 2021 – 37 – Approval of 
Work Authorization 1 with L&G Consulting Engineers, Inc. in the amount of $2,765,349.03 for material 
testing in the 365 Tollway Project.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 



HCRMA Minutes – September 28, 2021 3  

D. Resolution 2021 – 38 – Approval of Award of Contract with Terracon Consultants, Inc. for construction 
material testing services for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority.   
Motion by Joaquin Spamer, with a second by Frank Pardo, to approve Resolution 2021 – 38 – Approval of 
Award of Contract with Terracon Consultants, Inc. for construction material testing services for the Hidalgo 
County Regional Mobility Authority in the amount of $1,950,258.64.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

E. Resolution 2021 – 39 – Approval of Work Authorization 1 with Terracon Consultants, Inc. for material testing 
in the 365 Tollway Project.   
Motion by Forrest Runnels, with a second by Joaquin Spamer, to approve Resolution 2021 – 39 – Approval 
of Work Authorization 1 with Terracon Consultants, Inc. in the amount of $1,950,258.64  for material testing 
in the 365 Tollway Project.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

F. Resolution 2021 – 42 – Approval of Award of Contract with B2Z Engineering, LLC for construction material 
testing services for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority.   
Motion by Frank Pardo, with a second by Joaquin Spamer, to approve Resolution 2021 – 42 – Approval of 
Award of Contract with B2Z Engineering, LLC in the amount of $201,143.26 for construction material testing 
services for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

G. Resolution 2021 – 43 – Approval of Work Authorization 1 with B2Z Engineering, LLC for material testing in the 
365 Tollway Project.   
Motion by Joaquin Spamer, with a second by Frank Pardo, to approve Resolution 2021 – 43 – Approval of 
Work Authorization 1 with B2Z Engineering, LLC in the amount of $201,143.26 for material testing in the 
365 Tollway Project.  Motion carried unanimously 
 
 

4. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
 

A. None. 
 

5.  TABLED ITEMS 
 

A. None. 
 

6. EXECUTIVE SESSION, CHAPTER 551, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, SECTION 551.071 (CONSULTATION WITH 
ATTORNEY), SECTION 551.072 (DELIBERATION OF REAL PROPERTY) AND SECTION 551.074 (PERSONNEL 
MATTERS)  
 
A. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the acquisition, including the use of Eminent Domain, 

for property required to complete the project alignments of the 365 Tollway Project (Sections 551.071 and 
551.072 T.G.C.). 

No action taken 
 
B. Consultation with Attorney on personnel matters related annual evaluation of the Executive Director 

(551.074 T.G.C.) 
No action taken 
 

C. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to an Interlocal Cooperative Agreement with the City 
of Mission to provide Right of Way Acquisition Services (Section 551.071 T. G.C.) 
No action taken. 
 
 



HCRMA Minutes – September 28, 2021 4  

D. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the Texas Department of Transportation State 
Infrastructure Bank Loan for the 365 Tollway Project (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 
No action taken. 
 

E. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to Professional Service Agreements for Engineering, 
Surveying and Environmental Services (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 
No action taken.  
 

F. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the acquisition of real property for various parcels for 
the 365 Tollway Project and International Bridge Trade Corridor Project (Sections 551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.). 
No action taken.  
 

G. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the Environmental Clearance Document for the 
International Bridge Trade Corridor Project (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 
No action taken. 
 

H. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the issuance of one or more Series of Hidalgo County 
Regional Mobility Authority bonds and related agreements and provisions relating to the subject (Section 
551.071 T.G.C.).                                                                                                                           
No action taken. 
 

I. Consultation with Attorney on personnel matters related to the COVID-19 pandemic (Section 551.074 
T.G.C.).                                                                                                                           
No action taken. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no other business to come before the Board of Directors, motion by Forrest Runnels, with a second by 
Joaquin Spamer, to adjourn the meeting at 5:52 p.m.  
 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
S. David Deanda, Jr, Chairman 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Secretary/Treasurer 

 



Item 2B 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                   2B                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           10/20/21                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        10/26/21  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  APPROVAL OF PROJECT AND GENERAL EXPENSE REPORT FROM 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2021 TO OCTOBER 6, 2021     _   
 

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of project and general expense report for the period from   

September 9, 2021 to October 6, 2021         
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:       X   Yes           No          N/A  Funding Source:  VRF Bond 
 
     
 General Account                  $ 102,802.64  

   Disbursement Account                  $ 139,455.26 
 VRF Series 2020A                  $ 187,033.78 

 Total Project Expenses for Reporting Period                $    429,291.68  
       
      Fund Balance after Expenses   $ 8,527,564.21  
  
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve the project and general expense report for the  

September 9, 2021 to October 6, 2021, as presented.       
 
6. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Finance Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9 Chief Auditor’s Recommendation: _     Approved          Disapproved       X_   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
 
 
 



 
 

   

Memorandum 
To: S. David Deanda Jr., Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: October 19, 2021 

Re: Expense Report for the Period from September 9, 2021 to October 6, 2021 

Attached is the expense report for the period commencing on September 9, 2021 to October 6, 2021. 
 
Expenses for the General Account total $102,802.64, Disbursement Account total $139,455.26 and the 
VRF Series 2020A Account is $187,033.78. The aggregate expense for the reporting period is 
$429,291.68. 
  
Based on review by this office, approval of expenses for the reporting period is recommended in 
the aggregate amount of $429,291.68. 
 
This leaves a fund balance (all funds) after expenses of $8,527,564.21. 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise.  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Plains Capital 41 Make Check Payable to Date Work Performed Amount

Wages & Benefits City of Pharr September 2021 71,641.47$

Office Depot 10/06/2021 105.61$

Office Depot 10/06/2021 17.49$

A Fast Delivery, LLC September 2021 112.25$

Copy Zone September 2021 554.28$

Bracewell, LLP September 2021 480.00$

Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP September 2021 75.00$

Pathfinder Public Affairs September 2021 10,000.00$

Accounting Fees City of Pharr September 2021 205.00$

Rent City of Pharr October 2021 4,480.00$

City of Pharr September 2021 4,305.00$

City of Pharr October 2021 655.00$

Xerox Financial Services September 2021 591.60$

Xerox Financial Services October 2021 591.60$

Xerox 10/1/2021 10/31/2021 194.05$

Professional Services Pena Designs September 2021 200.00$

Shepard Walton King Insurance Group 8/2020 8/2021 7,147.50$

Advance Publishing LLC 09/29/2021 73.13$

Credit Card Services 9/04/2021 10/03/2021 $

Credit Card Services 9/04/2021 10/03/2021 1,119.58$

Credit Card Services 9/04/2021 10/03/2021 254.08$

102,802.64$

Wilmington Trust 45/Capital Projects

Legal Fees Bracewell, LLP September 2021 18,640.00$

Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP September 2021 2,350.00$

Blanton & Associates, Inc. September 2021 4,270.44$

Blanton & Associates, Inc. September 2021 5,458.87$

C&M Associates, Inc. 8/24/2021 9/30/2021 28,478.60$

HDR Engineering, Inc. 08/29/21 09/25/21 31,877.78$

HDR Engineering, Inc. 08/29/2021 09/25/2021 39,636.86$

HDR Engineering, Inc. 08/29/2021 09/25/2021 799.90$

HDR Engineering, Inc. 8/29/2021 09/25/2021 7,942.81$

$139,455.26

Wilmington Trust 46/VRF Series 2020A

L&G Engineering September 2021 119,802.50$

Saenz Oil & Gas Services Thru 10/02/2021 66,918.78$

Sendero Acquisition, LP September 2021 312.50$

187,033.78$

Sub Total Genera 102,802.64$

Sub Total Project 139,455.26$

Sub Total 46 187,033.78$

Total 429,291.68$

Approved: Recommend Approval:

S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director

Approved: Date: 10/26/2021

Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Secretary/Treasurer

Sept 9 - Oct. 6

Oct. 2021 

Page 1 of 1



Item 2C 



 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                   2C                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           10/19/21                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        10/26/21  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE MONTHS OF 

SEPTEMBER 2021.            
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of financial report for the months of September 2021.    
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 

Funding Source:         
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve the Financial Report for the months of   

September 2021, as presented.             
  
6. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Finance Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9.    Chief Auditor’s Recommendation: _    Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







































Item 2D 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                    2D                                  

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED          10/19/2021                                                          
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE       10/26/2021 
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  APPROVAL OF QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT FOR THE PERIOD  

ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021.          
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of the quarterly investment reports for the period ending September 

30, 2021.             
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Public  

Funds Investment Act Section 2256                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve the Quarterly Investment Report for the period  

ending September 30, 2021 as presented          
 
6. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:        Approved          Disapproved         X    None 
 
8. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:         Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
   
9. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved             None 
 
10. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:         Approved          Disapproved       X  None 
 
11. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X     None 
 
12. Executive Director’s Recommendation:     X    Approved          Disapproved              None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





















 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



Item 3A 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS                               X                     AGENDA ITEM                  3A                       
PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED        10/14/2021                    
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE     10/26/2021     
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2021-40 – APPROVAL OF AWARD OF CONTRACT WITH 

RABA KISTNER , INC. FOR CONSTRUCTION MATERIAL TESTING SERVICES FOR THE 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY.__                                                     _      
 

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Approval of award contract for CMT Services to RABA Kistner, Inc.______                           ____   
   
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2021-40 - Approval of award of 

contract with RABA Kistner, Inc. for Construction Material Testing Services for the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority, as presented.                  
. 

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X_  None 
 
10.       Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:       Approved         Disapproved    X    None 
 
11. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:    X   Approved         Disapproved        X   None 
 
12. Executive Director’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved           None 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Memorandum 
To: Pilar Rodriguez, P.E 

HCRMA, Executive Director 

 From: Ramon Navarro, IV, P.E., C.F.M. 
HCRMA, Chief Construction Engineer 

 Date: October 19, 2021 

Subject:  RESOLUTION 2021-40 APPROVAL OF AWARD OF CONTRACT WITH 
RABA KISTNER, INC. FOR CONSTRUCTION MATERIAL TESTING 
SERVICES FOR THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY 

GOAL 
Approval and authorization to enter into contract for 2020-2021 Construction Material Testing Services 
with Raba Kistner, Inc. 

HISTORY 
October 27, 2020 the HCRMA Board authorized the Executive Director to enter into negotiations with 
each of the, ranked firms and further approach Board with recommended award and distribution of 
work in accordance to acceptable terms and conditions of assignments. 

Raba Kistner, Inc. have agreed to provide construction materials testing to assure the materials 
incorporated into 6.38 miles of Segment 1 [From Anzalduas Highway east to  McColl Road] on Phase II 
of 365 Toll highway construction project are subject to verification sampling and testing when required 
and meet project plans and specifications; and administering the HCRMA Quality Monitoring and 
Quality Assurance Program. 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends award of contract in the amount of $2,953,477.12 for an “indefinite 
delivery/indefinite quantity [IDIQ]” set of rates for a proposed three (3) year fixed period of time, during 
that period of time the Engineer will be responsible for an unlimited number of separate projects, or 
additional work on a current project to be issued on an individual work order basis. 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2021-40 

APPROVAL OF AWARD OF CONTRACT WITH RABA KISTNER, INC. FOR 
CONSTRUCTION MATERIAL TESTING SERVICES FOR THE HIDALGO 
COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 26th day of October, 2021, by the Board of Directors of 
the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at a regular meeting. 

WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), 
acting through its Board of Directors (the “Board”), is a regional mobility authority created 
pursuant to Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); 

WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Act to address mobility issues in 
and around Hidalgo County; 

WHEREAS, on February 19, 2014, the Authority issued a solicitation for 
Statements of Qualification for Construction Material Testing Services for the Authority 
(the “Solicitation”); and 

WHEREAS, on March 21, 2014 the Authority received responses to the 
Solicitation; and 

WHEREAS, on April 23, 2014, Resolution 2014-38 authorized Authority staff to 
negotiate and enter into agreements with the top three scored firms (Raba Kistner 
Consultants Inc., L&G Laboratories and Terracon Consultants, Inc.) for Construction 
Material Testing Services (the “Services”); and 

WHEREAS, on July 24, 2018, Resolution 2018-45 authorized Authority staff to 
procure one additional lab to provide additional Services; and 

WHEREAS, on July 29, 2018, the Authority published a second Solicitation; and 
received three (3) responses, of which only one was deemed responsive; 

WHEREAS, on September 25, 2018, the Authority authorized staff to negotiate 
contract terms for the Services to PaveTex Engineering LLC, dba PAVETEX, the sole 
responsive firm that met the professional services criteria set forth in the Solicitation; 

WHEREAS, on August 21, 2020, the Authority received five (5) sealed statements 
of qualification packets. An internal committee of three HCRMA staff engineers  ranked and 
reviewed; the Authority determined it necessary to negotiate contract terms to enter into 
negotiations with each of the ranked firms and further approach Board with recommended 
award and distribution of work in accordance to acceptable terms and conditions of 
assignments; and  



WHEREAS on October 27, 2020, the Authority approved Resolution 2020-28 
Approval to enter into negotiations with each of the short-listed firms for Construction 
Material Testing for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority and further approach 
Board with recommended award and distribution of work in accordance to acceptable terms 
and conditions of assignments; and 

WHEREAS the Authority finds it necessary to approve Resolution 
2021-40 Approval of Award of Contract by and between the Raba Kistner, Inc., and the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority for Construction Material Testing Services. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY THAT: 

Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 

restated. 

Section 2. The Board hereby approves Award of Contract by and between Raba 
Kistner, Inc. and the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority for 
Construction Material Testing Services in the amount of $2,953,477.12, 
hereto attached as Exhibit A.  

Section 3. The Board authorizes the Executive Director to execute the Professional 
Service Agreement for Construction Material Testing with Raba Kistner, 
Inc., as approved by the Board. 

***** 



PASSED A ND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY AT A REGULAR MEETING, duly posted and noticed, on the 26th day of 
October 2021, at which meeting a quorum was present. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Secretary/Treasurer 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Exhibit A 

Main  

Professional Service  

Agreement with 

Raba Kistner, Inc. 

For  

Construction Material Testing Services 



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
COUNTY OF HIDALGO § 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR 
ENGINEERING / DESIGN SERVICES 

THIS CONTRACT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES is made by and between the Hidalgo County Regional 
Mobility Authority (HCRMA) (hereinafter the “Authority”) and Raba Kistner, Inc.  (herein after the “Engineer”), having 
its principal business address at 12821 W. Golden Lane   San Antonio, Texas 78249 for the purpose of contracting 
for engineering services (hereinafter the “Agreement”). 

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, Government Code, Chapter 2254, Subchapter A, “Professional Services Procurement Act” 
provides for the procurement of professional services of engineers; 

WHEREAS, in compliance with the Professional Services Procurement Act and all federal requirements including 
those described in 23 CFR Part 172, the Authority procured professional engineering services (the 
“Procurement”); 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Procurement and the Authority Board of Director’s (the Board’s) ranking of 
respondents thereto, the Board finds it to be in the best interest of the Authority to engage the Engineer to provide 
verification sampling and testing services as required by the 2019 TxDOT Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing 
for Design Bid-Build Projects and adopted Quality Assurance Program (QAP) to assure that materials and 
workmanship incorporated into highway construction projects are in reasonable conformity with the requirements 
of the approved plans and specifications, including any approved changes as required for the development of the 
Project, as approved by the Authority to wit: the { PROVIDE CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS TESTING 
TO ASSURE THE MATERIALS INCORPORATED INTO 6.38 MILES OF SEGMENT 2 [FROM 
ANZALDUAS HIGHWAY EAST TO MCCOLL ROAD] ON PHASE II OF 365 TOLL HIGHWAY 
CONSTRUCTION PROJECT ARE SUBJECT TO VERIFICATION SAMPLING AND TESTING 
WHEN REQUIRED AND MEET PROJECT PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS; AND ADMINISTERING 
QUALITY MONITORING AND QUALITY ASSURANCE PROGRAM. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Authority and the Engineer, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements 
herein contained, do hereby mutually agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ARTICLE I 
SCOPE OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE ENGINEER 

1.1 The Engineer shall timely perform those engineering services for the fulfillment of the Agreement. All 
work shall be subject to review and approval by the Authority, and, if appropriate, the Texas Department of 
Transportation and the Federal Highway Administration. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this 
Agreement or in any other Agreement document relating to the project, in performing its work under this 
Agreement Engineer shall perform its services to the standard of care of a reasonable engineer that is performing 
the same or similar work, at the same time and locality and under the same or similar conditions faced by Engineer. 

1.2 The Authority and the Engineer will furnish items and perform those services for fulfillment of the 
Agreement as identified in Attachment B, Services to be provided by the Authority and Attachment C, Services 
to be provided by the Engineer. All services provided by the Engineer will conform to standard engineering 
practices and applicable rules and regulations of the Texas Engineering Practices Act and the rules of the Texas 
Board of Professional Engineers. 

ARTICLE II 
AGREEMENT PERIOD 

This Agreement becomes effective when fully executed by all parties hereto and it shall terminate at the close of 
business on December 13, 2025 unless the Agreement period is: (1) modified by written supplemental agreement 
prior to the date of termination as set forth in Attachment A, General Provisions, Section 6, Supplemental 
Agreements; (2) extended due to a work suspension as provided for in Attachment A, Section 3, Paragraph C; or 
(3) otherwise terminated in accordance with Attachment A, General Provisions, Section 14, Termination. Any
work performed or cost incurred before or after the Agreement period shall be ineligible for reimbursement.

ARTICLE III 
COMPENSATION 

3.1 Maximum Amount Payable. The maximum amount payable under this contract is $2,953,477.12 unless 
modified (1) modified written supplemental agreement prior to the date of termination as set forth in Attachment 
A, General Provisions, Section 6, Supplemental Agreements or (2) modified through a work authorization as set 
forth in Article V, provided that such work authorizations is adopted by Board action. 

3.2 Basis of Payment. The basis of payment is identified in Attachment E, Fee Schedule. Reimbursement 
of costs incurred under a work authorization shall be in accordance with Attachment E, Fee Schedule. 

3.3 Reimbursement of Eligible Costs. To be eligible for reimbursement, the Engineer's costs must (1) be 
incurred in accordance with the terms of a valid work authorization; (2) be in accordance with Attachment E, Fee 
Schedule; and (3) comply with cost principles set forth at 48 CFR Part 31, Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR 
31). Satisfactory progress of work shall be maintained and evidenced as a condition of payment. 

3.4 Engineer Payment of Subproviders. No later than ten (10) days after receiving payment from the 
Authority, the Engineer shall pay all subproviders for work performed under a subcontract authorized hereunder. 
The Authority may withhold all payments that have or may become due if the Engineer fails to comply with the 
ten-day payment requirement. The Authority may also suspend the work under this Agreement 



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

or any work authorization until subproviders are paid. This requirement also applies to all lower tier 
subproviders, and this provision must be incorporated into all subcontracts related to the project. 

ARTICLE IV 
PAYMENT REQUIREMENTS 

4.1 Monthly Billing Statements. The Engineer shall request reimbursement of costs incurred by submitting 
the original and one copy of an itemized billing statement in a form acceptable to the Authority. The Engineer is 
authorized to submit requests for reimbursement no more frequently than monthly and no later than ninety (90) 
days after costs are incurred. 

4.2 Billing Statement. The billing statement shall show the work authorization number for each work 
authorization included in the billing, the total amount earned to the date of submission, and the amount due and 
payable as of the date of the current billing statement for each work authorization. The billing statement shall 
indicate if the work has been completed or if the billing is for partial completion of the work. The lump sum fee 
will be paid in proportion to the percentage of work completed per work authorization. 

4.3 Overhead Rates. The Engineer shall use the provisional overhead rate indicated in Attachment E. If a 
periodic escalation of the provisional overhead rate is specified in Attachment E, the effective date of the revised 
provisional overhead rate must be included. For lump sum agreements where a lump sum applies to a work 
authorization the overhead rate utilized shall correspond with the overhead rate specified in the year in which the 
work authorization is executed. 

4.4 Thirty Day Payments.   Upon receipt and acceptance of a billing statement that complies with all invoice 
requirements set forth in this Article, the Authority shall make a good faith effort to pay the amount which is due 
and payable within thirty (30) days. 

4.5 Withholding Payments. The Authority reserves the right to withhold payment of the Engineer's billing 
statement in the event of any of the following: (1) If a dispute over the work or costs thereof is not resolved within 
a thirty day period; (2) pending verification of satisfactory work performed; (3) the Engineer becomes a delinquent 
obligor as set forth in Section 231.006 of the Family Code; or (4) required reports are not received. In the event 
that payment is withheld, the Authority shall notify the Engineer and give a remedy that would allow the Authority 
to release the payment. 

4.6 Required Reports. 
a) As required in Attachment H, Disadvantaged Business Enterprise or Historically Underutilized

Business Program Requirements, the Engineer shall submit Progress Assessment Reports to report actual 
payments made to Disadvantaged Business Enterprises or Historically Underutilized Businesses.   One copy shall 
be submitted with each billing statement and one copy shall be submitted to the address included in Attachment 
H, Disadvantaged Business Enterprise or Historically Underutilized Business Program Requirements. 

b) Prior to Agreement closeout, the Engineer shall submit a Final Report (Attachment H-4) to the
address set forth in Attachment H. 

c) The Engineer shall submit a separate report with each billing statement showing the percent
completion of the work accomplished during the billing period and the percent completion to date, and any 
additional written report requested by the Authority to document the progress of the work. 



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

4.7 Subproviders and Suppliers List. Pursuant to requirements of 43 Texas Administrative Code §9.50 et 
seq., the Engineer must provide the Authority a list (Attachment H-5/DBE or Attachment H-6/HUB) of all 
Subproviders and suppliers that submitted quotes or proposals for subcontracts. This list shall include 
subproviders’ and suppliers’ names, addresses, telephone numbers, and type of work desired. 
4.8 Debt to the Authority. If the Authority is prohibited by law from issuing a warrant or initiating an 
electronic funds transfer to the Engineer because of a debt owed to the Authority, the Authority shall apply all 
payments due the Engineer to the debt or delinquent tax until the debt or delinquent tax is paid in full. 

4.9 Audit. The Authority auditor may conduct an audit or investigation of any entity receiving funds from the 
Authority directly under this Agreement or indirectly through a subcontract under this Agreement. Acceptance of 
funds directly under this Agreement or indirectly through a subcontract under this Agreement acts as acceptance 
of the Authority’s right or the Authority’s auditor right, to conduct an audit or investigation in connection with 
those funds. An entity that is the subject of an audit or investigation must provide the Authority auditor with 
access to any information the Authority auditor considers relevant to the investigation or audit. 

ARTICLE V 
WORK AUTHORIZATIONS 

The Authority will issue work authorizations using the form included in Attachment D (Work Authorizations and 
Supplemental Work Authorizations) to authorize all work under this Agreement. The Engineer must sign and 
return a work authorization within seven (7) working days after receipt. Refusal to accept a work authorization 
may be grounds for termination of this Agreement. The Authority shall not be responsible for actions by the 
Engineer or any costs incurred by the Engineer relating to work not directly associated with or prior to the 
execution of a work authorization. Terms and conditions governing the use of work authorizations are set forth in 
Attachment A, General Provisions, Section 1. The work authorization shall not waive the Authority’s or the 
Engineer’s responsibilities and obligations established under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE VI 
SIGNATORY WARRANTY 

The undersigned signatory for the Engineer hereby represents and warrants that he or she is an officer of the 
organization for which he or she has executed this Agreement and that he or she has full and complete Authority 
to enter into this Agreement on behalf of the firm. These representations and warranties are made for the purpose 
of inducing the Authority to enter into this Agreement. 

ARTICLE VII 
NOTICES 

All notices to either party by the other required under this agreement shall be delivered personally or sent by 
certified or U.S. mail, postage prepaid, addressed to such party at the following addresses: 

Authority: 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (HCRMA)  
203 W. Newcombe Ave./PO BOX 1766 
Pharr, Texas 78577 
Attn: Pilar Rodriguez, P.E., Executive Director 

Engineer: 
Raba Kistner, Inc. 
12821 W. Golden Lane  
San Antonio, Texas 78249 
Attn: Chris L. Schultz, President / CEO 



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

All notices shall be deemed given on the date so delivered or so deposited in the mail, unless otherwise provided 
herein.   Either party may change the above address by sending written notice of the change to the other party. 
Either party may request in writing that such notices shall be delivered personally or by certified 
U.S. mail and such request shall be honored and carried out by the other party. 



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ARTICLE VIII 
INCORPORATION OF PROVISIONS 

Attachments A through K are attached hereto and incorporated into this Agreement as if fully set forth herein. 

SIGNATORIES 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Authority and the Engineer have executed these presents in duplicate and 
acknowledge that this Agreement constitutes the sole and only Agreement of the Parties hereto and supersedes 
any prior understandings or written or oral agreements between the Parties respecting the within subject matter. 

AUTHORITY 

By:  

Name: Pilar Rodriguez 

Title: Executive Director 

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority_____ 

ENGINEER 

By:  

Name: Chris L. Schultz 

Title: President Raba 

Kistner, Inc. 

Date: Date:

: 



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS TO AGREEMENT 
FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 

INCORPORATED INTO THE AGREEMENT BY REFERENCE 

Attachments Title 
A General Provisions 
B Services to Be Provided by the Authority 
C Services to Be Provided by the Engineer 
D Work Authorization Forms 

D-1 Work Authorization Form for Agreement for Engineering Services 
D-2 Supplemental Work Authorization Form 
E Fee Schedule 

E-1 Final Cost Proposal Form 
E-2 Rate Sheets 
E-3 Maximum Amount Payable 
F Work Schedule 
G Contract Deliverables/Computer Graphics Files for Document and Information 

Exchange, if applicable 
H DBE Participation 

H-MOU Memorandum of Understanding 
H-Instructions Instructions As per 49CFR 26.21 

H-FG Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) for Federal Funded Professional or 
Technical Services Contracts – See Attachment H Instructions 

H–FN Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) for Race-Neutral Professional or 
Technical Services Contracts – See Attachment H Instructions 

H–SG Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) Requirements for County Funded 
Professional or Technical Services Contracts – County of Texas HUB. 
Subcontracting plan required – See Attachment H Instructions 

H–SN Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) Requirements for County Funded 
Professional or Technical Services Contracts – No County of Texas HUB 

H–1 Subprovider Monitoring System Commitment Worksheet 
H–2 Subprovider Monitoring System Commitment Agreement 
H–3 Monthly Progress Assessment Report 
H-4 Subprovider Monitoring System Final Report 
H-5 Federal Subproviders and Supplier Information 
H-6 HUB Subcontracting Plan (HSP) Prime Contractor Progress Assessment Report 
H-7 DBE Certifications 

I Certificate of Insurance 
J Conflicts of Certification 
K Debarment Certification 
L 2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 
M 2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid-Build Projects 



ATTACHMENT A 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

INDEX TO PROVISIONS 

Section Title 
1 Work Authorizations 
2 Progress 
3 Suspension of Work 
4 Additional Work 
5 Changes in Work 
6 Supplemental Agreements 
7 Ownership of Data 
8 Public Information 
9 Personnel, Equipment and Material 
10 Subcontracting 
11 Inspection of Work 
12 Submission of Reports 
13 Violation of Contract Terms (Breach of Agreement) 
14 Termination 
15 Compliance with Laws 
16 Indemnification 
17 Engineer’s Responsibility 
18 Non-collusion 
19 Insurance 
20 Gratuities 
21 DBE/HUB Requirements 
22 Maintenance, Retention and Audit of Records 
23 Civil Rights Compliance 
24 Patent Rights 
25 Computer Graphics Files 
26 Child Support Certification 
27 Disputes 
28 Successors and Assigns 
29 Severability 
30 Prior Agreements Superseded 
31 Conflict of Interest 
32 Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Audit Requirements 
33 Certifications 



ATTACHMENT A 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

SECTION 1. WORK AUTHORIZATIONS 
A. Use. The Engineer shall not begin any work until the Authority and the Engineer have signed a work
authorization. Costs incurred by the Engineer before or after the completion date specified in the work
authorization are not eligible for reimbursement. All work must be completed on or before the completion date
specified in the work authorization, and no work authorization completion date shall extend beyond the
Agreement period set forth in Article II of the Agreement (Agreement Period).

B. Contents. Each work authorization will include: (1) types of services to be performed; (2) a period of
performance with a beginning and ending date; (3) a full description of the work to be performed; (4) a work
schedule with milestones; (5) a cost not to exceed amount, (6) the basis of payment whether cost plus fixed fee,
unit cost, lump sum, or specified rate; and (7) a work authorization budget calculated using fees set forth in
Attachment E, Fee Schedule. The Engineer is not to include additional Agreement terms and conditions in the
work authorization.   In the event of any conflicting terms and conditions between the work authorization and the
Agreement, the terms and conditions of the Agreement shall prevail and govern the work and costs incurred.

C. Work Authorization Budget. A work authorization budget shall set forth in detail (1) the computation of the
estimated cost of the work as described in the work authorization, (2) the estimated time (hours/days) required to
complete the work at the hourly rates established in Attachment E, Fee Schedule; (3) a work plan that includes a
list of the work to be performed, (4) a stated maximum number of calendar days to complete the work, and (5) a
cost-not-to-exceed-amount or unit or lump sum cost and the total cost or price of the work authorization. The
Authority will not pay items of cost that are not included in or rates that exceed those approved in Attachment E.

D. No Guaranteed Work. Work authorizations are issued at the discretion of the Authority. While it is the
Authority’s intent to issue work authorizations hereunder, the Engineer shall have no cause of action conditioned
upon the lack or number of work authorizations issued.

E. Incorporation into Agreement. Each work authorization shall be signed by both parties and become a part
of this Agreement. No work authorization will waive the Authority’s or the Engineer's responsibilities and
obligations established in this Agreement. The Engineer shall promptly notify the Authority of any event that will
affect the schedule or completion of the work authorization.

F. Supplemental Work Authorizations. Before additional work may be performed or additional costs incurred,
a change in a work authorization shall be enacted by a written supplemental work authorization in the form
identified and attached hereto as Attachment D. Both parties must execute a supplemental work authorization
within the period of performance specified in the work authorization. The Authority shall not be responsible for
actions by the Engineer or any costs incurred by the Engineer relating to additional work not directly associated
with the performance or prior to the execution of the work authorization. The Engineer shall allow adequate time 
for review and approval of the supplemental work authorization by the Authority prior to expiration of the work
authorization. Any supplemental work authorization must be executed by both parties within the time period
established in Article II of the Agreement, (Agreement Period). Under no circumstances will a work authorization
be allowed to extend beyond the Agreement's expiration date, unless a supplemental to the Agreement is
approved by both parties extending the Agreement date.



ATTACHMENT A 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

F-1. More Time Needed. If the Engineer determines or reasonably anticipates that the work authorized in a
work authorization cannot be completed before the specified completion date, the Engineer shall promptly
notify the Authority. The Authority may, at its sole discretion, extend the work authorization period by
execution of a supplemental to the work authorization, using the form attached hereto as Attachment D.

F-2. Changes in Scope. Changes that would modify the scope of the work authorized in a work authorization
must be enacted by a written supplemental to the appropriate work authorization. The Engineer must allow
adequate time for the Authority to review and approve any request for a time extension prior to expiration of
the work authorization. If the change in scope affects the amount payable under the work authorization, the
Engineer shall prepare a revised work authorization budget for the Authority’s approval.

G. New Work Authorization. If the Engineer does not complete the services authorized in a work authorization
before the specified completion date and has not requested a supplemental to the appropriate work authorization,
the work authorization shall terminate on the completion date. At the sole discretion of the Authority, it may issue
a new work authorization to the Engineer for the incomplete work using the unexpended balance of the preceding
work authorization for the project. If approved by the Authority, the Engineer may calculate any additional cost
for the incomplete work using the rates set forth in the preceding work authorization and in accordance with
Attachment E, Fee Schedule.

H. Emergency Work Authorizations. The Authority, at its sole discretion, may accept the Engineer's signature
on a faxed copy of the work authorization as satisfying the requirements for executing the work authorization,
provided that the signed original is received by the Authority within five (5) business days from the date on the
faxed copy.

I. Deliverables. Upon satisfactory completion of the work authorization, the Engineer shall submit the
deliverables as specified in the executed work authorization to the Authority for review and acceptance.

J. Performance Standards. Unless authorized by the Authority and the Texas Department of Transportation,
if applicable, work performed under this Agreement shall be developed in accordance with the latest version of
the Texas Department of Transportation’s manuals.

SECTION 2. PROGRESS 
A. Progress meetings. The Engineer shall from time to time during the progress of the work confer with the
Authority. The Engineer shall prepare and present such information as may be pertinent and necessary or as may
be requested by the Authority in order to evaluate features of the work.

B. Conferences. At the request of the Authority or the Engineer, conferences shall be provided at the Engineer's
office, the office of the Authority, or at other locations designated by the Authority. These conferences shall also
include evaluation of the Engineer's services and work when requested by the Authority.

C. Inspections. If federal funds are used to reimburse costs incurred under this Agreement, the work and all
reimbursements will be subject to periodic review by the Texas Department of Transportation and the U. S.
Department of Transportation.

D. Reports. The Engineer shall promptly advise the Authority in writing of events that have a significant impact
upon the progress of a work authorization, including:



ATTACHMENT A 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

1. Problems, delays, adverse conditions that will materially affect the ability to meet the time schedules
and goals, or preclude the attainment of project work units by established time periods; this disclosure will
be accompanied by Authority judgment of the action taken or contemplated, and any or federal assistance
needed to resolve the situation; and

2. Favorable developments or events which enable meeting the work schedule goals sooner than anticipated.

E. Corrective Action. Should the Authority determine that the progress of work does not satisfy the milestone
schedule set forth in a work authorization, the Authority shall review the work schedule with the Engineer to
determine the nature of corrective action needed.

SECTION 3. SUSPENSION OF WORK AUTHORIZATION 
A. Notice. Should the Authority desire to suspend a work authorization but not terminate the Agreement, the
Authority may verbally notify the Engineer followed by written confirmation, giving ten (10) day notice. Both
parties may waive the ten-day notice in writing.

B. Reinstatement. A work authorization may be reinstated and resumed in full force and effect within sixty
(60) business days of receipt of written notice from the Authority to resume the work. Both parties may waive the
sixty-day notice in writing.

C. Agreement Period Not Affected. If the Authority suspends a work authorization, the Agreement period as
determined in Article II of the Agreement (Agreement Period) is not affected and the Agreement and the work
authorization will terminate on the date specified unless the Agreement or work authorization is amended to
authorize additional time.

D. Limitation of Liability. The Authority shall have no liability for work performed or costs incurred prior to
the date authorized by the Authority to begin work, during periods when work is suspended, or after the
completion date of the Agreement or work authorization.

SECTION 4. ADDITIONAL WORK 
A. Notice. If the Engineer is of the opinion that any assigned work is beyond the scope of this Agreement and
constitutes additional work, it shall promptly notify the Authority in writing, presenting the facts of the work
authorization and showing how the work authorization constitutes additional work.

B. Supplemental Agreement. If the Authority finds that the work does constitute additional work, the Authority
shall so advise the Engineer and a written supplemental agreement will be executed as provided in Attachment
A, General Provisions, Section 6, Supplemental Agreements.

C. Limitation of Liability. The Authority shall not be responsible for actions by the Engineer or any costs
incurred by the Engineer relating to additional work not directly associated with or prior to the execution of a
supplemental agreement.



ATTACHMENT A 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

SECTION 5. CHANGES IN WORK 
A. Work Previously Submitted as Satisfactory. If the Engineer has submitted work in accordance with the
terms of this Agreement but the Authority requests changes to the completed work or parts thereof which involve
changes to the original scope of services or character of work under the Agreement, the Engineer shall make such
revisions as requested and as directed by the Authority. This will be considered as additional work and paid for
as specified under Attachment A, General Provisions, Section 4, Additional Work.

B. Work Does Not Comply with the Agreement. If the Engineer submits work that does not comply with the
terms of this Agreement, the Authority shall instruct the Engineer to make such revision as is necessary to bring
the work into compliance with this Agreement. No additional compensation shall be paid for this work.

C. Errors/Omissions. The Engineer shall make revisions to the work authorized in this Agreement which are
necessary to correct errors or omissions appearing therein, when required to do so by the Authority. No additional
compensation shall be paid for this work.

SECTION 6. SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENTS 
A. Need. The terms of this Agreement may be modified if the Authority determines that there has been a
significant increase or decrease in the duration, scope, cost, complexity or character of the services to be
performed. A supplemental agreement will be executed to authorize such significant increases or decreases.

B. Compensation. Additional compensation, if appropriate, shall be calculated as set forth in Article III of the
Agreement (Compensation). Significant changes affecting the cost or maximum amount payable shall be defined
to include but not be limited to new work not previously authorized or previously authorized services that will
not be performed. The parties may reevaluate and renegotiate costs at this time.

C. When to Execute. Both parties must execute a supplemental agreement within the Agreement period
specified in Article II of this Agreement (Agreement Period).

SECTION 7. OWNERSHIP OF DATA 
A. Work for Hire. All services provided under this Agreement are considered work for hire and as such all data,
basic sketches, charts, calculations, plans, specifications, and other documents created or collected under the terms
of this Agreement are the property of the Authority.

B. Disposition of Documents. All documents prepared by the Engineer and all documents furnished to the
Engineer by the Authority shall be delivered to the Authority upon request by the Authority. The Engineer, at its
own expense, may retain copies of such documents or any other data which it has furnished the Authority under
this Agreement, but further use of the data is subject to permission by the Authority.

C. Release of Data. The Engineer (1) will not release any documentation created or collected under this
Agreement except to its subproviders as necessary to complete this Agreement; (2) shall include a provision in
all subcontracts which acknowledges the Authority’s ownership of the documents and prohibits its use for any
use other than the project identified in this Agreement; and (3) is responsible for any improper use of the
documents by its employees, officers, or subproviders, including costs, damages, or other liability resulting from
improper use. Neither the Engineer nor any subprovider may charge a fee for the portion of the design plan
created by the Authority.



ATTACHMENT A 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

D. Maintenance of Data. The Engineer and any subconsultant, subcontractor or vendor shall keep and maintain
all Data and all other material relating to this Agreement and related projects, and shall make all such material
available at any reasonable time during the term of the work on the Agreement and related projects and for five
(5) years from the date of final payment to the Engineer for auditing, inspection, and copying upon the Authority’s
request or, if federal dollars are applied to the Agreement, upon request by the federal government.

SECTION 8. PUBLIC INFORMATION AND CONFIDENTIALITY 
A. Public Information. The Authority will comply with Government Code, Chapter 552, the Public Information
Act, and 43 Texas Administrative Code §3.10 et seq. in the release of information produced under this Agreement.

B. Confidentiality. The Engineer shall not disclose information obtained from the Authority under this
Agreement without the express written consent of the Authority.

SECTION 9. PERSONNEL, EQUIPMENT AND MATERIAL 
A. This Agreement is not intended to constitute, create, give up, or otherwise recognize a joint venture agreement or
relationship, partnership, or formal business organization of any kind, and the rights and obligations of the parties shall
be only those expressly set forth in this Agreement.

B. Engineer Resources. The Engineer shall furnish and maintain quarters for the performance of all services, in
addition to providing adequate and sufficient personnel and equipment to perform the services required under this
Agreement. The Engineer certifies that it presently has adequate qualified personnel in its employment for
performance of the services required under this Agreement, or it will be able to obtain such personnel from sources
other than the Authority.

C. Removal of Contractor Employee. All employees of the Engineer assigned to this Agreement shall have
such knowledge and experience as will enable them to perform the duties assigned to them. The Authority may
instruct the Engineer to remove any employee from association with work authorized in this Agreement if, in
the sole opinion of the Authority, the work of that employee does not comply with the terms of this Agreement
or if the conduct of that employee becomes detrimental to the work.

D. Replacement of Key Personnel. The Engineer must notify the Authority in writing as soon as possible, but
no later than three business days after a project manager or other key personnel is removed from association with
this Agreement, giving the reason for removal.

E. Authority Approval of Replacement Personnel. The Engineer may not replace the project manager or key
personnel without prior consent of the Authority. The Authority must be satisfied that the new project manager
or other key personnel is qualified to provide the authorized services. If the Authority determines that the new
project manager or key personnel is not acceptable, the Engineer may not use that person in that capacity and
shall replace him or her with one satisfactory to the Authority within forty-five (45) days.

F. Ownership of Acquired Property. Except to the extent that a specific provision of this Agreement states
to the contrary, the Authority shall own all intellectual property acquired or developed under this Agreement and
all equipment purchased by the Engineer or its subcontractors under this Agreement. All intellectual property and
equipment owned by the Authority shall be delivered to the Authority when this Agreement terminates, or when
it is no longer needed for work performed under this Agreement, whichever occurs first.



ATTACHMENT A 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

G. The Engineer shall furnish and maintain, at its own expense, office space for the performance of all services, and
adequate and sufficient personnel and equipment to perform the services as required. All employees of the Engineer
shall have such knowledge and experience as will enable them to perform the duties assigned to them.

H. The Engineer agrees to maintain (in sufficient detail as will properly reflect all work done and results achieved in
the performance of this Agreement) tracings, plans, specifications, maps, basic survey notes and sketches, books,
records, reports, research notes, charts, graphs, comments, plans, comparisons, computations, analyses, recordings,
photographs, computer programs, and documentations thereof, and other graphic or written data or deliverables
generated in connection with the work called for in the Agreement; all such information and documentations to be
termed “Data” under this Agreement.

I. All Data is the exclusive property of the Authority and shall be furnished to the Authority upon request and shall
not be used or released by the Engineer or any other person except with the prior approval of the Authority. All
documents prepared by the Engineer and all documents furnished to the Engineer by the Authority shall be delivered
to the Authority upon completion of the relevant milestone for payment and/or termination of this Agreement.
Provided, however, that none of the documents or materials are intended or represented by Engineer to be suitable for
reuse by the Authority, or others on extensions of the project or on any other project. Any reuse of Data without written
verification or adaptation by Engineer for use beyond the specific purpose intended will be at Authority’s sole risk
and without liability or legal exposure to Engineer.

SECTION 10. SUBCONTRACTING 
A. Prior Approval. The Engineer shall not assign, subcontract or transfer any portion of professional services
related to the work under this Agreement without prior written approval from the Authority.

B. DBE/HUB Compliance. The Engineer’s subcontracting program shall comply with the requirements of
Attachment H of the Agreement (DBE/HUB Requirements).

C. Required Provisions. All subcontracts for professional services shall include the provisions included in
Attachment A, General Provisions, and any provisions required by law. The Engineer is authorized to pay
subproviders in accordance with the terms of the subcontract, and the basis of payment may differ from the
basis of payment by the Authority to the Engineer.

D. Prior Review. All subcontracts for professional services shall be approved as to form in writing by the
Authority and, if applicable, by the Texas Department of Transportation prior to its execution and performance
of work thereunder.

E. Engineer Responsibilities. No subcontract relieves the Engineer of any responsibilities under this
Agreement.

SECTION 11. INSPECTION OF WORK 
A. Review Rights. The Authority and if appropriate, the Texas Department of Transportation, and when federal
funds are involved, the U. S. Department of Transportation, and any of their authorized representatives shall have
the right at all reasonable times to review or otherwise evaluate the work performed hereunder and the premises
in which it is being performed.



ATTACHMENT A 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

B. Reasonable Access. If any review or evaluation is made on the premises of the Engineer or a subprovider,
the Engineer shall provide and require its subproviders to provide all reasonable facilities and assistance for the
safety and convenience of the Authority and if appropriate the Authority, State, or federal representatives in the
performance of their duties.

SECTION 12. SUBMISSION OF REPORTS 
All applicable study reports shall be submitted in preliminary form for approval by the Authority before a final 
report is issued. The Authority’s comments on the Engineer's preliminary report must be addressed in the final 
report. 

SECTION 13. VIOLATION OF AGREEMENT TERMS (BREACH OF AGREEMENT) 
A. Violation. Violation of the Agreement terms or breach of this Agreement by the Engineer shall be grounds

for termination of the Agreement. Any additional costs to the Authority that arise from the Engineer’s default,
breach of Agreement, or violation of Agreement terms shall be paid by the Engineer. This Agreement shall
not be considered as specifying the exclusive remedy for any default, but all remedies existing at law and in
equity may be availed of by either party and shall be cumulative.

B. Venue. Venue for disputes related to this Agreement shall be Hidalgo County, Texas.

C. Applicable Laws. This Agreement shall be construed under and in accordance with the laws of the State of
Texas.

SECTION 14. TERMINATION 
A. Causes. The Agreement may be terminated before the stated completion date by any of the following
conditions.

1. By mutual agreement and consent, in writing from both parties.
2. By the Authority by notice in writing to the Engineer as a consequence of failure by the Engineer to

perform the services set forth herein in a satisfactory manner.
3. By either party, upon the failure of the other party to fulfill its obligations as set forth herein.
4. By the Authority for reasons of its own, not subject to the mutual consent of the Engineer, by giving ten

business days notice of termination in writing to the Engineer.
5. By the Authority, if the Engineer violates the provisions of Attachment A, General Provisions Section

21, Gratuities.
6. By satisfactory completion of all services and obligations described herein.

B. Measurement. Should the Authority terminate this Agreement as herein provided, no fees other than fees
due and payable at the time of termination shall thereafter be paid to the Engineer. Compensation for work at
termination will be based on a percentage of the work completed at that time. Should the Authority terminate this
Agreement under Paragraph A (4) or (5) above, the Engineer shall not incur costs during the ten-day notice period
in excess of the amount incurred during the preceding ten (10) days.

C. Value of Completed Work. If the Engineer defaults in the performance of this Agreement or if the Authority
terminates this Agreement for fault on the part of the Engineer, the Authority will give consideration to the
following when calculating the value of the completed work: (1) the actual costs incurred (not to exceed the rates
set forth in Attachment E, Fee Schedule) by the Engineer in performing the work to the date of default;



ATTACHMENT A 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

(2) the amount of work required which was satisfactorily completed to date of default; (3) the value of the work
which is usable to the Authority; (4) the cost to the Authority of employing another firm to complete the required
work; (5) the time required to employ another firm to complete the work; and (6) other factors which affect the
value to the Authority of the work performed.

D. Calculation of Payments. The Authority shall use the fee schedule set forth in Attachment E to the
Agreement (Fee Schedule) in determining the value of the work performed up to the time of termination. In the
case of partially completed engineering services, eligible costs will be calculated as set forth in Attachment E,
Fee Schedule. The sum of the provisional overhead percentage rate for payroll additives and for general and
administrative overhead costs during the years in which work was performed shall be used to calculate partial
payments.

E. Excusable Delays. Except with respect to defaults of subproviders, the Engineer shall not be in default by
reason of any failure in performance of this Agreement in accordance with its terms (including any failure to
progress in the performance of the work) if such failure arises out of causes beyond the control and without the
default or negligence of the Engineer. Such causes may include, but are not restricted to, acts of God or the public
enemy, acts of the Government in either its sovereign or Contractual capacity, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine
restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes, and unusually severe weather.

F. Surviving Requirements. The termination of this Agreement and payment of an amount in settlement as
prescribed above shall extinguish the rights, duties, and obligations of the Authority and the Engineer under this
Agreement, except for those provisions that establish responsibilities that extend beyond the Agreement period.

G. Payment of Additional Costs. If termination of this Agreement is due to the failure of the Engineer to fulfill
its Agreement obligations, the Authority may take over the project and prosecute the work to completion, and the
Engineer shall be liable to the Authority for any additional cost to the Authority.

SECTION 15. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 
The Engineer shall comply with all applicable Authority, federal, County and local laws, statutes, codes, 
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any court, or administrative bodies or tribunals in 
any manner affecting the performance of this Agreement, including, without limitation, worker's compensation 
laws, minimum and maximum salary and wage statutes and regulations, nondiscrimination, and licensing laws 
and regulations. When required, the Engineer shall furnish the Authority with satisfactory proof of its compliance 
therewith. 

SECTION 16. INDEMNIFICATION 
A. THE ENGINEER SHALL SAVE AND HOLD HARMLESS THE AUTHORITY AND ITS OFFICERS, AND
EMPLOYEES, FROM ALL CLAIMS, LIABILITY, ACTION, AND LOSS (INCLUDING DAMAGE OR INJURY
INCLUDING DEATH TO PERSONS OR PROPERTY) DUE TO ACTIVITIES OF ITSELF, ITS AGENTS,
SUBCONTRACTORS, OR EMPLOYEES PERFORMED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT AND WHICH ARE
CAUSED BY OR RESULT FROM ERROR, OMISSION, OR NEGLIGENT ACT, INCLUDING ANY VIOLATION
OF ANY STATUTES, ORDINANCES, BUILDING CODES OR REGULATIONS, OF THE ENGINEER OR OF
ANY PERSON EMPLOYED OR ENGAGED BY THE ENGINEER, AND THE DEFENSE OF ANY SUCH
CLAIMS, LIABILITY, ACTION, OR LOSS.



ATTACHMENT A 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

B. THE ENGINEER SHALL ALSO SAVE AND HOLD HARMLESS THE AUTHORITY FROM ANY AND ALL
EXPENSE, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, REASONBLE ATTORNEY FEES WHICH MAY BE
INCURRED BY THE AUTHORITY OR LIABILITIES WHICH MAY BE IMPOSED ON THE AUTHORITY AS
THE RESULT OF SUCH ERROR, OMISSION, OR NEGLIGENT ACT BY THE ENGINEER, ITS AGENTS, ITS
SUBCONTRACTORS, OR EMPLOYEES.

SECTION 17. ENGINEER'S RESPONSIBILITY 
A. Accuracy. The Engineer shall be responsible for the accuracy and completeness of work and shall promptly
make necessary revisions or corrections resulting from its errors, omissions, or negligent acts without
compensation.

B. Errors and Omissions. The Engineer's responsibility for all questions arising from design errors and/or
omissions will be determined by the Authority and all decisions shall be in accordance with the Authority’s
"Errors or Omissions Policy". The Engineer will not be relieved of the responsibility for subsequent correction of
any such errors or omissions or for clarification of any ambiguities until after the construction phase of the project
has been completed.

C. Seal. The responsible Engineer shall sign, seal and date all appropriate engineering submissions to the
Authority in accordance with the Texas Engineering Practice Act and the rules of the Texas Board of Professional
Engineers.

D. Resealing of Documents. Once the work has been sealed and accepted by the Authority, the Authority, as the
owner, will notify the party to this Agreement, in writing, of the possibility that a Authority engineer, as a second
engineer, may find it necessary to alter, complete, correct, revise or add to the work. If necessary, the second
engineer will affix his seal to any work altered, completed, corrected, revised or added. The second engineer will
then become responsible for any alterations, additions or deletions to the original design including any effect or
impacts of those changes on the original engineer’s design.

SECTION 18. NONCOLLUSION 
A. Warranty. The Engineer warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a
bona fide employee working solely for the Engineer and those consultants, subconsultants, and providers
identified in the presentation to the Authority’s Board, to solicit or secure this Agreement and that it has not paid
or agreed to pay any company or engineer any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gifts, or any other
consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.

B. Liability. For breach or violation of this warranty, the Authority shall have the right to annul this Agreement
without liability or, in its discretion, to deduct from the Agreement price or compensation, or otherwise recover,
the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or contingent fee.

SECTION 19. INSURANCE 

A. Insurance Liability Limits. The Engineer shall obtain and maintain insurance limits of liability for each of
the types of insurance coverage identified as follows:

1. Workers’ Compensation, endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of the Authority in the amount
of statutory obligations imposed under the Texas Workers’ Compensation Law.



ATTACHMENT A 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

2. Commercial General Liability, endorsed with the Authority as an additional insured and endorsed with
a waiver of subrogation in favor of the Authority to the extent of the liabilities assumed by Engineer
under Attachment A, Section 17 of this Agreement, in limits of liability of one million dollars
($1,000,000) combined single limit each occurrence and in the aggregate for bodily injury and property
damage.

3. Professional Liability in limits of two million dollars ($2,000,000) each claim and in the aggregate.

The coverage and amounts designated herein are minimum requirements and do not establish limits of the 
Engineer's liability. Additional coverage may be provided at the Engineer's option and expense. 

The issuer of any policy must have a rating of at least B+ and a financial size of Class VI or better according to 
the latest Best’s rating. 

B. Insurance Liability Limits. The Engineer shall furnish proof of insurance by means of a completed
Attachment I – Certificate of Insurance - Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority, attached hereto and made
a part thereof with the Project Name and the Engineer’s name stated thereon, to be submitted prior to the beginning
of the Project. The Engineer will be considered in breach of this Agreement should the Engineer fail to maintain
the required insurance coverage during the term of this Agreement. The termination of this Agreement resulting
from failure to maintain the required insurance will be carried out in accordance with the termination provisions
herein.

C. Engineer’s Risk. The services to be provided under this Agreement will be performed entirely at Engineer’s
risk and Engineer assumes all responsibility for the condition of vehicles or other instrumentalities used in the
performance of this Agreement.

D. Work on Texas Department of Transportation Property. To the extent that the Texas Department of
Transportation or this Agreement authorizes the Engineer or its subconsultants to perform any work on Texas
Department of Transportation right of way, before beginning work the entity performing the work shall provide
the Authority and the Texas Department of Transportation with a fully executed copy of the Department's Form
1560 Certificate of Insurance verifying the existence of coverage in the amounts and types specified on the
Certificate of Insurance for all persons and entities working on Department right of way. This coverage shall be
maintained until all work on the Department right of way is complete. If coverage is not maintained, all work on
Department right of way shall cease immediately, and, the Authority may recover damages and all costs of
completing the work.

SECTION 20. GRATUITIES 
Employees of the Authority shall not accept any benefits, gifts or favors from any person doing business or who 
reasonably speaking may do business with the Authority under this Agreement. The only exceptions allowed are 
ordinary business lunches and items that have received the advance written approval of the Authority. Any person 
doing business with or who may reasonably speaking do business with the Authority under this Agreement may 
not make any offer of benefits, gifts or favors to departmental employees, except as mentioned herein above. 
Failure on the part of the Engineer to adhere to this policy may result in the termination of this Agreement. 



ATTACHMENT A 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

SECTION 21. DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE OR HISTORICALLY 
UNDERUTILIZED BUSINESS REQUIREMENTS 
The Engineer agrees to comply with the requirements set forth in Attachment H, Disadvantaged Business 
Enterprise or Historically Underutilized Business Subcontracting Plan Requirements with an assigned goal or a 
zero goal, as determined by the Authority. The Engineer will adhere to the commitment and to participation by 
certain Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) agreed to by the Authority during negotiations. Refer to 
Attachment H-7 for copies of DBE Certifications. 

SECTION 22. MAINTENANCE, RETENTION AND AUDIT OF RECORDS 
A. Retention Period. The Engineer shall maintain all books, documents, papers, accounting records and other
evidence pertaining to costs incurred and services provided (hereinafter called the Records). The Engineer shall
make the records available at its office during the Agreement period and for five (5) years from the date of final
payment under this Agreement, until completion of all audits, or until pending litigation has been completely and
fully resolved, whichever occurs last.

B. Availability. The Authority or any of its duly authorized representatives and, if appropriate, the Texas
Department of Transportation, the Federal Highway Administration, the United States, Department of
Transportation, Office of Inspector General, and the Comptroller General shall have access to the Engineer’s
Records which are directly pertinent to this Agreement for the purpose of making audits, examinations, excerpts,
and transcriptions.

SECTION 23. CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE 
(1) Compliance with Regulations: The Engineer shall comply with the regulations of the
Department of Transportation, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Parts 21, 24, 26 and 60 as they
relate to nondiscrimination; 23 CFR 710.405(B); also Executive Order 11246 titled Equal
Employment Opportunity as amended by Executive Order 11375.

The contractor, sub recipient or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national 
origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable 
requirements of 49 CFR part 26 in the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. Failure 
by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result 
in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the recipient deems appropriate, which may 
include, but is not limited to: 

(1) Withholding monthly progress payments;
(2) Assessing sanctions;
(3) Liquidated damages; and/or
(4) Disqualifying the contractor from future bidding as non-responsible."

(2) Nondiscrimination: The Engineer, with regard to the work performed by it during this Agreement, shall not
discriminate on the grounds of race, color, sex, or national origin in the selection and retention of subcontractors,
including procurement of materials and leases of equipment.

(3) Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurement of Materials and Equipment: In all solicitations
either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the Engineer for work to be performed under a



ATTACHMENT A 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

subcontract, including procurement of materials or leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier 
shall be notified by the Engineer of the Engineer’s obligations under this Agreement and the Regulations relative 
to nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, color, sex, or national origin. 

(4) Information and Reports: The Engineer shall provide all information and reports required by the
Regulations, or directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records, accounts, other
sources of information, and facilities as may be determined by the Authority; and if appropriate, the Texas
Department of Transportation or the Federal Highway Administration to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with
such Regulations or directives. Where any information required of the Engineer is in the exclusive possession of
another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the Engineer shall so certify to the Authority; and if
appropriate, the Texas Department of Transportation or the Federal Highway Administration and shall set forth
what efforts it has made to obtain the information.

(5) Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of the Engineer's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination
provisions of this Agreement, the Authority shall impose such Agreement sanctions as the Authority; and if
appropriate, the Texas Department of Transportation or the Federal Highway Administration may determine to
be appropriate, including, but not limited to:

(a) withholding of payments to the Engineer under this Agreement until the Engineer complies and/or
(b) cancellation, termination, or suspension of this Agreement, in whole or in part.

(6) Incorporation of Provisions: The Engineer shall include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (5) above
in every subcontract, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the
Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto. The Engineer shall take such action with respect to any
subcontract or procurement as the Authority and; if appropriate, the Texas Department of Transportation or the
Federal Highway Administration may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for
noncompliance provided, however, that in the event an Engineer becomes involved in, or is threatened with,
litigation with a subcontractor or supplier as a result of such direction, the Engineer may request the Authority;
or, if appropriate, the Texas Department of Transportation to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of
the Authority; and, in addition, the Engineer, if appropriate, may request the United States to enter into such
litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

SECTION 24.  PATENT RIGHTS 
The Authority; and if appropriate, the Texas Department of Transportation; and the U. S. Department of 
Transportation shall have the royalty free, non-exclusive, and irrevocable right to use and to authorize others to 
use any patents developed by the Engineer under this Agreement. 

SECTION 25. COMPUTER GRAPHICS FILES 
The Engineer agrees to comply with Attachment G, Computer Graphics Files for Document and Information 
Exchange, if determined by the Authority to be applicable to this Agreement. 

SECTION 26. CHILD SUPPORT CERTIFICATION 
Under Section 231.006, Texas Family Code, the Engineer certifies that the individual or business entity named in 
this Agreement, bid, or application is not ineligible to receive the specified grant, loan, or payment and 
acknowledges that this Agreement may be terminated and payment may be withheld if this certification is 
inaccurate. If the above certification is shown to be false, the Engineer is liable to the Authority for attorney’s 
fees, the cost necessary to complete this Agreement, including the cost of advertising and awarding a second 



ATTACHMENT A 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

Agreement, and any other damages provided by law or this Agreement. A child support obligor or business entity 
ineligible to receive payments because of a payment delinquency of more than thirty (30) days remains ineligible 
until: all arrearages have been paid; the obligor is in compliance with a written repayment agreement or court 
order as to any existing delinquency; or the court of continuing jurisdiction over the child support order has 
granted the obligor an exemption from Subsection (a) of Section 231.006, Texas Family Code, as part of a court-
supervised effort to improve earnings and child support payments. 

SECTION 27.  DISPUTES 
A. Disputes Not Related to Agreement Services. The Engineer shall be responsible for the settlement of all
contractual and administrative issues arising out of any procurement made by the Engineer in support of the
services authorized herein.

B. Disputes Concerning Work or Cost. Any dispute concerning the work hereunder or additional costs, or any
non-procurement issues shall be settled by mediation and if mediation is unsuccessful then parties go to trial
under Texas State law.

SECTION 28. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 
The Engineer and the Authority do each hereby bind themselves, their successors, executors, administrators and 
assigns to each other party of this agreement and to the successors, executors, administrators and assigns of 
such other party in respect to all covenants of this Agreement. The Engineer shall not assign, subcontract or 
transfer its interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of the Authority. 

SECTION 29. SEVERABILITY 
In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for any reason, be held to be 
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any 
other provision thereof and this Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable 
provision had never been contained herein. 

SECTION 30. PRIOR AGREEMENTS SUPERSEDED 
This Agreement constitutes the sole agreement of the parties hereto for the services authorized herein and 
supersedes any prior understandings or written or oral Agreements between the parties respecting the subject 
matter defined herein. 

SECTION 31. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
A. Representation by Engineer. The undersigned represents that its firm has no conflict of interest that would
in any way interfere with its or its employees’ performance of services for the Authority or which in any way
conflicts with the interests of the Authority.   The firm shall exercise reasonable care and diligence to prevent any
actions or conditions that could result in a conflict with the Authority’s interests.

B. Certification Status. The Engineer certifies that it is not:

1. a person required to register as a lobbyist under Chapter 305, Government Code; or
2. a public relations firm other than the firms identified in the presentation to the RMA Board.

C. Environmental Disclosure. If the Engineer will prepare an environmental impact statement or an
environmental assessment under this Agreement, the Engineer certifies by executing this Agreement that it has
no financial or other interest in the outcome of the project on which the environmental impact statement or



ATTACHMENT A 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

environmental assessment is prepared. 

SECTION 32. OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET (OMB) AUDIT REQUIREMENTS 
The parties shall comply with the requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1984, P.L. 98-502, ensuring that the 
single audit report includes the coverage stipulated in OMB Circular A-133. 

SECTION 33. CERTIFICATIONS 
A. The parties are prohibited from making any award at any tier to any party that is debarred or suspended or
otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal Assistance Programs under Executive Order
12549, “Debarment and Suspension.” By executing this Agreement, the Engineer certifies that it is not currently
debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal Assistance Programs
under Executive Order 12549. The parties to this Agreement shall require any party to a subcontract or purchase
order awarded under this Agreement to certify its eligibility to receive Federal funds and, when requested by the
Authority, to furnish a copy of the certification.

B. In accordance with Department of Transportation, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 29 and by signature
on this Agreement and the Debarment Certification attached hereto as Attachment K, the Engineer certifies its
compliance and the compliance of any subconsultants or subcontractors present or future, by stating that any person
associated therewith in the capacity of owner, partner, director, officer, principal investor, project director, manager,
auditor, or any position involving federal, state or Authority funds:

(1) is not currently under suspension, debarment, voluntary exclusion, or determination of ineligibility by
any federal agency;

(2) does not have a proposed debarment pending;
(3) has not been suspended debarred, voluntarily excluded, or determined ineligible by an federal agency

within the past three (3) years; and
(4) has not been indicted, convicted, or had a civil judgment rendered against the firm by a court of competent

jurisdiction in any matter involving fraud or official misconduct within the past three years as specified by
Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, paragraph 29.305(a).

C. The Engineer agrees to comply with the provisions of Section 1352 of Title 31, U.S. Code as codified in Title 48,
Federal Acquisition Regulations, Subpart 3.8 and subpart 52.203.11, prohibiting federal funds from being expended
by a recipient or lower-tier subrecipient of a federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement to pay any person
for influencing or attempting to influence a federal agency or Congress in connection with the award of any federal
contract or cooperative agreement. If federal funds are applied to the services under this Agreement, the Engineer and
any subconsultants or subcontractors would be required to complete the Certification of Federal Contracts and, if
necessary, the Disclosure of Lobbying Activities.

D. If the Project is a federal aid project, Engineer is required to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or
requirements issued under Section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1857 (h)), which prohibit the use under non- 
exempt federal contract, grants, or loans of facilities included on the EPA List of Violating Facilities. Violations shall
be reported to the Federal Highway Administration and to the USEPA Assistant Administrator of Enforcement.

E. If the value of this Agreement is anticipated to be at least $100,000 and Engineer (i) has at least ten (10) full time
employees; and (ii) is a for-profit organization, association, corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited partnership,
limited liability partnership, or limited liability company, including a wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned
subsidiary, parent company, or affiliate of those entities or business associations, that exists to make a profit, then
Engineer hereby verifies that Engineer:



ATTACHMENT A 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

(1) does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade
association (as defined in Section 2274.001(3), Texas Government Code);

(2) will not discriminate during the term of this Agreement against a firearm entity or firearm trade association (as
defined in Section 2274.001(3), Texas Government Code);

(3) does not boycott energy companies (as defined in Section 809.001, Texas Government Code);
(4) will not boycott energy companies (as defined in Section 809.001, Texas Government Code) during the term of

this Agreement;
(5) does not boycott Israel (as defined in Section 808.001, Texas Government Code); and
(6) will not boycott Israel (as defined in Section 808.001, Texas Government Code) during the term of this

Agreement

F. Engineer is not engaged in business with Iran, Sudan, or a foreign terrorist organization and Engineer is not on a list
prepared and maintained under Sections 806.051, 807.051, or 222.153, Texas Government Code.



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc . 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT B 
SERVICES TO BE PROVIDE BY THE AUTHORITY 

The AUTHORITY will provide the following general items. 
1. Authorization to begin work with issuance of Notice to Proceed [NTP].
2. Timely payment   for   work   performed   by   the   Engineer   and   accepted   by   the

AUTHORITY on a monthly basis.
3. Assistance to the Engineer, as necessary, to obtain the required data and information from

other local, regional, State and Federal agencies that the Engineer cannot easily obtain.
4. Provide any available relevant data the AUTHORITY may have on file concerning the

project:
A. Electronic copy of project plans.
B. Electronic copy of contract Proposal and any Addendums per project.
C. Limited Access to Appia and ProjectWise.
D. Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SW3P) information.
F. SW3P Coordination procedures.
G. Best Practices coordination procedures (Disadvantaged Business Enterprise,
(Materials, General Bookkeeping).

5. Review and approve the Engineer’s progress schedule with milestone activities and/or
deliverables.

6. The AUTHORITY will provide the Environmental Document and electronic Constraints
map for the project for development of the Environmental Permits, Issues and
Commitments (EPIC) sheets and any other compliance issues.

RIGHT-OF-WAY DATA: 
The AUTHORITY will provide the following: 
1. Assist the Engineer, as necessary, with coordination of any utility relocations that may

be required.
2. Ownership Data

a. Ownership Information shall be provided for the corridor width.
b. All utility ownership shall be provided.

3. Utility Adjustments:
AUTHORITY (TxDOT as necessary) will provide executed utility agreements to the
Engineer for all required utility adjustments.

5. Survey and Stake Right-of-Way
6. Right of Entry to all affected properties located within the project limits.
7. Deliverables: Right of way Map in electronic format (PDF)

MANAGEMENT: 
The AUTHORITY will provide the following: 
1. Attend/participate in progress meetings as required.
2. Timely review of submittals as required.



ATTACHMENT C 
SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE ENGINEER 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for RABA Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

APPLICABILITY: 

Wherever the following terms are used in this attachment or other contract documents, the intent and meaning will be interpreted as 
indicated below. 

ABBREVIATIONS, ABBREVIATIONS, and DEFINITIONS: 

HCRMA OR AUTHORITY shall mean Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 
PMC (GEC) shall mean Program Management Consultant (General Engineering Consultant) (HDR Engineering Inc.) 
 ENGINEER shall mean Raba Kistner, Inc.   
TxDOT shall mean Texas Department of Transportation 
FHWA shall mean Federal Highway Administration 
IBWC shall mean International Boundary and Water Commission 
USFWS shall mean United States Fish & Wildlife Service 
THC shall mean Texas Historical Commission 
SHPO shall mean State Highway Preservation Office 
USACE shall mean United States Army Corps of Engineers 
GSA shall mean General Services Administration 
HCMPO shall mean Hidalgo County Metropolitan Planning Organization 
FAA shall mean Federal Aviation Administration 
MTP shall mean Metropolitan Transportation Plan 
TIP shall mean Transportation Improvement Program 
MUTCD shall mean Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices 
AASHTO shall mean American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials 
LRFD shall mean Load & Resistance Factor Design 
PS&E shall mean Plans, Specifications and Estimate 
ACP shall mean Asphaltic Concrete Pavement 
CSJ shall mean Control Section Job (highway project designation number) 
ADP shall mean Advance Project Development 
AAP AASHTO Accreditation Program (AASHTO re:source and CCRL) 
AASHTO American Association of State Highway Transportation Officials 
ACI shall mean American Concrete Institute 
AO shall mean Area Office 
AQMP shall mean Aggregate Quality Monitoring Program 
CAR shall mean Corrective Action Report 
CCRL shall mean Concrete and Cement Reference Laboratory 
CE&I shall mean Construction Engineering and Inspection 
CFR shall mean Code of Federal Regulations 
MTD shall mean Materials and Tests Division 
CMEC shall mean Construction Materials Engineering Council 
FHWA shall mean Federal Highway Administration 
HMA shall mean Hot-Mix Asphalt 
HMAC shall mean Hot-Mix Asphalt Center 
IA shall mean Independent Assurance 
L-A-B shall mean Laboratory Accreditation Bureau
MPL shall mean Material Producer List
QAP shall mean Quality Assurance Program
QAT shall mean Quality Assurance Test
QC shall mean Quality Control
SM shall mean SiteManager
TXAPA shall mean Texas Asphalt Pavement Association
TxDOT shall mean Texas Department of Transportation



ATTACHMENT C 
SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE ENGINEER 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The services designated herein as “Services provided by the Engineer” shall include the performance of all 
engineering services for the following described facility: 

County/HCRMA:    Hidalgo County 

CSJ number: 0921-02-368 

Project/Description: Provide construction materials testing to assure the materials incorporated into 6.38 miles of 
Segment 2 [From Anzalduas Highway east to McColl Road] on Phase II of 365 Toll highway construction project 
are subject to verification sampling and testing when required and meet project plans and specifications; and 
administering Quality Monitoring and Quality Assurance Program.  
. 

Length: 6.38 Miles (Approx)

Highway: 365 TOLL (Segment 1)

Limits: From Anzalduas Highway east to McColl Road (See Location Map Attached) 

Contract is for “indefinite delivery/indefinite quantity [IDIQ] set for a proposed three (3) year fixed period of 
time, during that period of time the Engineer will be responsible for an unlimited number of separate projects, 
or additional work on a current project to be issued on an individual work order basis. 

The Engineer agency(s) must be accredited by one of the following FHWA- and TxDOT-approved accrediting 
bodies: 
A. AASHTO Accreditation Program (AAP);
B. Construction Materials Engineering Council (CMEC); or
C. Laboratory Accreditation Bureau (L-A-B)

The Engineer shall have Texas Department of Transportation or Toll Authority/Regional Mobility Authority as 
well U.S. Army Corps of Engineers’ construction material testing experience and is expected to work directly 
with the HCRMA Construction Division, namely, the Chief Construction Engineer for the Authority. The selected 
Engineer(s) may also perform certain tasks under the oversight of the HCRMA's General Engineering Consultant 
(Currently HDR Engineering Inc.). 

To avoid an appearance of a conflict of interest, any qualified Engineer agency (laboratory) shall perform only 
one of the following types of testing on the same project: 
A. Quality control testing;
B. Quality acceptance testing;
C. Owner verification testing;
D. Independent assurance testing; or
E. Referee testing.



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

The selected Engineer(s) shall have adequate experienced staff and a workload free from constraints to provide 
the necessary construction material testing for the HCRMA. Staff expertise is to include a Licensed Professional 
Engineer and certified, experienced staff proficient with TxDOT testing procedures, sampling and testing 
schedule, and the latest ASSHTO, ASTM and ACI testing requirements [Appendix A] performed and executed 
as per 2019 TxDOT Quality Assurance Program (DB-QAP / DBB-QAP) / 2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & 
Testing for Design Bid-Build Projects. 

Engineer will compose and submit an annual report to the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) 
summarizing the results of HCRMA’s project specific systems approach program. This report identifies: 
A. Number of sampling and testing personnel evaluated by the systems approach IA testing;
B. Number of IA evaluations found to be acceptable;
C. Number of IA evaluations found to be unacceptable; and
D. Summary of any significant system-wide corrective actions taken.

The Engineer will be responsible for maintaining documentation of all individuals qualified under their authority 
who perform required tests for acceptance of materials. A qualification summary listing all tests for which an 
individual is qualified will be available and printed at HCRMA’s request. Documentation to be maintained for all 
qualified personnel includes: 
A. Copies of any certificates issued by ACI and TXAPA;
B. Original written examinations for test procedures administered to each technician by

the TxDOT qualifying authority, with clear identification of technician’s name, qualifier’s name, score, and date
taken;

C. Original performance examinations for test procedures administered to each technician by the TxDOT qualifying
authority, with clear identification of technician’s name, qualifier’s name, qualification status, and date;

D. Results of annual split/proficiency testing administered by the TxDOT qualifying
authority for each technician.

Engineer shall perform Quality Control / Quality Assurance sampling and testing and comply with Laboratory 
Qualification Program and will be evaluated under the Independent Assurance Program, as described in the 
2019 QAPDBB [Attachment L]. Quality Control test results will be validated by verification test results 
obtained from independently taken samples. IA personnel or their designated agents will perform Quality 
Assurance verification sampling and testing. 

1. The Engineer shall perform all sampling and testing of components and materials in accordance with the standard
specifications, and all other standard and special specifications and special provisions applicable in this agreement. Meet
the minimum sampling frequencies set out in the TxDOT 2019 Guide Schedule for Sampling and Testing for Design Bid-
Build Projects. The testing shall include the following materials and all the components of the materials listed. The estimated
number of samples and tests are based on quantities in the executed construction contract.
2. The Engineer shall ensure the testing is completed and input into ProjectWise. NOTE: The General Contractor is
responsible for Quality Control (QC) testing of Item 360, Concrete Paving. The Engineer shall be responsible for Quality
Assurance (QA) testing of Item 360, Concrete Paving.
3. The Engineer shall provide certified personnel, outlined in their internal, AASHTO-approved, Quality Control (QC)
Manual that are knowledgeable of all materials testing procedures. All personnel performing acceptance tests must provide
certifications and must maintain the certifications throughout the project. The HCRMA reserves the right to require
replacement of any technician during this contract if performance is determined to be unsatisfactory or the technician fails
to maintain appropriate certifications.
4. Engineer's laboratory will be qualified by the HCRMA qualifying authority in accordance with Section 3,
Laboratory Qualification Responsibility of the Texas Department of Transportation
(TxDOT) Quality Assurance Program (Manual Notice: 2005-1), and be AASHTO accredited under the AASHTO
Accreditation Program (AAP) throughout the life of the project. Engineer shall transmit, to the HCRMA, a copy of AAP
accreditation certificate(s) upon receipt by the testing laboratory.



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

5. The Engineer shall provide technicians certified in accordance with TxDOT Quality Assurance Program for
Construction (QAP) or other State approved programs, such as the Texas Asphalt Pavement Association (TxAPA) for Hot
Mix Asphalt, and the Soils and Base Certification Program, as listed.

6. The Engineer shall provide certified technicians to perform the following tests:
A. Hot Mix Asphalt Testing:

a. Level l-A
b. Level l-B
c. Hot Mix Asphalt Testing • Level II
d. All other tests in the Manual of Testing Procedures 200-F Series or ASTM Procedures not

covered in Level l-A, Level l-B, or Level II
B. Concrete Testing:

a. QAP Program for Concrete Testing
b. Other tests outlined in the Manual of Testing Procedures 400-A Series or ASTM Procedures that

are not included in the QAP Program
7. The Engineer shall perform testing on the project. These tests include all tests listed in State's Guide Schedule of
Sampling and Testing dated 2015. Follow the State’s Guide Schedule of Sampling and Testing to establish testing
frequencies. Testing frequencies may be increased as directed by the HCRMA.
8. The Engineer shall notify the HCRMA, to determine if any tests may be waived
9. The Engineer shall attend preconstruction QA and QC testing meetings prior to beginning work.
10. The Engineer shall:

A. Review and recommend approval or rejection of the Quality Control (QC) sampling and testing
documentation submitted by the General Contractor for compliance with applicable State and Federal regulations,
standards, and contract requirements.
B. Verify all tested materials used meet specifications or identify materials that do not meet specifications and
recommend action which should be taken.
C. Certify that all tested materials used during construction meet the specifications as outlined in the APPIA
Support System.
D. Work closely with the HCRMA to resolve all material discrepancies before the next monthly estimate is
processed by utilizing the Reporting in APPIA.
E. Enter all test data in APPIA.
F. Enter all mix designs, concrete and asphalt, provided by the General Contractor into APPIA.
G. The Engineer shall report failing tests to the HCRMA within twenty-four (24) hours.

SUMMARY OF DELIVERABLES: 
The Engineer shall provide the following: 
1. Monthly Progress Reports
2. Quarterly Material Test Reports
3. Sampling and testing personnel qualification
4. Final document file (maintained in project control system during project execution. Final structure of file will be

determined during project implementation, an example of content is provided below)
A. Construction Oversight Documentation

a. Testing reports and Testing documentation as applicable
b. Test Exception Letter
c. Certification Verifications
d. Photographs

B. Project Correspondence File (Design and Construction)
a. E-mail files
b. Letters
c. Memos
d. Meeting Minutes
e. Monthly Deficiency Reports to track material issues (one (1) per month)

f. Misc. correspondence



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc . 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT D 

WORK AUTHORIZATION 



ATTACHMENT D-1 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 
AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 

THIS WORK AUTHORIZATION is made pursuant to the terms and conditions of “Article V of that certain 
Professional Services Agreement for Engineering Services” (the Agreement) entered into by and between 
the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (Authority), and Raba Kistner, Inc., (the Engineer). 

PART I. The Engineer will perform engineering design services generally described as in accordance with the 
project description attached hereto and made a part of this Work Authorization. The responsibilities of the 
Authority and the Engineer as well as the work schedule are further detailed in exhibits A, B and C which are 
attached hereto and made a part of the Work Authorization. 

PART II. The maximum amount payable under this Work Authorization is $ and the method of 
payment is as set forth in Attachment E of the Agreement. This amount is based upon fees set 
forth in Attachment E, Fee Schedule, of the Agreement and the Engineer’s estimated Work Authorization costs 
included in Exhibit D, Fee Schedule, which is attached and made a part of this Work Authorization. 

PART III. Payment to the Engineer for the services established under this Work Authorization shall be made in 
accordance with Articles III thru V of the Agreement, and Attachment A, Section 1. 

PART IV. This Work Authorization shall become effective on the date of final acceptance of the parties hereto 
and shall terminate on , unless extended by a supplemental Work Authorization as provided in 
Attachment A, Section 1. 

PART V. This Work Authorization does not waive the parties' responsibilities and obligations provided under 
“Article V of that certain Professional Services Agreement for Engineering / Design Services 365 Tollway Project / 
Segment 1 & 2. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Work Authorization is executed in duplicate counterparts and hereby accepted 
and acknowledged below. 

THE ENGINEER THE AUTHORITY 

(Signature) 
Chris L. Schultz. 

(Printed Name) 
President    

(Title) 

(Signature) 
Pilar Rodriguez, P.E. 

(Printed Name) 
Executive Director 

(Title) 

(Date) (Date)

LIST OF EXHIBITS 
Exhibit A Services to be provided by the Authority 
Exhibit B Services to be provided by the Engineer 
Exhibit C Work Schedule 
Exhibit D Fee Schedule/Budget 
Exhibit H-2 Subprovider Monitoring System Commitment Agreement 



ATTACHMENT D-2 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT D-3 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for RABA Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

SUPPLEMENTAL WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 
TO WORK AUTHORIZATION NO.    

AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 

THIS SUPPLEMENTAL WORK AUTHORIZATION is made pursuant to the terms and conditions of 
“Article V of that certain Professional Services Agreement for Engineering Design Services” hereinafter identified 
as the “Agreement,” entered into by and between the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 
(Authority), and Raba Kistner, Inc. (the Engineer). 

The following terms and conditions of Work Authorization No. are hereby amended as follows: 

This Supplemental Work Authorization shall become effective on the date of final execution of the parties 
hereto. All other terms and conditions of Work Authorization No. 
full force and effect. 

not hereby amended are to remain in 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Supplemental Work Authorization is executed in duplicate counterparts and 
hereby accepted and acknowledged below. 

THE ENGINEER THE AUTHORITY 

(Signature) (Signature)
Chris L. Schultz Pilar Rodriguez, P.E. 

(Printed Name) (Printed Name) 
President  Executive Director

(Title) (Title)

(Date) (Date)



ATTACHMENT D-4 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT E 

FEE SCHEDULE 



TEST
NO.

Final as of

4/21/2021 & 

4/28/2021  COMMENTS 

Type Unit

1 Mobilization/Demobilization Mile 6.00$

Requesting re‐evalution 

as per mile unit cost

each 600.00$               
Drilling, Logging, &Recovering Samples (With TCP) 

2A 1. Depth ≤ 50 feet

Tex-132-E 
(every 5 

feet) 38.00$                 

2B 2. Depth ≥ 50 feet linear foot 40.00$                 
Drilling, Logging, &Recovering Samples (Without TCP)

3A 1. Depth ≤ 50 feet linear foot 30.61$  

3B 2. Depth ≥ 50 feet linear foot 32.57$  

4 Rock Coring (Soft Rock)⁽²⁾ linear foot 33.00$                 

5 Rock Coring (Hard Rock)⁽²⁾ linear foot 36.00$                 

6 Staking Borings and Utility Locations hour 121.67$               

Standby Time (sampling) hour 297.74$               

7A 1. Hot Mix Asphalt (minumum of one hour) each 117.05$               

7B 2. Concrete (minumum of one hour) each 171.98$               

8 Piezometer - 2 inch (including well completion and installation) linear foot 48.36$                 

9 Grouting of Borings linear foot 6.86$

10 Traffic Control - Major day 3,000.00$            

Laboratory Test Test Method Unit

11 Volumetric Shrinkage ASTM D427 each 105.24$               

12 Standard Poor Test ASTM D698 each 255.00$               

13 Modified Poor Test ASTM D1557 each 279.75$               

14 Standard Penetration Test (SPT) ASTM D1586 LF 30.04$  

15 California Bearing Ratio (Single Sample without MD Curve) ASTM D1883 test 302.03$             

16 Unconfined Compressive Strength (Soil) ASTM D2166 each 67.44$  

17 Hydraulic Conductivity Permeability ASTM D2434 each 392.00$               

18 One Dimensional Consolidation Properties of Soil ASTM D2435 each 500.00$             

19 Unconfined Compressive Strength (Rock) ASTM D2938 each 94.75$  

20 Direct Shear Test of Soils Under Consolidated Drained Conditions ASTM D3080 set of 3 679.23$             

21 Direct Shear Test of Soils Under Consolidated Drained Conditions, SAND ASTM D3080 set of 3 580.00$               

22 Direct Shear Test of Soils Under Consolidated Drained Conditions, CLAY ASTM D3080 set of 3 708.79$             

23 Splitting Tensile of Intact Rock Core ASTM D3967 each 131.11$             

24 Water Stand Pipes ASTM D4043 each 37.69$  

25 Calcium Carbonate Content of Soils ASTM D4373 LF 68.31$  

26 Hydraulic Conductivity Permeability ASTM D4511 each 324.08$             

27 One Dimensional Swell, Methods A&B ASTM D4546 each 249.47$             

28 One Dimensional Swell, Method B Only ASTM D4546 each 324.66$             

29 One Dimensional Swell, Method C ASTM D4546 each 247.52$             

30 Permeability of Silt and Clays ASTM D5084 each 390.00$               

31 Suction Test (Filter Method) ASTM D5298 each 92.50$                 

32 Casagrande Type Piezometers N/A each 337.82$             

33 Casagrande Type Piezometers Installation N/A each 450.00$             

34 Miscellaneous Testing N/A each Eliminate

No original cost presented 

for consideration

35 Vertical Inclinometer N/A each

 Proposal as 

needed 

36 Vertical Inclinometer Installation N/A each

 Proposal as 

needed 

37 Vibrating Wire Piezometer N/A each

 Proposal as 

needed 

38 Vibrating Wire Piezometer Installation N/A each

 Proposal as 

needed 

39 Soil Boring with SPT ASTM D1586 LF 36.00$                 

Laboratory Test Test Method Unit

Soils & Base Testing

40 Sampling Tex-400-A hour 66.15$  

41 Sample Preparation Tex-101-E each 68.00$  

42 Determining Slaking Time Tex-102-E each 72.25$                 

43 Moisture Content Tex-103-E each 15.44$  

44 Atterburg Limits Tex-104,105&106-E Set of 3 95.00$                 

45 Linear Bar Shrinkage (per bar) Tex-107-E each 69.04$  

46 Determining the Specific Gravity of Soils Tex-108-E each 80.67$  

47 Sieve Analysis Tex-110-E, Part I each 89.00$                 

48 Sieve Analysis (Hydrometer with Tex-108-E) Tex-110-E, Part II each 117.00$               

49 Hydrometer with Tex-108-E (in conjunctin with Tex-110-E, Part II) Tex-108-E each 69.00$                 

50 Percent Passing No. 200 Sieve Tex-111-E each 69.00$  

CMT Firm: Raba-Kistner 
Fee Schedule 
Date: 01/26/2021



TEST
NO.

Final as of

4/21/2021 & 

4/28/2021  COMMENTS 

CMT Firm: Raba-Kistner 
Fee Schedule 
Date: 01/26/2021

51 Determining the Amount of Material in Solis Finer than the 75 mi Tex-111-E each

52 Admixing Lime to Reduce Plasticity Index of Soils Tex-112-E each 146.00$               

53 Moisture-Density Relationship Tex-113-E each 275.00$               

54 Moisture-Density Relationship Tex-114-E each 255.00$               

55 Field Density Measurements Tex-115-E hour 68.00$                 

56 Wet Ball Mill Test Tex-116-E each 260.00$             

57 Texas Triaxial Compression ⁽⁶⁾ Tex-117-E, Part I each 1,075.00$            

58 Texas Triaxial Compression ⁽⁶⁾ Tex-117-E, Part II each 1,510.00$            

59
Quality Assurance (QA) Series for Flexible Base ⁽⁷⁾ ⁽⁸⁾ See Foot Notes each

2,180.00$            

No original cost presented 

for consideration

60 Soil- Cement Testing ⁽⁷⁾ Tex-120-E, Part II each 439.45$             

61 Soil- Lime Testing ⁽⁷⁾ Tex-121-E, Part II each 430.11$             

61.1
Soil-Lime Testing Determining Stabilization Ability of Lime by Soil pH Tex-121-E, Part III each

431.11$             

No original cost presented 

for consideration

62 Determining the Drainage Factor of Soil Materials (Not Field Test) Tex-123-E ++ each 357.50$               

63 Determining Modulus of Sub-grade Recaction (K Value) (Not Field Test) Tex-125-E ++ each 144.50$               

64 Molding, Testing, and Evaluation Bituminous Black Base Materials Tex-126-E ++ each 1,535.00$            

65 Lime-Fly Ash Compression ⁽⁷⁾ Tex-127-E each 719.39$             

66 Soil pH Tex-128-E each 53.94$  

67 Resistivity of Soils Tex-129-E each 120.00$               

68 Slurry Testing Tex-130-E each 109.14$             

69 Texas Cone Penetration Tex-132-E each 41.79$  

70 Freezing and Thawing Tests oc Compacted Soil-Cement Mixture Tex-135-E each 365.00$               

71 Thickness of Pavement Layers (4 hour minimum) Tex-140-E hour 107.04$             

72 Manual Procedure for Description and Identification of Soils Tex-141-E each 51.18$  

73 Laboratory Classification os Soils for Engineering Purposes Tex-142-E each 70.00$                 

74 Sulfate Content in Soils Tex-145-E each 95.00$                 

75 Conductivity Test for Field Detection of Sulfates in Soil Tex-146-E each 100.96$             

75.1 Organic Content Using UV-VIS Method Tex-148-E each 231.70$             

76 Determining Cholride and Sulfate Contents in Soils Tex-620-J each 88.16$  

77 Free Swell Test EM1110-2-1906 each 195.00$               

78 Pressure Swell Test EM1110-2-1906 each 293.00$             

79 One-Dimensional Swell ASTM D4546 each 293.00$             

80 One-Dimensional Swell (Method B Only) ASTM D4546 each 280.00$               

81 Potential Vertical Rise Calculation Tex-124-E each 85.14$  

82 Volumetric Shrinkage ASTM D4943 each 119.00$               

83 Volumetric Shrinkage ASTM D427 each

84 Unconfined Compression Test (Soil) ASTM D2166 each 66.79$  

85 Unconfined Compression Test (Rock) ASTM D2938 each 97.80$  

86 Unconfined Compression Test (Rock) (Method D) ASTM D7012 each 75.00$                 

Unconsolidated Undrained (UU) Triaxial Compression Test

87 1. Set of Three Tex-118-E set 312.36$             

88 2. Multistage Tex-118-E each 286.21$             

Consolidated Undrained (CU) Triaxial Compression Test

89 1. Set of Three
Tex-131-E or ASTM 
D4767

set 1,502.50$            

90 2. Multistage
Tex-131-E or ASTM 
D4767

each 1,362.50$            

Consolidated Drained (CD) Triaxial Compression Test

91 1. Set of Three
Tex-131-E or ASTM 
D4767

set 1,335.00$            

92 2. Multistage
Tex-131-E or ASTM 
D4767

each 1,261.50$            

93 Direct Shear Consolidated Drained (CD), sand ASTM D3080 set of 3 665.00$             

94 Direct Shear Consolidated Drained (CD), clay ASTM D3080 set of 3 834.92$             

95 One-Dimensional Consolidation Test (7 load increments) ASTM D2435 each 597.14$             

96 Resilient Modulus (fine-grained soils) AASHTO T307 each 1,200.00$            

Hot Mix Asphalt Testing

97 Sieve Analysis of Fine and Coarse Aggregates Tex-200-F each 94.54$  

98 Bulk Specific Gravity and Water Absorption of Aggregates Tex-201-F each 91.88$  

99 Apparent Specific Gravity of Material Finer Than 180 µm (No. 80) Sieve Tex-202-F each 65.00$                 

100 Sand Equivalent Test Tex-203-F each 95.50$                 

101 Labortory Method of Mixing Bituminous Mixtures Tex-205-F Set of 3 187.00$               

102 Compacting Specimens Using the Texas Gyratory Compactor (TG Tex-206-F Set of 3 113.04$             

103 Determining Bulk Specific Gravity of Compacted Bituminuous Mixtures Tex-207-F (I) each 50.00$                 

104
Determining In-Place Density of Compacted Bituminuous Mixtures (Nuclear 
Method) Tex-207-F (III) each 45.00$                 

105 Asphalt Rolling Pattern (Nuclear Method) Tex-207-F (IV) each 88.69$  

106 Segregation Profile Tex-207-F (V) each 194.17$             

107 Joint Density Tex-207-F (VII) each 194.17$             

108 Test of Stabilometer Value of Bituminous Mixtures Tex-208-F set of 3 157.05$             

109 Determining Asphalt Content of Bituminous Mixtures by Extraction Tex-210-F each 182.13$             



TEST
NO.

Final as of

4/21/2021 & 

4/28/2021  COMMENTS 

CMT Firm: Raba-Kistner 
Fee Schedule 
Date: 01/26/2021

110 Recovery of Asphalt from Bituminou Mixtures by the Abson Pro Tex-211-F each 289.11$             

111 Determining Moisture Content of Bituminous Mixtures Tex-212-F each 54.03$  

112 Determining Hydrocarbon-Volatile Content of Bituminous Mixture Tex-213-F each 131.76$             

113
Determining Deleterious Material and Decantation Test for Coarse 
Aggregates Tex-217-F each 110.00$               

114 Indirect Tensile Strength Test Tex-226-F each 495.02$             

115 Theoretical Maximum Specific Gravity of Bituminous Mixtures Tex-227-F each 105.31$             

116 Determining Asphalt Content of Bituminous Mixtures by the Nuclear Tex-228-F each 103.18$             

117 Combined HMAC Cold-Belt Sampling and Testing Procedure Tex-229-F each 83.50$                 

118 Determining Draindown Characteristics in Bituminous Mixtures Tex-235-F each 75.00$                 

119
Determining Asphalt Content from Asphalt Paving Mixtures by the Ignition 
Method Tex-236-F each 168.25$               

120 Asphalt Release Agents Tex-239-F each 90.00$                 

121 Superpave Gyratory Compacting of Test Specimens of Bituminous Tex-241-F each 158.11$             

122 Hamburg Wheel Tracker Tex-242-F each 600.00$               

123 Tack Coat Adhesion Tex-243-F each 185.00$               

124 Thremal Profile Tex-244-F each 164.50$               

125 Cantabro Loss Tex-245-F each 219.67$             

126 Permeability or Water Flow of Hot Mix Asphalt Tex-246-F each 83.50$                 

127 Overlay Test Tex-248-F set of 3 762.22$             

128 Flat and Elongated Particles Tex-280-F each 77.36$  

129 Sampling Bituminous Materials, Pre-Molded Joint Fillers, and Joint Tex-500-C each 87.00$                 

130 Asphalt Binder Water in Petroleum Tex-501-C AASHTO T55 each 125.25$               

131 Penetration of Bituminous Materials Tex-502-C AASHTO T49 each 130.82$             

132 Ductility of Asphalt Materials Tex-503-C AASHTO T51 each 141.50$               

133 Flash and Fire Points by Cleveland Open Cup Tex-504-C AASHTO T48 each 70.56$  

134 Softening Point of Bitumen (Riing and Ball Apparatus Tex-505-C AASHTO T53 each 120.27$             

135 Solubility of Bituminous Materials Tex-507-C AASHTO T44 each 147.75$               

136 Specific Gravity Tex-508-C AASHTO T228 each 96.00$                 

137 Spot Test of Asphaltic Materials Tex-509-C AASHTO T102 each 203.50$               

138 Effect of Heat and Air on Asphalt Materials (Thin-Film Oven Test) Tex-510-C AASHTO t179 each 169.30$               

139 Flash Point with Tag Open-Cup Apparatus for Use with Material H Tex-512-C AASHTO T79 each 113.88$               

140 Saybolt Viscosity Tex-513-C AASHTO T72 each 89.02$  

141

Cutback Asphalts - Specific Gravity, API Gravity, or Density of Cutback 
Asphalts by Hdyrometer Method; Emulsified Asphalts - Weight per Gallon of 
Emulsified Asphalt

Tex-514-C ASTM D3142 
ASTM D244

each
423.00$               

142 Distillation of Cutback Asphalt Products Tex-515-C AASHTO T78 each 205.67$             

143 Float Test for Bituminous Materials Tex-519-C AASHTO T50 each 87.83$                 

144 Standard Test Method for Emulsified Asphalts Tex-521-C AASHTO T59 each 241.88$               

145 Viscosity of Asphalts by Vacuum Capillary Viscometer Tex-528-C AASHTO T202 each 47.50$                 

146 Kinematic Viscosity of Asphalts (Bitumens) Tex-529-C AASHTO T201 each 89.02$  

147 Boil Test (Effect of Water on Paving Mix) Tex-530/531-C each 153.50$               

148 Field Coring - ACP Thickness ASTM D3549 each 124.25$               

149 Pavement Thickness Determin. (Full Depth) ASTM D3549 each 153.00$               

150 Determining Polymer Additive Percentages in Polymer Modified Tex-533-C each 82.50$                 

151 Calculating Viscosity from Penetration Tex-535-C each 87.06$  

152 Elastic Recovery of Tensile Deformation Using a Ductilometer Tex-539-C each 79.13$                 

153 Measurement of Polymer Separation on Heating in Modified Asphalat Tex-540-C each 129.50$               

154 Rolling Thin Film Oven Test for Asphalt Binders Tex-541-C ASSHTO T240 each 189.00$               

155 Flexural Creep Stiffness Using the Bending Beam Rheometer AASHTO T313 each 275.00$               

156 Determining Rheological Properties of Asphalt Binder Using a Dy AASHTO T315 each 244.13$               

157 Determining Breaking Index for Asphalt Emulsions Tex-542-C each 251.89$             

158 Resilience Test for Sealants and Repair Materials Tex-547-C each 305.36$             

159 Tensile Strain to Failure Tex-548-C each 84.00$                 

160 Cone Flow Test Tex-549-C each 87.50$                 

161 Flexibility Test for Sealants and Repair Materials Tex-550-C each 302.50$               

162 Settlement of Sealants and Repair Materials Tex-551-C each 118.50$               

Concrete & Aggregate Testing

163 Sieve Analysis for Conc. Agg Tex-401-A each 90.10$  

164 Fineness Modulus for Conc. Agg Tex-402-A each 47.50$                 

165 SSD Specific Gravity / Absorption Conc. Agg Tex-403-A each 88.00$                 

166 Unit Weight of Conc. Agg Tex-404-A each 58.30$  

167 Determining Pecent Voids and Solids in Concrete Tex-405-A each 75.94$  

168 Decantation for Conc. Agg Tex-406-A each 63.75$                 

169 Organic Impurities for Conc. Agg Tex-408-A each 59.16$  

170 Free Moisture and Water Absorption in Aggregate for Concrete Tex-409-A each 66.00$                 

171 L.A. Abrasion Tex-410-A each 403.12$             

172 5 Cycle Magnesium Soundness Tex-411-A each 520.48$             

173 Deleterious Material for Conc. Agg Tex-413-A each 77.25$                 

174 Air Content of Fresh Concrete by Volumeteric Tex-414-A each 36.05$                 

175 Slump of Fresh Concrete Tex-415-A each 29.90$  



TEST
NO.

Final as of

4/21/2021 & 

4/28/2021  COMMENTS 

CMT Firm: Raba-Kistner 
Fee Schedule 
Date: 01/26/2021

176 Air Content of Fresh Concrete by Pressure Tex-416-A each 32.08$  

177 Unit Weight, Yield and Air Content (Gravimetric) of Concrete Tex-417-A each 60.13$                 

178 Comp. Strength of Cyl. Conc. Specimen Tex-418-A each 23.00$                 

179 Measure Temp. of Fresh Conc. Tex-422-A each 23.16$  

180 Obtaining & Testing Drilled Conc. Cores Tex-424-A each 303.62$             

181 Absorption and Dry Bulk Specific Gravity of Lightweight Coarse Tex-433-A each 105.40$               

182 Test Flow of Grout Mixtures (Flow Cone Method) Tex-437-A each 102.66$             

183 Accelerated Polish Test for Coarse Aggregate Tex-438-A each 912.50$               

184 Det. Comp. Strength of Grouts Tex-442-A each 31.00$                 

185 Making & Curing Conc. Test Specimen Tex-447-A each 19.91$  

186 Flexural Strength of Concrete Using Simple Beam Third-Point Load Tex-448-A each 49.63$                 

187 Capping Cyl. Conc. Specimen Tex-450-A each 22.25$                 

188 Degradation of Coarse Aggregate by Micro-Devel Abrasion Tex-461-A each 266.50$               

189 Uniformity of Concrete Tex‐472‐A each 189.63$               

Additional Testing Test Method Unit

190 Geogrid Testing Tex-621-J each 800.20$             

191 Water Quality Testing Tex-619-J each 179.25$               

192 Lime Testing Tex-600-J each 367.59$             

193 Operating Inertial Profilers and Evaluating Pavement Profiles
Tex-1001-S each 1,800.00$          

No original cost presented 

for consideration

194 Vane Shear Testing ASTM D2573 each 338.00$             

Miscellaneous Testing Test Method Unit

195  Structural Field Welding NA hour
150.00$               

No original cost presented 

for consideration

Equipmemt & Supplies for MT & UT day
150.00$               

No original cost presented 

for consideration

Other Direct Expenses Unit

Photocopies B/W (8 1/2" X 11") each 0.15$  

Photocopies B/W (11" X 17") each 0.23$  

Photocopies Color (8 1/2" X 11") each 0.82$  

Photocopies Color (11" X 17") each 1.41$  

Digital Ortho Plotting sheet 2.43$  

CADD Plotting linear foot 1.00$  

Plots (B/W on Bond) linear foot 0.91$  

Plots (Color on Bond) linear foot 1.75$  

Plots (Color on Photgraphic Paper) linear foot 2.72$  

Reproduction of CD/DVD each 4.55$  



ATTACHMENT E: FEE SCHEDULE [SPECIFIED RATE / LUMP SUM PAYMENT BASIS]

Raba Personnel Classification Hourly Base Rate 
Contract Rate

FY 2021

Senior Project Manager / Principal 64.73$   178.00$       

Senior Geotechnical Engineer 47.27$   130.00$       

Geotechnical Engineer 36.73$   101.00$       

Project Engineer 45.81$   125.98$       

Engineering Lab Manager 32.00$   88.00$         

Utility Coordinator 40.36$   110.98$       

Senior Project Inspector 34.55$   95.00$         

Project Inspector 23.64$   65.00$         

EIT 31.64$   87.00$         

Engineer Tech / GIS 21.82$   60.00$         

Logger 21.64$   59.52$         

Field Technician (Soils, Aggr, Asph, Conc) 24.73$   68.02$         

CADD Operator  28.44$   78.20$         

Admin/Clerical  22.12$   60.82$         



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

EXHIBIT D 

ESTIMATED MAN HOURS/TEST 

BREAKDOWN 







HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT E-1 
Final Cost Proposal Form 

This attachment provides the basis of payment and fee schedule. The basis of payment for this Work 
Authorization is indicated by an “X” in the applicable box. The basis shall be supported by the Final Cost 
Proposal (FCP) shown below and should identify maximum amount payable and basis of payment. If more than 
one basis of payment is used, each one must be supported by a separate FCP. The basis of payment will be 
determined by Work Authorization and may be by any of the methods listed below. 

“X” Basis 

Lump Sum 
The lump sum shall be equal to the maximum amount payable. The lump sum includes 
all direct and indirect costs and fixed fee. The Engineer shall be paid pro rata based on the 
percentage of work completed. For payment the Engineer is not required to provide 
evidence of actual hours worked, travel, overhead rates or other evidence of cost. 

    X_ Unit Cost 
The unit cost(s) for each type of unit and number of units are shown in the FCP. The 
unit cost includes all direct and indirect costs and fixed fee. The Engineer shall be paid 
based on the type and number of units fully completed and the respective unit cost. For 
payment, the Engineer is not required to provide evidence of actual hours worked, travel, 
overhead rates or any other cost data. The FCP may include special items, such as 
equipment which are not included in the unit costs. Documentation of these special 
costs may be required. The maximum amount payable equals the total of all units times 
their respective unit cost plus any special direct items shown. 

    X 
Specified 
Rate Basis 

The specified rates for each type of labor are shown in the FCP below. The FCP may 
include special items, such as equipment which are not included in the specified rates. 
Payment shall be based on the actual hours worked multiplied by the specified rate for 
each type of labor plus other agreed to special direct cost items. The specified rate includes 
direct labor and indirect cost and fixed fee. The Authority may request 
documentation of reimbursable direct costs including hours worked. Documentation of 
special item costs may be required. The specified rate is not subject to audit. 

Cost Plus 
Fixed Fee 

Payment shall be based on direct and indirect costs incurred plus a pro rata share of the 
fixed fee based on the ratio of labor and overhead cost incurred to total estimated labor 
and overhead cost in the FCP or the percentage of work completed. The invoice must 
itemize labor rates, hours worked, other direct costs and indirect costs. The Engineer may 
be required to provide documentation of hours worked and any eligible direct costs 
claimed. The provisional overhead rate charged is subject to audit and adjustment to actual 
rates incurred. The FCP below shows the hourly rates for labor, other direct expenses 
including but not limited to travel and allowable materials, provisional overhead rate and 
the fixed fee. 

A. Actual Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Actual wages are paid (no minimum, no
maximum.

B. Range of Cost Plus Fixed Fee – Actual wages must be within the
allowable range shown on the Final Cost Proposal.

A. REFER TO ATTACHMENT E-2 FOR HOURLY SPECIFIED / LUMP SUM RATE SCHEDULE
FOR EACH FIRM



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

EXHIBIT F 

WORK SCHEDULE



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

EXHIBIT F  

WORK SCHEDULE 

HCRMA Construction & Materials Testing Services 
TOLL365 (SH 365) 

Task Name Start Finish 

Material Testing 10/1/2021 12/13/2025 
Geotechnical 10/1/2021 12/13/2025
Other Analyses 10/1/2021 12/13/2025 
All sampling and testing of components and materials 10/1/2021 12/13/2025 

Hot Mix Asphalt Testing 10/1/2021 12/13/2025 
Concrete Testing 10/1/2021 12/13/2025 
Construction Oversight Documentation 10/1/2021 12/13/2025
Project Correspondence File (Design and Construction) 10/1/2021 12/13/2025 



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT H 

DBE PARTICIPATION 



ATTACHMENT H-MOU 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
REGARDING THE ADOPTION OF THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORATION’S FEDERALY-APPROVED DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS 
ENTERPRISE PROGRAM BY 

THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT H-MOU 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
REGARDING THE ADOPTION OF THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORATION’S FEDERALY-APPROVED DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS 
ENTERPRISE PROGRAM BY 

THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT H-MOU 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
REGARDING THE ADOPTION OF THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORATION’S FEDERALY-APPROVED DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS 
ENTERPRISE PROGRAM BY 

THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT H-MOU 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
REGARDING THE ADOPTION OF THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORATION’S FEDERALY-APPROVED DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS 
ENTERPRISE PROGRAM BY 

THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT H-MOU 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
REGARDING THE ADOPTION OF THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORATION’S FEDERALY-APPROVED DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS 
ENTERPRISE PROGRAM BY 

THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

Attachment H-Instructions 
As Per 49CFR 26.21 

The following pages contain six (6) different Attachments to Attachment H covering participation of HUB and 
DBE providers and subproviders. The correct form to use is determined by whether the Agreement is funded in 
whole or part by federal funds State funds or Authority funds, and whether or not a HUB/DBE goal has been set 
for the Agreement. The following pages contain separate reporting forms for federally funded DBE participation 
and Authority funded HUB participation. Select the forms that are appropriate for your Agreement and delete 
the rest along with these instructions from the final Agreement. 

Federally Funded Contracts 
Attachment H-FG, Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) for Federal Funded Professional 
or Technical Services Contracts 
 This provision is applicable to federally funded contracts with assigned DBE goals. 
 The appropriate forms for this provision are Attachments H-1, H-2, H-3 and H-4 and H-5.   A copy 

of each form is required in the contract. 
 Note: if the contract requires work authorizations, a completed Attachment H-2 will be required 

with each Work Authorization, if a DBE will be performing work. If a non-DBE subprovider is 
used, insert N/A (not applicable) on the line provided on the H-2 form. 

 Attachment H-3 must be submitted monthly to the AUTHORITY Office even if there is no invoice 
being submitted or subcontracting to report. 

 Attachment H-3 must be submitted with each invoice to the appropriate agency contact for 
payment. 

Attachment H-FN, Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) for Race Neutral Professional or 
Technical Services Contracts 
 This provision is applicable to federally funded contracts with no DBE goal assigned. 
 If no subcontractors will be used, the appropriate forms for this provision are Attachments H-3 

and H-5. A copy of each form is required in the contract. 
 Note: If subcontractors are used, the required forms would be Attachments H-1, H-2, H-3, H-4 

and H-5. A copy of each form is required in the contract. 
 Attachment H-3 must be submitted monthly to the AUTHORITY Office even if there is no 

invoice being submitted or subcontracting to report. 
 Attachment H-3 must be submitted with each invoice to the appropriate agency contact for 

payment. 
Attachment H-3, Texas Department of Transportation Subprovider Monitoring System for 
Federally Funded Contracts. This is a Monthly Progress Assessment Report. 
 Required for all federally funded contracts. 
 This form is required monthly and must be submitted to the AUTHORITY Office even if there is 

no invoice being submitted or subcontracting to report. 
 This form must be submitted with each invoice to the appropriate agency contact for payment. 

Attachment H-5, Federal Subprovider and Supplier Information 
Required for all federally funded contracts. 



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

Attachment H-Instructions (Continued) 
State Funded Contracts 
Attachment H-SG, Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) for State Funded Professional or 
Technical Services Contracts, State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan Required 
 This provision is applicable to state funded contracts with a HUB goal assigned. 
 The appropriate reporting forms for this provision are Attachments H-1, H-2, H-4, and H-6 (Texas 

Building and Procurement Commission [TBPC] State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan (HSP), 
Prime Contractor Assessment Report). A copy of each form is required in the contract. 

 Note: if the contract requires work authorizations, a completed Attachment H-2 will be required with 
each Work Authorization, if a HUB will be performing work. If a non-HUB subprovider is used, 
insert N/A (not applicable) on the line provided on the H-2 form. 

 Attachment H-6 will be required monthly and must be submitted to the AUTHORITY Office even 
if there is no invoice being submitted or subcontracting to report. 

 Attachment H-6 must be submitted with each invoice to the appropriate agency contact for payment. 

Attachment H-SN, Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) Participation for State Funded 
Professional or Technical Services Contracts, No State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan 
Required 
 This provision is applicable to state funded contracts with no HUB subcontracting plan required and 

no HUB goal assigned. If no subcontractors are used, the appropriate forms for this provision are 
Attachments H-1 and H-6. 

 Note: If subcontractors are used, the required forms would be Attachments H-1, H-2, H-4 and H-6. 
A copy of each form is required in the contract. 

 Attachment H-6 must be submitted monthly to the AUTHORITY Office even though there is no 
invoice being submitted or subcontracting to report. 

 Attachment H-6 must be submitted with each invoice to the appropriate agency contact for payment. 

Attachment H-6, HUB Subcontracting Plan (HSP) Prime Contractor Professional Assessment 
Report. This is a Monthly Progress Assessment Report. This is a Texas Building and Procurement 
Commission (TBPC) form and cannot be altered. 
 Required for all State funded contracts. 
 Attachment H-6 is required monthly and should be submitted to the AUTHORITY Office. This is 

a requirement even though there is no invoice being submitted or subcontracting to report. 
 A copy of Attachment H-6 must be submitted when supplying an invoice to the appropriate agency 

contact for payment. 
 The “Object Code” section(s) on this form should remain blank. 



ATTACHMENT H-FG 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

for Federal-Aid Professional or Technical Services Contracts 

1) PURPOSE. The purpose of this attachment is to carry out the Authority and the U.S. Department of
Transportation’s (DOT) policy of ensuring nondiscrimination in the award and administration of the
AUTHORITY and DOT assisted contracts and creating a level playing field on which firms owned and
controlled by minority or socially and economically disadvantaged individuals can compete fairly for the
AUTHORITY and DOT assisted contracts.

2) POLICY. It is the policy of the AUTHORITY and DOT and the Texas Department of Transportation
(henceforth the “Department”) that Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBEs) as defined in 49 CFR Part
26, Subpart A and the Department’s Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program, shall have the opportunity
to participate in the performance of contracts financed in whole or in part with Federal funds. Consequently,
the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise requirements of 49 CFR Part 26, and the Department’s Disadvantaged
Business Enterprise Program, apply to this contract as follows.
a. The Provider will offer Disadvantaged Business Enterprises, as defined in 49 CFR Part 26, Subpart A and

the Authority/Department Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program, the opportunity to compete fairly
for contracts and subcontracts financed in whole or in part with Federal funds. In this regard, the Provider
shall make a good faith effort to meet the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise goal for this contract.

b. The Provider and any subprovider(s) shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or
sex in the performance of this contract. The Provider shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR
Part 26 in the award and administration of DOT assisted contracts. The requirements of this Special
Provision shall be physically included in any subcontract.

c. When submitting the contract for execution by the Authority, the Provider must complete and furnish
Attachment H-1 which lists the commitments made to certified DBE subprovider(s) that are to meet the
contract goal and Attachment H-2 which is a commitment agreement(s) containing the original signatures
of the Provider and the proposed DBE(s). For Work Authorization Contracts, Attachment H-
1 is required at the time of submitting the contract for execution by the Authority/Department. Attachment
H-2 will be required to be completed and attached with each work authorization number that is submitted
for execution, if the DBE will be performing work. Any substitutions or changes to the DBE subcontract
amount shall be subject to prior written approval by the Authority/Department. If non- DBE subprovider
is performing work, insert N/A (not applicable) on the line provided.

d. Failure to carry out the requirements set forth above shall constitute a material breach of this contract
and may result; in termination of the contract by the Authority/Department; in a deduction of the amount
of DBE goal not accomplished by DBEs from the money due or to become due to the Provider, not as a
penalty but as liquidated damages to the Authority/Department; or such other remedy or remedies as the
Authority/Department deems appropriate.

3) DEFINITIONS.
a. “Authority/Department” means Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (HCRMA) and the Texas

Department of Transportation (TxDOT).
b. “Federal-Aid Contract” is any contract between the Texas Department of Transportation and a Provider

which is paid for in whole or in part with U. S. Department of Transportation (DOT) financial assistance.
c. “Provider” is any individual or company that provides professional or technical services.
d. “DBE Joint Venture” means an association a DBE firm and one (1) or more other firm(s) to carry out a

single business enterprise for profit for which purpose they combine their property, capital, efforts, skills
and knowledge, and in which the DBE is responsible for a distinct, clearly defined portion of the work



ATTACHMENT H-FG 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

for Federal-Aid Professional or Technical Services Contracts 

of the contract and whose share in the capital contribution, control, management, risks and profits of the 
joint venture are commensurate with its ownership interest. 

e. “Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)” means a firm certified as such by the Authority/Department
in accordance with 49 CFR Part 26.

f. “Good Faith Effort” means efforts to achieve a DBE goal or other requirement of this Special Provision
which, by their scope, intensity, and appropriateness to the objective, can reasonably be expected to fulfill
the program requirement.

g. “Race-neutral DBE Participation” means any participation by a DBE through customary competitive
procurement procedures.

4) PERCENTAGE GOAL. The goal for Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) participation in the work
to be performed under this Agreement is 6.0% of the Agreement amount.

5) PROVIDER’S RESPONSIBILITIES. A DBE prime may receive credit toward the DBE goal for work
performed by his-her own forces and work subcontracted to DBEs. A DBE prime must make a good faith
effort to meet the goals. In the event a DBE prime subcontracts to a non-DBE, that information must be
reported to the Authority/Department.
a. A Provider who cannot meet the contract goal, in whole or in part, shall document the “Good Faith Efforts”

taken to obtain DBE participation. The following is a list of the types of actions that may be considered
as good faith efforts. It is not intended to be a mandatory checklist, nor is it intended to be exclusive or
exhaustive. Other factors or types of efforts may be relevant in appropriate cases.

(1) Soliciting through all reasonable and available means the interest of all certified DBEs who have
the capability to perform the work of the contract. The solicitation must be done within sufficient
time to allow the DBEs to respond to it. Appropriate steps must be taken to follow up initial
solicitations to determine, with certainty, if the DBEs are interested.

(2) Selecting portions of the work to be performed by DBEs in order to increase the likelihood that
the DBE goals will be achieved. This includes, where appropriate, breaking out contract work
items into economically feasible units to facilitate DBE participation, even when the Provider
might otherwise prefer to perform the work items with its own forces.

(3) Providing interested DBEs with adequate information about the plans, specifications, and
requirements of the contract in a timely manner to assist them in responding to a solicitation.

(4) Negotiating in good faith with interested DBEs by making a portion of the work available to DBE
subproviders and suppliers and selecting those portions of the work or material needs consistent
with the available DBE subproviders and suppliers.

(5) The ability or desire of the Provider to perform the work of a contract with its own organization
does not relieve the Provider’s responsibility to make a good faith effort. Additional costs involved
in finding and using DBEs is not in itself sufficient reason for a Provider’s failure to meet the
contract DBE goal, as long as such costs are reasonable. Providers are not, however, required to
accept higher quotes from DBEs if the price difference is excessive or unreasonable.

(6) Not rejecting DBEs as being unqualified without sound reasons based on a thorough investigation
of their capabilities.

(7) Making efforts to assist interested DBEs in obtaining bonding, lines of credit, or insurance as
required by the recipient or Provider.

(8) Making efforts to assist interested DBEs in obtaining necessary equipment, supplies, materials or
related assistance or services.

(9) Effectively using the services of available minority/women community organizations;
minority/women contractors’ groups; local, County, State and Federal minority/women business



ATTACHMENT H-FG 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) 

for Federal-Aid Professional or Technical Services Contracts 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

assistance offices; and other organizations as allowed on a case-by-case basis to provide assistance 
in the recruitment and placement of DBEs. 

(10) If the Authority/Department’s Director of the Business Opportunity Programs Office determines
that the Provider has failed to meet the good faith effort requirements, the Provider will be given
an opportunity for reconsideration by the Director of the appropriate Division.

NOTE: The Provider must not cause or allow subproviders to bid their services. 
b. The preceding information shall be submitted directly to the Chair of the Hidalgo County Regional

Mobility Authority (Authority) responsible for the project.
c. The Provider shall make all reasonable efforts to honor commitments to DBE subproviders named in the

commitment submitted under Section 2.c. of this attachment. Where the Provider terminates or removes a
DBE subprovider named in the initial commitment, the Provider must demonstrate on a case-by-case basis
to the satisfaction of the Authority/Department that the originally designated DBE was not able or willing
to perform.

d. The Provider shall make a good faith effort to replace a DBE subprovider that is unable or unwilling to
perform successfully with another DBE, to the extent needed to meet the contract goal. The Provider shall
submit a completed Attachment H-2 Form for the substitute firm(s). Any substitution of DBEs shall be
subject to prior written approval by the Authority /Department. The Authority /Department may request a
statement from the firm being replaced concerning its replacement prior to approving the substitution.

e. The Provider shall designate a DBE liaison officer who will administer the DBE program and who will
be responsible for maintenance of records of efforts and contacts made to subcontract with DBEs.

f. Providers are encouraged to investigate the services offered by banks owned and controlled by
disadvantaged individuals and to make use of these banks where feasible.

6) ELIGIBILITY OF DBEs.
a. The Authority/Department certifies the eligibility of DBEs, DBE joint ventures and DBE truck-owner

operators to perform DBE subcontract work on DOT financially assisted contracts.
b. This certification will be accomplished through the use of the appropriate certification schedule contained

in this Authority/Department’s DBE program.
c. The Authority/Department publishes a Directory of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises containing the

names of firms that have been certified to be eligible to participate as DBEs on DOT financially assisted
contracts. The directory is available from the Authority’s/Department’s Business Opportunity Programs
Office. The Texas Unified Certification Program DBE Directory can be found on the Internet at:
http://www.dot.state.tx.us/services/business_opportunity_programs/tucp_dbe_directory.htm .

d. Only DBE firms certified at the time the contract is signed or at the time the commitments are submitted
are eligible to be used in the information furnished by the Provider as required under Section 2.c. and
5.d. above. For purposes of the DBE goal on this contract, DBEs will only be allowed to perform work
in the categories of work for which they were certified.

7) DETERMINATION OF DBE PARTICIPATION.
A firm must be an eligible DBE and perform a professional or technical function relating to the project.
Once a firm is determined to be an eligible DBE, the total amount paid to the DBE for work performed with
his/her own forces is counted toward the DBE goal. When a DBE subcontracts part of the work of its contract
to another firm, the value of the subcontracted work may be counted toward DBE goals only if the subprovider
is itself a DBE. Work that a DBE subcontracts to a non-DBE firm does not count toward DBE goals.



ATTACHMENT H-FG 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) 

for Federal-Aid Professional or Technical Services Contracts 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

A DBE subprovider may subcontract no more than 70% of a federal aid contract. The DBE subprovider shall 
perform not less than 30% of the value of the contract work with assistance of employees employed and paid 
directly by the DBE; and equipment owned or rented directly by the DBE. DBE subproviders must perform 
a commercially useful function required in the contract in order for payments to be credited toward meeting 
the contract goal. A DBE performs a commercially useful function when it is responsible for executing the 
work of the contract and is carrying out its responsibilities by actually performing, managing, and supervising 
the work involved. To perform a commercially useful function, the DBE must also be responsible, with respect 
to materials and supplies used on the contract, for negotiating price, determining quality and quantity, ordering 
the material, and installing (where applicable) and paying for the material itself. When a DBE is presumed 
not to be performing a commercially useful function, the DBE may present evidence to rebut this presumption. 

A Provider may count toward its DBE goal a portion of the total value of the contract amount paid to a DBE 
joint venture equal to the distinct, clearly defined portion of the work of the contract performed by the DBE. 

Proof of payment, such as copies of canceled checks, properly identifying the Authority/Department’s 
contract number or project number may be required to substantiate the payment, as deemed necessary by the 
Authority/Department. 

8) RECORDS AND REPORTS.
a. After submission of the initial commitment reported (Attachment H-1), required by Section 2.c. of this

attachment, the Provider shall submit Monthly Progress Assessment Reports (Attachment H-3), after
contract work begins, on DBE involvement to meet the goal and for race-neutral participation.   One copy
of each report is to be sent to the Authority/Department’s Business Opportunity Programs Office monthly,
in addition one copy is to be submitted with the Provider’s invoice. Only actual payments made to
subproviders are to be reported. These reports will be required until all subprovider activity is
completed. The Authority/Department may verify the amounts being reported as paid to DBEs by
requesting copies of canceled checks paid to DBEs on a random basis.

b. DBE subproviders should be identified on the report by name, type of work being performed, the amount
of actual payment made to each during the billing period, cumulative payment amount and percentage of
the total contract amount. These reports will be due within fifteen (15) days after the end of a calendar
month. Reports are required even when no DBE activity has occurred in a billing period.

c. All such records must be retained for a period of four (4) years following final payment or until any
investigation, audit, examination, or other review undertaken during the four (4) years is completed, and
shall be available at reasonable times and places for inspection by authorized representatives of the
Authority or Texas Department of Transportation or the DOT.

d. Prior to receiving final payment, the Provider shall submit a Final Report (Attachment H-4), detailing the
DBE payments. The Final Report is to be sent to the Authority/Department’s Business Opportunity
Programs Office and one (1) copy to be submitted with the Provider’s final invoice. If the DBE goal
requirement is not met, documentation of the good faith efforts made to meet the goal must be submitted
with the Final Report.

9) COMPLIANCE OF PROVIDER. To ensure that DBE requirements of this DOT-assisted contract are
complied with, the Authority/Department will monitor the Provider’s efforts to involve DBEs during the
performance of this contract. This will be accomplished by a review of Monthly Progress Assessment Reports
(Attachment H-3), submitted to the Authority/Department’s Business Opportunity Programs Office



ATTACHMENT H-FG 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) 

for Federal-Aid Professional or Technical Services Contracts 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

by the Provider indicating his progress in achieving the DBE contract goal, and by compliance reviews 
conducted by the Authority/Department. The Monthly Progress Assessment Report (Attachment H-3) must 
be submitted at a minimum monthly to the Business Opportunity Programs Office, in addition to with each 
invoice to the appropriate agency contact. 

The Provider shall receive credit toward the DBE goal based on actual payments to the DBE subproviders 
with the following exceptions and only if the arrangement is consistent with standard industry practice. The 
Provider shall contact the Authority/Department if he/she withholds or reduces payment to any DBE 
subprovider. 

(1) A DBE firm is paid but does not assume contractual responsibility for performing the service;
(2) A DBE firm does not perform a commercially useful function;
(3) Payment is made to a DBE that cannot be linked by an invoice or canceled check to the contract under

which credit is claimed;
(4) Payment is made to a broker or a firm with a brokering-type operation;
(5) Partial credit is allowed, in the amount of the fee or commission provided the fee or commission

does not exceed that customarily allowed for similar services, for a bona fide service, such as
professional, technical, consultant, or managerial services, and assistance in the procurement of
essential personnel, facilities, equipment, materials, or supplies required for performance of the
contract.

A Provider’s failure to comply with the requirements of this Special Provision shall constitute a material 
breach of this contract. In such a case, the Authority/Department reserves the right to terminate the contract; 
to deduct the amount of DBE goal not accomplished by DBEs from the money due or to become due the 
Provider, not as a penalty but as liquidated damages to the Authority/Department; or such other remedy or 
remedies as the Authority/Department deems appropriate. 

12/06 
DBE-FED.ATT 



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT H-FN 

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) for Race-Neutral Professional or Technical Services Contracts 

It is the policy of the U. S. Department of Transportation (DOT) that DBEs as defined in 49 CFR Part 26, Subpart 
A, be given the opportunity to compete fairly for contracts and subcontracts financed in whole or in part with 
Federal funds and that a maximum feasible portion of the Department’s overall DBE goal be met using race-
neutral means. Consequently, if there is no DBE goal, the DBE requirements of 49 CFR Part 26, apply to this 
contract as follows: 

The Provider will offer DBEs as defined in 49 CFR Part 26, Subpart A, the opportunity to compete fairly for 
contracts and subcontracts financed in whole or in part with federal funds. Race-Neutral DBE participation on 
projects with no DBE goal should be reported on the Attachment H-3 Form. Payments to DBEs reported on 
Attachment H-3 are subject to the following requirements: 

DETERMINATION OF DBE PARTICIPATION. 
A firm must be an eligible DBE and perform a professional or technical function relating to the project. 
Once a firm is determined to be an eligible DBE, the total amount paid to the DBE for work performed 
with his/her own forces must be reported as race-neutral DBE participation. When a DBE subcontracts 
part of the work of its contract to another firm, the value of the subcontracted work should not be reported 
unless the subcontractor is itself a DBE. 

A DBE subprovider may subcontract no more than 70% of a federal aid contract. The DBE subprovider 
shall perform not less than 30% of the value of the contract work with assistance of employees employed 
and paid directly by the DBE; and equipment owned or rented directly by the DBE. DBE subproviders 
must perform a commercially useful function required in the contract. A DBE performs a commercially 
useful function when it is responsible for execution of the work of the contract and is carrying out its 
responsibilities by actually performing, managing, and supervising the work involved. To perform a 
commercially useful function, the DBE must also be responsible, with respect to materials and supplies 
used on the contract, for negotiating price, determining quality and quantity, ordering the material, and 
installing (where applicable) and paying for the material itself. When a DBE is presumed not to be 
performing a commercially useful function, the DBE may present evidence to rebut this presumption. 

A Provider must report a portion of the total value of the contract amount paid to a DBE joint venture 
equal to the distinct, clearly defined portion of the work of the contract performed by the DBE. 

Proof of payment, such as copies of canceled checks, properly identifying the Authority’s contract number 
or project number may be required to substantiate the payment, as deemed necessary by the Authority. 

The Provider and any subprovider shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin or sex in the 
award and performance of contracts. These requirements shall be physically included in any subcontract. 

Failure to carry out the requirements set forth above shall constitute a material breach of this contract and, may 
result in termination of the contract by the Authority/Department or other such remedy as the 
Authority/Department deems appropriate. 

12/06 DH-0GOAL.ATT



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT H-SG (NOT APPLICABLE) 

Historically Underutilized Business 
for State Funded Professional or Technical Services Contracts 
HUB Goal Assigned-State of Texas Subcontracting Plan Required 

1) POLICY. It is the policy of the Authority/Department to ensure that HUBs shall have an equal opportunity
to participate in the performance of contracts; to create a level playing field on which HUBs can compete
fairly for contracts and subcontracts; to ensure nondiscrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin,
or gender in the award and administration of contracts; to help remove barriers to the participation of HUBs
in department contracts; and, to assist in the development of firms that can compete successfully in the market
place outside the HUB program. Consequently, the HUB requirements of the Authority/Department’s HUB
Program apply to this contract as follows:
(1) The Provider agrees to insure that they shall take all necessary and reasonable steps to meet the HUB goal

for this contract.
a. The Provider and any subprovider(s) shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin,

or sex in the award and performance of contracts.
b. When submitting the contract for execution by the Authority, the Provider must complete and furnish

Attachment H-1 which lists the commitments made to all subproviders, including certified HUB
subprovider(s) that are to meet the contract goal, and Attachment H-2 which is a commitment
agreement(s) containing the original signatures of the Provider and HUB(s) that were indicated in
the original submitted Authority/State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan (HSP) in Section 8. For
Work Authorization Contracts, Attachment H-1 is required at the time of submitting the contract for
execution by the Department. Attachment H-2 will be required to be completed and attach with each
work authorization number that is submitted for execution, if the HUB will be performing work. If
non-HUB subprovider is performing work, insert N/A (not applicable) on the line provided.   A prime
must allow a HUB maximum opportunity to perform the work by not creating unnecessary barriers or
artificial requirements for the purpose of hindering a HUB’s performance under the contract. Any
substitutions or changes to the HSP, in addition to any changes to the original contract award, shall be
subject to prior written approval by the Department. If there are any changes to the subproviders during
the contract term, the Provider must furnish a Revised Attachment H-1 showing the revised
commitment of all subproviders. 

c. Failure to carry out the requirements set forth above shall constitute a breach of contract and may
result in a letter of reprimand; in termination of the contract by the Authority; in a deduction from
money due or to become due to the Provider, not as a penalty but as damages to the Department’s
HUB Program; or such other remedy or remedies as the Department deems appropriate.

2) DEFINITIONS.
g. “Authority/Department” means Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (HCRMA) and the Texas

Department of Transportation (TxDOT).
a. “Agreement” is the agreement between the Authority and a Provider.
b. “Provider” is any individual or company that provides professional or technical services.
c. “Joint Venture” means an association of two or more businesses to carry out a single business enterprise

for profit which combines their property, capital, efforts, skills and knowledge.
d. “Historically Underutilized Business (HUB)” means any business so certified by the Texas Building and

Procurement Commission.
3) PERCENTAGE GOAL. The goal for Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) participation in the work

to be performed under this contract is 6.0% of the contract amount.



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT H-SG (NOT APPLICABLE) 

4) PROVIDER’S RESPONSIBILITIES. A Provider (HUB or non-HUB) must perform a minimum of 30% of
the contract with its employees (as defined by the Internal Revenue Service). The contract is subject to the
HSP Good Faith Effort Requirements.
a. A Provider who cannot meet the contract goal, in whole or in part, should have documented any of the

following and other efforts made as a “Good Faith Effort” to obtain HUB participation.
(1) Whether the prime advertised in general circulation, trade association, and/or minority/women focus

media concerning subcontracting opportunities.
(2) Whether the prime provided written notice to at least three (3) qualified HUBs allowing sufficient time

for HUBs to participate effectively.
(3) Whether the prime documented reasons for rejection or met with the rejected HUB to discuss the

rejection.
(4) Whether the prime provided qualified HUBs with adequate information about bonding, insurance,

the plans, the specifications, scope of work and requirements of the contract.
(5) Whether the prime negotiated in good faith with qualified HUBs, not rejecting qualified HUBs who

are also the lowest responsive bidder.
(6) Whether the prime used the services of available minority and women community organizations,

contractor’s groups, local, state, and federal business assistance offices, and other organizations that
provide support services to HUBs.

NOTE: The Provider must not cause or allow subproviders to bid their services. 
b. The preceding information shall be submitted directly to the Chair of the Authority responsible for the

contract.
c. The Provider shall make all reasonable efforts to honor commitments to HUB subproviders named in the

original HSP in Section 8. Where the Provider terminates or removes a HUB subprovider named in the
initial commitment, the Provider must demonstrate on a case-by-case basis to the satisfaction of the
Authority/Department that the originally designated HUB was not able or willing to perform. The term
“unable” includes, but is not limited to, a firm that does not have the resources and expertise to finish the
work and/or a firm that substantially increases the time to complete the project.

d. The Provider shall make all reasonable efforts to replace a HUB subprovider that is unable or unwilling
to perform successfully with another HUB and must meet the HSP Good Faith Effort Requirements. Any
substitution of HUBs shall be subject to prior written approval by the Authority.   The Authority will
request a statement from the firm being replaced concerning its replacement prior to approving the
substitution. If there are any changes to the subproviders during the contract term, the Provider must
furnish a Revised Attachment H-1 showing the revised commitment of all subproviders.

e. The Provider shall designate a HUB liaison officer who will administer the Provider’s HUB program and
who will be responsible for maintenance of records of efforts and contacts made to subcontract with
HUBs.

5) ELIGIBILITY OF HUBs.
a. The Texas Building and Procurement Commission (TBPC) certifies the eligibility of HUBs.
b. The TBPC maintains a directory of certified HUBs.   The HUB Directory is available through the TxDOT

Department’s Business Opportunity Programs Office and through the Internet at the TBPC’s Website
(http://www2.tbpc.state.tx.us/cmbl/hubonly.html ).

c. Only HUB firms certified and identified in specific categories and classes at the time the contract is signed
or at the time the commitments are submitted are eligible to be used in the information furnished by the
Provider as required under Section 2.c. above.

d. If during the course of the contract it becomes necessary to substitute another HUB firm for a firm named
in the information submitted by the Provider as required by Section 2.c. above, then only certified HUBs
will be considered eligible as a substituted firm. The Provider’s written request for



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT H-SG (NOT APPLICABLE) 

substitutions of HUB subproviders shall be accompanied by a detailed explanation, which should 
substantiate the need for a substitution. The Authority/Department will verify the explanation with the 
HUB firm being replaced before giving approval of the substitution. If there are any changes to the 
subproviders during the contract term, the Provider must furnish a Revised Attachment H-1 showing the 
revised commitment of all subproviders. 

e. The 73rd Legislature passed Texas Civil Statutes, Article 601i, relative to contracts between governmental
entities and certain disadvantaged businesses. The Statute provides for civil penalties for persons who
falsely claim disadvantaged business status and for the general contractor who knowingly contracts with
a person claiming to be a disadvantaged business.

6) DETERMINATION OF HUB PARTICIPATION.
A firm must be an eligible HUB and perform a professional or technical function relating to the project. Proof
of payment, such as copies of canceled checks, properly identifying the Authority’s contract number or
project number may be required to substantiate the payment, as deemed necessary by the
Authority/Department. A HUB subprovider, with prior written approval from the Authority/Department, may
subcontract 70% of a contract as long as the HUB subprovider performs a commercially useful function. All
subcontracts shall include the provisions required in the subcontract and shall be approved as to form, in
writing, by the Authority/Department prior to work being performed under the subcontract. A HUB performs
a commercially useful function when it is responsible for a distinct element of the work of a contract; and
actually manages, supervises, and controls the materials, equipment, employees, and all other business
obligations attendant to the satisfactory completion of contracted work.   If the subcontractor uses an employee
leasing firm for the purpose of providing salary and benefit administration, the employees must in all other
respects be supervised and perform on the job as if they were employees of the subcontractor.

7) COMPLIANCE OF PROVIDER.
To ensure that HUB requirements of this contract are complied with, the Authority/Department will monitor
the Provider’s efforts to involve HUBs during the performance of this contract. This will be accomplished by
a review of the monthly Authority/State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan Prime Contractor Progress
Assessment Report (Attachment H-6) submitted to the AUTHORITY Office by the Provider indicating his/her
progress in achieving the HUB contract goal, and by compliance reviews conducted by the
Authority/Department. The Authority/State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan Prime Contractor Progress
Assessment Report (Attachment H-6) must be submitted at a minimum monthly to the Business Opportunity
Programs Office, in addition to with each invoice to the appropriate agency contact.

The Provider shall receive credit toward the HUB goal based on actual payments to the HUB subproviders
with the following exceptions and only if the arrangement is consistent with standard industry practice.
(1) Payments to brokers or firms with a brokering type operation will be credited only for the amount of the

commission;
(2) Payments to a joint venture will not be credited unless all partners in the joint venture are HUBs;
(3) Payments to a HUB subprovider who has subcontracted a portion of the work required under the

subcontract will not be credited unless the HUB performs a commercially useful function;
(4) Payments to a HUB will not be credited if the firm does not provide the goods or perform the services

paid for;
(5) Payments made to a HUB that cannot be linked by an invoice or canceled check to the contract under

which credit is claimed will not be credited.
A Provider must not withhold or reduce payments to any HUB without a reason that is accepted as standard 
industry practice. A HUB prime or subprovider must comply with the terms of the contract or subcontract. 
Work products, services, and commodities must meet contract specifications whether performed by a prime 
or subprovider. 



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT H-SG (NOT APPLICABLE) 

A Provider’s failure to meet the HUB goal and failure to demonstrate to the Authority/Department’s 
satisfaction sufficient “Good Faith Effort” on his/her part to obtain HUB participation shall constitute a breach 
of contract. In such a case, the Authority/Department reserves the right to issue a letter of reprimand; to 
deduct the amount of HUB goal not accomplished by HUBs from the money due or to become due the 
Provider, not as a penalty but as damages to the Authority/Department’s HUB program; or such other remedy 
or remedies as the Authority/Department deems appropriate. 

8) RECORDS AND REPORTS.
a. After submission of the initial commitment (Attachment H-1), required by Section 2.c. of this attachment,

the Provider shall submit State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan Prime Contractor Progress Assessment
Report (Attachment H-6) at a minimum monthly, after contract work begins, on subcontracting
involvement. One copy of the State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan Prime Contractor Progress
Assessment Report (Attachment H-6) is to be sent to the Authority/Department’s Office monthly. In
addition, the Authority/State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan Prime Contractor Progress Assessment
Report (Attachment H-6) must be submitted with the Provider’s invoice. All payments made to
subproviders are to be reported. The Authority/State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan Prime
Contractor Progress Assessment Reports are required monthly even during months when no
payments to subproviders have been made. The Authority/State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan
Prime Contractor Progress Assessment Report will be required until all work on the contract has been
completed. The Authority/Department may verify the amounts being reported as paid to HUBs by
requesting copies of canceled checks paid to HUBs on a random basis.

b. Subproviders should be identified on the Authority/State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan Prime
Contractor Progress Assessment Report (Attachment H-6) by name, the amount of actual payment made
to each during the billing period, cumulative payment amount and percentage of the total contract amount.

c. All such records must be retained for a period of four years following final payment, or until an
investigation, audit, examination, or other review undertaken during the four years, and shall be available
at reasonable times and places for inspection by authorized representatives of the Authority/Department
and other agencies.

d. Prior to receiving final payment, the Provider shall submit a Final Report (Attachment H-4), detailing the
subprovider payments to the AUTHORITY Office of the Authority, and one copy to the
Authority/Department with the Provider’s final invoice.

12/06 
HUB.ATT 



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 & 2 

ATTACHMENT H-SN (NOT APPLICABLE) 

Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) 
for State Funded Professional or Technical Services Contracts 

No State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan Required 
POLICY 
It is the policy of the Authority/Department to ensure that HUBs shall have an equal opportunity to participate 
in the performance of contracts; to create a level playing field on which HUBs can compete fairly for contracts 
and subcontracts; to ensure nondiscrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, or gender in the award 
and administration of contracts; to help remove barriers to the participation of HUBs in Authority contracts; 
and, to assist in the development of firms that can compete successfully in the market place outside the HUB 
program. 

Subcontracting participation on projects with no HUB Subcontracting Plan Required should be reported on the 
Authority/State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan Prime Contractor Progress Assessment Report, the 
Attachment H-6 Form. Payment to non-HUBs subproviders must be reported on Attachment H-6. Payments to 
HUBs reported on Attachment H-6 are subject to the following requirements: 

DETERMINATION OF HUB PARTICIPATION. 
A firm must be an eligible HUB and perform a professional or technical function relating to the project. Once a 
firm is determined to be an eligible HUB, the total amount paid to the HUB should be reported as race-neutral 
HUB participation. 

A HUB subprovider may subcontract no more than 70% of a contract. The HUB subprovider shall perform not 
less than 30% of the value of the contract work with assistance of employees employed and paid directly by the 
HUB; and equipment owned or rented directly by the HUB. 

A provider must report a portion of the total value of the contract amount paid to a HUB joint venture equal to 
the distinct, clearly defined portion of the work of the contract performed by the HUB. 

Proof of payment, such as copies of canceled checks, properly identifying the Authority/Department’s contract 
number or project number may be required to substantiate the payment, as deemed necessary by the 
Authority/Department. 

The provider and any subprovider shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin or sex in the 
award and performance of contracts. These requirements shall be physically included in any subcontract. 

REQUIRED FORMS. 
If subcontractors are used under the contract that has no stated HUB goal, Attachments H-1, H-2, H-4 and H-6 
are required. Attachments H-1 and H-6 are required if no subcontractors are being used to perform work under 
this contract. 

Authority/State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan Prime Contractor Progress Assessment Report (Attachment 
H-6) is required monthly even when no subcontracting activity has occurred. In addition, Authority/State of
Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan Prime Contractor Progress Assessment Report (Attachment H-6) should be
submitted with the Provider’s invoice.



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for RABA Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1& 2 

ATTACHMENT H-1 

Subprovider Monitoring System 
Commitment Worksheet 

Contract #:   Assigned Goal: 6.0% Federally Funded  County Funded   
Prime Provider:   Raba Kistner, Inc. Total Contract Amount: ${Contract Amt}  Prime Provider Info: 
DBE  HUB Both 
Vendor ID #:   DBE/HUB Expiration Date:   

(First 11 Digits Only) 
If no subproviders are used on this contract, please indicate by placing “N/A” on the 1st line under 
Subproviders. 

Subprovider(s) 

(List All) 

Type of Work Vendor ID # 

(First 11 Digits 
Only) 

D=DBE 

H=HUB 

Expiration 
Date 

$ Amount or 

% of Work * 

Subprovider(s) Contract or % of Work* Totals 

*For Work Authorization Contracts, indicate the % of work to be performed by each subprovider.

Total DBE or HUB Commitment Dollars $0.00 (DBE)

Total DBE or HUB Commitment Percentages of Contract 0% (DBE) 
(Commitment Dollars and Percentages are for Subproviders only) 

12/06 DBEH1.AT 



ATTACHMENT H-2 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for RABA Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1& 2 

Subprovider Monitoring System Commitment Agreement 

This commitment agreement is subject to the award and receipt of a signed contract from the Hidalgo County 
Regional Mobility Authority (Authority). NOTE: Attachment H-2 is required to be attached to each contract that 
does not include work authorizations. Attachment H-2 is required to be attached with each work authorization. 
Attachment H-2 is also required to be attached to each supplemental work authorization. If DBE/HUB 
Subproviders are used, the form must be completed and signed. If no DBE/HUB Subproviders are used, indicate 
with “N/A” on this line: and attach with the work authorization or supplemental 
work authorization. 

Contract #: Assigned Goal: 6% Prime Provider Raba Kistner, Inc. 

Work Authorization (WA)#:  1 WA Amount: $2,953,477.12  Date:    
Supplemental Work Authorization (SWA) #: to WA #: SWA Amount: 
Revised WA Amount:   

Description of Work 
(List by category of work or task description. Attach additional pages, if 
necessary.) 

Dollar Amount 
(For each category of work or task 
description shown.) 

FC $0
FC $0

Total Commitment Amount (Including all additional pages.) $0 

IMPORTANT: The signatures of the prime and the DBE/HUB and Second Tier Subprovider, if any (both DBE and Non- 
DBE) and the total commitment amount must always be on the same page. 

Provider Name: Raba Kistner, Inc.                 
Address: 12821 W. Golden Lane 

        San Antonio, Texas 78249 
  VID Number: 
PH: & FAX: 210-699-9090 / 210-699-6426 
Email: cschultz@rkci.com 

Name: Chris L. Schultz 
(Please Print) 
Title: President

Signature Date

DBE/HUB Sub Provider 
Subprovider Name: 
VID Number: 
Address: 
PH: 
Email: 

Name:    
(Please Print) 
Title:  

Signature Date

Second Tier Sub Provider 
Subprovider Name: 
VID Number: 
Address: 
Phone #& Fax #: 
Email: 

Name:    
(Please Print) 
Title:  

Signature Date

VID Number is the Vendor Identification Number issued by the Comptroller. If a firm does not have a VID Number, please 
enter the owner’s Social Security or their Federal Employee Identification Number (if incorporated). 



 

 



ATTACHMENT H-3 
Subprovider Monitoring System for Federally Funded Contracts 

Progress Assessment Report for month of (Mo./Yr.) /  

Contract #: Original Contract Amount: $0 
Date of Execution: Approved Supplemental Agreements: $0 
Prime Provider: Raba Kistner, Inc. Total Contract Amount: $0 
Work Authorization No. : Work Authorization Amount: $0 
If no subproviders are used on this contract, please indicate by placing “N/A” on the 1st line under Subproviders. 

DBE All Subproviders Category of Work 
Total 

Subprovider 
Amount 

% Total 
Contract 
Amount 

Amount 
Paid This 

Period 

Amount Paid 
To Date 

Subcontract 
Balance 

Remaining 

Fill out Progress Assessment Report with each estimate/invoice submitted, for all subcontracts, and forward as follows: 
1 Copy with Invoice - Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Office 
I hereby certify that the above is true and correct statement of the amounts paid to the firms listed above. 

Print Name - Company Official /DBE Liaison Officer Signature Phone Date 

Email Fax 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc.  
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 & 2 

ATTACHMENT H-4 

Subprovider Monitoring System 
Final Report 

The Final Report Form should be filled out by the Prime Provider and submitted to the Contract Manager and the 
Business Opportunity Programs Office for review upon completion of the contract. The report should reflect all 
subcontract activity on the project.   The report will aid in expediting the final estimate for payment.   If the HUB 
or DBE goal requirements were not met, documentation supporting good faith efforts must be submitted. 

DBE Goal:    6.0 % OR HUB Goal: % 

Total Contract Amount: $0 Total Contract Amount: ${Contract Amt} 

Contract Number: 

Vendor ID # Subprovider Total $ Amount Paid to Date 

TOTAL 

This is to certify that % of the work was completed by the HUB or DBE subproviders as stated above. 

By: Prime Provider 

Per: Signature 

Subscribed and sworn to before me, this day of , 20 

Notary Public County 
 

My Commission expires: 

12/06 DBE-H4.A 



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc . 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 & 2 

ATTACHMENT H-5 

Federal Subprovider and Supplier Information 

The Provider shall indicate below the name, address and phone number of all successful and unsuccessful 
subproviders and/or suppliers that provided proposals/quotes for this contract prior to execution. You may 
reproduce this form if additional space is needed. 

Name Address Phone Number

The information must be provided and returned with the contract. 

Signature Date

{Signatory Name, Position}   
Printed Name Email Phone # 



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc . 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 & 2 

ATTACHMENT H-6 

Authority/State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan Prime Contractor Progress Assessment Report 

HUB Subcontracting Plan (HSP) 
Prime Contractor Progress Assessment Report 

This form must be completed and submitted to the contracting agency each month to document compliance with your HSP. 

Contract/Requisition Number: 

Contracting Agency/University Name: 

Date of Award: Object Code: 
(mm/dd/yyyy) (Agency Use Only) 

Contractor (Company) Name:                                                 

Point of Contact: 

State of Texas VID #: 

Phone #: 

Reporting (Month) Period: Total Amount Paid this Reporting Period to $ -

Report HUB and Non-HUB subcontractor information 
*Texas

Subcontractor’s Name 
Subcontractor’s VID or HUB 

Certificate Number 

Certified 
HUB? 

(Yes or No) 

Total Contract $ 
Amount from HSP 
with Subcontractor 

Total $ Amount Paid 
This Reporting Period 

to Subcontractor 

Total Contract $ 
Amount Paid to Date 

to Subcontractor 
Object Code 
(Agency Use Only) 

$ - $

$ - $

$ - $

$ - $

$ - $

$ - $

$ - $

$ - $

$ - $

$ - $

$ - $

$ - $

$ - $

$ - $

$ - $

$ - $

$ - $

$ - $

$ - $

$ - $

$ - $

$ - $

$ - $

$ - $

$ - $

$ - $

$ - $

$ - $

TOTALS: $ - $

- $ - 

- $ - 

- $ - 

- $ - 

- $ - 

- $ - 

- $ - 

- $ - 

- $ - 

- $ - 

- $ - 

- $ - 

- $ - 

- $ - 

- $ - 

- $ - 

- $ - 

- $ - 

- $ - 

- $ - 

- $ - 

- $ - 

- $ - 

- $ - 

- $ - 

- $ - 

- $ - 

- $ - 

- $ - 

Signature:    Title:    Date:  



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc . 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 & 2 

*Note: HUB certification status can be verified on-line at: http://www2.cpa.state.tx.us/cmbl/hubonly.html Rev. 10/07 



ATTACHMENT H-7 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 & 2 

DBE CERTIFICATIONS 



ATTACHMENT I 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE 



ATTACHMENT J 

CONFLICTS CERTIFICATION 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT J 

CONFLICTS CERTIFICATION 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

1. Business Relationships:

The RMA has adopted a conflict of interest policy which generally requires disclosure
of any business relationships with RMA board members or key personnel, as designated
on the Authority’s website. The Conflict of Interest Policy for Consultants, the list of
Board Members and Key Personnel, and the Disclosure Form can be obtained from the
RMA website (www.hcrma.net). Engineer all any sub consultants to Engineer shall
adhere to this policy and provide any required disclosures.

2. Adverse Matters:

Engineer must disclose conflicts of interest by identifying any matter in which the
Engineer becomes adverse to the RMA or the Texas Department of Transportation or
to the State of Texas or any of its boards, agencies, commissions, universities, elected
or appointed officials, or Hidalgo County during the term of the Agreement.

3. Direct and Indirect Interest:

The Engineer shall ensure that, during the term of the Agreement, the Engineer, including
any of its principals, will have no interest, direct or indirect, that would conflict in any
manner or degree with the performance of Engineer’s obligations under the agreement,
including, but not limited to, ownership of property in the right-of-way of any of the
independent projects of the Hidalgo County Roadway System. The Engineer warrants
that, in the performance of the Agreement, the Engineer shall not employ any person, or
subcontract with any entity, having such known interest.

ENGINEER: Raba Kistner, Inc. 

BY:  

DATE:  



CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

FORM CIQ

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor who
has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and the
vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not later
than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be
filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. An
offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

2
Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an updated

completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date on which

you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3 Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

        Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the
officer, as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer.
Complete subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form
CIQ as necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,
other than investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes   No

B. Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the direction
of the local government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the
local governmental entity?

  Yes   No

5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a corporation or
other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an

6
Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts
as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity Date

ownership interest of one percent or more.

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us Revised 1/1/2021



Revised 1/1/2021Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

    For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A complete copy of Chapter 176 of the Local Government Code may be found at http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/
Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1-a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or an
agency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency and
that is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a) A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2) the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or a
family member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

(i) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed;
or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the
vendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts
that have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the date the
officer becomes aware that:

(i) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a-1)
(a) A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that local
governmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of the
officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding any
gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity.

(a-1)  The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records administrator
not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(1) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local governmental
entity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for proposals
or bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the local
governmental entity; or

(2) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or
(C) of a family relationship with a local government officer.



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT K 
DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION 



ATTACHMENT L 
2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT L 
2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT L 
2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT L 
2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT L 
2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT L 
2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT L 



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT L 
2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 



ATTACHMENT L 
2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT L 
2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT L 
2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT L 
2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT L 
2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT L 
2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT L 
2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT L 
2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT L 
2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT L 
2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT L 
2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT L 
2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT L 
2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT L 
2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT L 
2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT L 
2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT L 
2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT L 
2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT L 
2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT L 
2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT L 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 



ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 



ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 



ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 



ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 



ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



ATTACHMENT M 
2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



Project Limits Exhibit 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



APPENDIX A 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest (hereinafter 
referred to as the "contractor") agrees as follows: 

I.  Compliance with Regulations: The contractor (hereinafter includes consultants) will comply with the
Acts and the Regulations relative to Non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S.
Department of Transportation, (Title o(Modal Operating Administration), as they may be amended from
time to time, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract.

2. Non-discrimination: The contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract, will
not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection and retention of
subcontractors, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The contractor will not
participate directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by the Acts and the Regulations, including
employment practices when the contract covers any activity, project, or program set forth in Appendix B
of 49 CFR Part 21. [Include Modal Operating Administration specific program requirements.[

3. Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: In all solicitations,
either by competitive bidding, or negotiation made by the contractor for work to be performed under a
subcontract, including procurements of materials, or leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor or
supplier will be notified by the contractor of the contractor's obligations under this contract and the Acts and
the Regulations relative to Non-discrimination on the grounds ofrace, color, or national origin. [Include Modal
Operating Administration specific program requirements.]

4. Information and Repo11s: The contractor will provide all information and reports required by the Acts,the
Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto and will permit access to its books, records, accounts, other
sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the Recipient or the (Title o(Modal Operating
Administration) to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Acts, Regulations, and instructions. Where
any information required of a contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish
the information, the contractor will so certify to the Recipient or the (Title of Modal Operating
Administration), as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information.

5. Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of a contractor's noncompliance with the Non- discrimination
provisions of this contract, the Recipient will impose such contract sanctions as it or the (Title o(Modal
Operating Administration) may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limitedto:

a. withholding payments to the contractor under the contract until the contractor complies; and/or
b. cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract, in whole or in part.

6. Incorporation of Provisions: The contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs one through six in every
subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Acts, the
Regulations and directives issued pursuant thereto. The contractor will take action with respectto any subcontract
or procurement as the Recipient or the (Title o(Modal Operating Administration) may direct as a means of
enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance. Provided, that if the contractor becomes
involved in, or is threatened with litigation by a subcontractor, or supplier because of such direction, the
contractor may request the Recipient to enter into any litigation to protect the interests of the Recipient. In
addition, the contractor may request the United States to enter into the litigation to protect the interests of the
United States.



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

APPENDIX E 

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest (hereinafter 
referred to as the "contractor") agrees to comply with the following non-discrimination statutes andauthorities; 
including but not limited to: 

Pertinent Non-Discrimination Authorities: 

• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin); and 49 CFR Part 21.

• The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 U.S.C. §
4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired because of
Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects);

• Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. § 324 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on the basis of
sex);

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as amended, (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 CFR Part 27;

• The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on
the basis of age);

• Airport and Airway Improvement Act of1982, (49 USC§ 471, Section 47123), as amended, (prohibits
discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);

• The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage and
applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms "programs or
activities" to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, sub-recipients and
contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally funded or not);

• Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of
disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public
accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131 - 12189) as implemented by Department
of Transportation regulations at 49 C.F.R. parts 37 and 38;

• The Federal Aviation Administration's Non-discrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 47123) (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex);

• Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and
Low-Income Populations, which ensures discrimination against minority populations by discouraging
programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human health or
environmental effects on minority and low-income populations;

• Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency, and
resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination because of limited
English proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to

-ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100);
• Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from discriminating

because of sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq).



North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) Work Codes 
For Federally Funded Contracts 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) Work Codes 
For Federally Funded Contracts 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Raba Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) Work Codes 
For Federally Funded Contracts 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



Item 3B 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS                               X                     AGENDA ITEM                  3B                       
PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED        10/14/2021                    
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE     10/26/2021     
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2021-41 – APPROVAL OF WORK AUTHORIZATION 1 WITH 

RABA KISTNER, INC. FOR CONSTRUCTION MATERIAL TESTING SERVICES FOR THE 365 
TOLLWAY PROJECT.                                                                                               __                 
_ 
 

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Approval of WA No. 1 for CMT Services with RABA Kistner, Inc.                                        
   
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                              
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2021-41 - Approval of Work 

Authorization 1 with RABA Kistner, Inc. for Construction Material Testing Services for the 
365 Tollway Project, as presented.                                                                                              . 

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X_  None 
 
10.       Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:       Approved         Disapproved    X    None 
 
11. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:    X   Approved         Disapproved        X   None 
 
12. Executive Director’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved           None 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 SUMMARY 

Amount   _________________ 

BRIEF BACKGROUND: 

Staff is recommending approval of this request in the amount of $

Environmental _____________________________________ 

Engineering _______________________________________ 

Geo-Technical _____________________________________ 

Surveying ________________________________________ 

Work Authorization # _______

Resolution No. Description Amount

Goal and Options: 

Approved Work Authorizations:

✔ Raba Kistner Consultants

                    

                                

                                    

                                   

2021-41

$ 2,953,477.12

$ 0.00

WA No. 1 - CMT Services for 365 Toll Project2021-41

$ 0.00

Approval of WA 1 for Construction Material Testing for the 365 Tollway Project.  

$ 2,953,477.12

1

$ 2,953,477.12

$ 2,953,477.12

R. Navarro IV, Cons Eng



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2021-41 

APPROVAL OF WORK AUTHORIZATION 1 WITH RABA KISTNER, INC. FOR 
CONSTRUCTION MATERIAL TESTING IN THE 365 TOLLWAY PROJECT 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 26th day of October, 2021, by the Board of Directors of 
the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at a regular meeting. 

WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), 
acting through its Board of Directors (the “Board”), is a regional mobility authority created 
pursuant to Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); 

WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Act to address mobility issues in 
and around Hidalgo County; 

WHEREAS, on February 19, 2014, the Authority issued a solicitation for 
Statements of Qualification for Construction Material Testing Services for the Authority 
(the “Solicitation”); and 

WHEREAS, on March 21, 2014 the Authority received responses to the 
Solicitation; and 

WHEREAS, on April 23, 2014, Resolution 2014-38 authorized Authority staff to 
negotiate and enter into agreements with the top three scored firms (Raba Kistner 
Consultants Inc., L&G Laboratories and Terracon Consultants, Inc.) for Construction 
Material Testing Services (the “Services”); and 

WHEREAS, on July 24, 2018, Resolution 2018-45 authorized Authority staff to 
procure one additional lab to provide additional Services; and 

WHEREAS, on July 29, 2018, the Authority published a second Solicitation; and 
received three (3) responses, of which only one was deemed responsive; 

WHEREAS, on September 25, 2018, the Authority authorized staff to negotiate 
contract terms for the Services to PaveTex Engineering LLC, dba PAVETEX, the sole 
responsive firm that met the professional services criteria set forth in the Solicitation; 

WHEREAS, on August 21, 2020, the Authority received five (5) sealed statements 
of qualification packets. An internal committee of three HCRMA staff engineers  ranked and 
reviewed; the Authority determined it necessary to negotiate contract terms to enter into 
negotiations with each of the ranked firms and further approach Board with recommended 
award and distribution of work in accordance to acceptable terms and conditions of 
assignments; and  



WHEREAS on October 27, 2020, the Authority approved Resolution 2020-28 
Approval to enter into negotiations with each of the short-listed firms for Construction 
Material Testing for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority and further approach 
Board with recommended award and distribution of work in accordance to acceptable terms 
and conditions of assignments; and 

WHEREAS the Authority finds it necessary to approve Resolution 
2021-40 Approval of Award of Contract by and between the Raba Kistner, Inc. and the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority for Construction Material Testing Services; 
and  

WHEREAS the Authority finds it necessary to approve Resolution 
2021-41 Approval of Work Authorization 1 to the Professional Service Agreement 
with Raba Kistner, Inc. for Construction Material Testing in the amount of $2,953,477.12 
for the 365 Tollway Project. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY THAT: 

Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 

restated. 

Section 2. The Board hereby approves Work Authorization 1 to the Professional 
Service Agreement with Raba Kistner, Inc. in the amount of 
$2,953,477.12 for the 365 Tollway Project, hereto attached as Exhibit A, 
hereto attached as Exhibit A.  

Section 3. The Board authorizes the Executive Director to execute Work 
Authorization 1 with Raba Kistner, Inc., as approved by the Board. 

***** 



PASSED A ND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY AT A REGULAR MEETING, duly posted and noticed, on the 26th day of 
October 2021, at which meeting a quorum was present. 

S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman

Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Secretary/Treasurer 



Exhibit A 

Work Authorization 1  

to the   

Professional Service  

Agreement with 

Raba Kistner, Inc.  

For  

Construction Material Testing Services 



WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 1 

AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 

THIS WORK AUTHORIZATION is made pursuant to the terms and conditions of “Article V of that certain 
Professional Services Agreement for Engineering Services” (the Agreement) entered into by and between the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (Authority), and Raba Kistner, Inc. (the Engineer).

PART I. The Engineer will perform engineering design services generally described as in accordance with the 

project description attached hereto and made a part of this Work Authorization. The responsibilities of the 

Authority and the Engineer as well as the work schedule are further detailed in exhibits C, E and F which are

attached hereto and made a part of the Work Authorization. 

PART II. The maximum amount payable under this Work Authorization is $ 2,953,477.12 and the method of 
payment is unit cost/specified rate basis as set forth in Attachment E of the Agreement. This amount is based upon 

fees set forth in Attachment E, Fee Schedule, of the Agreement and the Engineer’s estimated Work 

Authorization costs included in Exhibit D, Fee Schedule, which is attached and made a part of this Work 

Authorization. 

PART III. Payment to the Engineer for the services established under this Work Authorization shall be made in 

accordance with Articles III thru V of the Agreement, and Attachment A, Section 1. 

PART IV. This Work Authorization shall become effective on the date of final acceptance of the parties hereto 

and shall terminate on Dec. 13, 2025, unless extended by a supplemental Work Authorization as provided in 

Attachment A, Section 1. 

PART V. This Work Authorization does not waive the parties' responsibilities and obligations provided under 

“Article V of that certain Professional Services Agreement for Construction Material Testing Services 365

Tollway Project / Segment 1 & 2. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Work Authorization is executed in duplicate counterparts and hereby accepted 

and acknowledged below. 

THE ENGINEER THE AUTHORITY 

(Signature) (Signature) 

Chris L. Schultz, P.E. Pilar Rodriguez, P.E. 
(Printed Name) (Printed Name) 

President / COO Executive Director 
(Title) (Title) 

(Date) (Date) 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for RABA Kistner, Inc. for 365

Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 



GIS powered by
O

P
a

th
: 

G
:\

1
5

4
0

\4
6

5
2

\P
M

C
\G

IS
\E

X
H

IB
IT

S
\2

0
1

5
-1

2
-0

6
 S

H
3

6
5

+
IB

T
C

 P
ro

je
c
t 

M
a

p
 (

w
 C

S
J
s
).

m
x
d

EXHIBIT C
HCRMA PROJECT 
LOCATION  MAP
Project

IBTC (0010)

SH 365 (0030)

Date: 12/7/2015

0 0.45 0.90.225
Miles

Author: E. Davila

Scale:

SH 365 Phase I (Segs. 1 & 2) CSJ: 3627-01-001
- A toll improvement being a controlled access facility
- FM 396 (Anzalduas Highway) to US 281 Military Highway

SH 365 Phase I (Seg. 3) CSJ: 0220-01-023
- A non-toll improvement being a widening to a 4 lane divided
w/ an overpass at San Juan Rd (a part of SH 365 Segment 3)

- 0.45 Miles East of Spur 600 to FM 2557 (Stewart Road)
SH 365 Phase I (Seg. 3) CSJ: 0921-02-337
- A non-toll improvement being a local collector (a part of
SH 365 Segment 3)

- SP 29 / Veterans Drive at the BSIF to US 281
SH 365 Phase II (Seg. 4) CSJ: 3627-01-002
- A toll improvement being a controlled access facility
- FM 1016 (Conway Ave) to FM 396 (Anzalduas Highway)

IBTC (Segs. 1, 2 & 3) CSJ: 0921-02-142
- A toll improvement being a controlled access facility
- from the Interchange w/ SH 365 at FM 3072 / Dicker Rd to

I-2 and to FM 493



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for RABA Kistner, Inc.  for 365 
Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT C



ATTACHMENT C 
SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE ENGINEER 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for RABA Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

APPLICABILITY: 

Wherever the following terms are used in this attachment or other contract documents, the intent and meaning will be interpreted as 
indicated below. 

ABBREVIATIONS, ABBREVIATIONS, and DEFINITIONS: 

HCRMA OR AUTHORITY shall mean Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 
PMC (GEC) shall mean Program Management Consultant (General Engineering Consultant) (HDR Engineering Inc.) 
 ENGINEER shall mean RABA Kistner, Inc.   
TxDOT shall mean Texas Department of Transportation 
FHWA shall mean Federal Highway Administration 
IBWC shall mean International Boundary and Water Commission 
USFWS shall mean United States Fish & Wildlife Service 
THC shall mean Texas Historical Commission 
SHPO shall mean State Highway Preservation Office 
USACE shall mean United States Army Corps of Engineers 
GSA shall mean General Services Administration 
HCMPO shall mean Hidalgo County Metropolitan Planning Organization 
FAA shall mean Federal Aviation Administration 
MTP shall mean Metropolitan Transportation Plan 
TIP shall mean Transportation Improvement Program 
MUTCD shall mean Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices 
AASHTO shall mean American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials 
LRFD shall mean Load & Resistance Factor Design 
PS&E shall mean Plans, Specifications and Estimate 
ACP shall mean Asphaltic Concrete Pavement 
CSJ shall mean Control Section Job (highway project designation number) 
ADP shall mean Advance Project Development 
AAP AASHTO Accreditation Program (AASHTO re:source and CCRL) 
AASHTO American Association of State Highway Transportation Officials 
ACI shall mean American Concrete Institute 
AO shall mean Area Office 
AQMP shall mean Aggregate Quality Monitoring Program 
CAR shall mean Corrective Action Report 
CCRL shall mean Concrete and Cement Reference Laboratory 
CE&I shall mean Construction Engineering and Inspection 
CFR shall mean Code of Federal Regulations 
MTD shall mean Materials and Tests Division 
CMEC shall mean Construction Materials Engineering Council 
FHWA shall mean Federal Highway Administration 
HMA shall mean Hot-Mix Asphalt 
HMAC shall mean Hot-Mix Asphalt Center 
IA shall mean Independent Assurance 
L-A-B shall mean Laboratory Accreditation Bureau
MPL shall mean Material Producer List
QAP shall mean Quality Assurance Program
QAT shall mean Quality Assurance Test
QC shall mean Quality Control
SM shall mean SiteManager
TXAPA shall mean Texas Asphalt Pavement Association
TxDOT shall mean Texas Department of Transportation



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for RABA Kistner, Inc.  for 365 
Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT C 
SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE ENGINEER 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The services designated herein as “Services provided by the Engineer” shall include the performance of all 
engineering services for the following described facility: 

County/HCRMA: Hidalgo County   

CSJ number:  0921-02-368 

Project/Description:   Provide construction materials testing to assure the materials incorporated into 6.38 miles of 
Segment 2 [From Anzalduas Highway east to McColl Road] on Phase II of 365 Toll highway construction 
project are subject to verification sampling and testing when required and meet project plans and 
specifications; and administering Quality Monitoring and Quality Assurance Program.  
. 

Length:   6.38 Miles (Approx) 

Highway: 

Limits:  

  365TOLL (Segment 1)  

 From Anzalduas Highway east to McColl Road (See Location Map Attached) 

Contract is for “indefinite delivery/indefinite quantity [IDIQ] set for a proposed three (3) year fixed period of 
time, during that period of time the Engineer will be responsible for an unlimited number of separate projects, 
or additional work on a current project to be issued on an individual work order basis. 

The Engineer agency(s) must be accredited by one of the following FHWA- and TxDOT-approved accrediting 
bodies: 
A. AASHTO Accreditation Program (AAP);
B. Construction Materials Engineering Council (CMEC); or
C. Laboratory Accreditation Bureau (L-A-B)

The Engineer shall have Texas Department of Transportation or Toll Authority/Regional Mobility Authority as 
well U.S. Army Corps of Engineers’ construction material testing experience and is expected to work directly 
with the HCRMA Construction Division, namely, the Chief Construction Engineer for the Authority. The 
selected Engineer(s) may also perform certain tasks under the oversight of the HCRMA's General Engineering 
Consultant (Currently HDR Engineering Inc.).  

To avoid an appearance of a conflict of interest, any qualified Engineer agency (laboratory) shall perform only 
one of the following types of testing on the same project: 
A. Quality control testing;
B. Quality acceptance testing;
C. Owner verification testing;
D. Independent assurance testing; or
E. Referee testing.



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for RABA Kistner, Inc.  for 365 
Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

The selected Engineer(s) shall have adequate experienced staff and a workload free from constraints to provide 
the necessary construction material testing for the HCRMA. Staff expertise is to include a Licensed Professional 
Engineer and certified, experienced staff proficient with TxDOT testing procedures, sampling and testing 
schedule, and the latest ASSHTO, ASTM and ACI testing requirements [Appendix A] performed and executed 
as per 2019 TxDOT Quality Assurance Program (DB-QAP / DBB-QAP) / 2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & 
Testing for Design Bid-Build Projects. 

Engineer will compose and submit an annual report to the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) 
summarizing the results of HCRMA’s project specific systems approach program. This report identifies: 
A. Number of sampling and testing personnel evaluated by the systems approach IA testing;
B. Number of IA evaluations found to be acceptable;
C. Number of IA evaluations found to be unacceptable; and
D. Summary of any significant system-wide corrective actions taken.

The Engineer will be responsible for maintaining documentation of all individuals qualified under their 
authority who perform required tests for acceptance of materials. A qualification summary listing all tests for 
which an individual is qualified will be available and printed at HCRMA’s request. Documentation to be 
maintained for all qualified personnel includes: 
A. Copies of any certificates issued by ACI and TXAPA ;
B. Original written examinations for test procedures administered to each technician by

the TxDOT qualifying authority, with clear identification of technician’s name, qualifier’s name, score, and date
taken;

C. Original performance examinations for test procedures administered to each technician by the TxDOT qualifying
authority, with clear identification of technician’s name, qualifier’s name, qualification status, and date;

D. Results of annual split/proficiency testing administered by the TxDOT qualifying
authority for each technician.

Engineer shall perform Quality Control / Quality Assurance sampling and testing and comply with  Laboratory 
Qualification Program and will be evaluated under the Independent Assurance Program, as described in the 
2019 QAPDBB [Attachment L]. Quality Control test results will be validated by verification test results 
obtained from independently taken samples. IA personnel or their designated agents will perform Quality 
Assurance verification sampling and testing. 

1. The Engineer shall perform all sampling and testing of components and materials in accordance with the standard
specifications, and all other standard and special specifications and special provisions applicable in this agreement. Meet
the minimum sampling frequencies set out in the TxDOT 2019 Guide Schedule for Sampling and Testing forDesign Bid-
Build Projects. The testing shall include the following materials and all the components of the materials listed. The
estimated number of samples and tests are based on quantities in the executed construction contract.
2. The Engineer shall ensure the testing is completed and input into ProjectWise. NOTE: The General Contractor is
responsible for Quality Control (QC) testing of Item 360, Concrete Paving.  The Engineer shall be responsible for Quality
Assurance (QA) testing of Item 360, Concrete Paving.
3. The Engineer shall provide certified personnel, outlined in their internal, AASHTO-approved, Quality Control
(QC) Manual that are knowledgeable of all materials testing procedures. All personnel performing acceptance tests must
provide certifications and must maintain the certifications throughout the project. The HCRMA reserves the right to
require replacement of any technician during this contract if performance is determined to be unsatisfactory or the
technician fails to maintain appropriate certifications.
4. Engineer's laboratory will be qualified by the HCRMA qualifying authority in accordance with Section 3,
Laboratory Qualification Responsibility of the Texas Department of Transportation
(TxDOT) Quality Assurance Program (Manual Notice: 2005-1), and be AASHTO accredited under the AASHTO
Accreditation Program (AAP) throughout the life of the project. Engineer shall transmit, to the HCRMA, a copy of AAP
accreditation certificate(s) upon receipt by the testing laboratory.



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for RABA Kistner, Inc.  for 365 
Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

5. The Engineer shall provide technicians certified in accordance with TxDOT Quality Assurance Program for
Construction (QAP) or other State approved programs, such as the Texas Asphalt Pavement Association (TxAPA) for Hot
Mix Asphalt, and the Soils and Base Certification Program, as listed.

6. The Engineer shall provide certified technicians to perform the following tests:
A. Hot Mix Asphalt Testing:

a. Level l-A
b. Level l-B
c. Hot Mix Asphalt Testing • Level II
d. All other tests in the Manual of Testing Procedures 200-F Series or ASTM Procedures not

covered in Level l-A, Level l-B, or Level II
B. Concrete Testing:

a. QAP Program for Concrete Testing
b. Other tests outlined in the Manual of Testing Procedures 400-A Series or ASTM Procedures that

are not included in the QAP Program
7. The Engineer shall perform testing on the project. These tests include all tests listed in State's Guide Schedule
of Sampling and Testing dated 2015. Follow the State’s Guide Schedule of Sampling and Testing to establish
testing frequencies. Testing frequencies may be increased as directed by the HCRMA.
8. The Engineer shall notify the HCRMA, to determine if any tests may be waived
9. The Engineer shall attend preconstruction QA and QC testing meetings prior to beginning work.
10. The Engineer shall:

A. Review and recommend approval or rejection of the Quality Control (QC) sampling and testing
documentation submitted by the General Contractor for compliance with applicable State and Federal regulations,
standards, and contract requirements.
B. Verify all tested materials used meet specifications, or identify materials that do not meet
specifications and recommend action which should be taken.
C. Certify that all tested materials used during construction meet the specifications as outlined in the
Appia Support System.
D. Work closely with the HCRMA to resolve all material discrepancies before the next monthly estimate is
processed by utilizing the Reports in Appia.
E. Enter all test data in Appia.
F. Enter all mix designs, concrete and asphalt, provided by the General Contractor into Appia.
G. The Engineer shall report failing tests to the HCRMA within twenty-four (24) hours.

SUMMARY OF DELIVERABLES: 
The Engineer shall provide the following: 
1. Monthly Progress Reports
2. Quarterly Material Test Reports
3. Sampling and testing personnel qualification
4. Final document file (maintained in project control system during project execution. Final structure of file will be

determined during project implementation, an example of content is provided below)
A. Construction Oversight Documentation

a. Testing reports and Testing documentation as applicable
b. Test Exception Letter
c. Certification Verifications
d. Photographs

B. Project Correspondence File (Design and Construction)
a. E-mail files
b. Letters
c. Memos
d. Meeting Minutes
e. Monthly Deficiency Reports to track material issues (one (1) per month)



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for RABA Kistner, Inc.  for 365 
Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

f. Misc. correspondence



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for RABA Kistner, Inc.  for 365 
Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT E 

FEE SCHEDULE 



TEST
NO.

Final as of

4/21/2021 & 

4/28/2021  COMMENTS 

Type Unit

1 Mobilization/Demobilization Mile 6.00$

Requesting re‐evalution 

as per mile unit cost

each 600.00$               
Drilling, Logging, &Recovering Samples (With TCP) 

2A 1. Depth ≤ 50 feet

Tex-132-E 
(every 5 

feet) 38.00$                 

2B 2. Depth ≥ 50 feet linear foot 40.00$                 
Drilling, Logging, &Recovering Samples (Without TCP)

3A 1. Depth ≤ 50 feet linear foot 30.61$  

3B 2. Depth ≥ 50 feet linear foot 32.57$  

4 Rock Coring (Soft Rock)⁽²⁾ linear foot 33.00$                 

5 Rock Coring (Hard Rock)⁽²⁾ linear foot 36.00$                 

6 Staking Borings and Utility Locations hour 121.67$               

Standby Time (sampling) hour 297.74$               

7A 1. Hot Mix Asphalt (minumum of one hour) each 117.05$               

7B 2. Concrete (minumum of one hour) each 171.98$               

8 Piezometer - 2 inch (including well completion and installation) linear foot 48.36$                 

9 Grouting of Borings linear foot 6.86$

10 Traffic Control - Major day 3,000.00$            

Laboratory Test Test Method Unit

11 Volumetric Shrinkage ASTM D427 each 105.24$               

12 Standard Poor Test ASTM D698 each 255.00$               

13 Modified Poor Test ASTM D1557 each 279.75$               

14 Standard Penetration Test (SPT) ASTM D1586 LF 30.04$  

15 California Bearing Ratio (Single Sample without MD Curve) ASTM D1883 test 302.03$             

16 Unconfined Compressive Strength (Soil) ASTM D2166 each 67.44$  

17 Hydraulic Conductivity Permeability ASTM D2434 each 392.00$               

18 One Dimensional Consolidation Properties of Soil ASTM D2435 each 500.00$             

19 Unconfined Compressive Strength (Rock) ASTM D2938 each 94.75$  

20 Direct Shear Test of Soils Under Consolidated Drained Conditions ASTM D3080 set of 3 679.23$             

21 Direct Shear Test of Soils Under Consolidated Drained Conditions, SAND ASTM D3080 set of 3 580.00$               

22 Direct Shear Test of Soils Under Consolidated Drained Conditions, CLAY ASTM D3080 set of 3 708.79$             

23 Splitting Tensile of Intact Rock Core ASTM D3967 each 131.11$             

24 Water Stand Pipes ASTM D4043 each 37.69$  

25 Calcium Carbonate Content of Soils ASTM D4373 LF 68.31$  

26 Hydraulic Conductivity Permeability ASTM D4511 each 324.08$             

27 One Dimensional Swell, Methods A&B ASTM D4546 each 249.47$             

28 One Dimensional Swell, Method B Only ASTM D4546 each 324.66$             

29 One Dimensional Swell, Method C ASTM D4546 each 247.52$             

30 Permeability of Silt and Clays ASTM D5084 each 390.00$               

31 Suction Test (Filter Method) ASTM D5298 each 92.50$                 

32 Casagrande Type Piezometers N/A each 337.82$             

33 Casagrande Type Piezometers Installation N/A each 450.00$             

34 Miscellaneous Testing N/A each Eliminate

No original cost presented 

for consideration

35 Vertical Inclinometer N/A each

 Proposal as 

needed 

36 Vertical Inclinometer Installation N/A each

 Proposal as 

needed 

37 Vibrating Wire Piezometer N/A each

 Proposal as 

needed 

38 Vibrating Wire Piezometer Installation N/A each

 Proposal as 

needed 

39 Soil Boring with SPT ASTM D1586 LF 36.00$                 

Laboratory Test Test Method Unit

Soils & Base Testing

40 Sampling Tex-400-A hour 66.15$  

41 Sample Preparation Tex-101-E each 68.00$  

42 Determining Slaking Time Tex-102-E each 72.25$                 

43 Moisture Content Tex-103-E each 15.44$  

44 Atterburg Limits Tex-104,105&106-E Set of 3 95.00$                 

45 Linear Bar Shrinkage (per bar) Tex-107-E each 69.04$  

46 Determining the Specific Gravity of Soils Tex-108-E each 80.67$  

47 Sieve Analysis Tex-110-E, Part I each 89.00$                 

48 Sieve Analysis (Hydrometer with Tex-108-E) Tex-110-E, Part II each 117.00$               

49 Hydrometer with Tex-108-E (in conjunctin with Tex-110-E, Part II) Tex-108-E each 69.00$                 

50 Percent Passing No. 200 Sieve Tex-111-E each 69.00$  

CMT Firm: RABA-Kistner
Fee Schedule 
Date: 01/26/2021



TEST
NO.

Final as of

4/21/2021 & 

4/28/2021  COMMENTS 

Type Unit

1 Mobilization/Demobilization Mile 6.00$

Requesting re‐evalution 

as per mile unit cost

each 600.00$               
Drilling, Logging, &Recovering Samples (With TCP) 

2A 1. Depth ≤ 50 feet

Tex-132-E 
(every 5 

feet) 38.00$                 

2B 2. Depth ≥ 50 feet linear foot 40.00$                 
Drilling, Logging, &Recovering Samples (Without TCP)

3A 1. Depth ≤ 50 feet linear foot 30.61$  

3B 2. Depth ≥ 50 feet linear foot 32.57$  

4 Rock Coring (Soft Rock)⁽²⁾ linear foot 33.00$                 

5 Rock Coring (Hard Rock)⁽²⁾ linear foot 36.00$                 

6 Staking Borings and Utility Locations hour 121.67$               

Standby Time (sampling) hour 297.74$               

7A 1. Hot Mix Asphalt (minumum of one hour) each 117.05$               

7B 2. Concrete (minumum of one hour) each 171.98$               

8 Piezometer - 2 inch (including well completion and installation) linear foot 48.36$                 

9 Grouting of Borings linear foot 6.86$

10 Traffic Control - Major day 3,000.00$            

Laboratory Test Test Method Unit

11 Volumetric Shrinkage ASTM D427 each 105.24$               

12 Standard Poor Test ASTM D698 each 255.00$               

13 Modified Poor Test ASTM D1557 each 279.75$               

14 Standard Penetration Test (SPT) ASTM D1586 LF 30.04$  

15 California Bearing Ratio (Single Sample without MD Curve) ASTM D1883 test 302.03$             

16 Unconfined Compressive Strength (Soil) ASTM D2166 each 67.44$  

17 Hydraulic Conductivity Permeability ASTM D2434 each 392.00$               

18 One Dimensional Consolidation Properties of Soil ASTM D2435 each 500.00$             

19 Unconfined Compressive Strength (Rock) ASTM D2938 each 94.75$  

20 Direct Shear Test of Soils Under Consolidated Drained Conditions ASTM D3080 set of 3 679.23$             

21 Direct Shear Test of Soils Under Consolidated Drained Conditions, SAND ASTM D3080 set of 3 580.00$               

22 Direct Shear Test of Soils Under Consolidated Drained Conditions, CLAY ASTM D3080 set of 3 708.79$             

23 Splitting Tensile of Intact Rock Core ASTM D3967 each 131.11$             

24 Water Stand Pipes ASTM D4043 each 37.69$  

25 Calcium Carbonate Content of Soils ASTM D4373 LF 68.31$  

26 Hydraulic Conductivity Permeability ASTM D4511 each 324.08$             

27 One Dimensional Swell, Methods A&B ASTM D4546 each 249.47$             

28 One Dimensional Swell, Method B Only ASTM D4546 each 324.66$             

29 One Dimensional Swell, Method C ASTM D4546 each 247.52$             

30 Permeability of Silt and Clays ASTM D5084 each 390.00$               

31 Suction Test (Filter Method) ASTM D5298 each 92.50$                 

32 Casagrande Type Piezometers N/A each 337.82$             

33 Casagrande Type Piezometers Installation N/A each 450.00$             

34 Miscellaneous Testing N/A each Eliminate

No original cost presented 

for consideration

35 Vertical Inclinometer N/A each

 Proposal as 

needed 

36 Vertical Inclinometer Installation N/A each

 Proposal as 

needed 

37 Vibrating Wire Piezometer N/A each

 Proposal as 

needed 

38 Vibrating Wire Piezometer Installation N/A each

 Proposal as 

needed 

39 Soil Boring with SPT ASTM D1586 LF 36.00$                 

Laboratory Test Test Method Unit

Soils & Base Testing

40 Sampling Tex-400-A hour 66.15$  

41 Sample Preparation Tex-101-E each 68.00$  

42 Determining Slaking Time Tex-102-E each 72.25$                 

43 Moisture Content Tex-103-E each 15.44$  

44 Atterburg Limits Tex-104,105&106-E Set of 3 95.00$                 

45 Linear Bar Shrinkage (per bar) Tex-107-E each 69.04$  

46 Determining the Specific Gravity of Soils Tex-108-E each 80.67$  

47 Sieve Analysis Tex-110-E, Part I each 89.00$                 

48 Sieve Analysis (Hydrometer with Tex-108-E) Tex-110-E, Part II each 117.00$               

49 Hydrometer with Tex-108-E (in conjunctin with Tex-110-E, Part II) Tex-108-E each 69.00$                 

50 Percent Passing No. 200 Sieve Tex-111-E each 69.00$  

CMT Firm: RABA-Kistner
Fee Schedule 
Date: 01/26/2021



TEST
NO.

Final as of

4/21/2021 & 

4/28/2021  COMMENTS 

CMT Firm: RABA-Kistner
Fee Schedule 
Date: 01/26/2021

51 Determining the Amount of Material in Solis Finer than the 75 mi Tex-111-E each

52 Admixing Lime to Reduce Plasticity Index of Soils Tex-112-E each 146.00$               

53 Moisture-Density Relationship Tex-113-E each 275.00$               

54 Moisture-Density Relationship Tex-114-E each 255.00$               

55 Field Density Measurements Tex-115-E hour 68.00$                 

56 Wet Ball Mill Test Tex-116-E each 260.00$             

57 Texas Triaxial Compression ⁽⁶⁾ Tex-117-E, Part I each 1,075.00$            

58 Texas Triaxial Compression ⁽⁶⁾ Tex-117-E, Part II each 1,510.00$            

59
Quality Assurance (QA) Series for Flexible Base ⁽⁷⁾ ⁽⁸⁾ See Foot Notes each

2,180.00$            

No original cost presented 

for consideration

60 Soil- Cement Testing ⁽⁷⁾ Tex-120-E, Part II each 439.45$             

61 Soil- Lime Testing ⁽⁷⁾ Tex-121-E, Part II each 430.11$             

61.1
Soil-Lime Testing Determining Stabilization Ability of Lime by Soil pH Tex-121-E, Part III each

431.11$             

No original cost presented 

for consideration

62 Determining the Drainage Factor of Soil Materials (Not Field Test) Tex-123-E ++ each 357.50$               

63 Determining Modulus of Sub-grade Recaction (K Value) (Not Field Test) Tex-125-E ++ each 144.50$               

64 Molding, Testing, and Evaluation Bituminous Black Base Materials Tex-126-E ++ each 1,535.00$            

65 Lime-Fly Ash Compression ⁽⁷⁾ Tex-127-E each 719.39$             

66 Soil pH Tex-128-E each 53.94$  

67 Resistivity of Soils Tex-129-E each 120.00$               

68 Slurry Testing Tex-130-E each 109.14$             

69 Texas Cone Penetration Tex-132-E each 41.79$  

70 Freezing and Thawing Tests oc Compacted Soil-Cement Mixture Tex-135-E each 365.00$               

71 Thickness of Pavement Layers (4 hour minimum) Tex-140-E hour 107.04$             

72 Manual Procedure for Description and Identification of Soils Tex-141-E each 51.18$  

73 Laboratory Classification os Soils for Engineering Purposes Tex-142-E each 70.00$                 

74 Sulfate Content in Soils Tex-145-E each 95.00$                 

75 Conductivity Test for Field Detection of Sulfates in Soil Tex-146-E each 100.96$             

75.1 Organic Content Using UV-VIS Method Tex-148-E each 231.70$             

76 Determining Cholride and Sulfate Contents in Soils Tex-620-J each 88.16$  

77 Free Swell Test EM1110-2-1906 each 195.00$               

78 Pressure Swell Test EM1110-2-1906 each 293.00$             

79 One-Dimensional Swell ASTM D4546 each 293.00$             

80 One-Dimensional Swell (Method B Only) ASTM D4546 each 280.00$               

81 Potential Vertical Rise Calculation Tex-124-E each 85.14$  

82 Volumetric Shrinkage ASTM D4943 each 119.00$               

83 Volumetric Shrinkage ASTM D427 each

84 Unconfined Compression Test (Soil) ASTM D2166 each 66.79$  

85 Unconfined Compression Test (Rock) ASTM D2938 each 97.80$  

86 Unconfined Compression Test (Rock) (Method D) ASTM D7012 each 75.00$                 

Unconsolidated Undrained (UU) Triaxial Compression Test

87 1. Set of Three Tex-118-E set 312.36$             

88 2. Multistage Tex-118-E each 286.21$             

Consolidated Undrained (CU) Triaxial Compression Test

89 1. Set of Three
Tex-131-E or ASTM 
D4767

set 1,502.50$            

90 2. Multistage
Tex-131-E or ASTM 
D4767

each 1,362.50$            

Consolidated Drained (CD) Triaxial Compression Test

91 1. Set of Three
Tex-131-E or ASTM 
D4767

set 1,335.00$            

92 2. Multistage
Tex-131-E or ASTM 
D4767

each 1,261.50$            

93 Direct Shear Consolidated Drained (CD), sand ASTM D3080 set of 3 665.00$             

94 Direct Shear Consolidated Drained (CD), clay ASTM D3080 set of 3 834.92$             

95 One-Dimensional Consolidation Test (7 load increments) ASTM D2435 each 597.14$             

96 Resilient Modulus (fine-grained soils) AASHTO T307 each 1,200.00$            

Hot Mix Asphalt Testing

97 Sieve Analysis of Fine and Coarse Aggregates Tex-200-F each 94.54$  

98 Bulk Specific Gravity and Water Absorption of Aggregates Tex-201-F each 91.88$  

99 Apparent Specific Gravity of Material Finer Than 180 µm (No. 80) Sieve Tex-202-F each 65.00$                 

100 Sand Equivalent Test Tex-203-F each 95.50$                 

101 Labortory Method of Mixing Bituminous Mixtures Tex-205-F Set of 3 187.00$               

102 Compacting Specimens Using the Texas Gyratory Compactor (TG Tex-206-F Set of 3 113.04$             

103 Determining Bulk Specific Gravity of Compacted Bituminuous Mixtures Tex-207-F (I) each 50.00$                 

104
Determining In-Place Density of Compacted Bituminuous Mixtures (Nuclear 
Method) Tex-207-F (III) each 45.00$                 

105 Asphalt Rolling Pattern (Nuclear Method) Tex-207-F (IV) each 88.69$  

106 Segregation Profile Tex-207-F (V) each 194.17$             

107 Joint Density Tex-207-F (VII) each 194.17$             

108 Test of Stabilometer Value of Bituminous Mixtures Tex-208-F set of 3 157.05$             

109 Determining Asphalt Content of Bituminous Mixtures by Extraction Tex-210-F each 182.13$             



TEST
NO.

Final as of

4/21/2021 & 

4/28/2021  COMMENTS 

CMT Firm: RABA-Kistner
Fee Schedule 
Date: 01/26/2021

110 Recovery of Asphalt from Bituminou Mixtures by the Abson Pro Tex-211-F each 289.11$             

111 Determining Moisture Content of Bituminous Mixtures Tex-212-F each 54.03$  

112 Determining Hydrocarbon-Volatile Content of Bituminous Mixture Tex-213-F each 131.76$             

113
Determining Deleterious Material and Decantation Test for Coarse 
Aggregates Tex-217-F each 110.00$               

114 Indirect Tensile Strength Test Tex-226-F each 495.02$             

115 Theoretical Maximum Specific Gravity of Bituminous Mixtures Tex-227-F each 105.31$             

116 Determining Asphalt Content of Bituminous Mixtures by the Nuclear Tex-228-F each 103.18$             

117 Combined HMAC Cold-Belt Sampling and Testing Procedure Tex-229-F each 83.50$                 

118 Determining Draindown Characteristics in Bituminous Mixtures Tex-235-F each 75.00$                 

119
Determining Asphalt Content from Asphalt Paving Mixtures by the Ignition 
Method Tex-236-F each 168.25$               

120 Asphalt Release Agents Tex-239-F each 90.00$                 

121 Superpave Gyratory Compacting of Test Specimens of Bituminous Tex-241-F each 158.11$             

122 Hamburg Wheel Tracker Tex-242-F each 600.00$               

123 Tack Coat Adhesion Tex-243-F each 185.00$               

124 Thremal Profile Tex-244-F each 164.50$               

125 Cantabro Loss Tex-245-F each 219.67$             

126 Permeability or Water Flow of Hot Mix Asphalt Tex-246-F each 83.50$                 

127 Overlay Test Tex-248-F set of 3 762.22$             

128 Flat and Elongated Particles Tex-280-F each 77.36$  

129 Sampling Bituminous Materials, Pre-Molded Joint Fillers, and Joint Tex-500-C each 87.00$                 

130 Asphalt Binder Water in Petroleum Tex-501-C AASHTO T55 each 125.25$               

131 Penetration of Bituminous Materials Tex-502-C AASHTO T49 each 130.82$             

132 Ductility of Asphalt Materials Tex-503-C AASHTO T51 each 141.50$               

133 Flash and Fire Points by Cleveland Open Cup Tex-504-C AASHTO T48 each 70.56$  

134 Softening Point of Bitumen (Riing and Ball Apparatus Tex-505-C AASHTO T53 each 120.27$             

135 Solubility of Bituminous Materials Tex-507-C AASHTO T44 each 147.75$               

136 Specific Gravity Tex-508-C AASHTO T228 each 96.00$                 

137 Spot Test of Asphaltic Materials Tex-509-C AASHTO T102 each 203.50$               

138 Effect of Heat and Air on Asphalt Materials (Thin-Film Oven Test) Tex-510-C AASHTO t179 each 169.30$               

139 Flash Point with Tag Open-Cup Apparatus for Use with Material H Tex-512-C AASHTO T79 each 113.88$               

140 Saybolt Viscosity Tex-513-C AASHTO T72 each 89.02$  

141

Cutback Asphalts - Specific Gravity, API Gravity, or Density of Cutback 
Asphalts by Hdyrometer Method; Emulsified Asphalts - Weight per Gallon of 
Emulsified Asphalt

Tex-514-C ASTM D3142 
ASTM D244

each
423.00$               

142 Distillation of Cutback Asphalt Products Tex-515-C AASHTO T78 each 205.67$             

143 Float Test for Bituminous Materials Tex-519-C AASHTO T50 each 87.83$                 

144 Standard Test Method for Emulsified Asphalts Tex-521-C AASHTO T59 each 241.88$               

145 Viscosity of Asphalts by Vacuum Capillary Viscometer Tex-528-C AASHTO T202 each 47.50$                 

146 Kinematic Viscosity of Asphalts (Bitumens) Tex-529-C AASHTO T201 each 89.02$  

147 Boil Test (Effect of Water on Paving Mix) Tex-530/531-C each 153.50$               

148 Field Coring - ACP Thickness ASTM D3549 each 124.25$               

149 Pavement Thickness Determin. (Full Depth) ASTM D3549 each 153.00$               

150 Determining Polymer Additive Percentages in Polymer Modified Tex-533-C each 82.50$                 

151 Calculating Viscosity from Penetration Tex-535-C each 87.06$  

152 Elastic Recovery of Tensile Deformation Using a Ductilometer Tex-539-C each 79.13$                 

153 Measurement of Polymer Separation on Heating in Modified Asphalat Tex-540-C each 129.50$               

154 Rolling Thin Film Oven Test for Asphalt Binders Tex-541-C ASSHTO T240 each 189.00$               

155 Flexural Creep Stiffness Using the Bending Beam Rheometer AASHTO T313 each 275.00$               

156 Determining Rheological Properties of Asphalt Binder Using a Dy AASHTO T315 each 244.13$               

157 Determining Breaking Index for Asphalt Emulsions Tex-542-C each 251.89$             

158 Resilience Test for Sealants and Repair Materials Tex-547-C each 305.36$             

159 Tensile Strain to Failure Tex-548-C each 84.00$                 

160 Cone Flow Test Tex-549-C each 87.50$                 

161 Flexibility Test for Sealants and Repair Materials Tex-550-C each 302.50$               

162 Settlement of Sealants and Repair Materials Tex-551-C each 118.50$               

Concrete & Aggregate Testing

163 Sieve Analysis for Conc. Agg Tex-401-A each 90.10$  

164 Fineness Modulus for Conc. Agg Tex-402-A each 47.50$                 

165 SSD Specific Gravity / Absorption Conc. Agg Tex-403-A each 88.00$                 

166 Unit Weight of Conc. Agg Tex-404-A each 58.30$  

167 Determining Pecent Voids and Solids in Concrete Tex-405-A each 75.94$  

168 Decantation for Conc. Agg Tex-406-A each 63.75$                 

169 Organic Impurities for Conc. Agg Tex-408-A each 59.16$  

170 Free Moisture and Water Absorption in Aggregate for Concrete Tex-409-A each 66.00$                 

171 L.A. Abrasion Tex-410-A each 403.12$             

172 5 Cycle Magnesium Soundness Tex-411-A each 520.48$             

173 Deleterious Material for Conc. Agg Tex-413-A each 77.25$                 

174 Air Content of Fresh Concrete by Volumeteric Tex-414-A each 36.05$                 

175 Slump of Fresh Concrete Tex-415-A each 29.90$  



ATTACHMENT E: FEE SCHEDULE [SPECIFIED RATE / LUMP SUM PAYMENT BASIS]

Raba Personnel Classification Hourly Base Rate 
Contract Rate

FY 2021

Senior Project Manager / Principal 64.73$   178.00$       

Senior Geotechnical Engineer 47.27$   130.00$       

Geotechnical Engineer 36.73$   101.00$       

Project Engineer 45.81$   125.98$       

Engineering Lab Manager 32.00$   88.00$         

Utility Coordinator 40.36$   110.98$       

Senior Project Inspector 34.55$   95.00$         

Project Inspector 23.64$   65.00$         

EIT 31.64$   87.00$         

Engineer Tech / GIS 21.82$   60.00$         

Logger 21.64$   59.52$         

Field Technician (Soils, Aggr, Asph, Conc) 24.73$   68.02$         

CADD Operator  28.44$   78.20$         

Admin/Clerical  22.12$   60.82$         



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for RABA Kistner, Inc.  for 365 
Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT E-1 

FEE SCHEDULE 



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for RABA Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT E-1 
Final Cost Proposal Form 

This attachment provides the basis of payment and fee schedule. The basis of payment for this Work 
Authorization is indicated by an “X” in the applicable box. The basis shall be supported by the Final Cost 
Proposal (FCP) shown below and should identify maximum amount payable and basis of payment. If more than 
one basis of payment is used, each one must be supported by a separate FCP. The basis of payment will be 
determined by Work Authorization and may be by any of the methods listed below. 

“X” Basis 

Lump Sum 
The lump sum shall be equal to the maximum amount payable. The lump sum includes 
all direct and indirect costs and fixed fee. The Engineer shall be paid pro rata based on the 
percentage of work completed. For payment the Engineer is not required to provide 
evidence of actual hours worked, travel, overhead rates or other evidence of cost. 

    X_ Unit Cost 
The unit cost(s) for each type of unit and number of units are shown in the FCP. The 
unit cost includes all direct and indirect costs and fixed fee. The Engineer shall be paid 
based on the type and number of units fully completed and the respective unit cost. For 
payment, the Engineer is not required to provide evidence of actual hours worked, travel, 
overhead rates or any other cost data. The FCP may include special items, such as 
equipment which are not included in the unit costs. Documentation of these special 
costs may be required. The maximum amount payable equals the total of all units times 
their respective unit cost plus any special direct items shown. 

    X 
Specified 
Rate Basis 

The specified rates for each type of labor are shown in the FCP below. The FCP may 
include special items, such as equipment which are not included in the specified rates. 
Payment shall be based on the actual hours worked multiplied by the specified rate for 
each type of labor plus other agreed to special direct cost items. The specified rate includes 
direct labor and indirect cost and fixed fee. The Authority may request 
documentation of reimbursable direct costs including hours worked. Documentation of 
special item costs may be required. The specified rate is not subject to audit. 

Cost Plus 
Fixed Fee 

Payment shall be based on direct and indirect costs incurred plus a pro rata share of the 
fixed fee based on the ratio of labor and overhead cost incurred to total estimated labor 
and overhead cost in the FCP or the percentage of work completed. The invoice must 
itemize labor rates, hours worked, other direct costs and indirect costs. The Engineer may 
be required to provide documentation of hours worked and any eligible direct costs 
claimed. The provisional overhead rate charged is subject to audit and adjustment to actual 
rates incurred. The FCP below shows the hourly rates for labor, other direct expenses 
including but not limited to travel and allowable materials, provisional overhead rate and 
the fixed fee. 

A. Actual Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Actual wages are paid (no minimum, no
maximum.

B. Range of Cost Plus Fixed Fee – Actual wages must be within the
allowable range shown on the Final Cost Proposal.

A. REFER TO ATTACHMENT E-2 FOR HOURLY SPECIFIED / LUMP SUM RATE SCHEDULE
FOR EACH FIRM



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for RABA Kistner, Inc.  for 365 
Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

EXHIBIT D 

ESTIMATE OF MAN -HOURS AND 

TEST BREAKDOWN

MariaAlaniz
Cross-Out







EXHIBIT F
WORK SCHEDULE



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for RABA Kistner, Inc.  for 365 
Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

EXHIBIT F 

WORK SCHEDULE 

HCRMA Construction & Materials Testing Services 
TOLL365 (SH 365) 

Task Name Start Finish 

Material Testing 10/1/2021 12/13/2025 
Geotechnical 10/1/2021 12/13/2025 
Other Analyses 10/1/2021 12/13/2025 
All sampling and testing of components and materials 10/1/2021 12/13/2025 

  Hot Mix Asphalt Testing 10/1/2021 12/13/2025 
  Concrete Testing 10/1/2021 12/13/2025 
  Construction Oversight Documentation 10/1/2021 12/13/2025 
 Project Correspondence File (Design and Construction) 10/1/2021 12/13/2025 



ATTACHMENT H-2 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for RABA Kistner, Inc. 
for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1& 2 

Subprovider Monitoring System Commitment Agreement 

This commitment agreement is subject to the award and receipt of a signed contract from the Hidalgo County 
Regional Mobility Authority (Authority). NOTE: Attachment H-2 is required to be attached to each contract that 
does not include work authorizations. Attachment H-2 is required to be attached with each work authorization. 
Attachment H-2 is also required to be attached to each supplemental work authorization. If DBE/HUB 
Subproviders are used, the form must be completed and signed. If no DBE/HUB Subproviders are used, indicate 
with “N/A” on this line: and attach with the work authorization or supplemental 
work authorization. 

Contract #: Assigned Goal: 6% Prime Provider Raba Kistner, Inc. 

Work Authorization (WA)#:  1 WA Amount: $2,953,477.12  Date:    
Supplemental Work Authorization (SWA) #: to WA #: SWA Amount: 
Revised WA Amount:   

Description of Work 
(List by category of work or task description. Attach additional pages, if 
necessary.) 

Dollar Amount 
(For each category of work or task 
description shown.) 

FC $0
FC $0

Total Commitment Amount (Including all additional pages.) $0 

IMPORTANT: The signatures of the prime and the DBE/HUB and Second Tier Subprovider, if any (both DBE and Non- 
DBE) and the total commitment amount must always be on the same page. 

Provider Name: Raba Kistner, Inc.                 
Address: 12821 W. Golden Lane 

        San Antonio, Texas 78249 
  VID Number: 
PH: & FAX: 210-699-9090 / 210-699-6426 
Email: cschultz@rkci.com 

Name: Chris L. Schultz 
(Please Print) 
Title: President

Signature Date

DBE/HUB Sub Provider 
Subprovider Name: 
VID Number: 
Address: 
PH: 
Email: 

Name:    
(Please Print) 
Title:  

Signature Date

Second Tier Sub Provider 
Subprovider Name: 
VID Number: 
Address: 
Phone #& Fax #: 
Email: 

Name:    
(Please Print) 
Title:  

Signature Date

VID Number is the Vendor Identification Number issued by the Comptroller. If a firm does not have a VID Number, please 
enter the owner’s Social Security or their Federal Employee Identification Number (if incorporated). 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



Item 3C



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS                               X                     AGENDA ITEM                  3C                      
PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED        10/14/2021                    
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE     10/26/2021     
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2021-47 – APPROVAL OF AWARD OF CONTRACT WITH 

ATLAS TECHNICAL CONSULTANTS FOR CONSTRUCTION MATERIAL TESTING 
SERVICES FOR THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY.                    __                   
         

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Approval of award contract for CMT Services to Atlas Technical Consultants.__                   ____                   
   
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2021-47 - Approval of award of 

contract with Atlas Technical Consultants for Construction Material Testing Services for 
the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority, as presented.________________________  

. 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X_  None 
 
10.       Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:       Approved         Disapproved    X    None 
 
11. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:    X   Approved         Disapproved        X   None 
 
12. Executive Director’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved           None 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Memorandum 
To: Pilar Rodriguez, P.E 

HCRMA, Executive Director 

From: Ramon Navarro, IV, P.E., C.F.M. 
HCRMA, Chief Construction Engineer 

Date: October 19, 2021 

Subject:  RESOLUTION 2021-47 APPROVAL OF AWARD OF CONTRACT ATLAS 
TECHNICAL CONSULTANTS FOR CONSTRUCTION MATERIAL TESTING 
SERVICES FOR THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY 

GOAL 
Approval and authorization to enter into contract for 2020-2021 Construction Material Testing Services  
with Atlas Technical Consultants. 

HISTORY 
October 27, 2020 the HCRMA Board authorized the Executive Director to enter into negotiations with 
each of the, ranked firms and further approach Board with recommended award and distribution of work 
in accordance to acceptable terms and conditions of assignments. 

Atlas Technical Consultants shall serve as the Authority’s Independent Assurance Testing Firm. Their 
prime responsibility is to provide oversite or quality assurance of construction materials testing.  The 
Independent Assurance (IA) programmer evaluates all sampling and testing procedures, personnel, 
and equipment used as part of testing and acceptance decisions verifying compliance with all required 
regulations, and / or specifications. They shall service the entire project, Phase II of 365 Toll highway 
construction project and administer the HCRMA Quality Monitoring and Quality Assurance Program. 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends award of contract to Atlas Technical Consultants in the amount of $402,877.44 for 
an “indefinite delivery/indefinite quantity [IDIQ]” set of rates for a proposed three (3) year fixed period of 
time, during that period of time the Engineer will be responsible for an unlimited number of separate 
projects, or additional work on a current project to be issued on an individual work order basis. 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2021-47 

APPROVAL OF AWARD OF CONTRACT WITH ATLAS TECHNICAL 
CONSULTANTS FOR CONSTRUCTION MATERIAL TESTING SERVICES 
FOR THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

 
THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 26th day of October, 2021, by the Board of Directors of 
the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at a regular meeting. 

 
WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), 

acting through its Board of Directors (the “Board”), is a regional mobility authority created 
pursuant to Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Act to address mobility issues in 

and around Hidalgo County; 
 

WHEREAS, on February 19, 2014, the Authority issued a solicitation for 
Statements of Qualification for Construction Material Testing Services for the Authority 
(the “Solicitation”); and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 21, 2014 the Authority received responses to the 

Solicitation; and 
 

WHEREAS, on April 23, 2014, Resolution 2014-38 authorized Authority staff to 
negotiate and enter into agreements with the top three scored firms (Raba Kistner 
Consultants Inc., L&G Laboratories and Terracon Consultants, Inc.) for Construction 
Material Testing Services (the “Services”); and 

 
WHEREAS, on July 24, 2018, Resolution 2018-45 authorized Authority staff to 

procure one additional lab to provide additional Services; and 
 

WHEREAS, on July 29, 2018, the Authority published a second Solicitation; and 
received three (3) responses, of which only one was deemed responsive; 

 
WHEREAS, on September 25, 2018, the Authority authorized staff to negotiate 

contract terms for the Services to PaveTex Engineering LLC, dba PAVETEX, the sole 
responsive firm that met the professional services criteria set forth in the Solicitation; 

 
WHEREAS, on August 21, 2020, the Authority received five (5) sealed statements 

of qualification packets. An internal committee of three HCRMA staff engineers  ranked and 
reviewed; the Authority determined it necessary to negotiate contract terms to enter into 
negotiations with each of the ranked firms and further approach Board with recommended 
award and distribution of work in accordance to acceptable terms and conditions of 
assignments; and  

 
 
 
 
 



WHEREAS on October 27, 2020, the Authority approved Resolution 2020-28 
Approval to enter into negotiations with each of the short-listed firms for Construction 
Material Testing for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority and further approach 
Board with recommended award and distribution of work in accordance to acceptable terms 
and conditions of assignments; and 

 
WHEREAS the Authority finds it necessary to approve Resolution 2021-47 

Approval of Award of Contract by and between the Atlas Technical Consultants formerly 
known as Pavetex Engineering, LLC,  and the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 
for Construction Material Testing Services. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY THAT: 

 
 

Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 

restated. 

Section 2. The Board hereby approves Award of Contract by and between Atlas 
Technical Consultants and the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority for Construction Material Testing Services in the amount of 
$402,877.44, hereto attached as Exhibit A.  

 
Section 3. The Board authorizes the Executive Director to execute the Professional 

Service Agreement for Construction Material Testing with Atlas Technical 
Consultants., as approved by the Board. 

 
***** 



PASSED A ND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY AT A REGULAR MEETING, duly posted and noticed, on the 26th day of 
October 2021, at which meeting a quorum was present. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Secretary/Treasurer 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Exhibit A 

 

Main  

Professional Service  

Agreement with 

Atlas Technical Consultants. 

For  

Construction Material Testing Services 

 



 

 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

  

STATE OF TEXAS    § 

COUNTY OF HIDALGO   § 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR  

ENGINEERING / DESIGN SERVICES 

 

 

THIS CONTRACT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES is made by and between the Hidalgo County 

Regional Mobility Authority (HCRMA) (hereinafter the “Authority”) and Atlas Technical Consultants  LLC.  

(hereinafter the “Engineer”), having its principal business address at 1959 Saratoga Blvd., building 12, Corpus 

Christi, TX 78417 for the purpose of contracting for engineering services (hereinafter the “Agreement”).  

 

WITNESSETH 

 

WHEREAS, Government Code, Chapter 2254, Subchapter A, “Professional Services Procurement Act” 

provides for the procurement of professional services of engineers;  

 

WHEREAS, in compliance with the Professional Services Procurement Act and all federal requirements 

including those described in 23 CFR Part 172, the Authority procured professional engineering services (the 

“Procurement”); 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Procurement and the Authority Board of Director’s (the Board’s) ranking of 

respondents thereto, the Board finds it to be in the best interest of the Authority to engage the Engineer to 

provide verification sampling and testing services as required by the 2019 TxDOT Guide Schedule of Sampling 

& Testing for Design Bid-Build Projects and adopted Quality Assurance Program (QAP) to assure that 

materials and workmanship incorporated into highway construction projects are in reasonable conformity with 

the requirements of the approved plans and specifications, including any approved changes as required for the 

development of the Project, as approved by the Authority to wit: PROVIDE CONSTRUCTION 

MATERIALS TESTING TO ASSURE MATERIALS, INCORPORATED INTO THE 12.23 MILES OF 

SEGMENT 1 [FROM MCCOLL ROAD TO US281] AND SEGMENT 2 [FROM FM396, ANZALDUAS 

HIGHWAY/GSA CONNECTOR] ON PHASE II OF 365 TOLL HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION 

PROJECT ARE SUBJECT TO VERIFICATION SAMPLING AND TESTING WHEN REQUIRED 

AND MEET PROJECT PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS; AND ADMINISTERING QUALITY 

MONITORING AND QUALITY ASSURANCE PROGRAM. OVERALL PROJECT CONSISTS OF 

CONSTRUCTION OF A 12.23 MILE TOLLED FACILITY FROM FM 396 & GSA CONNECTOR TO 

US 281 (MILITARY HIGHWAY), WHICH CONSISTS OF: OF GRADING, FLEXIBLE BASE, LIME 

TREATED SUBGRADE, ASPHALTIC CONCRETE PAVEMENT, CONCRETE PAVEMENT, 

SIGNING AND PAVEMENT MARKINGS, CROSS CULVERTS, BRIDGE STRUCTURES, 

RETAINING WALLS, ILLUMINATION AND TOLL EQUIPMENT.  (the “Project”); 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, the Authority and the Engineer, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements 

herein contained, do hereby mutually agree as follows:  

 

 

 

 



 

 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

ARTICLE I 

SCOPE OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE ENGINEER 

 

1.1 The Engineer shall timely perform those engineering services for the fulfillment of the Agreement. All 

work shall be subject to review and approval by the Authority, and, if appropriate, the Texas Department of 

Transportation and the Federal Highway Administration. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this 

Agreement or in any other Agreement document relating to the project, in performing its work under this 

Agreement Engineer shall perform its services to the standard of care of a reasonable engineer that is 

performing the same or similar work, at the same time and locality and under the same or similar conditions 

faced by Engineer.   

 

1.2 The Authority and the Engineer will furnish items and perform those services for fulfillment of the 

Agreement as identified in Attachment B, Services to be provided by the Authority and Attachment C, Services 

to be provided by the Engineer.  All services provided by the Engineer will conform to standard engineering 

practices and applicable rules and regulations of the Texas Engineering Practices Act and the rules of the Texas 

Board of Professional Engineers. 

  

ARTICLE II 

AGREEMENT PERIOD 

 

This Agreement becomes effective when fully executed by all parties hereto and it shall terminate at the close of 

business on {December 13, 2025} unless the Agreement period is: (1) modified by written supplemental 

agreement prior to the date of termination as set forth in Attachment A, General Provisions, Section 6, 

Supplemental Agreements; (2) extended due to a work suspension as provided for in Attachment A, Section 3, 

Paragraph C; or (3) otherwise terminated in accordance with Attachment A, General Provisions, Section 14, 

Termination.  Any work performed or cost incurred before or after the Agreement period shall be ineligible for 

reimbursement. 

 

ARTICLE III 

COMPENSATION 

 

3.1 Maximum Amount Payable.  The maximum amount payable under this contract is $402,877.44 unless 

modified (1) modified written supplemental agreement prior to the date of termination as set forth in 

Attachment A, General Provisions, Section 6, Supplemental Agreements or (2) modified through a work 

authorization as set forth in Article V, provided that such work authorizations is adopted by Board action. 

 

3.2 Basis of Payment.  The basis of payment is identified in Attachment E, Fee Schedule.  Reimbursement 

of costs incurred under a work authorization shall be in accordance with Attachment E, Fee Schedule. 

 

3.3 Reimbursement of Eligible Costs.  To be eligible for reimbursement, the Engineer's costs must (1) be 

incurred in accordance with the terms of a valid work authorization; (2) be in accordance with Attachment E, 

Fee Schedule; and (3) comply with cost principles set forth at 48 CFR Part 31, Federal Acquisition Regulation 

(FAR 31).  Satisfactory progress of work shall be maintained and evidenced as a condition of payment. 

 



 

 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

3.4 Engineer Payment of Subproviders.  No later than ten (10) days after receiving payment from the 

Authority, the Engineer shall pay all subproviders for work performed under a subcontract authorized 

hereunder. The Authority may withhold all payments that have or may become due if the Engineer fails to 

comply with the ten-day payment requirement.  The Authority may also suspend the work under this Agreement 

or any work authorization until subproviders are paid.  This requirement also applies to all lower tier 

subproviders, and this provision must be incorporated into all subcontracts related to the project.  

 

ARTICLE IV 

PAYMENT REQUIREMENTS 

 

4.1 Monthly Billing Statements.  The Engineer shall request reimbursement of costs incurred by 

submitting the original and one copy of an itemized billing statement in a form acceptable to the Authority.  The 

Engineer is authorized to submit requests for reimbursement no more frequently than monthly and no later than 

ninety (90) days after costs are incurred.  

 

4.2 Billing Statement.  The billing statement shall show the work authorization number for each work 

authorization included in the billing, the total amount earned to the date of submission, and the amount due and 

payable as of the date of the current billing statement for each work authorization.  The billing statement shall 

indicate if the work has been completed or if the billing is for partial completion of the work.  The lump sum fee 

will be paid in proportion to the percentage of work completed per work authorization. 

 

4.3 Overhead Rates.  The Engineer shall use the provisional overhead rate indicated in Attachment E.  If a 

periodic escalation of the provisional overhead rate is specified in Attachment E, the effective date of the 

revised provisional overhead rate must be included.  For lump sum agreements where a lump sum applies to a 

work authorization the overhead rate utilized shall correspond with the overhead rate specified in the year in 

which the work authorization is executed. 

 

4.4 Thirty Day Payments.  Upon receipt and acceptance of a billing statement that complies with all 

invoice requirements set forth in this Article, the Authority shall make a good faith effort to pay the amount 

which is due and payable within thirty (30) days. 

 

4.5 Withholding Payments.  The Authority reserves the right to withhold payment of the Engineer's billing 

statement in the event of any of the following: (1) If a dispute over the work or costs thereof is not resolved 

within a thirty day period; (2) pending verification of satisfactory work performed; (3) the Engineer becomes a 

delinquent obligor as set forth in Section 231.006 of the Family Code; or (4) required reports are not received.  

In the event that payment is withheld, the Authority shall notify the Engineer and give a remedy that would 

allow the Authority to release the payment.  

 

4.6 Required Reports. 

a) As required in Attachment H, Disadvantaged Business Enterprise or Historically Underutilized 

Business Program Requirements, the Engineer shall submit Progress Assessment Reports to report actual 

payments made to Disadvantaged Business Enterprises or Historically Underutilized Businesses.  One copy 

shall be submitted with each billing statement and one copy shall be submitted to the address included in 

Attachment H, Disadvantaged Business Enterprise or Historically Underutilized Business Program 

Requirements. 

 



 

 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

b) Prior to Agreement closeout, the Engineer shall submit a Final Report (Attachment H-4) to the 

address set forth in Attachment H.  

 

c) The Engineer shall submit a separate report with each billing statement showing the percent 

completion of the work accomplished during the billing period and the percent completion to date, and any 

additional written report requested by the Authority to document the progress of the work. 

 

4.7 Subproviders and Suppliers List.  Pursuant to requirements of 43 Texas Administrative Code §9.50 et 

seq., the Engineer must provide the Authority a list (Attachment H-5/DBE or Attachment H-6/HUB) of all 

Subproviders and suppliers that submitted quotes or proposals for subcontracts.  This list shall include 

subproviders’ and suppliers’ names, addresses, telephone numbers, and type of work desired. 

4.8 Debt to the Authority.  If the Authority is prohibited by law from issuing a warrant or initiating an 

electronic funds transfer to the Engineer because of a debt owed to the Authority, the Authority shall apply all 

payments due the Engineer to the debt or delinquent tax until the debt or delinquent tax is paid in full. 

 

4.9 Audit.  The Authority auditor may conduct an audit or investigation of any entity receiving funds from 

the Authority directly under this Agreement or indirectly through a subcontract under this Agreement.  

Acceptance of funds directly under this Agreement or indirectly through a subcontract under this Agreement 

acts as acceptance of the Authority’s right or the Authority’s auditor right, to conduct an audit or investigation 

in connection with those funds.  An entity that is the subject of an audit or investigation must provide the 

Authority auditor with access to any information the Authority auditor considers relevant to the investigation or 

audit. 

ARTICLE V 

WORK AUTHORIZATIONS 

 

The Authority will issue work authorizations using the form included in Attachment D (Work Authorizations 

and Supplemental Work Authorizations) to authorize all work under this Agreement.  The Engineer must sign 

and return a work authorization within seven (7) working days after receipt. Refusal to accept a work 

authorization may be grounds for termination of this Agreement.  The Authority shall not be responsible for 

actions by the Engineer or any costs incurred by the Engineer relating to work not directly associated with or 

prior to the execution of a work authorization.  Terms and conditions governing the use of work authorizations 

are set forth in Attachment A, General Provisions, Section 1.  The work authorization shall not waive the 

Authority’s or the Engineer’s responsibilities and obligations established under this Agreement.  

 

ARTICLE VI 

SIGNATORY WARRANTY 

 

The undersigned signatory for the Engineer hereby represents and warrants that he or she is an officer of the 

organization for which he or she has executed this Agreement and that he or she has full and complete 

Authority to enter into this Agreement on behalf of the firm.  These representations and warranties are made for 

the purpose of inducing the Authority to enter into this Agreement.  

 

ARTICLE VII 

NOTICES 
 

All notices to either party by the other required under this agreement shall be delivered personally or sent by 

certified or U.S. mail, postage prepaid, addressed to such party at the following addresses: 

  



 

 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

Engineer: 

     Atlas Technical Consultants LLC  

    1959 Saratoga Blvd., Building 12 

    Corpus, Christi, Texas 78417 

    Attn:  Marvin Garcia P.E,  

              Senior Vice President/ 

              Director of Operations  

Authority: 

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (HCRMA) 

203 W. Newcombe, Ave. 

Pharr, Texas 78577 

Attn:  Pilar Rodriguez, P.E., Executive Director       

 

All notices shall be deemed given on the date so delivered or so deposited in the mail, unless otherwise 

provided herein.  Either party may change the above address by sending written notice of the change to the 

other party.  Either party may request in writing that such notices shall be delivered personally or by certified 

U.S. mail and such request shall be honored and carried out by the other party. 



 

 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

ARTICLE VIII 

INCORPORATION OF PROVISIONS 

 

Attachments A through K are attached hereto and incorporated into this Agreement as if fully set forth herein. 

 

SIGNATORIES 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Authority and the Engineer have executed these presents in duplicate and 

acknowledge that this Agreement constitutes the sole and only Agreement of the Parties hereto and supersedes 

any prior understandings or written or oral agreements between the Parties respecting the within subject matter.  

 

AUTHORITY  

 

 

By: _______________________________________ 

 

Name:  Pilar Rodriguez                                              . 

 

Title: Executive Director                                             . 

 

 

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority  

 

Date: ____________________________________  

ENGINEER  

 

 

By: _______________________________________ 

 

Name:  Marvin Garcia, P.E.       ___                  .                                                              

 

Title:  Senior Vice President-Regional Director of 

Operations _______________________                                                             

. 

ATLAS TECHNICAL CONSULTANTS, LLC___ 

 

Date: ____________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

: 



 

 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS TO AGREEMENT  

FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES  

INCORPORATED INTO THE AGREEMENT BY REFERENCE 

 

 

Attachments Title 

A General Provisions 

B Services to Be Provided by the Authority 

C Services to Be Provided by the Engineer 

D Work Authorization Forms 

D-1 Work Authorization Form for Agreement for Engineering Services 

D-2 Supplemental Work Authorization Form 

E Fee Schedule  

E-1 Final Cost Proposal Form 

E-2 Rate Sheets 

E-3 Maximum Amount Payable 

F Work Schedule 

G Contract Deliverables/Computer Graphics Files for Document and Information 

Exchange, if applicable 

H DBE Participation 

H-MOU Memorandum of Understanding 

H-Instructions Instructions As per 49CFR 26.21 

H-FG Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) for Federal Funded Professional or 

Technical Services Contracts – See Attachment H Instructions 

H–FN Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) for Race-Neutral Professional or 

Technical Services Contracts – See Attachment H Instructions 

H–SG Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) Requirements for County Funded 

Professional or Technical Services Contracts – County of Texas HUB.  

Subcontracting plan required – See Attachment H Instructions 

H–SN Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) Requirements for County Funded 

Professional or Technical Services Contracts – No County of Texas HUB 

H–1 Subprovider Monitoring System Commitment Worksheet 

H–2 Subprovider Monitoring System Commitment Agreement 

H–3 Monthly Progress Assessment Report 

H-4 Subprovider Monitoring System Final Report 

H-5 Federal Subproviders and Supplier Information 

H-6 HUB Subcontracting Plan (HSP) Prime Contractor Progress Assessment Report 

H-7 DBE Certifications 

I Certificate of Insurance 

J Conflicts of Certification 

K Debarment Certification 

L 2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

M 2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid-Build Projects 

 

 



ATTACHMENT A 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 

 

INDEX TO PROVISIONS 

 

Section Title 

1 Work Authorizations 

2 Progress 

3 Suspension of Work 

4 Additional Work 

5 Changes in Work 

6 Supplemental Agreements 

7 Ownership of Data 

8 Public Information 

9 Personnel, Equipment and Material 

10 Subcontracting 

11 Inspection of Work 

12 Submission of Reports 

13 Violation of Contract Terms (Breach of Agreement) 

14 Termination 

15 Compliance with Laws 

16 Indemnification 

17 Engineer’s Responsibility 

18 Non-collusion 

19 Insurance 

20 Gratuities 

21 DBE/HUB Requirements 

22 Maintenance, Retention and Audit of Records 

23 Civil Rights Compliance 

24 Patent Rights 

25 Computer Graphics Files 

26 Child Support Certification 

27 Disputes 

28 Successors and Assigns 

29 Severability 

30 Prior Agreements Superseded 

31 Conflict of Interest 

32 Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Audit Requirements 

33 Certifications 



ATTACHMENT A 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 

SECTION 1. WORK AUTHORIZATIONS 

A. Use.  The Engineer shall not begin any work until the Authority and the Engineer have signed a work 

authorization.  Costs incurred by the Engineer before or after the completion date specified in the work 

authorization are not eligible for reimbursement.  All work must be completed on or before the completion date 

specified in the work authorization, and no work authorization completion date shall extend beyond the 

Agreement period set forth in Article II of the Agreement (Agreement Period).  

 

B. Contents.  Each work authorization will include: (1) types of services to be performed; (2) a period of 

performance with a beginning and ending date; (3) a full description of the work to be performed; (4) a work 

schedule with milestones; (5) a cost not to exceed amount, (6) the basis of payment whether cost plus fixed fee, 

unit cost, lump sum, or specified rate; and (7) a work authorization budget calculated using fees set forth in 

Attachment E, Fee Schedule.  The Engineer is not to include additional Agreement terms and conditions in the 

work authorization.  In the event of any conflicting terms and conditions between the work authorization and 

the Agreement, the terms and conditions of the Agreement shall prevail and govern the work and costs incurred. 

  

C. Work Authorization Budget.  A work authorization budget shall set forth in detail (1) the computation of 

the estimated cost of the work as described in the work authorization, (2) the estimated time (hours/days) 

required to complete the work at the hourly rates established in Attachment E, Fee Schedule; (3) a work plan 

that includes a list of the work to be performed, (4) a stated maximum number of calendar days to complete the 

work, and (5) a cost-not-to-exceed-amount or unit or lump sum cost and the total cost or price of the work 

authorization.  The Authority will not pay items of cost that are not included in or rates that exceed those 

approved in Attachment E.  

 

D. No Guaranteed Work.  Work authorizations are issued at the discretion of the Authority.  While it is the 

Authority’s intent to issue work authorizations hereunder, the Engineer shall have no cause of action 

conditioned upon the lack or number of work authorizations issued.  

 

E. Incorporation into Agreement.  Each work authorization shall be signed by both parties and become a part 

of this Agreement.  No work authorization will waive the Authority’s or the Engineer's responsibilities and 

obligations established in this Agreement.  The Engineer shall promptly notify the Authority of any event that 

will affect the schedule or completion of the work authorization.  

 

F. Supplemental Work Authorizations.  Before additional work may be performed or additional costs 

incurred, a change in a work authorization shall be enacted by a written supplemental work authorization in the 

form identified and attached hereto as Attachment D.  Both parties must execute a supplemental work 

authorization within the period of performance specified in the work authorization.  The Authority shall not be 

responsible for actions by the Engineer or any costs incurred by the Engineer relating to additional work not 

directly associated with the performance or prior to the execution of the work authorization.  The Engineer shall 

allow adequate time for review and approval of the supplemental work authorization by the Authority prior to 

expiration of the work authorization.  Any supplemental work authorization must be executed by both parties 

within the time period established in Article II of the Agreement, (Agreement Period).  Under no circumstances 

will a work authorization be allowed to extend beyond the Agreement's expiration date, unless a supplemental 

to the Agreement is approved by both parties extending the Agreement date. 

 



ATTACHMENT A 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 

F-1. More Time Needed.  If the Engineer determines or reasonably anticipates that the work authorized in a 

work authorization cannot be completed before the specified completion date, the Engineer shall promptly 

notify the Authority.  The Authority may, at its sole discretion, extend the work authorization period by 

execution of a supplemental to the work authorization, using the form attached hereto as Attachment D. 

 

F-2. Changes in Scope.  Changes that would modify the scope of the work authorized in a work 

authorization must be enacted by a written supplemental to the appropriate work authorization.  The 

Engineer must allow adequate time for the Authority to review and approve any request for a time extension 

prior to expiration of the work authorization.  If the change in scope affects the amount payable under the 

work authorization, the Engineer shall prepare a revised work authorization budget for the Authority’s 

approval.  

 

G. New Work Authorization.  If the Engineer does not complete the services authorized in a work 

authorization before the specified completion date and has not requested a supplemental to the appropriate work 

authorization, the work authorization shall terminate on the completion date.  At the sole discretion of the 

Authority, it may issue a new work authorization to the Engineer for the incomplete work using the unexpended 

balance of the preceding work authorization for the project.  If approved by the Authority, the Engineer may 

calculate any additional cost for the incomplete work using the rates set forth in the preceding work 

authorization and in accordance with Attachment E, Fee Schedule.  

 

H. Emergency Work Authorizations. The Authority, at its sole discretion, may accept the Engineer's 

signature on a faxed copy of the work authorization as satisfying the requirements for executing the work 

authorization, provided that the signed original is received by the Authority within five (5) business days from 

the date on the faxed copy. 

 

I. Deliverables.  Upon satisfactory completion of the work authorization, the Engineer shall submit the 

deliverables as specified in the executed work authorization to the Authority for review and acceptance.  

 

J.  Performance Standards.  Unless authorized by the Authority and the Texas Department of Transportation, 

if applicable, work performed under this Agreement shall be developed in accordance with the latest version of 

the Texas Department of Transportation’s manuals. 

 

SECTION 2. PROGRESS 

A. Progress meetings.  The Engineer shall from time to time during the progress of the work confer with the 

Authority.  The Engineer shall prepare and present such information as may be pertinent and necessary or as 

may be requested by the Authority in order to evaluate features of the work.  

 

B. Conferences.  At the request of the Authority or the Engineer, conferences shall be provided at the 

Engineer's office, the office of the Authority, or at other locations designated by the Authority.  These 

conferences shall also include evaluation of the Engineer's services and work when requested by the Authority.  

 

C. Inspections.  If federal funds are used to reimburse costs incurred under this Agreement, the work and all 

reimbursements will be subject to periodic review by the Texas Department of Transportation and the U. S. 

Department of Transportation.  

 

D. Reports.  The Engineer shall promptly advise the Authority in writing of events that have a significant 

impact upon the progress of a work authorization, including:  



ATTACHMENT A 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 

 

1. Problems, delays, adverse conditions that will materially affect the ability to meet the time schedules 

and goals, or preclude the attainment of project work units by established time periods; this disclosure 

will be accompanied by Authority judgment of the action taken or contemplated, and any or federal 

assistance needed to resolve the situation; and  

2. Favorable developments or events which enable meeting the work schedule goals sooner than 

anticipated.  

 

E. Corrective Action.  Should the Authority determine that the progress of work does not satisfy the milestone 

schedule set forth in a work authorization, the Authority shall review the work schedule with the Engineer to 

determine the nature of corrective action needed. 

 

SECTION 3. SUSPENSION OF WORK AUTHORIZATION 

A. Notice.  Should the Authority desire to suspend a work authorization but not terminate the Agreement, the 

Authority may verbally notify the Engineer followed by written confirmation, giving ten (10) day notice.  Both 

parties may waive the ten-day notice in writing. 

 

B. Reinstatement.  A work authorization may be reinstated and resumed in full force and effect within sixty 

(60) business days of receipt of written notice from the Authority to resume the work.  Both parties may waive 

the sixty-day notice in writing.  

 

C. Agreement Period Not Affected.  If the Authority suspends a work authorization, the Agreement period as 

determined in Article II of the Agreement (Agreement Period) is not affected and the Agreement and the work 

authorization will terminate on the date specified unless the Agreement or work authorization is amended to 

authorize additional time.  

 

D. Limitation of Liability.  The Authority shall have no liability for work performed or costs incurred prior to 

the date authorized by the Authority to begin work, during periods when work is suspended, or after the 

completion date of the Agreement or work authorization.  

 

SECTION 4. ADDITIONAL WORK 

A. Notice.  If the Engineer is of the opinion that any assigned work is beyond the scope of this Agreement and 

constitutes additional work, it shall promptly notify the Authority in writing, presenting the facts of the work 

authorization and showing how the work authorization constitutes additional work.  

 

B. Supplemental Agreement.  If the Authority finds that the work does constitute additional work, the 

Authority shall so advise the Engineer and a written supplemental agreement will be executed as provided in 

Attachment A, General Provisions, Section 6, Supplemental Agreements.  

 

C. Limitation of Liability.  The Authority shall not be responsible for actions by the Engineer or any costs 

incurred by the Engineer relating to additional work not directly associated with or prior to the execution of a 

supplemental agreement.  

 



ATTACHMENT A 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 

SECTION 5.  CHANGES IN WORK 

A.  Work Previously Submitted as Satisfactory.   If the Engineer has submitted work in accordance with the 

terms of this Agreement but the Authority requests changes to the completed work or parts thereof which 

involve changes to the original scope of services or character of work under the Agreement, the Engineer shall 

make such revisions as requested and as directed by the Authority.  This will be considered as additional work 

and paid for as specified under Attachment A, General Provisions, Section 4, Additional Work.  

 

B.  Work Does Not Comply with the Agreement.  If the Engineer submits work that does not comply with the 

terms of this Agreement, the Authority shall instruct the Engineer to make such revision as is necessary to bring 

the work into compliance with this Agreement.  No additional compensation shall be paid for this work. 

 

C.  Errors/Omissions.  The Engineer shall make revisions to the work authorized in this Agreement which are 

necessary to correct errors or omissions appearing therein, when required to do so by the Authority.  No 

additional compensation shall be paid for this work. 

 

SECTION 6.   SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENTS 

A.  Need.  The terms of this Agreement may be modified if the Authority determines that there has been a 

significant increase or decrease in the duration, scope, cost, complexity or character of the services to be 

performed.  A supplemental agreement will be executed to authorize such significant increases or decreases.   

 

B.  Compensation.   Additional compensation, if appropriate, shall be calculated as set forth in Article III of the 

Agreement (Compensation).  Significant changes affecting the cost or maximum amount payable shall be 

defined to include but not be limited to new work not previously authorized or previously authorized services 

that will not be performed.  The parties may reevaluate and renegotiate costs at this time. 

 

C.  When to Execute.  Both parties must execute a supplemental agreement within the Agreement period 

specified in Article II of this Agreement (Agreement Period).  

 

SECTION 7.  OWNERSHIP OF DATA 

A.  Work for Hire.  All services provided under this Agreement are considered work for hire and as such all 

data, basic sketches, charts, calculations, plans, specifications, and other documents created or collected under 

the terms of this Agreement are the property of the Authority.   

 

B.  Disposition of Documents.  All documents prepared by the Engineer and all documents furnished to the 

Engineer by the Authority shall be delivered to the Authority upon request by the Authority.  The Engineer, at 

its own expense, may retain copies of such documents or any other data which it has furnished the Authority 

under this Agreement, but further use of the data is subject to permission by the Authority. 

 

C.  Release of Data.  The Engineer (1) will not release any documentation created or collected under this 

Agreement except to its subproviders as necessary to complete this Agreement; (2) shall include a provision in 

all subcontracts which acknowledges the Authority’s ownership of the documents and prohibits its use for any 

use other than the project identified in this Agreement; and (3) is responsible for any improper use of the 

documents by its employees, officers, or subproviders, including costs, damages, or other liability resulting 

from improper use.  Neither the Engineer nor any subprovider may charge a fee for the portion of the design 

plan created by the Authority.  

 



ATTACHMENT A 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 

D.  Maintenance of Data.  The Engineer and any subconsultant, subcontractor or vendor shall keep and 

maintain all Data and all other material relating to this Agreement and related projects, and shall make all such 

material available at any reasonable time during the term of the work on the Agreement and related projects and 

for five (5) years from the date of final payment to the Engineer for auditing, inspection, and copying upon the 

Authority’s request or, if federal dollars are applied to the Agreement, upon request by the federal government.  

 

SECTION 8.  PUBLIC INFORMATION AND CONFIDENTIALITY 

A. Public Information.  The Authority will comply with Government Code, Chapter 552, the Public 

Information Act, and 43 Texas Administrative Code §3.10 et seq. in the release of information produced under 

this Agreement.  

 

B. Confidentiality.  The Engineer shall not disclose information obtained from the Authority under this 

Agreement without the express written consent of the Authority. 

 

SECTION 9.  PERSONNEL, EQUIPMENT AND MATERIAL 
A. This Agreement is not intended to constitute, create, give up, or otherwise recognize a joint venture agreement or 

relationship, partnership, or formal business organization of any kind, and the rights and obligations of the parties 

shall be only those expressly set forth in this Agreement. 
 

B.  Engineer Resources.  The Engineer shall furnish and maintain quarters for the performance of all services, 

in addition to providing adequate and sufficient personnel and equipment to perform the services required under 

this Agreement.  The Engineer certifies that it presently has adequate qualified personnel in its employment for 

performance of the services required under this Agreement, or it will be able to obtain such personnel from 

sources other than the Authority.   
 

C.  Removal of Contractor Employee.  All employees of the Engineer assigned to this Agreement shall have 

such knowledge and experience as will enable them to perform the duties assigned to them.  The Authority may 

instruct the Engineer to remove any employee from association with work authorized in this Agreement if, in 

the sole opinion of the Authority, the work of that employee does not comply with the terms of this Agreement 

or if the conduct of that employee becomes detrimental to the work. 

 

D.  Replacement of Key Personnel.  The Engineer must notify the Authority in writing as soon as possible, but 

no later than three business days after a project manager or other key personnel is removed from association 

with this Agreement, giving the reason for removal.  

 

E.  Authority Approval of Replacement Personnel.  The Engineer may not replace the project manager or 

key personnel without prior consent of the Authority.  The Authority must be satisfied that the new project 

manager or other key personnel is qualified to provide the authorized services.  If the Authority determines that 

the new project manager or key personnel is not acceptable, the Engineer may not use that person in that 

capacity and shall replace him or her with one satisfactory to the Authority within forty-five (45) days.   

 

F.  Ownership of Acquired Property.  Except to the extent that a specific provision of this Agreement states 

to the contrary, the Authority shall own all intellectual property acquired or developed under this Agreement 

and all equipment purchased by the Engineer or its subcontractors under this Agreement.  All intellectual 

property and equipment owned by the Authority shall be delivered to the Authority when this Agreement 

terminates, or when it is no longer needed for work performed under this Agreement, whichever occurs first. 

 



ATTACHMENT A 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 

G. The Engineer shall furnish and maintain, at its own expense, office space for the performance of all services, and 

adequate and sufficient personnel and equipment to perform the services as required. All employees of the Engineer 

shall have such knowledge and experience as will enable them to perform the duties assigned to them. 

 

H.  The Engineer agrees to maintain (in sufficient detail as will properly reflect all work done and results achieved in 

the performance of this Agreement) tracings, plans, specifications, maps, basic survey notes and sketches, books, 

records, reports, research notes, charts, graphs, comments, plans, comparisons, computations, analyses, recordings, 

photographs, computer programs, and documentations thereof, and other graphic or written data or deliverables 

generated in connection with the work called for in the Agreement; all such information and documentations to be 

termed “Data” under this Agreement. 

 

I. All Data is the exclusive property of the Authority and shall be furnished to the Authority upon request and shall 

not be used or released by the Engineer or any other person except with the prior approval of the Authority. All 

documents prepared by the Engineer and all documents furnished to the Engineer by the Authority shall be delivered 

to the Authority upon completion of the relevant milestone for payment and/or termination of this Agreement. 

Provided, however, that none of the documents or materials are intended or represented by Engineer to be suitable 

for reuse by the Authority, or others on extensions of the project or on any other project. Any reuse of Data without 

written verification or adaptation by Engineer for use beyond the specific purpose intended will be at Authority’s 

sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to Engineer. 

 

SECTION 10.  SUBCONTRACTING 

A.  Prior Approval.  The Engineer shall not assign, subcontract or transfer any portion of professional services 

related to the work under this Agreement without prior written approval from the Authority.   

 

B.  DBE/HUB Compliance.  The Engineer’s subcontracting program shall comply with the requirements of 

Attachment H of the Agreement (DBE/HUB Requirements). 

 

C.  Required Provisions.  All subcontracts for professional services shall include the provisions included in 

Attachment A, General Provisions, and any provisions required by law.  The Engineer is authorized to pay 

subproviders in accordance with the terms of the subcontract, and the basis of payment may differ from the 

basis of payment by the Authority to the Engineer. 

 

D.  Prior Review.  All subcontracts for professional services shall be approved as to form in writing by the 

Authority and, if applicable, by the Texas Department of Transportation prior to its execution and performance 

of work thereunder. 

  

E.  Engineer Responsibilities.  No subcontract relieves the Engineer of any responsibilities under this 

Agreement. 

 

SECTION 11. INSPECTION OF WORK 

A.  Review Rights.  The Authority and if appropriate, the Texas Department of Transportation, and when 

federal funds are involved, the U. S. Department of Transportation, and any of their authorized representatives 

shall have the right at all reasonable times to review or otherwise evaluate the work performed hereunder and 

the premises in which it is being performed. 



ATTACHMENT A 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 

 

B. Reasonable Access.  If any review or evaluation is made on the premises of the Engineer or a subprovider, 

the Engineer shall provide and require its subproviders to provide all reasonable facilities and assistance for the 

safety and convenience of the Authority and if appropriate the Authority, State, or federal representatives in the 

performance of their duties. 

 

SECTION 12.  SUBMISSION OF REPORTS 

All applicable study reports shall be submitted in preliminary form for approval by the Authority before a final 

report is issued.  The Authority’s comments on the Engineer's preliminary report must be addressed in the final 

report. 

 

SECTION 13.  VIOLATION OF AGREEMENT TERMS (BREACH OF AGREEMENT) 

A. Violation.  Violation of the Agreement terms or breach of this Agreement by the Engineer shall be grounds 

for termination of the Agreement. Any additional costs to the Authority that arise from the Engineer’s 

default, breach of Agreement, or violation of Agreement terms shall be paid by the Engineer. This 

Agreement shall not be considered as specifying the exclusive remedy for any default, but all remedies 

existing at law and in equity may be availed of by either party and shall be cumulative.  

 

B. Venue.  Venue for disputes related to this Agreement shall be Hidalgo County, Texas.  

 

C. Applicable Laws.  This Agreement shall be construed under and in accordance with the laws of the State of 

Texas. 

 

SECTION 14.  TERMINATION 

A.  Causes.  The Agreement may be terminated before the stated completion date by any of the following 

conditions. 

 

1. By mutual agreement and consent, in writing from both parties. 

2. By the Authority by notice in writing to the Engineer as a consequence of failure by the Engineer to 

perform the services set forth herein in a satisfactory manner. 

3. By either party, upon the failure of the other party to fulfill its obligations as set forth herein. 

4. By the Authority for reasons of its own, not subject to the mutual consent of the Engineer, by giving ten 

business days notice of termination in writing to the Engineer. 

5. By the Authority, if the Engineer violates the provisions of Attachment A, General Provisions Section 

21, Gratuities. 

6. By satisfactory completion of all services and obligations described herein. 

 

B.  Measurement.  Should the Authority terminate this Agreement as herein provided, no fees other than fees 

due and payable at the time of termination shall thereafter be paid to the Engineer.  Compensation for work at 

termination will be based on a percentage of the work completed at that time.  Should the Authority terminate 

this Agreement under Paragraph A (4) or (5) above, the Engineer shall not incur costs during the ten-day notice 

period in excess of the amount incurred during the preceding ten (10) days. 

 

C.  Value of Completed Work.  If the Engineer defaults in the performance of this Agreement or if the 

Authority terminates this Agreement for fault on the part of the Engineer, the Authority will give consideration 

to the following when calculating the value of the completed work:  (1) the actual costs incurred (not to exceed 

the rates set forth in Attachment E, Fee Schedule) by the Engineer in performing the work to the date of default; 



ATTACHMENT A 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 

(2) the amount of work required which was satisfactorily completed to date of default; (3) the value of the work 

which is usable to the Authority; (4) the cost to the Authority of employing another firm to complete the 

required work; (5) the time required to employ another firm to complete the work; and (6) other factors which 

affect the value to the Authority of the work performed. 

 

D.  Calculation of Payments.  The Authority shall use the fee schedule set forth in Attachment E to the 

Agreement (Fee Schedule) in determining the value of the work performed up to the time of termination.  In the 

case of partially completed engineering services, eligible costs will be calculated as set forth in Attachment E, 

Fee Schedule.  The sum of the provisional overhead percentage rate for payroll additives and for general and 

administrative overhead costs during the years in which work was performed shall be used to calculate partial 

payments.  

  

E.  Excusable Delays.   Except with respect to defaults of subproviders, the Engineer shall not be in default by 

reason of any failure in performance of this Agreement in accordance with its terms (including any failure to 

progress in the performance of the work) if such failure arises out of causes beyond the control and without the 

default or negligence of the Engineer.  Such causes may include, but are not restricted to, acts of God or the 

public enemy, acts of the Government in either its sovereign or Contractual capacity, fires, floods, epidemics, 

quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes, and unusually severe weather.   

 

F. Surviving Requirements.  The termination of this Agreement and payment of an amount in settlement as 

prescribed above shall extinguish the rights, duties, and obligations of the Authority and the Engineer under this 

Agreement, except for those provisions that establish responsibilities that extend beyond the Agreement period. 

 

G.  Payment of Additional Costs.  If termination of this Agreement is due to the failure of the Engineer to 

fulfill its Agreement obligations, the Authority may take over the project and prosecute the work to completion, 

and the Engineer shall be liable to the Authority for any additional cost to the Authority. 

 

SECTION 15.  COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 

The Engineer shall comply with all applicable Authority, federal, County and local laws, statutes, codes, 

ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any court, or administrative bodies or tribunals 

in any manner affecting the performance of this Agreement, including, without limitation, worker's 

compensation laws, minimum and maximum salary and wage statutes and regulations, nondiscrimination, and 

licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Engineer shall furnish the Authority with satisfactory proof 

of its compliance therewith. 

 

SECTION 16.  INDEMNIFICATION 

A. THE ENGINEER SHALL SAVE AND HOLD HARMLESS THE AUTHORITY AND ITS OFFICERS, AND 

EMPLOYEES, FROM ALL CLAIMS, LIABILITY, ACTION, AND LOSS (INCLUDING DAMAGE OR INJURY 

INCLUDING DEATH TO PERSONS OR PROPERTY) DUE TO ACTIVITIES OF ITSELF, ITS AGENTS, 

SUBCONTRACTORS, OR EMPLOYEES PERFORMED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT TO THE EXTENT 

THAT SUCH CLAIMS, LIABILITIES, ACTIONS AND  LOSSES  ARE CAUSED BY OR RESULT FROM 

ERROR, OMISSION, OR NEGLIGENT ACT, INCLUDING ANY VIOLATION OF ANY STATUTES, 

ORDINANCES, BUILDING CODES OR REGULATIONS, OF THE ENGINEER OR OF ANY PERSON 

EMPLOYED OR ENGAGED BY THE ENGINEER. 



ATTACHMENT A 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 

B.  THE ENGINEER SHALL REIMBURSE, IN PROPORTION TO ENGINEER’S LIABILITY, THE 

AUTHORITY’S REASONABLE ATTORNEY’S FEES INCURRED DEFENDING THE AUTHORITY 

AGAINST A CLAIM BASED WHOLLY OR PARTLY ON THE ERROR, OMISSION, OR NEGLIGENT 

ACT OF THE ENGINEER, ITS AGENTS, ITS SUBCONTRACTORS, OR EMPLOYEES. 

 

C. In no event shall either party be liable to the other party for any consequential, incidental, punitive, or 

indirect damages or losses regardless of the cause of such damages. Notwithstanding any other provision 

to the contrary contained in this Agreement, Engineer’s total liability for all claims or causes of action of 

any kind shall not exceed the amounts recoverable from the insurance limits set forth in this Agreement.   

 

SECTION 17.  ENGINEER'S RESPONSIBILITY 

A.  Accuracy.  The Engineer shall be responsible for the accuracy and completeness of work and shall promptly 

make necessary revisions or corrections resulting from its errors, omissions, or negligent acts without 

compensation.  

 

B.  Errors and Omissions.  The Engineer's responsibility for all questions arising from design errors and/or 

omissions will be determined by the Authority and all decisions shall be in accordance with the Authority’s 

"Errors or Omissions Policy".  The Engineer will not be relieved of the responsibility for subsequent correction 

of any such errors or omissions or for clarification of any ambiguities until after the construction phase of the 

project has been completed. 

 

C.  Seal.  The responsible Engineer shall sign, seal and date all appropriate engineering submissions to the 

Authority in accordance with the Texas Engineering Practice Act and the rules of the Texas Board of 

Professional Engineers. 

 

D. Resealing of Documents.  Once the work has been sealed and accepted by the Authority, the Authority, as 

the owner, will notify the party to this Agreement, in writing, of the possibility that a Authority engineer, as a 

second engineer, may find it necessary to alter, complete, correct, revise or add to the work.   If necessary, the 

second engineer will affix his seal to any work altered, completed, corrected, revised or added.  The second 

engineer will then become responsible for any alterations, additions or deletions to the original design including 

any effect or impacts of those changes on the original engineer’s design. 

 

SECTION 18.   NONCOLLUSION 

A.  Warranty.  The Engineer warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a 

bona fide employee working solely for the Engineer and those consultants, subconsultants, and providers 

identified in the presentation to the Authority’s Board, to solicit or secure this Agreement and that it has not 

paid or agreed to pay any company or engineer any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gifts, or any 

other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.   

 

B.  Liability.  For breach or violation of this warranty, the Authority shall have the right to annul this 

Agreement without liability or, in its discretion, to deduct from the Agreement price or compensation, or 

otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or contingent fee. 

 

SECTION 19.   INSURANCE 

 



ATTACHMENT A 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 

A. Insurance Liability Limits.  The Engineer shall obtain and maintain insurance limits of liability for each of 

the types of insurance coverage identified as follows:  

 

1. Workers’ Compensation, endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of the Authority in the amount 

of statutory obligations imposed under the Texas Workers’ Compensation Law. 

2.  Commercial General Liability, endorsed with the Authority as an additional insured and endorsed with 

a waiver of subrogation in favor of the Authority to the extent of the liabilities assumed by Engineer 

under Attachment A, Section 17 of this Agreement, in limits of liability of one million dollars 

($1,000,000)  each occurrence and in the aggregate for bodily injury and property damage.  

3. Professional Liability in limits of two million dollars ($2,000,000) each claim and in the aggregate.  

 

The coverage and amounts designated herein are minimum requirements and do not establish limits of the 

Engineer's liability. Additional coverage may be provided at the Engineer's option and expense.  

 

The issuer of any policy must have a rating of at least B+ and a financial size of Class VI or better according to 

the latest Best’s rating.  

 

B. Insurance Liability Limits.  The Engineer shall furnish proof of insurance by means of a completed 

Attachment I – Certificate of Insurance - Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority, attached hereto and 

made a part thereof with the Project Name and the Engineer’s name stated thereon, to be submitted prior to the 

beginning of the Project. The Engineer will be considered in breach of this Agreement should the Engineer fail 

to maintain the required insurance coverage during the term of this Agreement. The termination of this 

Agreement resulting from failure to maintain the required insurance will be carried out in accordance with the 

termination provisions herein.  

 

C. Engineer’s Risk.  The services to be provided under this Agreement will be performed entirely at 

Engineer’s risk and Engineer assumes all responsibility for the condition of vehicles or other instrumentalities 

used in the performance of this Agreement. 

 

D. Work on Texas Department of Transportation Property.  To the extent that the Texas Department of 

Transportation or this Agreement authorizes the Engineer or its subconsultants to perform any work on Texas 

Department of Transportation right of way, before beginning work the entity performing the work shall provide 

the Authority and the Texas Department of Transportation with a fully executed copy of the Department's Form 

1560 Certificate of Insurance verifying the existence of coverage in the amounts and types specified on the 

Certificate of Insurance for all persons and entities working on Department right of way. This coverage shall be 

maintained until all work on the Department right of way is complete. If coverage is not maintained, all work on 

Department right of way shall cease immediately, and, the Authority may recover damages and all costs of 

completing the work. 

 

SECTION 20.  GRATUITIES 

Employees of the Authority shall not accept any benefits, gifts or favors from any person doing business or who 

reasonably speaking may do business with the Authority under this Agreement.  The only exceptions allowed 

are ordinary business lunches and items that have received the advance written approval of the Authority.  Any 

person doing business with or who may reasonably speaking do business with the Authority under this 

Agreement may not make any offer of benefits, gifts or favors to departmental employees, except as mentioned 

herein above.  Failure on the part of the Engineer to adhere to this policy may result in the termination of this 

Agreement. 



ATTACHMENT A 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 

 

SECTION 21.  DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE OR HISTORICALLY 

UNDERUTILIZED BUSINESS REQUIREMENTS 

The Engineer agrees to comply with the requirements set forth in Attachment H, Disadvantaged Business 

Enterprise or Historically Underutilized Business Subcontracting Plan Requirements with an assigned goal or a 

zero goal, as determined by the Authority.  The Engineer will adhere to the commitment and to participation by 

certain Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) agreed to by the Authority during negotiations.  Refer to 

Attachment H-7 for copies of DBE Certifications. 

 

SECTION 22.  MAINTENANCE, RETENTION AND AUDIT OF RECORDS 

A.  Retention Period.  The Engineer shall maintain all books, documents, papers, accounting records and other 

evidence pertaining to costs incurred and services provided (hereinafter called the Records).  The Engineer shall 

make the records available at its office during the Agreement period and for five (5) years from the date of final 

payment under this Agreement, until completion of all audits, or until pending litigation has been completely 

and fully resolved, whichever occurs last.   

 

B.  Availability.  The Authority or any of its duly authorized representatives and, if appropriate, the Texas 

Department of Transportation, the Federal Highway Administration, the United States, Department of 

Transportation, Office of Inspector General, and the Comptroller General shall have access to the Engineer’s 

Records which are directly pertinent to this Agreement for the purpose of making audits, examinations, excerpts 

and transcriptions. 

 

SECTION 23.  CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE 

(1) Compliance with Regulations: The Engineer shall comply with the regulations of the Department of 

Transportation, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Parts 21, 24, 26 and 60 as they relate to 

nondiscrimination; 23 CFR 710.405(B); also Executive Order 11246 titled Equal Employment Opportunity as 

amended by Executive Order 11375.   

 

The contractor, sub recipient or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, 

national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable 

requirements of 49 CFR part 26 in the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. Failure 

by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may 

result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the recipient deems appropriate, 

which may include, but is not limited to: 

 

 (1) Withholding monthly progress payments; 

 (2) Assessing sanctions; 

 (3) Liquidated damages; and/or 

 (4) Disqualifying the contractor from future bidding as non-responsible." 

 

 

(2) Nondiscrimination: The Engineer, with regard to the work performed by it during this Agreement, shall not 

discriminate on the grounds of race, color, sex, or national origin in the selection and retention of 

subcontractors, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment.  

 

 



ATTACHMENT A 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 

(3) Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurement of Materials and Equipment: In all solicitations 

either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the Engineer for work to be performed under a 

subcontract, including procurement of materials or leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier 

shall be notified by the Engineer of the Engineer’s obligations under this Agreement and the Regulations 

relative to nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, color, sex, or national origin.  

 

(4) Information and Reports: The Engineer shall provide all information and reports required by the 

Regulations, or directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records, accounts, other 

sources of information, and facilities as may be determined by the Authority; and if appropriate, the Texas 

Department of Transportation or the Federal Highway Administration to be pertinent to ascertain compliance 

with such Regulations or directives. Where any information required of the Engineer is in the exclusive 

possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the Engineer shall so certify to the 

Authority; and if appropriate, the Texas Department of Transportation or the Federal Highway Administration 

and shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information.  

 

(5) Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of the Engineer's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination 

provisions of this Agreement, the Authority shall impose such Agreement sanctions as the Authority; and if 

appropriate, the Texas Department of Transportation or the Federal Highway Administration may determine to 

be appropriate, including, but not limited to:  

 

(a) withholding of payments to the Engineer under this Agreement until the Engineer complies and/or  

(b) cancellation, termination, or suspension of this Agreement, in whole or in part.  

 

(6) Incorporation of Provisions: The Engineer shall include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (5) above 

in every subcontract, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the 

Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto. The Engineer shall take such action with respect to any 

subcontract or procurement as the Authority and; if appropriate, the Texas Department of Transportation or the 

Federal Highway Administration may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for 

noncompliance provided, however, that in the event an Engineer becomes involved in, or is threatened with, 

litigation with a subcontractor or supplier as a result of such direction, the Engineer may request the Authority; 

or, if appropriate, the Texas Department of Transportation to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of 

the Authority; and, in addition, the Engineer, if appropriate, may request the United States to enter into such 

litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

 

SECTION 24.  PATENT RIGHTS 

The Authority; and if appropriate, the Texas Department of Transportation; and the U. S. Department of 

Transportation shall have the royalty free, nonexclusive and irrevocable right to use and to authorize others to 

use any patents developed by the Engineer under this Agreement. 

 

SECTION 25.  COMPUTER GRAPHICS FILES 

The Engineer agrees to comply with Attachment G, Computer Graphics Files for Document and Information 

Exchange, if determined by the Authority to be applicable to this Agreement. 

 

SECTION 26.  CHILD SUPPORT CERTIFICATION 

Under Section 231.006, Texas Family Code, the Engineer certifies that the individual or business entity named 

in this Agreement, bid, or application is not ineligible to receive the specified grant, loan, or payment and 

acknowledges that this Agreement may be terminated and payment may be withheld if this certification is 



ATTACHMENT A 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 

inaccurate.  If the above certification is shown to be false, the Engineer is liable to the Authority for attorney’s 

fees, the cost necessary to complete this Agreement, including the cost of advertising and awarding a second 

Agreement, and any other damages provided by law or this Agreement.  A child support obligor or business 

entity ineligible to receive payments because of a payment delinquency of more than thirty (30) days remains 

ineligible until: all arrearages have been paid; the obligor is in compliance with a written repayment agreement 

or court order as to any existing delinquency; or the court of continuing jurisdiction over the child support order 

has granted the obligor an exemption from Subsection (a) of Section 231.006, Texas Family Code, as part of a 

court-supervised effort to improve earnings and child support payments. 

 



ATTACHMENT A 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 

SECTION 27.  DISPUTES 

A.  Disputes Not Related to Agreement Services.  The Engineer shall be responsible for the settlement of all 

contractual and administrative issues arising out of any procurement made by the Engineer in support of the 

services authorized herein. 

 

B.  Disputes Concerning Work or Cost.  Any dispute concerning the work hereunder or additional costs, or 

any non-procurement issues shall be settled by mediation and if mediation is unsuccessful then parties go to 

trial under Texas State law.  

 

SECTION 28.  SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Engineer and the Authority do each hereby bind themselves, their successors, executors, administrators and 

assigns to each other party of this agreement and to the successors, executors, administrators and assigns of 

such other party in respect to all covenants of this Agreement.  The Engineer shall not assign, subcontract or 

transfer its interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of the Authority. 

 

SECTION 29.  SEVERABILITY 

In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for any reason, be held to be 

invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect 

any other provision thereof and this Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable 

provision had never been contained herein. 

 

SECTION 30.  PRIOR AGREEMENTS SUPERSEDED 

This Agreement constitutes the sole agreement of the parties hereto for the services authorized herein and 

supersedes any prior understandings or written or oral Agreements between the parties respecting the subject 

matter defined herein. 

 

SECTION 31.  CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

A.  Representation by Engineer.  The undersigned represents that its firm has no conflict of interest that would 

in any way interfere with its or its employees’ performance of services for the Authority or which in any way 

conflicts with the interests of the Authority.  The firm shall exercise reasonable care and diligence to prevent 

any actions or conditions that could result in a conflict with the Authority’s interests. 

 

B.  Certification Status.  The Engineer certifies that it is not: 

 

 1.  a person required to register as a lobbyist under Chapter 305, Government Code; or 

 2.  a public relations firm other than the firms identified in the presentation to the RMA Board. 

 

C.  Environmental Disclosure.  If the Engineer will prepare an environmental impact statement or an 

environmental assessment under this Agreement, the Engineer certifies by executing this Agreement that it has 

no financial or other interest in the outcome of the project on which the environmental impact statement or 

environmental assessment is prepared. 

 

SECTION 32.  OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET (OMB) AUDIT REQUIREMENTS 

The parties shall comply with the requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1984, P.L. 98-502, ensuring that the 

single audit report includes the coverage stipulated in OMB Circular A-133. 

 



ATTACHMENT A 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 

SECTION 33.  CERTIFICATIONS 

A. The parties are prohibited from making any award at any tier to any party that is debarred or suspended or 

otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal Assistance Programs under Executive Order 

12549, “Debarment and Suspension.”  By executing this Agreement, the Engineer certifies that it is not 

currently debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal Assistance 

Programs under Executive Order 12549.  The parties to this Agreement shall require any party to a subcontract 

or purchase order awarded under this Agreement to certify its eligibility to receive Federal funds and, when 

requested by the Authority, to furnish a copy of the certification. 

 
B. In accordance with Department of Transportation, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 29 and by 

signature on this Agreement and the Debarment Certification attached hereto as Attachment K, the Engineer certifies 

its compliance and the compliance of any subconsultants or subcontractors present or future, by stating that any 

person associated therewith in the capacity of owner, partner, director, officer, principal investor, project director, 

manager, auditor, or any position involving federal, state or Authority funds:  

 

(1) is not currently under suspension, debarment, voluntary exclusion, or determination of ineligibility by 

any federal agency;  

(2) does not have a proposed debarment pending;  

(3) has not been suspended debarred, voluntarily excluded, or determined ineligible by an federal agency 

within the past three (3) years; and  

(4) has not been indicted, convicted, or had a civil judgment rendered against the firm by a court of 

competent jurisdiction in any matter involving fraud or official misconduct within the past three years as 

specified by Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, paragraph 29.305(a).  

 

C. The Engineer agrees to comply with the provisions of Section 1352 of Title 31, U.S. Code as codified in Title 48, 

Federal Acquisition Regulations, Subpart 3.8 and subpart 52.203.11, prohibiting federal funds from being expended 

by a recipient or lower-tier subrecipient of a federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement to pay any person 

for influencing or attempting to influence a federal agency or Congress in connection with the award of any federal 

contract or cooperative agreement. If federal funds are applied to the services under this Agreement, the Engineer 

and any subconsultants or subcontractors would be required to complete the Certification of Federal Contracts and, if 

necessary, the Disclosure of Lobbying Activities. 

 

D. If the Project is a federal aid project, Engineer is required to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or 

requirements issued under Section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1857 (h)), which prohibit the use under non-

exempt federal contract, grants, or loans of facilities included on the EPA List of Violating Facilities. Violations 

shall be reported to the Federal Highway Administration and to the USEPA Assistant Administrator of Enforcement. 

 
E. If the value of this Agreement is anticipated to be at least $100,000 and Engineer (i) has at least ten (10) full time 

employees; and (ii) is a for-profit organization, association, corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited 

partnership, limited liability partnership, or limited liability company, including a wholly owned subsidiary, 

majority-owned subsidiary, parent company, or affiliate of those entities or business associations, that exists to make 

a profit, then Engineer hereby verifies that Engineer: 

 

(1) does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity 

or firearm trade association (as defined in Section 2274.001(3), Texas Government Code); 

(2) will not discriminate during the term of this Agreement against a firearm entity or firearm trade 

association (as defined in Section 2274.001(3), Texas Government Code); 

(3) does not boycott energy companies (as defined in Section 809.001, Texas Government Code); 



ATTACHMENT A 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 

(4) will not boycott energy companies (as defined in Section 809.001, Texas Government Code) 

during the term of this Agreement; 

(5) does not boycott Israel (as defined in Section 808.001, Texas Government Code); and 

(6) will not boycott Israel (as defined in Section 808.001, Texas Government Code) during the term 

of this Agreement 

 

 
F. Engineer is not engaged in business with Iran, Sudan, or a foreign terrorist organization and Engineer is not 

on a list prepared and maintained under Sections 806.051, 807.051, or 222.153, Texas Government Code. 



 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

ATTACHMENT B 

SERVICES TO BE PROVIDE BY THE AUTHORITY 

 

The AUTHORITY will provide the following general items. 

1. Authorization to begin work with issuance of Notice to Proceed [NTP]. 

2. Timely payment for work performed by the Engineer and accepted by the 

AUTHORITY on a monthly basis. 

3. Assistance to the Engineer, as necessary, to obtain the required data and information 

from other local, regional, State and Federal agencies that the Engineer cannot easily 

obtain. 

4. Provide any available relevant data the AUTHORITY may have on file concerning the 

project: 

A. Electronic copy of project plans. 

B. Electronic copy of contract Proposal and any Addendums per project. 

C. Limited Access to Appia and ProjectWise. 

D. Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SW3P) information. 

F. SW3P Coordination procedures. 

G. Best Practices coordination procedures (Disadvantaged Business Enterprise, 

(Materials, General Bookkeeping). 

 

5. Review and approve the Engineer’s progress schedule with milestone activities and/or 

deliverables. 

6. The AUTHORITY will provide the Environmental Document and electronic Constraints 

map for the project for development of the Environmental Permits, Issues and 

Commitments (EPIC) sheets and any other compliance issues. 

 

RIGHT-OF-WAY DATA: 

The AUTHORITY will provide the following: 

1. Assist the Engineer, as necessary, with coordination of any utility relocations that may 

be required. 

2. Ownership Data 

a. Ownership Information shall be provided for the corridor width. 

b. All utility ownership shall be provided. 

3. Utility Adjustments: 

AUTHORITY (TxDOT as necessary) will provide executed utility agreements to the 

Engineer for all required utility adjustments. 

5. Survey and Stake Right-of-Way 

6. Right of Entry to all affected properties located within the project limits. 

7. Deliverables:  Right of way Map in electronic format (PDF) 

 

MANAGEMENT: 

The AUTHORITY will provide the following: 

1. Attend/participate in progress meetings as required.  

2. Timely review of submittals as required. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 

ATTACHMENT C 

SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE ENGINEER 

 

 

APPLICABILITY: 

 

Wherever the following terms are used in this attachment or other contract documents, the intent and meaning will be interpreted as 

indicated below. 

 

ABBREVIATIONS, ABBREVIATIONS, and DEFINITIONS: 

 

HCRMA OR AUTHORITY shall mean Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 

PMC (GEC) shall mean Program Management Consultant (General Engineering Consultant) (HDR Engineering Inc.) ENGINEER 

shall mean Atlas Technical Consultants. 

TxDOT shall mean Texas Department of Transportation FHWA shall mean Federal Highway Administration 

IBWC shall mean International Boundary and Water Commission USFWS shall mean United States Fish & Wildlife Service 

THC shall mean Texas Historical Commission SHPO shall mean State Highway Preservation Office 

USACE shall mean United States Army Corps of Engineers GSA shall mean General Services Administration 

HCMPO shall mean Hidalgo County Metropolitan Planning Organization FAA shall mean Federal Aviation Administration 

MTP shall mean Metropolitan Transportation Plan TIP shall mean Transportation Improvement Program 

MUTCD shall mean Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices 

AASHTO shall mean American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials 

LRFD shall mean Load & Resistance Factor Design 

PS&E shall mean Plans, Specifications and Estimate 

ACP shall mean Asphaltic Concrete Pavement 

CSJ shall mean Control Section Job (highway project designation number)  

ADP shall mean Advance Project Development 

AAP AASHTO Accreditation Program (AASHTO resource and CCRL)  

AASHTO American Association of State Highway Transportation Officials  

ACI shall mean American Concrete Institute 

AO shall mean Area Office 

AQMP shall mean Aggregate Quality Monitoring Program  

CAR shall mean Corrective Action Report 

CCRL shall mean Concrete and Cement Reference Laboratory  

CE&I shall mean Construction Engineering and Inspection 

CFR shall mean Code of Federal Regulations 

MTD shall mean Materials and Tests Division 

CMEC shall mean Construction Materials Engineering Council  

FHWA shall mean Federal Highway Administration 

HMA shall mean Hot-Mix Asphalt 

HMAC shall mean Hot-Mix Asphalt Center  

IA shall mean Independent Assurance 

L-A-B shall mean Laboratory Accreditation Bureau  

MPL shall mean Material Producer List 

QAP shall mean Quality Assurance Program  

QAT shall mean Quality Assurance Test 

QC shall mean Quality Control  

SM shall mean SiteManager 

TXAPA shall mean Texas Asphalt Pavement Association  

TxDOT shall mean Texas Department of Transportation l mean United States Fish & Wildlife Service 

THC shall mean Texas Historical Commission 

SHPO shall mean State Highway Preservation Office 

USACE shall mean United States Army Corps of Engineers 

GSA shall mean General Services Administration 

HCMPO shall mean Hidalgo County Metropolitan Planning Organization 

FAA shall mean Federal Aviation Administration 

MTP shall mean Metropolitan Transportation Plan 

TIP shall mean Transportation Improvement Program 

MUTCD shall mean Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices 



    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants 

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT C 

SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE ENGINEER 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
The services designated herein as “Services provided by the Engineer” shall include the performance of all 

engineering services for the following described facility: 

County/HCRMA: Hidalgo County   

CSJ number:  0921-02-368 

Project/Description:   Provide construction materials testing to assure the materials incorporated into 
highway construction project, are subject to verification sampling and testing when required and meet project 
plans and specifications; and administering the Quality Monitoring and Quality Assurance Programs. Overall 
project consists of construction of a 12.23 mile tolled facility from FM 396 & GSA Connector to US 281 
(Military Highway), which consists of: of grading, flexible base, lime treated subgrade, asphaltic concrete 
pavement, concrete pavement, signing and pavement markings, cross culverts, bridge structures, retaining 
walls, illumination and toll equipment. 

Length:   12.23 Miles (Approx) 

Highway:     365TOLL 

Limits:     (See Location Map Attached) 

Contract is for “indefinite delivery/indefinite quantity [IDIQ] set for a proposed three (3) year fixed period of 

time, during that period of time the Engineer will be responsible for an unlimited number of separate projects, 

or additional work on a current project to be issued on an individual work order basis. 

The Engineer agency(s) must be accredited by one of the following FHWA- and TxDOT-approved accrediting 

bodies: 
A. AASHTO Accreditation Program (AAP);

B. Construction Materials Engineering Council (CMEC); or

C. Laboratory Accreditation Bureau (L-A-B)

The Engineer shall have Texas Department of Transportation or Toll Authority/Regional Mobility Authority as 

well U.S. Army Corps of Engineers’ construction material testing experience and is expected to work directly 

with the HCRMA Construction Division, namely, the Chief Construction Engineer for the Authority. The 

selected Engineer(s) may also perform certain tasks under the oversight of the HCRMA's General Engineering 

Consultant (Currently HDR Engineering Inc.).  

To avoid an appearance of a conflict of interest, any qualified Engineer agency (laboratory) shall perform only 

one of the following types of testing on the same project: 
A. Quality control testing;

B. Quality acceptance testing;

C. Owner verification testing;

D. Independent assurance testing; or

E. Referee testing.

The selected Engineer(s) shall have adequate experienced staff and a workload free from constraints to provide 

the necessary construction material testing for the HCRMA. Staff expertise is to include a Licensed Professional 



 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 

Engineer and certified, experienced staff proficient with TxDOT testing procedures, sampling and testing 

schedule, and the latest ASSHTO, ASTM and ACI testing requirements [Appendix A] performed and executed 

as per 2019 TxDOT Quality Assurance Program (DB-QAP / DBB-QAP) / 2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & 

Testing for Design Bid-Build Projects. 

 

Engineer will compose and submit an annual report to the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) 

summarizing the results of HCRMA’s project specific systems approach program. This report identifies: 
A.  Number of sampling and testing personnel evaluated by the systems approach IA testing; 

B.  Number of IA evaluations found to be acceptable; 

C.  Number of IA evaluations found to be unacceptable; and 

D.  Summary of any significant system-wide corrective actions taken. 

  

The Engineer will be responsible for maintaining documentation of all individuals qualified under their 

authority who perform required tests for acceptance of materials. A qualification summary listing all tests for 

which an individual is qualified will be available and printed at HCRMA’s request. Documentation to be 

maintained for all qualified personnel includes: 
A.  Copies of any certificates issued by ACI and TXAPA; 

B.  Original written examinations for test procedures administered to each technician by 

the TxDOT qualifying authority, with clear identification of technician’s name, qualifier’s name, score, and date  

taken;  

C.  Original performance examinations for test procedures administered to each technician by the TxDOT qualifying 

authority, with clear identification of technician’s name, qualifier’s name, qualification status, and date; 

D.  Results of annual split/proficiency testing administered by the TxDOT qualifying 

authority for each technician. 
 

Engineer shall perform Quality Control / Quality Assurance sampling and testing and comply with Laboratory 

Qualification Program and will be evaluated under the Independent Assurance Program, as described in the 

2019 QAPDBB [Attachment L]. Quality Control test results will be validated by verification test results 

obtained from independently taken samples. IA personnel or their designated agents will perform Quality 

Assurance verification sampling and testing. 
 

1. The Engineer shall perform all sampling and testing of components and materials in accordance with the standard 

specifications, and all other standard and special specifications and special provisions applicable in this agreement. Meet 

the minimum sampling frequencies set out in the TxDOT 2019 Guide Schedule for Sampling and Testing for Design Bid-

Build Projects. The testing shall include the following materials and all the components of the materials listed. The 

estimated number of samples and tests are based on quantities in the executed construction contract. 

2. The Engineer shall ensure the testing is completed and input into ProjectWise. NOTE: The General Contractor is 

responsible for Quality Control (QC) testing of Item 360, Concrete Paving.  The Engineer shall be responsible for Quality 

Assurance (QA) testing of Item 360, Concrete Paving. 

3. The Engineer shall provide certified personnel, outlined in their internal, AASHTO-approved, Quality Control 

(QC) Manual that are knowledgeable of all materials testing procedures. All personnel performing acceptance tests must 

provide certifications and must maintain the certifications throughout the project. The HCRMA reserves the right to 

require replacement of any technician during this contract if performance is determined to be unsatisfactory or the 

technician fails to maintain appropriate certifications. 

4. Engineer's laboratory will be qualified by the HCRMA qualifying authority in accordance with Section 3, 

Laboratory Qualification Responsibility of the Texas Department of Transportation 

(TxDOT) Quality Assurance Program (Manual Notice: 2005-1), and be AASHTO accredited under the AASHTO 

Accreditation Program (AAP) throughout the life of the project. Engineer shall transmit, to the HCRMA, a copy of AAP 

accreditation certificate(s) upon receipt by the testing laboratory. 

5. The Engineer shall provide technicians certified in accordance with TxDOT Quality Assurance Program for 

Construction (QAP) or other State approved programs, such as the Texas Asphalt Pavement Association (TxAPA) for Hot 

Mix Asphalt, and the Soils and Base Certification Program, as listed. 



 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 

 

6. The Engineer shall provide certified technicians to perform the following tests: 

A. Hot Mix Asphalt Testing: 

a. Level l-A 

b. Level l-B 

c. Hot Mix Asphalt Testing • Level II 

d. All other tests in the Manual of Testing Procedures 200-F Series or ASTM Procedures not 

covered in Level l-A, Level l-B, or Level II 

B. Concrete Testing: 

a. QAP Program for Concrete Testing 

b. Other tests outlined in the Manual of Testing Procedures 400-A Series or ASTM Procedures that 

are not included in the QAP Program 

7. The Engineer shall perform testing on the project. These tests include all tests listed in State's Guide Schedule of 

Sampling and Testing dated 2015. Follow the State’s Guide Schedule of Sampling and Testing to establish testing 

frequencies. Testing frequencies may be increased as directed by the HCRMA. 

8. The Engineer shall notify the HCRMA, to determine if any tests may be waived 

9. The Engineer shall attend preconstruction QA and QC testing meetings prior to beginning work. 

10. The Engineer shall: 

A. Review and recommend approval or rejection of the Quality Control (QC) sampling and testing 

documentation submitted by the General Contractor for compliance with applicable State and Federal regulations, 

standards, and contract requirements. 

B. Verify all tested materials used meet specifications, or identify materials that do not meet specifications 

and recommend action which should be taken. 

C. Certify that all tested materials used during construction meet the specifications as outlined in the Appia  

Support System. 

D. Work closely with the HCRMA to resolve all material discrepancies before the next monthly estimate is 

processed by utilizing the Report in Appia. 

E. Enter all test data in Appia. 

F. Enter all mix designs, concrete and asphalt, provided by the General Contractor into Appia. 

G. The Engineer shall report failing tests to the HCRMA within twenty-four (24) hours. 

 

SUMMARY OF DELIVERABLES: 
The Engineer shall provide the following: 

1. Monthly Progress Reports 

2. Quarterly Material Test Reports 

3. Sampling and testing personnel qualification 

4. Final document file (maintained in project control system during project execution. Final structure of file will be 

determined during project implementation, an example of content is provided below) 

A. Construction Oversight Documentation 

a. Testing reports and Testing documentation as applicable 

b. Test Exception Letter 

c. Certification Verifications 

d. Photographs 

 

B. Project Correspondence File (Design and Construction) 

a. E-mail files 

b. Letters 

c. Memos 

d. Meeting Minutes 

e. Monthly Deficiency Reports to track material issues (one (1) per month) 

f. Misc. correspondence



 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT D 

 

WORK AUTHORIZATION



 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 

ATTACHMENT D-1 

 

WORK AUTHORIZATION NO.  ____ 

AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 
THIS WORK AUTHORIZATION is made pursuant to the terms and conditions of “Article V of that certain 

Professional Services Agreement for Engineering Services” (the Agreement) entered into by and between the 

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (Authority), and  Atlas Technical Consultants LLC (the Engineer). 
 

PART I.   The Engineer will perform engineering design services generally described as in accordance with the 

project description attached hereto and made a part of this Work Authorization.  The responsibilities of the 

Authority and the Engineer as well as the work schedule are further detailed in exhibits A, B and C which are 

attached hereto and made a part of the Work Authorization.  
 

PART II.   The maximum amount payable under this Work Authorization is $   and the method of 

payment is    as set forth in Attachment E of the Agreement.  This amount is based upon fees set 

forth in Attachment E, Fee Schedule, of the Agreement and the Engineer’s estimated Work Authorization costs 

included in Exhibit D, Fee Schedule, which is attached and made a part of this Work Authorization. 
 

PART III.   Payment to the Engineer for the services established under this Work Authorization shall be made in 

accordance with Articles III thru V of the Agreement, and Attachment A, Section 1. 
 

PART IV.   This Work Authorization shall become effective on the date of final acceptance of the parties hereto 

and shall terminate on    , unless extended by a supplemental Work Authorization as provided in 

Attachment A, Section 1.  
 

PART V.   This Work Authorization does not waive the parties' responsibilities and obligations provided under 

“Article V of that certain Professional Services Agreement for Engineering / Design Services 365 Tollway Project / 

Segment 1 & 2. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Work Authorization is executed in duplicate counterparts and hereby accepted 

and acknowledged below. 

 

       THE ENGINEER                  THE AUTHORITY  

     

______________________________  __________________________________ 

       (Signature)      (Signature) 

 Marvin Garcia, P.E.___________   Pilar Rodriguez, P.E._________________ 

  (Printed Name)       (Printed Name) 

 Senior Vice President-  __________              Executive Director ___________________ 

        (Title)         (Title) 

______________________________  ___________________________________ 

        (Date)        (Date) 

 
LIST OF EXHIBITS 

Exhibit A  Services to be provided by the Authority 

Exhibit B  Services to be provided by the Engineer 

Exhibit C  Work Schedule 

Exhibit D  Fee Schedule/Budget 

Exhibit H-2  Subprovider Monitoring System Commitment Agreement 



 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

ATTACHMENT D-2 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL WORK AUTHORIZATION  NO. ____ 

TO WORK AUTHORIZATION NO.  ____ 

AGREEMENT FOR  ENGINEERING SERVICES 

 

THIS SUPPLEMENTAL WORK AUTHORIZATION is made pursuant to the terms and conditions of 

“Article V of that certain Professional Services Agreement for Engineering Design Services” hereinafter identified 

as the “Agreement,” entered into by and between the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (Authority), 

and  Atlas Technical Consultants LLC (the Engineer). 

  

The following terms and conditions of Work Authorization No. ____ are hereby amended as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Supplemental Work Authorization shall become effective on the date of final execution of the parties 

hereto.  All other terms and conditions of Work Authorization No. ____ not hereby amended are to remain in 

full force and effect.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Supplemental Work Authorization is executed in duplicate counterparts and 

hereby accepted and acknowledged below. 

 

      THE ENGINEER                  THE AUTHORITY  

     

__________________________________   ______________________________ 

       (Signature)       (Signature) 

.Marvin Garcia, P.E.__________________                          Pilar Rodriguez , P.E.____________ 

  (Printed Name)             (Printed Name) 

 Senior Vice President-  _______________    Executive Director_______________ 

        (Title)            (Title) 

___________________________________   ______________________________ 

        (Date)           (Date) 

 

 

 

 

 

 



    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants 

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT E 

FEE SCHEDULE 

ATTACH APPROPRIATE RATES AND -TESTING SUBMITTALS 



TEST
NO.

Geotechnical Services Unit

FINAL 

NEGOTIATED 

RATES 

9/3/2021  COMMENTS 

1 Mobilization/Demobilization each 550.00$             
Drilling, Logging, &Recovering Samples (With TCP) per mile 6.00$                  $6/mile for anything < 67 

2A 1. Depth ≤ 50 feet
Tex-132-E 

(every 5 feet) 27.50$               

2B 2. Depth ≥ 50 feet linear foot 29.50$               
Drilling, Logging, &Recovering Samples (Without TCP)

3A 1. Depth ≤ 50 feet linear foot 25.00$               

3B 2. Depth ≥ 50 feet linear foot 28.00$               

4 Rock Coring (Soft Rock)⁽²⁾ linear foot 12.50$               

5 Rock Coring (Hard Rock)⁽²⁾ linear foot 16.00$               

6 Staking Borings and Utility Locations hour 109.03$             

Standby Time (sampling) hour 250.00$             

7A 1. Hot Mix Asphalt (minumum of one hour) each 80.50$               

7B 2. Concrete (minumum of one hour) each 86.25$               

8 Piezometer - 2 inch (including well completion and installation) linear foot 40.00$               

9 Grouting of Borings linear foot 5.00$                 

10 Traffic Control - Major day 2,500.00$         

Laboratory Test Test Method Unit

11 Volumetric Shrinkage ASTM D427 each 70.00$               

12 Standard Poor Test ASTM D698 each 210.00$             

13 Modified Poor Test ASTM D1557 each 250.00$             

14 Standard Penetration Test (SPT) ASTM D1586 LF 26.00$               

15 California Bearing Ratio (Single Sample without MD Curve) ASTM D1883 test 250.00$             

16 Unconfined Compressive Strength (Soil) ASTM D2166 each 62.00$               

17 Hydraulic Conductivity Permeability ASTM D2434 each 330.00$             

18 One Dimensional Consolidation Properties of Soil ASTM D2435 each 350.00$             

19 Unconfined Compressive Strength (Rock) ASTM D2938 each 70.00$               

20 Direct Shear Test of Soils Under Consolidated Drained Conditions ASTM D3080 set of 3 600.00$             

21 Direct Shear Test of Soils Under Consolidated Drained Conditions, SAND ASTM D3080 set of 3 450.00$             

22 Direct Shear Test of Soils Under Consolidated Drained Conditions, CLAY ASTM D3080 set of 3 600.00$             

23 Splitting Tensile of Intact Rock Core ASTM D3967 each 125.00$             

24 Water Stand Pipes ASTM D4043 each 30.00$               

25 Calcium Carbonate Content of Soils ASTM D4373 LF 50.00$               

26 Hydraulic Conductivity Permeability ASTM D4511 each 260.00$             

27 One Dimensional Swell, Methods A&B ASTM D4546 each 110.00$             

28 One Dimensional Swell, Method B Only ASTM D4546 each 300.00$             

29 One Dimensional Swell, Method C ASTM D4546 each 205.00$             

30 Permeability of Silt and Clays ASTM D5084 each 300.00$             

31 Suction Test (Filter Method) ASTM D5298 each 70.00$               

32 Casagrande Type Piezometers N/A each 350.00$             

33 Casagrande Type Piezometers Installation N/A each 430.00$             

34 Miscellaneous Testing N/A each 250.00$              Item has been eliminated

35 Vertical Inclinometer N/A each 350.00$             

36 Vertical Inclinometer Installation N/A each 600.00$             

37 Vibrating Wire Piezometer N/A each 750.00$             

38 Vibrating Wire Piezometer Installation N/A each 750.00$             

39 Soil Boring with SPT ASTM D1586 LF 25.00$               

Laboratory Test Test Method

Soils & Base Testing

40 Sampling Tex-400-A hour 55.00$               

41 Sample Preparation Tex-101-E each 53.00$               

42 Determining Slaking Time Tex-102-E each 50.00$               

43 Moisture Content Tex-103-E each 13.00$               

44
Atterburg Limits

Tex-
104,105&106-
E

Set of 3
75.00$               

45 Linear Bar Shrinkage (per bar) Tex-107-E each 60.00$               

46 Determining the Specific Gravity of Soils Tex-108-E each 62.00$               

47 Sieve Analysis
Tex-110-E, 
Part I

each 65.00$               

48 Sieve Analysis (Hydrometer with Tex-108-E)
Tex-110-E, 
Part II

each 75.00$               

CMT Firm: Atlas Technical Consultants [ATLAS]
Date: 09/07/2021 2020‐23



49 Hydrometer with Tex-108-E (in conjunctin with Tex-110-E, Part II) Tex-108-E each 50.00$               

50 Percent Passing No. 200 Sieve Tex-111-E each 42.00$               

51 Determining the Amount of Material in Solis Finer than the 75 mi Tex-111-E each 42.00$               

52 Admixing Lime to Reduce Plasticity Index of Soils Tex-112-E each 87.00$               

53 Moisture-Density Relationship Tex-113-E each 240.00$             

54 Moisture-Density Relationship Tex-114-E each 215.00$             

55 Field Density Measurements Tex-115-E hour 50.00$               

56 Wet Ball Mill Test Tex-116-E each 230.00$             

57 Texas Triaxial Compression ⁽⁶⁾
Tex-117-E, 
Part I

each 400.00$             

58 Texas Triaxial Compression ⁽⁶⁾
Tex-117-E, 
Part II

each 1,050.00$         

59 Quality Assurance (QA) Series for Flexible Base ⁽⁷⁾ ⁽⁸⁾
See Foot 
Notes

each 1,800.00$         

60 Soil- Cement Testing ⁽⁷⁾
Tex-120-E, 
Part II

each 300.00$             

61 Soil- Lime Testing ⁽⁷⁾
Tex-121-E, 
Part II

each 400.00$             

61.1 Soil-Lime Testing Determining Stabilization Ability of Lime by Soil pH
Tex-121-E, 
Part III

each 350.00$             

62 Determining the Drainage Factor of Soil Materials (Not Field Test) Tex-123-E ++ each 68.00$               

63 Determining Modulus of Sub-grade Recaction (K Value) (Not Field Test) Tex-125-E ++ each 95.00$               

64 Molding, Testing, and Evaluation Bituminous Black Base Materials Tex-126-E ++ each 250.00$             

65 Lime-Fly Ash Compression ⁽⁷⁾ Tex-127-E each 719.39$             

66 Soil pH Tex-128-E each 41.00$               

67 Resistivity of Soils Tex-129-E each 90.00$               

68 Slurry Testing Tex-130-E each 95.00$               

69 Texas Cone Penetration Tex-132-E each 32.00$               

70 Freezing and Thawing Tests oc Compacted Soil-Cement Mixture Tex-135-E each 240.00$             

71 Thickness of Pavement Layers (4 hour minimum) Tex-140-E hour 50.00$               

72 Manual Procedure for Description and Identification of Soils Tex-141-E each 45.00$               

73 Laboratory Classification os Soils for Engineering Purposes Tex-142-E each 50.00$               

74 Sulfate Content in Soils Tex-145-E each 75.00$               

75 Conductivity Test for Field Detection of Sulfates in Soil Tex-146-E each 65.00$               

75.1 Organic Content Using UV-VIS Method Tex-148-E each 150.00$             

76 Determining Cholride and Sulfate Contents in Soils Tex-620-J each 80.00$               

77 Free Swell Test
EM1110-2-
1906

each 150.00$             

78 Pressure Swell Test
EM1110-2-
1906

each 250.00$             

79 One-Dimensional Swell ASTM D4546 each 110.00$             

80 One-Dimensional Swell (Method B Only) ASTM D4546 each 150.00$             

81 Potential Vertical Rise Calculation Tex-124-E each 65.00$               

82 Volumetric Shrinkage ASTM D4943 each 95.00$               

83 Volumetric Shrinkage ASTM D427 each 50.00$               

84 Unconfined Compression Test (Soil) ASTM D2166 each 50.00$               

85 Unconfined Compression Test (Rock) ASTM D2938 each 70.00$               

86 Unconfined Compression Test (Rock) (Method D) ASTM D7012 each 55.00$               

Unconsolidated Undrained (UU) Triaxial Compression Test

87 1. Set of Three Tex-118-E set 275.00$             

88 2. Multistage Tex-118-E each 250.00$             

Consolidated Undrained (CU) Triaxial Compression Test

89 1. Set of Three
Tex-131-E or 
ASTM D4767

set 1,200.00$         

90 2. Multistage
Tex-131-E or 
ASTM D4767

each 1,000.00$         

Consolidated Drained (CD) Triaxial Compression Test

91 1. Set of Three
Tex-131-E or 
ASTM D4767

set 850.00$             

92 2. Multistage
Tex-131-E or 
ASTM D4767

each 370.00$             

93 Direct Shear Consolidated Drained (CD), sand ASTM D3080 set of 3 425.00$             

94 Direct Shear Consolidated Drained (CD), clay ASTM D3080 set of 3 650.00$             

95 One-Dimensional Consolidation Test (7 load increments) ASTM D2435 each 589.80$             

96 Resilient Modulus (fine-grained soils)
AASHTO 
T307

each 950.00$             

Hot Mix Asphalt Testing

97 Sieve Analysis of Fine and Coarse Aggregates Tex-200-F each 68.33$               

98 Bulk Specific Gravity and Water Absorption of Aggregates Tex-201-F each 75.00$               

99 Apparent Specific Gravity of Material Finer Than 180 µm (No. 80) Sieve Tex-202-F each 48.25$               

100 Sand Equivalent Test Tex-203-F each 85.00$               

101 Labortory Method of Mixing Bituminous Mixtures Tex-205-F Set of 3 85.00$               



102 Compacting Specimens Using the Texas Gyratory Compactor (TG Tex-206-F Set of 3 80.00$               

103 Determining Bulk Specific Gravity of Compacted Bituminuous Mixtures Tex-207-F (I) each 27.00$               

104
Determining In-Place Density of Compacted Bituminuous Mixtures (Nuclear 
Method) Tex-207-F (III) each 40.00$               

105 Asphalt Rolling Pattern (Nuclear Method) Tex-207-F (IV) each 80.00$               

106 Segregation Profile Tex-207-F (V) each 160.00$             

107 Joint Density Tex-207-F (VII) each 160.00$             

108 Test of Stabilometer Value of Bituminous Mixtures Tex-208-F set of 3 110.00$             

109 Determining Asphalt Content of Bituminous Mixtures by Extraction Tex-210-F each 142.00$             

110 Recovery of Asphalt from Bituminou Mixtures by the Abson Pro Tex-211-F each 210.00$             

111 Determining Moisture Content of Bituminous Mixtures Tex-212-F each 43.00$               

112 Determining Hydrocarbon-Volatile Content of Bituminous Mixture Tex-213-F each 105.00$             

113
Determining Deleterious Material and Decantation Test for Coarse 
Aggregates Tex-217-F each 78.84$               

114 Indirect Tensile Strength Test Tex-226-F each 475.00$             

115 Theoretical Maximum Specific Gravity of Bituminous Mixtures Tex-227-F each 90.00$               

116 Determining Asphalt Content of Bituminous Mixtures by the Nuclear Tex-228-F each 60.00$               

117 Combined HMAC Cold-Belt Sampling and Testing Procedure Tex-229-F each 68.33$               

118 Determining Draindown Characteristics in Bituminous Mixtures Tex-235-F each 55.00$               

119
Determining Asphalt Content from Asphalt Paving Mixtures by the Ignition 
Method Tex-236-F each 130.00$             

120 Asphalt Release Agents Tex-239-F each 50.00$               

121 Superpave Gyratory Compacting of Test Specimens of Bituminous Tex-241-F each 125.00$             

122 Hamburg Wheel Tracker Tex-242-F each 380.00$             

123 Tack Coat Adhesion Tex-243-F each 100.00$             

124 Thremal Profile Tex-244-F each 126.14$             

125 Cantabro Loss Tex-245-F each 175.00$             

126 Permeability or Water Flow of Hot Mix Asphalt Tex-246-F each 63.00$               

127 Overlay Test Tex-248-F set of 3 625.00$             

128 Flat and Elongated Particles Tex-280-F each 56.00$               

129 Sampling Bituminous Materials, Pre-Molded Joint Fillers, and Joint Tex-500-C each 55.00$               

130 Asphalt Binder Water in Petroleum 501-C AASHTO each 93.00$               

131 Penetration of Bituminous Materials 502-C AASHTO each 75.00$               

132 Ductility of Asphalt Materials 503-C AASHTO each 110.00$             

133 Flash and Fire Points by Cleveland Open Cup 504-C AASHTO each 60.00$               

134 Softening Point of Bitumen (Riing and Ball Apparatus 505-C AASHTO each 90.00$               

135 Solubility of Bituminous Materials 507-C AASHTO each 100.00$             

136 Specific Gravity 508-C AASHTO each 70.00$               

137 Spot Test of Asphaltic Materials 509-C AASHTO each 155.00$             

138 Effect of Heat and Air on Asphalt Materials (Thin-Film Oven Test) 510-C AASHTO each 63.00$               

139 Flash Point with Tag Open-Cup Apparatus for Use with Material H 512-C AASHTO each 68.00$               

140 Saybolt Viscosity 513-C AASHTO each 75.00$               

141

Cutback Asphalts - Specific Gravity, API Gravity, or Density of Cutback 
Asphalts by Hdyrometer Method; Emulsified Asphalts - Weight per Gallon 
of Emulsified Asphalt

Tex-514-C 
ASTM D3142 
ASTM D244

each
130.00$             

142 Distillation of Cutback Asphalt Products 515-C AASHTO each 170.00$             

143 Float Test for Bituminous Materials 519-C AASHTO each 70.00$               

144 Standard Test Method for Emulsified Asphalts 521-C AASHTO each 190.00$             

145 Viscosity of Asphalts by Vacuum Capillary Viscometer 528-C AASHTO each 35.00$               

146 Kinematic Viscosity of Asphalts (Bitumens) 529-C AASHTO each 75.00$               

147 Boil Test (Effect of Water on Paving Mix) Tex-530/531-C each 125.00$             

148 Field Coring - ACP Thickness ASTM D3549 each 100.00$             

149 Pavement Thickness Determin. (Full Depth) ASTM D3549 each 125.00$             

150 Determining Polymer Additive Percentages in Polymer Modified Tex-533-C each 60.00$               

151 Calculating Viscosity from Penetration Tex-535-C each 75.00$               

152 Elastic Recovery of Tensile Deformation Using a Ductilometer Tex-539-C each 65.00$               

153 Measurement of Polymer Separation on Heating in Modified Asphalat Tex-540-C each 55.00$               

154 Rolling Thin Film Oven Test for Asphalt Binders 541-C ASSHTO each 100.00$             

155 Flexural Creep Stiffness Using the Bending Beam Rheometer AASHTO T313 each 110.00$             

156 Determining Rheological Properties of Asphalt Binder Using a Dy AASHTO T315 each 120.00$             

157 Determining Breaking Index for Asphalt Emulsions Tex-542-C each 215.00$             

158 Resilience Test for Sealants and Repair Materials Tex-547-C each 200.00$             

159 Tensile Strain to Failure Tex-548-C each 60.00$               

160 Cone Flow Test Tex-549-C each 55.00$               

161 Flexibility Test for Sealants and Repair Materials Tex-550-C each 190.00$             

162 Settlement of Sealants and Repair Materials Tex-551-C each 88.00$               

Concrete & Aggregate Testing

163 Sieve Analysis for Conc. Agg Tex-401-A each 73.58$               

164 Fineness Modulus for Conc. Agg Tex-402-A each 18.00$               

165 SSD Specific Gravity / Absorption Conc. Agg Tex-403-A each 70.00$               



166 Unit Weight of Conc. Agg Tex-404-A each 40.00$               

167 Determining Pecent Voids and Solids in Concrete Tex-405-A each 65.00$               

168 Decantation for Conc. Agg Tex-406-A each 50.00$               

169 Organic Impurities for Conc. Agg Tex-408-A each 44.00$               

170 Free Moisture and Water Absorption in Aggregate for Concrete Tex-409-A each 55.00$               

171 L.A. Abrasion Tex-410-A each 300.00$             

172 5 Cycle Magnesium Soundness Tex-411-A each 450.00$             

173 Deleterious Material for Conc. Agg Tex-413-A each 60.00$               

174 Air Content of Fresh Concrete by Volumeteric Tex-414-A each 30.00$               

175 Slump of Fresh Concrete Tex-415-A each 40.00$               

176 Air Content of Fresh Concrete by Pressure Tex-416-A each 26.28$               

177 Unit Weight, Yield and Air Content (Gravimetric) of Concrete Tex-417-A each 30.00$               

178 Comp. Strength of Cyl. Conc. Specimen Tex-418-A each 20.00$               

179 Measure Temp. of Fresh Conc. Tex-422-A each 20.00$               

180 Obtaining & Testing Drilled Conc. Cores Tex-424-A each 250.00$             

181 Absorption and Dry Bulk Specific Gravity of Lightweight Coarse Tex-433-A each 80.00$               

182 Test Flow of Grout Mixtures (Flow Cone Method) Tex-437-A each 65.00$               

183 Accelerated Polish Test for Coarse Aggregate Tex-438-A each 875.00$             

184 Det. Comp. Strength of Grouts Tex-442-A each 18.00$               

185 Making & Curing Conc. Test Specimen Tex-447-A each 14.00$               

186 Flexural Strength of Concrete Using Simple Beam Third-Point Load Tex-448-A each 40.00$               

187 Capping Cyl. Conc. Specimen Tex-450-A each 25.00$               

188 Degradation of Coarse Aggregate by Micro-Devel Abrasion Tex-461-A each 266.50$             

189 Uniformity of Concrete Tex‐472‐A each 110.00$             

Additional Testing Test Method Unit

190 Geogrid Testing Tex-621-J each 740.00$             

191 Water Quality Testing Tex-619-J each 145.00$             

192 Lime Testing Tex-600-J each 300.00$             

193 Operating Inertial Profilers and Evaluating Pavement Profiles Tex-1001-S each 1,800.00$         

194 Vane Shear Testing ASTM D2573 each 300.00$             

Miscellaneous Testing Test Method Unit

195  Structural Field Welding NA hour 150.00$             

Equipmemt & Supplies for MT & UT day 150.00$             

Other Direct Expenses Unit

Photocopies B/W (8 1/2" X 11") each 0.15$                 

Photocopies B/W (11" X 17") each 0.20$                 

Photocopies Color (8 1/2" X 11") each 0.70$                 

Photocopies Color (11" X 17") each 1.25$                 

Digital Ortho Plotting sheet 2.00$                 

CADD Plotting linear foot 1.00$                 

Plots (B/W on Bond) linear foot 0.75$                 

Plots (Color on Bond) linear foot 1.75$                 

Plots (Color on Photgraphic Paper) linear foot 2.00$                 

Reproduction of CD/DVD each 5.00$                 

Atlas Personnel Classification
Hourly Base 

Rate 

Contract 
Rate

FY 2020

FINAL 

NEGOTIATED 

RATES 

9/14/2021

Senior Project Manager / Principal 80.00$             240.29$         186.90$             

Senior Geotechnical Engineer 68.00$             204.25$         148.10$             

Geotechnical Engineer 60.00$             180.22$         117.96$             

Project Engineer 55.00$             165.20$         133.98$             

Engineering Lab Manager 43.00$             129.16$         86.38$               

Utility Coordinator 40.00$             120.14$         91.74$               

Senior Project Inspector 40.00$             120.14$         99.75$               

Project Inspector 32.00$             96.12$           73.92$               

EIT 30.00$             90.11$           88.00$               

Engineer Tech / GIS 28.00$             84.10$           76.70$               

Logger 23.00$             69.08$           52.81$               

Field Technician (Soils, Aggr, Asph, Conc) 23.00$             69.08$           62.34$               

CADD Operator  23.00$             69.08$           71.00$               

Admin/Clerical  22.00$             66.08$           61.95$               



ATTACHMENT E: FEE SCHEDULE [SPECIFIED RATE / LUMP SUM PAYMENT BASIS]

Atlas Personnel Classification
Hourly 

Base Rate 

Contract 
Rate

FY 2020

HCRMA 

counter 

9/7/2021

Atlas

Counter

9/14/21

FINAL 

HCRMA 

counter 

9/14/2021

Senior Project Manager / Principal 72.00$   204.4 170.80$   195.00$          186.90$         

Senior Geotechnical Engineer 62.58$   202.81 148.10$   accept 148.10$         

Geotechnical Engineer 48.56$   157.37 117.96$   accept 117.96$         

Project Engineer 54.00$   187.37 126.59$   142.00$          133.98$         

Engineering Lab Manager 33.00$   90.94 86.38$     accept 86.38$           

Utility Coordinator 40.91$   116.14 91.74$     accept 91.74$           

Senior Project Inspector 42.00$   115.74 93.79$     110.00$          99.75$           

Project Inspector 33.00$   90.94 70.48$     85.00$            73.92$           

EIT 36.00$   102.2 84.45$     91.00$            88.00$           

Engineer Tech / GIS 31.75$   90.13 69.76$     79.00$            76.70$           

Logger 18.80$   60.93 52.81$     accept 52.81$           

Field Technician (Soils, Aggr, Asph, Conc) 24.50$   67.52 62.34$     accept 62.34$           

CADD Operator  30.00$   85.17 71.00$     accept 71.00$           

Admin/Clerical  24.56$   69.72 57.40$     Recommend 61.95$           



    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants 

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT E-1 

 Final Cost Proposal Form 

This attachment provides the basis of payment and fee schedule.  The basis of payment for this Work 

Authorization is indicated by an “X” in the applicable box. The basis shall be supported by the Final Cost 

Proposal (FCP) shown below and should identify maximum amount payable and basis of payment. If more than 

one basis of payment is used, each one must be supported by a separate FCP.  The basis of payment will be 

determined by Work Authorization and may be by any of the methods listed below.   

“X” Basis 

Lump Sum 

The lump sum shall be equal to the maximum amount payable. The lump sum includes 

all direct and indirect costs and fixed fee.  The Engineer shall be paid pro rata based on 

the percentage of work completed.  For payment the Engineer is not required to provide 

evidence of actual hours worked, travel, overhead rates or other evidence of cost. 

__X_ Unit Cost 

The unit cost(s) for each type of unit and number of units are shown in the FCP. The 

unit cost includes all direct and indirect costs and fixed fee.  The Engineer shall be paid 

based on the type and number of units fully completed and the respective unit cost.  For 

payment, the Engineer is not required to provide evidence of actual hours worked, 

travel, overhead rates or any other cost data. The FCP may include special items, such as 

equipment which are not included in the unit costs.  Documentation of these special 

costs may be required.  The maximum amount payable equals the total of all units times 

their respective unit cost plus any special direct items shown. 

__X 

Specified 

Rate Basis 

The specified rates for each type of labor are shown in the FCP below. The FCP may 

include special items, such as equipment which are not included in the specified rates.  

Payment shall be based on the actual hours worked multiplied by the specified rate for 

each type of labor plus other agreed to special direct cost items. The specified rate 

includes direct labor and indirect cost and fixed fee.  The Authority may request 

documentation of reimbursable direct costs including hours worked. Documentation of 

special item costs may be required.  The specified rate is not subject to audit. 

____ 

Cost Plus 

Fixed Fee 

Payment shall be based on direct and indirect costs incurred plus a pro rata share of the 

fixed fee based on the ratio of labor and overhead cost incurred to total estimated labor 

and overhead cost in the FCP or the percentage of work completed. The invoice must 

itemize labor rates, hours worked, other direct costs and indirect costs.  The Engineer 

may be required to provide documentation of hours worked and any eligible direct costs 

claimed.  The provisional overhead rate charged is subject to audit and adjustment to 

actual rates incurred. The FCP below shows the hourly rates for labor, other direct 

expenses including but not limited to travel and allowable materials, provisional 

overhead rate and the fixed fee. 

__A. Actual Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Actual wages are paid (no minimum, no 

maximum.   

__B. Range of Cost Plus Fixed Fee – Actual wages must be within the 

allowable range shown on the Final Cost Proposal. 

A. REFER TO ATTACHMENT E-2 FOR HOURLY SPECIFIED / LUMP SUM RATE SCHEDULE

FOR EACH FIRM



    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants 

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT F 

WORK SCHEDULE 

TOLL365 (SH 365) Segments 1, 2,  

HCRMA Construction & Materials Testing Services 



 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 

ATTACHMENT F  

 

WORK SCHEDULE 

 

 

HCRMA Construction & Materials Testing Services 

TOLL365 (SH 365) 

 

Task Name Start Finish 
   

Material Testing   11/1/2021 12/13/2025 

Geotechnical  11/1/2021 12/13/2025 

Other Analyses 11/1/2021 12/13/2025 

All sampling and testing of components and materials  11/1/2021 12/13/2025 

          Hot Mix Asphalt Testing 11/1/2021 12/13/2025 

          Concrete Testing 11/1/2021 12/13/2025 

          Construction Oversight Documentation  11/1/2021 12/13/2025 

          Project Correspondence File (Design and     

Construction)  

11/1/2021 12/13/2025 

 

 

 



ATTACHMENT H 

 

DBE PARTICIPATION 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 



ATTACHMENT H-MOU 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  

REGARDING THE ADOPTION OF THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF  

TRANSPORATION’S FEDERALY-APPROVED DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS 

ENTERPRISE PROGRAM BY 

THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 

 



ATTACHMENT H-MOU 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  

REGARDING THE ADOPTION OF THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF  

TRANSPORATION’S FEDERALY-APPROVED DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS 

ENTERPRISE PROGRAM BY 

THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 



ATTACHMENT H-MOU 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  

REGARDING THE ADOPTION OF THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF  

TRANSPORATION’S FEDERALY-APPROVED DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS 

ENTERPRISE PROGRAM BY 

THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 



ATTACHMENT H-MOU 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  

REGARDING THE ADOPTION OF THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF  

TRANSPORATION’S FEDERALY-APPROVED DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS 

ENTERPRISE PROGRAM BY 

THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 



ATTACHMENT H-MOU 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  

REGARDING THE ADOPTION OF THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF  

TRANSPORATION’S FEDERALY-APPROVED DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS 

ENTERPRISE PROGRAM BY 

THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 



ATTACHMENT H-MOU 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  

REGARDING THE ADOPTION OF THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF  

TRANSPORATION’S FEDERALY-APPROVED DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS 

ENTERPRISE PROGRAM BY 

THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

Attachment H-Instructions  

As Per 49CFR 26.21 

 

The following pages contain six (6) different Attachments to Attachment H covering participation of HUB and 

DBE providers and subproviders.  The correct form to use is determined by whether the Agreement is funded in 

whole or part by federal funds State funds or Authority funds, and whether or not a HUB/DBE goal has been set 

for the Agreement.  The following pages contain separate reporting forms for federally funded DBE 

participation and Authority funded HUB participation.  Select the forms that are appropriate for your 

Agreement and delete the rest along with these instructions from the final Agreement.  

 

Federally Funded Contracts 

Attachment H-FG, Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) for Federal Funded Professional 

or Technical Services Contracts 

 This provision is applicable to federally funded contracts with assigned DBE goals. 

 The appropriate forms for this provision are Attachments H-1, H-2, H-3 and H-4 and H-5.  A 

copy of each form is required in the contract. 

 Note: if the contract requires work authorizations, a completed Attachment H-2 will be required 

with each Work Authorization, if a DBE will be performing work.  If a non-DBE subprovider is 

used, insert N/A (not applicable) on the line provided on the H-2 form. 

 Attachment H-3 must be submitted monthly to the AUTHORITY Office even if there is no 

invoice being submitted or subcontracting to report. 

 Attachment H-3 must be submitted with each invoice to the appropriate agency contact for 

payment. 

Attachment H-FN, Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) for Race Neutral Professional or 

Technical Services Contracts 

 This provision is applicable to federally funded contracts with no DBE goal assigned. 

 If no subcontractors will be used, the appropriate forms for this provision are Attachments H-3 

and H-5. A copy of each form is required in the contract. 

 Note:  If subcontractors are used, the required forms would be Attachments H-1, H-2, H-3, H-4 

and H-5.  A copy of each form is required in the contract. 

 Attachment H-3 must be submitted monthly to the AUTHORITY Office even if there is no 

invoice being submitted or subcontracting to report. 

 Attachment H-3 must be submitted with each invoice to the appropriate agency contact for 

payment. 

Attachment H-3, Texas Department of Transportation Subprovider Monitoring System for 

Federally Funded Contracts.  This is a Monthly Progress Assessment Report. 

 Required for all federally funded contracts. 

 This form is required monthly and must be submitted to the AUTHORITY Office even if there is 

no invoice being submitted or subcontracting to report. 

 This form must be submitted with each invoice to the appropriate agency contact for payment.     

Attachment H-5, Federal Subprovider and Supplier Information 

Required for all federally funded contracts. 

 



 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

Attachment H-Instructions (Continued) 

State Funded Contracts 

Attachment H-SG, Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) for State Funded Professional or 

Technical Services Contracts, State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan Required 

 This provision is applicable to state funded contracts with a HUB goal assigned.  

 The appropriate reporting forms for this provision are Attachments H-1, H-2, H-4, and H-6 (Texas 

Building and Procurement Commission [TBPC] State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan (HSP), 

Prime Contractor Assessment Report).  A copy of each form is required in the contract. 

 Note: if the contract requires work authorizations, a completed Attachment H-2 will be required 

with each Work Authorization, if a HUB will be performing work.  If a non-HUB subprovider is 

used, insert N/A (not applicable) on the line provided on the H-2 form. 

 Attachment H-6 will be required monthly and must be submitted to the AUTHORITY Office even 

if there is no invoice being submitted or subcontracting to report.  

 Attachment H-6 must be submitted with each invoice to the appropriate agency contact for 

payment. 

 

Attachment H-SN, Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) Participation for State Funded 

Professional or Technical Services Contracts, No State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan 

Required 

 This provision is applicable to state funded contracts with no HUB subcontracting plan required 

and no HUB goal assigned.  If no subcontractors are used, the appropriate forms for this provision 

are Attachments H-1 and H-6. 

 Note:  If subcontractors are used, the required forms would be Attachments H-1, H-2, H-4 and H-6.     

A copy of each form is required in the contract. 

 Attachment H-6 must be submitted monthly to the AUTHORITY Office even though there is no 

invoice being submitted or subcontracting to report. 

 Attachment H-6 must be submitted with each invoice to the appropriate agency contact for 

payment. 

 

Attachment H-6, HUB Subcontracting Plan (HSP) Prime Contractor Professional Assessment 

Report.  This is a Monthly Progress Assessment Report.  This is a Texas Building and 

Procurement Commission (TBPC) form and cannot be altered. 

 Required for all State funded contracts.   

 Attachment H-6 is required monthly and should be submitted to the AUTHORITY Office.  This is 

a requirement even though there is no invoice being submitted or subcontracting to report.   

 A copy of Attachment H-6 must be submitted when supplying an invoice to the appropriate agency 

contact for payment. 

 The “Object Code” section(s) on this form should remain blank. 

 

 



                                              

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

ATTACHMENT H-FG 

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) 

for Federal-Aid Professional or Technical Services Contracts 

 

1) PURPOSE.  The purpose of this attachment is to carry out the Authority and the U.S. Department of 

Transportation’s (DOT) policy of ensuring nondiscrimination in the award and administration of the 

AUTHORITY and DOT assisted contracts and creating a level playing field on which firms owned and 

controlled by minority or socially and economically disadvantaged individuals can compete fairly for the 

AUTHORITY and DOT assisted contracts. 

2) POLICY.  It is the policy of the AUTHORITY and DOT and the Texas Department of Transportation 

(henceforth the “Department”) that Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBEs) as defined in 49 CFR Part 

26, Subpart A and the Department’s Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program, shall have the opportunity 

to participate in the performance of contracts financed in whole or in part with Federal funds.  

Consequently, the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise requirements of 49 CFR Part 26, and the 

Department’s Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program, apply to this contract as follows. 

a. The Provider will offer Disadvantaged Business Enterprises, as defined in 49 CFR Part 26, Subpart A 

and the Authority/Department Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program, the opportunity to compete 

fairly for contracts and subcontracts financed in whole or in part with Federal funds.  In this regard, the 

Provider shall make a good faith effort to meet the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise goal for this 

contract. 

b. The Provider and any subprovider(s) shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or 

sex in the performance of this contract.  The Provider shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR 

Part 26 in the award and administration of DOT assisted contracts.  The requirements of this Special 

Provision shall be physically included in any subcontract. 

c. When submitting the contract for execution by the Authority, the Provider must complete and furnish 

Attachment H-1 which lists the commitments made to certified DBE subprovider(s) that are to meet the 

contract goal and Attachment H-2 which is a commitment agreement(s) containing the original 

signatures of the Provider and the proposed DBE(s).  For Work Authorization Contracts, Attachment H-

1 is required at the time of submitting the contract for execution by the Authority/Department.  

Attachment H-2 will be required to be completed and attached with each work authorization number that 

is submitted for execution, if the DBE will be performing work.  Any substitutions or changes to the 

DBE subcontract amount shall be subject to prior written approval by the Authority/Department. If non-

DBE subprovider is performing work, insert N/A (not applicable) on the line provided. 

d. Failure to carry out the requirements set forth above shall constitute a material breach of this contract 

and may result; in termination of the contract by the Authority/Department; in a deduction of the amount 

of DBE goal not accomplished by DBEs from the money due or to become due to the Provider, not as a 

penalty but as liquidated damages to the Authority/Department; or such other remedy or remedies as the 

Authority/Department deems appropriate. 

3) DEFINITIONS. 

a. “Authority/Department” means Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (HCRMA) and the Texas 

Department of Transportation (TxDOT). 

b. “Federal-Aid Contract” is any contract between the Texas Department of Transportation and a Provider 

which is paid for in whole or in part with U. S. Department of Transportation (DOT) financial 

assistance. 

c. “Provider” is any individual or company that provides professional or technical services.  

d. “DBE Joint Venture” means an association a DBE firm and one (1) or more other firm(s) to carry out a 

single business enterprise for profit for which purpose they combine their property, capital, efforts, skills 

and knowledge, and in which the DBE is responsible for a distinct, clearly defined portion of the work  

 



                                              

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

ATTACHMENT H-FG 

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) 

for Federal-Aid Professional or Technical Services Contracts 

 

of the contract and whose share in the capital contribution, control, management, risks and profits of the 

joint venture are commensurate with its ownership interest.  

e. “Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)” means a firm certified as such by the Authority/Department 

in accordance with 49 CFR Part 26.  

f. “Good Faith Effort” means efforts to achieve a DBE goal or other requirement of this Special Provision 

which, by their scope, intensity, and appropriateness to the objective, can reasonably be expected to 

fulfill the program requirement. 

g. “Race-neutral DBE Participation” means any participation by a DBE through customary competitive 

procurement procedures. 

4) PERCENTAGE GOAL.  The goal for Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) participation in the work 

to be performed under this Agreement is 6.0% of the Agreement amount. 

5) PROVIDER’S RESPONSIBILITIES. A DBE prime may receive credit toward the DBE goal for work 

performed by his-her own forces and work subcontracted to DBEs.  A DBE prime must make a good faith 

effort to meet the goals.  In the event a DBE prime subcontracts to a non-DBE, that information must be 

reported to the Authority/Department. 

a. A Provider who cannot meet the contract goal, in whole or in part, shall document the “Good Faith 

Efforts” taken to obtain DBE participation.  The following is a list of the types of actions that may be 

considered as good faith efforts.   It is not intended to be a mandatory checklist, nor is it intended to be 

exclusive or exhaustive.  Other factors or types of efforts may be relevant in appropriate cases.   

(1) Soliciting through all reasonable and available means the interest of all certified DBEs who have 

the capability to perform the work of the contract.  The solicitation must be done within 

sufficient time to allow the DBEs to respond to it.  Appropriate steps must be taken to follow up 

initial solicitations to determine, with certainty, if the DBEs are interested. 

(2) Selecting portions of the work to be performed by DBEs in order to increase the likelihood that 

the DBE goals will be achieved.  This includes, where appropriate, breaking out contract work 

items into economically feasible units to facilitate DBE participation, even when the Provider 

might otherwise prefer to perform the work items with its own forces.  

(3) Providing interested DBEs with adequate information about the plans, specifications, and 

requirements of the contract in a timely manner to assist them in responding to a solicitation.  

(4) Negotiating in good faith with interested DBEs by making a portion of the work available to 

DBE subproviders and suppliers and selecting those portions of the work or material needs 

consistent with the available DBE subproviders and suppliers. 

(5) The ability or desire of the Provider to perform the work of a contract with its own organization 

does not relieve the Provider’s responsibility to make a good faith effort.  Additional costs 

involved in finding and using DBEs is not in itself sufficient reason for a Provider’s failure to 

meet the contract DBE goal, as long as such costs are reasonable.  Providers are not, however, 

required to accept higher quotes from DBEs if the price difference is excessive or unreasonable. 

(6) Not rejecting DBEs as being unqualified without sound reasons based on a thorough 

investigation of their capabilities. 

(7) Making efforts to assist interested DBEs in obtaining bonding, lines of credit, or insurance as 

required by the recipient or Provider. 

(8) Making efforts to assist interested DBEs in obtaining necessary equipment, supplies, materials or 

related assistance or services. 

(9) Effectively using the services of available minority/women community organizations; 

minority/women contractors’ groups; local, County, State and Federal minority/women business  



                                              

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

ATTACHMENT H-FG 

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) 

for Federal-Aid Professional or Technical Services Contracts 

 

assistance offices; and other organizations as allowed on a case-by-case basis to provide 

assistance in the recruitment and placement of DBEs. 

(10) If the Authority/Department’s Director of the Business Opportunity Programs Office determines 

that the Provider has failed to meet the good faith effort requirements, the Provider will be given 

an opportunity for reconsideration by the Director of the appropriate Division.  

NOTE:  The Provider must not cause or allow subproviders to bid their services. 

b. The preceding information shall be submitted directly to the Chair of the Hidalgo County Regional 

Mobility Authority (Authority) responsible for the project. 

c. The Provider shall make all reasonable efforts to honor commitments to DBE subproviders named in the 

commitment submitted under Section 2.c. of this attachment.  Where the Provider terminates or removes 

a DBE subprovider named in the initial commitment, the Provider must demonstrate on a case-by-case 

basis to the satisfaction of the Authority/Department that the originally designated DBE was not able or 

willing to perform.  

d. The Provider shall make a good faith effort to replace a DBE subprovider that is unable or unwilling to 

perform successfully with another DBE, to the extent needed to meet the contract goal.  The Provider 

shall submit a completed Attachment H-2 Form for the substitute firm(s).  Any substitution of DBEs 

shall be subject to prior written approval by the Authority /Department.  The Authority /Department may 

request a statement from the firm being replaced concerning its replacement prior to approving the 

substitution. 

e. The Provider shall designate a DBE liaison officer who will administer the DBE program and who will 

be responsible for maintenance of records of efforts and contacts made to subcontract with DBEs. 

f. Providers are encouraged to investigate the services offered by banks owned and controlled by 

disadvantaged individuals and to make use of these banks where feasible. 

6) ELIGIBILITY OF DBEs. 

a. The Authority/Department certifies the eligibility of DBEs, DBE joint ventures and DBE truck-owner 

operators to perform DBE subcontract work on DOT financially assisted contracts. 

b. This certification will be accomplished through the use of the appropriate certification schedule 

contained in this Authority/Department’s DBE program. 

c. The Authority/Department publishes a Directory of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises containing the 

names of firms that have been certified to be eligible to participate as DBEs on DOT financially assisted 

contracts.  The directory is available from the Authority’s/Department’s Business Opportunity Programs 

Office.  The Texas Unified Certification Program DBE Directory can be found on the Internet at:  

http://www.dot.state.tx.us/services/business_opportunity_programs/tucp_dbe_directory.htm . 

d. Only DBE firms certified at the time the contract is signed or at the time the commitments are submitted 

are eligible to be used in the information furnished by the Provider as required under Section 2.c. and 

5.d. above.  For purposes of the DBE goal on this contract, DBEs will only be allowed to perform work 

in the categories of work for which they were certified.  

7) DETERMINATION OF DBE PARTICIPATION.  

A firm must be an eligible DBE and perform a professional or technical function relating to the project.  

Once a firm is determined to be an eligible DBE, the total amount paid to the DBE for work performed with 

his/her own forces is counted toward the DBE goal.  When a DBE subcontracts part of the work of its 

contract to another firm, the value of the subcontracted work may be counted toward DBE goals only if the 

subprovider is itself a DBE.  Work that a DBE subcontracts to a non-DBE firm does not count toward DBE 

goals.   

 

http://www.dot.state.tx.us/services/business_opportunity_programs/tucp_dbe_directory.htm


                                              

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

ATTACHMENT H-FG 

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) 

for Federal-Aid Professional or Technical Services Contracts 

 

A DBE subprovider may subcontract no more than 70% of a federal aid contract.  The DBE subprovider 

shall perform not less than 30% of the value of the contract work with assistance of employees employed 

and paid directly by the DBE; and equipment owned or rented directly by the DBE.  DBE subproviders 

must perform a commercially useful function required in the contract in order for payments to be credited 

toward meeting the contract goal.  A DBE performs a commercially useful function when it is responsible 

for executing the work of the contract and is carrying out its responsibilities by actually performing, 

managing, and supervising the work involved. To perform a commercially useful function, the DBE must 

also be responsible, with respect to materials and supplies used on the contract, for negotiating price, 

determining quality and quantity, ordering the material, and installing (where applicable) and paying for the 

material itself .  When a DBE is presumed not to be performing a commercially useful function, the DBE 

may present evidence to rebut this presumption.   

 

A Provider may count toward its DBE goal a portion of the total value of the contract amount paid to a DBE 

joint venture equal to the distinct, clearly defined portion of the work of the contract performed by the DBE. 

 

Proof of payment, such as copies of canceled checks, properly identifying the Authority/Department’s 

contract number or project number may be required to substantiate the payment, as deemed necessary by the 

Authority/Department. 

 

8) RECORDS AND REPORTS. 

a. After submission of the initial commitment reported (Attachment H-1), required by Section 2.c. of this 

attachment, the Provider shall submit Monthly Progress Assessment Reports (Attachment H-3), after 

contract work begins, on DBE involvement to meet the goal and for race-neutral participation.  One 

copy of each report is to be sent to the Authority/Department’s Business Opportunity Programs Office 

monthly, in addition one copy is to be submitted with the Provider’s invoice. Only actual payments 

made to subproviders are to be reported.  These reports will be required until all subprovider activity 

is completed.  The Authority/Department may verify the amounts being reported as paid to DBEs by 

requesting copies of canceled checks paid to DBEs on a random basis. 

b. DBE subproviders should be identified on the report by name, type of work being performed, the 

amount of actual payment made to each during the billing period, cumulative payment amount and 

percentage of the total contract amount.  These reports will be due within fifteen (15) days after the end 

of a calendar month.  Reports are required even when no DBE activity has occurred in a billing period. 

c. All such records must be retained for a period of four (4) years following final payment or until any 

investigation, audit, examination, or other review undertaken during the four (4) years is completed, and 

shall be available at reasonable times and places for inspection by authorized representatives of the 

Authority or Texas Department of Transportation or the DOT. 

d. Prior to receiving final payment, the Provider shall submit a Final Report (Attachment H-4), detailing 

the DBE payments.  The Final Report is to be sent to the Authority/Department’s Business Opportunity 

Programs Office and one (1) copy to be submitted with the Provider’s final invoice.  If the DBE goal 

requirement is not met, documentation of the good faith efforts made to meet the goal must be submitted 

with the Final Report. 

9) COMPLIANCE OF PROVIDER.  To ensure that DBE requirements of this DOT-assisted contract are 

complied with, the Authority/Department will monitor the Provider’s efforts to involve DBEs during the 

performance of this contract.  This will be accomplished by a review of Monthly Progress Assessment 

Reports (Attachment H-3), submitted to the Authority/Department’s Business Opportunity Programs Office  



                                              

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

ATTACHMENT H-FG 

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) 

for Federal-Aid Professional or Technical Services Contracts 

 

by the Provider indicating his progress in achieving the DBE contract goal, and by compliance reviews 

conducted by the Authority/Department.  The Monthly Progress Assessment Report (Attachment H-3) must 

be submitted at a minimum monthly to the Business Opportunity Programs Office, in addition to with each 

invoice to the appropriate agency contact.  

 

The Provider shall receive credit toward the DBE goal based on actual payments to the DBE subproviders 

with the following exceptions and only if the arrangement is consistent with standard industry practice.  The 

Provider shall contact the Authority/Department if he/she withholds or reduces payment to any DBE 

subprovider.  

(1) A DBE firm is paid but does not assume contractual responsibility for performing the service; 

(2) A DBE firm does not perform a commercially useful function; 

(3) Payment is made to a DBE that cannot be linked by an invoice or canceled check to the contract 

under which credit is claimed; 

(4) Payment is made to a broker or a firm with a brokering-type operation; 

(5) Partial credit is allowed, in the amount of the fee or commission provided the fee or commission 

does not exceed that customarily allowed for similar services, for a bona fide service, such as 

professional, technical, consultant, or managerial services, and assistance in the procurement of 

essential personnel, facilities, equipment, materials, or supplies required for performance of the 

contract. 

A Provider’s failure to comply with the requirements of this Special Provision shall constitute a material 

breach of this contract.  In such a case, the Authority/Department reserves the right to terminate the 

contract; to deduct the amount of DBE goal not accomplished by DBEs from the money due or to become 

due the Provider, not as a penalty but as liquidated damages to the Authority/Department; or such other 

remedy or remedies as the Authority/Department deems appropriate. 

    12/06 

DBE-FED.ATT 



 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 

ATTACHMENT H-FN 

 

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) for Race-Neutral Professional or Technical Services Contracts  

 

It is the policy of the U. S. Department of Transportation (DOT) that DBEs as defined in 49 CFR Part 26, 

Subpart A, be given the opportunity to compete fairly for contracts and subcontracts financed in whole or in 

part with Federal funds and that a maximum feasible portion of the Department’s overall DBE goal be met 

using race-neutral means.  Consequently, if there is no DBE goal, the DBE requirements of 49 CFR Part 26, 

apply to this contract as follows:  

 

The Provider will offer DBEs as defined in 49 CFR Part 26, Subpart A, the opportunity to compete fairly for 

contracts and subcontracts financed in whole or in part with federal funds.  Race-Neutral DBE participation on 

projects with no DBE goal should be reported on the Attachment H-3 Form.  Payments to DBEs reported on 

Attachment H-3 are subject to the following requirements: 

 

DETERMINATION OF DBE PARTICIPATION.  

A firm must be an eligible DBE and perform a professional or technical function relating to the project.  

Once a firm is determined to be an eligible DBE, the total amount paid to the DBE for work performed 

with his/her own forces must be reported as race-neutral DBE participation.  When a DBE subcontracts 

part of the work of its contract to another firm, the value of the subcontracted work should not be 

reported unless the subcontractor is itself a DBE.   

 

A DBE subprovider may subcontract no more than 70% of a federal aid contract.  The DBE subprovider 

shall perform not less than 30% of the value of the contract work with assistance of employees 

employed and paid directly by the DBE; and equipment owned or rented directly by the DBE.  DBE 

subproviders must perform a commercially useful function required in the contract.  A DBE performs a 

commercially useful function when it is responsible for execution of the work of the contract and is 

carrying out its responsibilities by actually performing, managing, and supervising the work involved.  

To perform a commercially useful function, the DBE must also be responsible, with respect to materials 

and supplies used on the contract, for negotiating price, determining quality and quantity, ordering the 

material, and installing (where applicable) and paying for the material itself.   When a DBE is presumed 

not to be performing a commercially useful function, the DBE may present evidence to rebut this 

presumption.   

 

A Provider must report a portion of the total value of the contract amount paid to a DBE joint venture 

equal to the distinct, clearly defined portion of the work of the contract performed by the DBE. 

 

Proof of payment, such as copies of canceled checks, properly identifying the Authority’s contract 

number or project number may be required to substantiate the payment, as deemed necessary by the 

Authority. 

 

The Provider and any subprovider shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin or sex in the 

award and performance of contracts.  These requirements shall be physically included in any subcontract. 

 

Failure to carry out the requirements set forth above shall constitute a material breach of this contract and, may 

result in termination of the contract by the Authority/Department or other such remedy as the 

Authority/Department deems appropriate.    

12/06 DH-0GOAL.ATT



 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 

ATTACHMENT H-SG (NOT APPLICABLE) 

 

Historically Underutilized Business  

for State Funded Professional or Technical Services Contracts 

HUB Goal Assigned-State of Texas Subcontracting Plan Required 

 

1) POLICY. It is the policy of the Authority/Department to ensure that HUBs shall have an equal opportunity 

to participate in the performance of contracts; to create a level playing field on which HUBs can compete 

fairly for contracts and subcontracts; to ensure nondiscrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, 

or gender in the award and administration of contracts; to help remove barriers to the participation of HUBs 

in department contracts; and, to assist in the development of firms that can compete successfully in the 

market place outside the HUB program.  Consequently, the HUB requirements of the 

Authority/Department’s HUB Program apply to this contract as follows: 

(1) The Provider agrees to insure that they shall take all necessary and reasonable steps to meet the HUB 

goal for this contract. 

a. The Provider and any subprovider(s) shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national 

origin, or sex in the award and performance of contracts. 

b. When submitting the contract for execution by the Authority, the Provider must complete and 

furnish Attachment H-1 which lists the commitments made to all subproviders, including certified 

HUB subprovider(s) that are to meet the contract goal, and Attachment H-2 which is a commitment 

agreement(s) containing the original signatures of the Provider and HUB(s) that were indicated in 

the original submitted Authority/State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan (HSP) in Section 8.  For 

Work Authorization Contracts, Attachment H-1 is required at the time of submitting the contract for 

execution by the Department.  Attachment H-2 will be required to be completed and attach with each 

work authorization number that is submitted for execution, if the HUB will be performing work.  If 

non-HUB subprovider is performing work, insert N/A (not applicable) on the line provided.  A 

prime must allow a HUB maximum opportunity to perform the work by not creating unnecessary 

barriers or artificial requirements for the purpose of hindering a HUB’s performance under the 

contract.  Any substitutions or changes to the HSP, in addition to any changes to the original contract 

award, shall be subject to prior written approval by the Department.  If there are any changes to the 

subproviders during the contract term, the Provider must furnish a Revised Attachment H-1 showing 

the revised commitment of all subproviders. 

c. Failure to carry out the requirements set forth above shall constitute a breach of contract and may 

result in a letter of reprimand; in termination of the contract by the Authority; in a deduction from 

money due or to become due to the Provider, not as a penalty but as damages to the Department’s 

HUB Program; or such other remedy or remedies as the Department deems appropriate. 

2) DEFINITIONS. 

g. “Authority/Department” means Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (HCRMA) and the Texas 

Department of Transportation (TxDOT). 

a.  “Agreement” is the agreement between the Authority and a Provider. 

b. “Provider” is any individual or company that provides professional or technical services. 

c. “Joint Venture” means an association of two or more businesses to carry out a single business enterprise 

for profit which combines their property, capital, efforts, skills and knowledge. 

d. “Historically Underutilized Business (HUB)” means any business so certified by the Texas Building and 

Procurement Commission. 

3) PERCENTAGE GOAL.  The goal for Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) participation in the work 

to be performed under this contract is       6.0 %       of the contract amount.  

 



 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

ATTACHMENT H-SG (NOT APPLICABLE) 

 

4) PROVIDER’S RESPONSIBILITIES.  A Provider (HUB or non-HUB) must perform a minimum of 30% 

of the contract with its employees (as defined by the Internal Revenue Service).  The contract is subject to 

the HSP Good Faith Effort Requirements.   

a. A Provider who cannot meet the contract goal, in whole or in part, should have documented any of the 

following and other efforts made as a “Good Faith Effort” to obtain HUB participation. 

(1) Whether the prime advertised in general circulation, trade association, and/or minority/women focus 

media concerning subcontracting opportunities. 

(2) Whether the prime provided written notice to at least three (3) qualified HUBs allowing sufficient 

time for HUBs to participate effectively. 

(3) Whether the prime documented reasons for rejection or met with the rejected HUB to discuss the 

rejection. 

(4) Whether the prime provided qualified HUBs with adequate information about bonding, insurance, 

the plans, the specifications, scope of work and requirements of the contract. 

(5) Whether the prime negotiated in good faith with qualified HUBs, not rejecting qualified HUBs who 

are also the lowest responsive bidder. 

(6) Whether the prime used the services of available minority and women community organizations, 

contractor’s groups, local, state, and federal business assistance offices, and other organizations that 

provide support services to HUBs. 

NOTE:  The Provider must not cause or allow subproviders to bid their services. 

b. The preceding information shall be submitted directly to the Chair of the Authority responsible for the 

contract. 

c. The Provider shall make all reasonable efforts to honor commitments to HUB subproviders named in the 

original HSP in Section 8.  Where the Provider terminates or removes a HUB subprovider named in the 

initial commitment, the Provider must demonstrate on a case-by-case basis to the satisfaction of the 

Authority/Department that the originally designated HUB was not able or willing to perform.  The term 

“unable” includes, but is not limited to, a firm that does not have the resources and expertise to finish the 

work and/or a firm that substantially increases the time to complete the project. 

d. The Provider shall make all reasonable efforts to replace a HUB subprovider that is unable or unwilling 

to perform successfully with another HUB and must meet the HSP Good Faith Effort Requirements.  

Any substitution of HUBs shall be subject to prior written approval by the Authority.  The Authority 

will request a statement from the firm being replaced concerning its replacement prior to approving the 

substitution.  If there are any changes to the subproviders during the contract term, the Provider must 

furnish a Revised Attachment H-1 showing the revised commitment of all subproviders. 

e. The Provider shall designate a HUB liaison officer who will administer the Provider’s HUB program 

and who will be responsible for maintenance of records of efforts and contacts made to subcontract with 

HUBs. 

5) ELIGIBILITY OF HUBs. 

a. The Texas Building and Procurement Commission (TBPC) certifies the eligibility of HUBs.  

b. The TBPC maintains a directory of certified HUBs.  The HUB Directory is available through the 

TxDOT Department’s Business Opportunity Programs Office and through the Internet at the TBPC’s 

Website (http://www2.tbpc.state.tx.us/cmbl/hubonly.html ). 

c. Only HUB firms certified and identified in specific categories and classes at the time the contract is 

signed or at the time the commitments are submitted are eligible to be used in the information furnished 

by the Provider as required under Section 2.c. above. 

d. If during the course of the contract it becomes necessary to substitute another HUB firm for a firm 

named in the information submitted by the Provider as required by Section 2.c. above, then only 

certified HUBs will be considered eligible as a substituted firm.  The Provider’s written request for  

http://www2.tbpc.state.tx.us/cmbl/hubonly.html


 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

ATTACHMENT H-SG (NOT APPLICABLE) 

 

substitutions of HUB subproviders shall be accompanied by a detailed explanation, which should 

substantiate the need for a substitution.  The Authority/Department will verify the explanation with the 

HUB firm being replaced before giving approval of the substitution.  If there are any changes to the 

subproviders during the contract term, the Provider must furnish a Revised Attachment H-1 showing the 

revised commitment of all subproviders. 

e. The 73rd Legislature passed Texas Civil Statutes, Article 601i, relative to contracts between 

governmental entities and certain disadvantaged businesses.  The Statute provides for civil penalties for 

persons who falsely claim disadvantaged business status and for the general contractor who knowingly 

contracts with a person claiming to be a disadvantaged business. 

6) DETERMINATION OF HUB PARTICIPATION. 

A firm must be an eligible HUB and perform a professional or technical function relating to the project.  

Proof of payment, such as copies of canceled checks, properly identifying the Authority’s contract number 

or project number may be required to substantiate the payment, as deemed necessary by the 

Authority/Department.  A HUB subprovider, with prior written approval from the Authority/Department, 

may subcontract 70% of a contract as long as the HUB subprovider performs a commercially useful 

function.  All subcontracts shall include the provisions required in the subcontract and shall be approved as 

to form, in writing, by the Authority/Department prior to work being performed under the subcontract.  A 

HUB performs a commercially useful function when it is responsible for a distinct element of the work of a 

contract; and actually manages, supervises, and controls the materials, equipment, employees, and all other 

business obligations attendant to the satisfactory completion of contracted work.  If the subcontractor uses 

an employee leasing firm for the purpose of providing salary and benefit administration, the employees must 

in all other respects be supervised and perform on the job as if they were employees of the subcontractor. 

7) COMPLIANCE OF PROVIDER. 

To ensure that HUB requirements of this contract are complied with, the Authority/Department will monitor 

the Provider’s efforts to involve HUBs during the performance of this contract.  This will be accomplished 

by a review of the monthly Authority/State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan Prime Contractor Progress 

Assessment Report (Attachment H-6) submitted to the AUTHORITY Office by the Provider indicating 

his/her progress in achieving the HUB contract goal, and by compliance reviews conducted by the 

Authority/Department.  The Authority/State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan Prime Contractor Progress 

Assessment Report (Attachment H-6) must be submitted at a minimum monthly to the Business Opportunity 

Programs Office, in addition to with each invoice to the appropriate agency contact.  

 

The Provider shall receive credit toward the HUB goal based on actual payments to the HUB subproviders 

with the following exceptions and only if the arrangement is consistent with standard industry practice. 

(1) Payments to brokers or firms with a brokering type operation will be credited only for the amount of the 

commission; 

(2) Payments to a joint venture will not be credited unless all partners in the joint venture are HUBs; 

(3) Payments to a HUB subprovider who has subcontracted a portion of the work required under the 

subcontract will not be credited unless the HUB performs a commercially useful function; 

(4) Payments to a HUB will not be credited if the firm does not provide the goods or perform the services 

paid for; 

(5) Payments made to a HUB that cannot be linked by an invoice or canceled check to the contract under 

which credit is claimed will not be credited. 

A Provider must not withhold or reduce payments to any HUB without a reason that is accepted as standard 

industry practice.  A HUB prime or subprovider must comply with the terms of the contract or subcontract.  

Work products, services, and commodities must meet contract specifications whether performed by a prime 

or subprovider. 



 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

ATTACHMENT H-SG (NOT APPLICABLE) 

 

A Provider’s failure to meet the HUB goal and failure to demonstrate to the Authority/Department’s 

satisfaction sufficient “Good Faith Effort” on his/her part to obtain HUB participation shall constitute a 

breach of contract.  In such a case, the Authority/Department reserves the right to issue a letter of 

reprimand; to deduct the amount of HUB goal not accomplished by HUBs from the money due or to 

become due the Provider, not as a penalty but as damages to the Authority/Department’s HUB program; or 

such other remedy or remedies as the Authority/Department deems appropriate. 

8) RECORDS AND REPORTS. 

a. After submission of the initial commitment (Attachment H-1), required by Section 2.c. of this 

attachment, the Provider shall submit State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan Prime Contractor 

Progress Assessment Report (Attachment H-6) at a minimum monthly, after contract work begins, on 

subcontracting   involvement.  One copy of the State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan Prime 

Contractor Progress Assessment Report (Attachment H-6) is to be sent to the Authority/Department’s 

Office monthly.  In addition, the Authority/State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan Prime Contractor 

Progress Assessment Report (Attachment H-6) must be submitted with the Provider’s invoice.  All 

payments made to subproviders are to be reported.  The Authority/State of Texas HUB 

Subcontracting Plan Prime Contractor Progress Assessment Reports are required monthly even 

during months when no payments to subproviders have been made.  The Authority/State of Texas 

HUB Subcontracting Plan Prime Contractor Progress Assessment Report will be required until all work 

on the contract has been completed.  The Authority/Department may verify the amounts being reported 

as paid to HUBs by requesting copies of canceled checks paid to HUBs on a random basis. 

b. Subproviders should be identified on the Authority/State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan Prime 

Contractor Progress Assessment Report (Attachment H-6) by name, the amount of actual payment made 

to each during the billing period, cumulative payment amount and percentage of the total contract 

amount.   

c. All such records must be retained for a period of four years following final payment, or until an 

investigation, audit, examination, or other review undertaken during the four years, and shall be 

available at reasonable times and places for inspection by authorized representatives of the 

Authority/Department and other agencies. 

d. Prior to receiving final payment, the Provider shall submit a Final Report (Attachment H-4), detailing 

the subprovider payments to the AUTHORITY Office of the Authority, and one copy to the 

Authority/Department with the Provider’s final invoice. 

  12/06 

         HUB.ATT 



 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 

ATTACHMENT H-SN (NOT APPLICABLE) 

 

Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) 

for State Funded Professional or Technical Services Contracts 

No State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan Required 

POLICY 

It is the policy of the Authority/Department to ensure that HUBs shall have an equal opportunity to participate 

in the performance of contracts; to create a level playing field on which HUBs can compete fairly for contracts 

and subcontracts; to ensure nondiscrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, or gender in the award 

and administration of contracts; to help remove barriers to the participation of HUBs in Authority contracts; 

and, to assist in the development of firms that can compete successfully in the market place outside the HUB 

program. 

 

Subcontracting participation on projects with no HUB Subcontracting Plan Required should be reported on the 

Authority/State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan Prime Contractor Progress Assessment Report, the 

Attachment H-6 Form.  Payment to non-HUBs subproviders must be reported on Attachment H-6.  Payments to 

HUBs reported on Attachment H-6 are subject to the following requirements: 

 

DETERMINATION OF HUB PARTICIPATION.  

A firm must be an eligible HUB and perform a professional or technical function relating to the project.  Once a 

firm is determined to be an eligible HUB, the total amount paid to the HUB should be reported as race-neutral 

HUB participation.  

 

A HUB subprovider may subcontract no more than 70% of a contract.  The HUB subprovider shall perform not 

less than 30% of the value of the contract work with assistance of employees employed and paid directly by the 

HUB; and equipment owned or rented directly by the HUB.  

 

A provider must report a portion of the total value of the contract amount paid to a HUB joint venture equal to 

the distinct, clearly defined portion of the work of the contract performed by the HUB. 

 

Proof of payment, such as copies of canceled checks, properly identifying the Authority/Department’s contract 

number or project number may be required to substantiate the payment, as deemed necessary by the 

Authority/Department. 

 

The provider and any subprovider shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin or sex in the 

award and performance of contracts.  These requirements shall be physically included in any subcontract. 

 

REQUIRED FORMS. 

If subcontractors are used under the contract that has no stated HUB goal, Attachments H-1, H-2, H-4 and H-6 

are required.  Attachments H-1 and H-6 are required if no subcontractors are being used to perform work under 

this contract. 

 

Authority/State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan Prime Contractor Progress Assessment Report (Attachment 

H-6) is required monthly even when no subcontracting activity has occurred.  In addition, Authority/State 

of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan Prime Contractor Progress Assessment Report (Attachment H-6) should be 

submitted with the Provider’s invoice. 

    



 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

ATTACHMENT H-1 

Subprovider Monitoring System 

Commitment Worksheet 

Contract #:                  Assigned Goal: 6.0%   Federally Funded                County Funded           

Prime Provider:  Atlas Technical Consultants LLC        Total Contract Amount:  $402,877.44     

Prime Provider Info:  DBE        HUB ___ Both ___    

Vendor ID #:                                DBE/HUB Expiration Date:       

        (First 11 Digits Only) 

If no subproviders are used on this contract, please indicate by placing “N/A” on the 1st line under 

Subproviders. 

 

Subprovider(s) 

(List All) 

Type of Work Vendor ID # 

(First 11 Digits 

Only) 

D=DBE 

H=HUB 

Expiration 

Date 

$ Amount or 

% of Work * 

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

Subprovider(s) Contract or % of Work* Totals  

 

*For Work Authorization Contracts, indicate the % of work to be performed by each subprovider. 

Total DBE or HUB Commitment Dollars   $0.00 (DBE)     

Total DBE or HUB Commitment Percentages of Contract    0%  (DBE)      

 (Commitment Dollars and Percentages are for Subproviders only) 

            12/06 DBEH1.AT



 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

ATTACHMENT H-2 

Subprovider Monitoring System Commitment Agreement 

This commitment agreement is subject to the award and receipt of a signed contract from the Hidalgo County 

Regional Mobility Authority (Authority).  NOTE: Attachment H-2 is required to be attached to each contract 

that does not include work authorizations.  Attachment H-2 is required to be attached with each work 

authorization.  Attachment H-2 is also required to be attached to each supplemental work authorization.  If 

DBE/HUB Subproviders are used, the form must be completed and signed.  If no DBE/HUB Subproviders are 

used, indicate with “N/A” on this line: __________ and attach with the work authorization or supplemental 

work authorization.   

Contract #:              Assigned Goal: 6.0%   Prime Provider  Atlas Technical Consultants LLC    

Work Authorization (WA)#:              WA Amount:         $0             Date:          

Supplemental Work Authorization (SWA) #: _____ to WA #:                         SWA Amount:                            

Revised WA Amount:                          

Description of Work 

(List by category of work or task description.  Attach additional pages, if 

necessary.) 

Dollar Amount 

(For each category of work or task 

description shown.) 

FC  $0 

FC  $0 

Total Commitment Amount (Including all additional pages.) $0 

IMPORTANT: The signatures of the prime and the DBE/HUB and Second Tier Subprovider, if any (both DBE and Non-

DBE) and the total commitment amount must always be on the same page. 

Provider Name:  Atlas Technical Consultants LLC 

Address:  1959 Saratoga Blvd., Bld. 12 

                  Corpus Christi, TX 78417 

VID Number:  

PH: & FAX: 361-510-9317 

Email:  marvin.garcia@oneatlas.com 

 

Name:   Marvin Garcia P.E.                

(Please Print) 

Title: Senior Vice President-Regional Director of Operations.  

 

       

Signature                             Date 

DBE/HUB Sub Provider 

Subprovider Name:   

VID Number:  

Address:  

PH:  

Email:  

 

Name:  ____________________   

(Please Print) 

Title:                            ______ 

 

       

Signature                             Date 

Second Tier Sub Provider 

Subprovider Name: 

VID Number: 

Address: 

Phone #& Fax #: 

Email: 

 

Name:       

(Please Print) 

Title:       

 

       

Signature                             Date 

VID Number is the Vendor Identification Number issued by the Comptroller.  If a firm does not have a VID Number, please 

enter the owner’s Social Security or their Federal Employee Identification Number (if incorporated). 

 



 

                                                                  HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 

ATTACHMENT H-3 

Subprovider Monitoring System for Federally Funded Contracts 

Progress Assessment Report for month of (Mo./Yr.)  _____________/________ 

 
Contract #:          Original Contract Amount:        $402,877.44                 

Date of Execution:          Approved Supplemental Agreements:           $0                

Prime Provider:  Atlas Technical Consultants LLC Total Contract Amount:        $0                

Work Authorization No. :                                                                          Work Authorization Amount:                   $0                                            

If no subproviders are used on this contract, please indicate by placing “N/A” on the 1st line under Subproviders. 

 

DBE All Subproviders Category of Work 

Total            

Subprovider 

Amount 

% Total 

Contract 

Amount 

Amount 

Paid This 

Period 

Amount Paid   

To Date 

Subcontract  

Balance 

Remaining 

        

 
 

      

        
 

 

      

 
 

      

        

        
        
        
Fill out Progress Assessment Report with each estimate/invoice submitted, for all subcontracts, and forward as follows: 

1 Copy with Invoice - Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Office 

I hereby certify that the above is true and correct statement of the amounts paid to the firms listed above. 

       

Print Name - Company Official /DBE Liaison Officer Signature Phone Date 

    

Email 

 

 Fax  

                                                             



 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 
 

 

ATTACHMENT H-4 

 

Subprovider Monitoring System 

Final Report 

 

The Final Report Form should be filled out by the Prime Provider and submitted to the Contract Manager and the 

Business Opportunity Programs Office for review upon completion of the contract.  The report should reflect all 

subcontract activity on the project.  The report will aid in expediting the final estimate for payment.  If the HUB 

or DBE goal requirements were not met, documentation supporting good faith efforts must be submitted. 

 

DBE Goal:    6.0    %                OR                     HUB Goal:      % 

 

Total Contract Amount:  $0                          Total Contract Amount:  $402,877.44 

 

Contract Number:   

 

Vendor ID # Subprovider Total $ Amount Paid to Date 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

TOTAL  

 

This is to certify that            % of the work was completed by the HUB or DBE subproviders as stated above. 

    

 By:  Prime Provider 

 

   

  Per: Signature 

 

Subscribed and sworn to before me, this                day of                               , 20 __ 

 

____________________Notary Public                               County 

 

My Commission expires:  

                                                                                                                                                        

12/06   DBE-H4.A



 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

ATTACHMENT H-5 

 

Federal Subprovider and Supplier Information 

 

The Provider shall indicate below the name, address and phone number of all successful and unsuccessful 

subproviders and/or suppliers that provided proposals/quotes for this contract prior to execution.  You may 

reproduce this form if additional space is needed.  

 

Name Address Phone Number 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 

The information must be provided and returned with the contract. 

  

__________________________________        

Signature           Date 

 

{Signatory Name, Position}                                                         

Printed Name           Email                 Phone # 

  



 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

 

ATTACHMENT H-6 

 

Authority/State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan Prime Contractor Progress Assessment Report 

 

Date of Award: Object   Code:

(mm/dd/yyyy) (Agency Use Only)

State of Texas VID #:

Phone #:

Subcontractor’s VID or HUB 

Certificate Number

*Texas 

Certified 

HUB?    

(Yes or No)

Total Contract $ 

Amount from HSP 

with Subcontractor

Total $ Amount Paid 

This Reporting Period 

to Subcontractor

Total Contract $ 

Amount Paid to Date 

to Subcontractor
Object Code     
(Agency Use Only)

-$                              -$                                  -$                              

-$                              -$                                  -$                              

-$                              -$                                  -$                              

-$                              -$                                  -$                              

-$                              -$                                  -$                              

-$                              -$                                  -$                              

-$                              -$                                  -$                              

-$                              -$                                  -$                              

-$                              -$                                  -$                              

-$                              -$                                  -$                              

-$                              -$                                  -$                              

-$                              -$                                  -$                              

-$                              -$                                  -$                              

-$                              -$                                  -$                              

-$                              -$                                  -$                              

-$                              -$                                  -$                              

-$                              -$                                  -$                              

-$                              -$                                  -$                              

-$                              -$                                  -$                              

-$                              -$                                  -$                              

-$                              -$                                  -$                              

-$                              -$                                  -$                              

-$                              -$                                  -$                              

-$                              -$                                  -$                              

-$                              -$                                  -$                              

-$                              -$                                  -$                              

-$                              -$                                  -$                              

-$                              -$                                  -$                              

-$                              -$                                  -$                              

Rev. 10/07

-$                                                           Total Amount Paid this Reporting Period to 

Contract/Requisition Number:

Contracting Agency/University Name:

Subcontractor’s Name

This form must be completed and submitted to the contracting agency each month to document compliance with your HSP.

HUB Subcontracting Plan (HSP)

Prime Contractor Progress Assessment Report

TOTALS:

Report HUB and  Non-HUB subcontractor information

*Note: HUB certification status can be verified on-line at: http://www2.cpa.state.tx.us/cmbl/hubonly.html

Signature: _____________________________________________      Title: _____________________________     Date: _____________________

Reporting (Month) Period:

Contractor (Company) Name:

Point of Contact:

 



 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

ATTACHMENT H-7 

 

DBE CERTIFICATIONS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 



 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

ATTACHMENT I 

 

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical 

Consultants for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

ATTACHMENT J 

 

CONFLICTS CERTIFICATION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical 

Consultants for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

ATTACHMENT J 

CONFLICTS CERTIFICATION 
 
 

1.      Business Relationships: 

 

The RMA has adopted a conflict of interest policy which generally requires disclosure 

of any business relationships with RMA board members or key personnel, as 

designated on the Authority’s website. The Conflict of Interest Policy for Consultants, 

the list of Board Members and Key Personnel, and the Disclosure Form can be 

obtained from the RMA website (www.hcrma.net). Engineer all any sub consultants to 

Engineer shall adhere to this policy and provide any required disclosures. 

 

2.      Adverse Matters: 

 

Engineer must disclose conflicts of interest by identifying any matter in which the 

Engineer becomes adverse to the RMA or the Texas Department of Transportation or 

to the State of Texas or any of its boards, agencies, commissions, universities, elected 

or appointed officials, or Hidalgo County during the term of the Agreement.  

 

3.      Direct and Indirect Interest: 

 

The Engineer shall ensure that, during the term of the Agreement, the Engineer, 

including any of its principals, will have no interest, direct or indirect, that would 

conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of Engineer’s obligations under 

the agreement, including, but not limited to, ownership of property in the right-of-way 

of any of the independent projects of the Hidalgo County Roadway System.  The 

Engineer warrants that, in the performance of the Agreement, the Engineer shall not 

employ any person, or subcontract with any entity, having such known interest. 

 

  

 

ENGINEER:    Atlas Technical Consultants LLC__________                         

 

  BY:         

 

                          DATE:         

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

http://www.hcrma.net/


 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical 

Consultants for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

ATTACHMENT K 

DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical 

Consultants for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

ATTACHMENT L 

2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical 

Consultants for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT L 

2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical 

Consultants for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

ATTACHMENT L 

2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 
ATTACHMENT L 

2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

ATTACHMENT L 

2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

ATTACHMENT L 

2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

ATTACHMENT L 

2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

ATTACHMENT L 

2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

ATTACHMENT L 

2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

 
 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

ATTACHMENT L 

2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

 
 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

ATTACHMENT L 

2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

 
 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

ATTACHMENT L 

2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

ATTACHMENT L 

2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

ATTACHMENT L 

2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

ATTACHMENT L 

2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

ATTACHMENT L 

2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

ATTACHMENT L 

2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

ATTACHMENT L 

2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

 
 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

ATTACHMENT L 

2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 
 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

ATTACHMENT L 

2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

ATTACHMENT L 

2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

ATTACHMENT L 

2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

ATTACHMENT L 

2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

ATTACHMENT L 

2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

ATTACHMENT L 

2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

ATTACHMENT L 

2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

ATTACHMENT L 

2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

ATTACHMENT L 

2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

ATTACHMENT L 

2019 Quality Assurance Program for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 
 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 
 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 
 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

ATTACHMENT M 

2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & Testing for Design Bid Build Projects 

 

 

 
 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 
Project Limits Exhibit  

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

Project Limits Exhibit  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A 

 
During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest (hereinafter 

referred to as the "contractor") agrees as follows: 

 
I. Compliance with Regulations: The contractor (hereinafter includes consultants) will comply with the 

Acts and the Regulations relative to Non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S. 

Department of Transportation, (Title o(Modal Operating Administration), as they may be amended from 

time to time, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract. 

 
2. Non-discrimination: The contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract, will 

not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection and retention of 

subcontractors, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The contractor will not 

participate directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by the Acts and the Regulations, 

including employment practices when the contract covers any activity, project, or program set forth in 

Appendix B of 49 CFR Part 21. [Include Modal Operating Administration specific program 

requirements.[ 

 

3. Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: In all 

solicitations, either by competitive bidding, or negotiation made by the contractor for work to be performed 

under a subcontract, including procurements of materials, or leases of equipment, each potential 

subcontractor or supplier will be notified by the contractor of the contractor's obligations under this 

contract and the Acts and the Regulations relative to  Non-discrimination on the grounds ofrace, color, or 

national origin. [Include Modal Operating Administration specific program requirements.] 

 

4. Information and Repo11s: The contractor will provide all information and reports required by the Acts, the 

Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto and will permit access to its books, records, accounts, 

other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the Recipient or the (Title o(Modal 

Operating Administration) to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Acts, Regulations, and 

instructions. Where any information required of a contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who 

fails or refuses to furnish the information, the contractor will so certify to the Recipient or the (Title of 

Modal Operating Administration), as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the 

information. 

 

5. Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of a contractor's noncompliance with the Non­ discrimination 

provisions of this contract, the Recipient will impose such contract sanctions as it or the (Title o(Modal 

Operating Administration) may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to: 

 
a. withholding payments to the contractor under the contract until the contractor complies; and/or 

b. cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract, in whole or in part. 

 
6. Incorporation of Provisions:  The contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs one through six in 

every subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Acts, 

the Regulations and directives issued pursuant thereto. The contractor will take action with respect to any 

subcontract or procurement as the Recipient or the (Title o(Modal Operating Administration) may direct 

as a means of enforcing such provisions  including sanctions for noncompliance.  Provided, that if the 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with litigation by a subcontractor, or supplier because of 

such direction, the contractor may request the Recipient to enter into any litigation to protect the interests of 

the Recipient. In addition, the contractor may request the United States to enter into the litigation to protect 

the interests of the United States. 

 

 

APPENDIX E 

 
During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest (hereinafter 

referred to as the "contractor") agrees to comply with the following non-discrimination statutes and authorities; 

including but not limited to: 
 

Pertinent Non-Discrimination Authorities: 

 
• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits 

discrimination on the basis ofrace, color, national origin); and 49 CFR Part 21. 

• The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 U.S.C. § 

4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired because of 

Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects); 

• Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. § 324 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on the basis of 
sex); 

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as amended, (prohibits 

discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 CFR Part 27; 

• The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on 

the basis of age); 

• Airport and Airway Improvement Act of1982, (49 USC§ 471, Section 47123), as amended, (prohibits 

discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex); 

• The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage and 

applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and 

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms "programs or 

activities" to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, sub-recipients and 

contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally funded or not); 

• Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of 

disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public 

accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131 - 12189) as implemented by Department 

of Transportation regulations at 49 C.F.R. parts 37 and 38; 

• The Federal Aviation Administration's Non-discrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 47123) (prohibits 

discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex); 

• Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and 

Low-Income Populations, which ensures discrimination against minority populations by discouraging 

programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human health or 

environmental effects on minority and low-income populations; 

• Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency, and 

resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination because of limited 

English proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to 

-ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100); 

• Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from discriminating 

because of sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq). 

 

 

 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 

 

 

 

North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) Work Codes 

For Federally Funded Contracts 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 
 

North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) Work Codes 

For Federally Funded Contracts 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 

 
 

North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) Work Codes 

For Federally Funded Contracts 



 

 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants for 

365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

  

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



Item 3D 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS                               X                     AGENDA ITEM                  3D                      
PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED        10/14/2021                    
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE     10/26/2021     
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2021-48 – APPROVAL OF WORK AUTHORIZATION 1 WITH 

ATLAS TECHNICAL CONSULTANTS FOR CONSTRUCTION MATERIAL TESTING 
SERVICES FOR THE 365 TOLLWAY PROJECT._____________________________________                   
 

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Approval of WA No. 1 for CMT Services with Atlas Technical Consultants.                    

                                                                                                                                                           
   
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                              
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2021-48 - Approval of Work 

Authorization 1 with Atlas Technical Consultants, for Construction Material Testing 
Services for the 365 Tollway Project, as presented. ________________________________ 

. 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X_  None 
 
10.       Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:       Approved         Disapproved    X    None 
 
11. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:    X   Approved         Disapproved        X   None 
 
12. Executive Director’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved           None 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Memorandum 
To: Pilar Rodriguez, P.E 

HCRMA, Executive Director 

From: Ramon Navarro, IV, P.E., C.F.M. 
HCRMA, Chief Construction Engineer 

Date: October 19, 2021 

Subject:   RESOLUTION 2021-48 APPROVAL OF WORK AUTHORIZATION 1 WITH 
ATLAS TECHNICAL CONSULTANTS FOR MATERIAL TESTING IN THE 
365 TOLLWAY PROJECT 

GOAL 
Approval and authorization to enter into Work Authorization#1 Construction Material Testing Services 
with Atlas Technical Consultants. 

BASIS 
Atlas Technical Consultants have agreed to provide construction materials testing to assure 
the materials incorporated into 12.23 miles of Segment 1 & 2 [From Anzalduas Highway to 
US Highway 281] on Phase II of 365 Toll highway construction project are subject to 
verification sampling and testing when required and meet project plans and specifications, 
and administering the HCRMA Quality Monitoring and Quality Assurance Program.

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff   recommends   award of contract   in   the   amount of $402,877.44   for a proposed three (3) 
year fixed period of time to conclude no later than December 13, 2025. 



 SUMMARY 

Amount   _________________ 

BRIEF BACKGROUND: 

Staff is recommending approval of this request in the amount of $

Environmental _____________________________________ 

Engineering _______________________________________ 

Geo-Technical _____________________________________ 

Surveying ________________________________________ 

Work Authorization # _______

Resolution No. Description Amount

Goal and Options: 

Approved Work Authorizations:

✔ Atlas Technical Consultants 

                    

                                

                                    

                                   

2021-48

$ 402,877.44

$ 0.00

WA No. 1 - CMT Services for 365 Toll Project2021-48

$ 0.00

Approval of WA 1 for Construction Material Testing for the 365 Tollway Project.  

$ 402,877.44

1

$ 402,877.44

$ 402,877.44

R. Navarro IV, Cons Eng



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2021-48 

APPROVAL OF WORK AUTHORIZATION 1 WITH ATLAS TECHNICAL 
CONSULTANTS FOR CONSTRUCTION MATERIAL TESTING IN THE 365 
TOLLWAY PROJECT 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 26th day of October, 2021, by the Board of Directors of 
the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at a regular meeting. 

WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), 
acting through its Board of Directors (the “Board”), is a regional mobility authority created 
pursuant to Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); 

WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Act to address mobility issues in 
and around Hidalgo County; 

WHEREAS, on February 19, 2014, the Authority issued a solicitation for 
Statements of Qualification for Construction Material Testing Services for the Authority 
(the “Solicitation”); and 

WHEREAS, on March 21, 2014 the Authority received responses to the 
Solicitation; and 

WHEREAS, on April 23, 2014, Resolution 2014-38 authorized Authority staff to 
negotiate and enter into agreements with the top three scored firms (Raba Kistner 
Consultants Inc., L&G Laboratories and Terracon Consultants, Inc.) for Construction 
Material Testing Services (the “Services”); and 

WHEREAS, on July 24, 2018, Resolution 2018-45 authorized Authority staff to 
procure one additional lab to provide additional Services; and 

WHEREAS, on July 29, 2018, the Authority published a second Solicitation; and 
received three (3) responses, of which only one was deemed responsive; 

WHEREAS, on September 25, 2018, the Authority authorized staff to negotiate 
contract terms for the Services to PaveTex Engineering LLC, dba PAVETEX now Atlas 
Technical Consultants, the sole responsive firm that met the professional services criteria 
set forth in the Solicitation; 

WHEREAS, on August 21, 2020, the Authority received five (5) sealed statements 
of qualification packets. An internal committee of three HCRMA staff engineers  ranked and 
reviewed; the Authority determined it necessary to negotiate contract terms to enter into 
negotiations with each of the ranked firms and further approach Board with recommended 
award and distribution of work in accordance to acceptable terms and conditions of 
assignments; and  



WHEREAS on October 27, 2020, the Authority approved Resolution 2020-28 
Approval to enter into negotiations with each of the short-listed firms for Construction 
Material Testing for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority and further approach 
Board with recommended award and distribution of work in accordance to acceptable terms 
and conditions of assignments; and 

WHEREAS the Authority finds it necessary to approve Resolution 2021-47 
Approval of Award of Contract by and between the Atlas Technical Consultants formerly 
known as Pavetex Engineering, LLC, and the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 
for Construction Material Testing Services; and  

WHEREAS the Authority finds it necessary to approve Resolution 2021-48 
Approval of Work Authorization 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with Atlas 
Technical Consultants formerly known as Pavetex Engineering, LLC, for Construction 
Material Testing in the amount of $402,877.44 for the 365 Tollway Project. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY THAT: 

Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 

restated. 

Section 2. The Board hereby approves Work Authorization 1 to the Professional 
Service Agreement with Atlas Technical Consultants, in the amount of 
$402,877.44 for the 365 Tollway Project, hereto attached as Exhibit A, 
hereto attached as Exhibit A.  

Section 3. The Board authorizes the Executive Director to execute Work 
Authorization 1 with Atlas Technical Consultants., as approved by the 
Board. 

***** 



PASSED A ND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY AT A REGULAR MEETING, duly posted and noticed, on the 26th day of 
October 2021, at which meeting a quorum was present. 

S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman

Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Secretary/Treasurer 



Exhibit A 

 

Work Authorization 1  

to the   

Professional Service  

Agreement with 

Atlas Technical Consultants 

For  

Construction Material Testing Services 

 



WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 1 

AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 

THIS WORK AUTHORIZATION is made pursuant to the terms and conditions of “Article V of that certain 
Professional Services Agreement for Engineering Services” (the Agreement) entered into by and between the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (Authority), and Atlas Technical Consultants (the Engineer).

PART I. The Engineer will perform engineering design services generally described as in accordance with the 

project description attached hereto and made a part of this Work Authorization. The responsibilities of the 

Authority and the Engineer as well as the work schedule are further detailed in exhibits C, E and F which are 
attached hereto and made a part of the Work Authorization. 

PART II. The maximum amount payable under this Work Authorization is $ 402,877.44 and the method of 
payment is unit cost/specified rate basis as set forth in Attachment E of the Agreement. This amount is based upon 

fees set forth in Attachment E, Fee Schedule, of the Agreement and the Engineer’s estimated Work Authorization 

costs included in Exhibit D, Fee Schedule, which is attached and made a part of this Work Authorization. 

PART III. Payment to the Engineer for the services established under this Work Authorization shall be made in 

accordance with Articles III thru V of the Agreement, and Attachment A, Section 1. 

PART IV. This Work Authorization shall become effective on the date of final acceptance of the parties hereto 

and shall terminate on Dec. 13, 2025, unless extended by a supplemental Work Authorization as provided in 

Attachment A, Section 1. 

PART V. This Work Authorization does not waive the parties' responsibilities and obligations provided under 

“Article V of that certain Professional Services Agreement for Construction Material Testing Services 365 
Tollway Project / Segment 1 & 2. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Work Authorization is executed in duplicate counterparts and hereby accepted 

and acknowledged below. 

THE ENGINEER THE AUTHORITY 

(Signature) (Signature) 

Marvin Garcia, PE. Pilar Rodriguez, P.E. 
(Printed Name) (Printed Name) 

Vice President Executive Director 
(Title) (Title) 

(Date) (Date) 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical 
Consultants  for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2



GIS powered by
O

P
a

th
: 

G
:\

1
5

4
0

\4
6

5
2

\P
M

C
\G

IS
\E

X
H

IB
IT

S
\2

0
1

5
-1

2
-0

6
 S

H
3

6
5

+
IB

T
C

 P
ro

je
c
t 

M
a

p
 (

w
 C

S
J
s
).

m
x
d

EXHIBIT C
HCRMA PROJECT 
LOCATION  MAP
Project

IBTC (0010)

SH 365 (0030)

Date: 12/7/2015

0 0.45 0.90.225
Miles

Author: E. Davila

Scale:

SH 365 Phase I (Segs. 1 & 2) CSJ: 3627-01-001
- A toll improvement being a controlled access facility
- FM 396 (Anzalduas Highway) to US 281 Military Highway

SH 365 Phase I (Seg. 3) CSJ: 0220-01-023
- A non-toll improvement being a widening to a 4 lane divided
w/ an overpass at San Juan Rd (a part of SH 365 Segment 3)

- 0.45 Miles East of Spur 600 to FM 2557 (Stewart Road)
SH 365 Phase I (Seg. 3) CSJ: 0921-02-337
- A non-toll improvement being a local collector (a part of
SH 365 Segment 3)

- SP 29 / Veterans Drive at the BSIF to US 281
SH 365 Phase II (Seg. 4) CSJ: 3627-01-002
- A toll improvement being a controlled access facility
- FM 1016 (Conway Ave) to FM 396 (Anzalduas Highway)

IBTC (Segs. 1, 2 & 3) CSJ: 0921-02-142
- A toll improvement being a controlled access facility
- from the Interchange w/ SH 365 at FM 3072 / Dicker Rd to

I-2 and to FM 493



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical 
Consultants  for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT C



ATTACHMENT C 
SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE ENGINEER 

HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical 
Consultants for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

APPLICABILITY: 

Wherever the following terms are used in this attachment or other contract documents, the intent and meaning will be interpreted as 
indicated below. 

ABBREVIATIONS, ABBREVIATIONS, and DEFINITIONS: 

HCRMA OR AUTHORITY shall mean Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 
PMC (GEC) shall mean Program Management Consultant (General Engineering Consultant) (HDR Engineering Inc.) 
 ENGINEER shall mean Atlas Technical Consultants   
TxDOT shall mean Texas Department of Transportation 
FHWA shall mean Federal Highway Administration 
IBWC shall mean International Boundary and Water Commission 
USFWS shall mean United States Fish & Wildlife Service 
THC shall mean Texas Historical Commission 
SHPO shall mean State Highway Preservation Office 
USACE shall mean United States Army Corps of Engineers 
GSA shall mean General Services Administration 
HCMPO shall mean Hidalgo County Metropolitan Planning Organization 
FAA shall mean Federal Aviation Administration 
MTP shall mean Metropolitan Transportation Plan 
TIP shall mean Transportation Improvement Program 
MUTCD shall mean Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices 
AASHTO shall mean American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials 
LRFD shall mean Load & Resistance Factor Design 
PS&E shall mean Plans, Specifications and Estimate 
ACP shall mean Asphaltic Concrete Pavement 
CSJ shall mean Control Section Job (highway project designation number) 
ADP shall mean Advance Project Development 
AAP AASHTO Accreditation Program (AASHTO re:source and CCRL) 
AASHTO American Association of State Highway Transportation Officials 
ACI shall mean American Concrete Institute 
AO shall mean Area Office 
AQMP shall mean Aggregate Quality Monitoring Program 
CAR shall mean Corrective Action Report 
CCRL shall mean Concrete and Cement Reference Laboratory 
CE&I shall mean Construction Engineering and Inspection 
CFR shall mean Code of Federal Regulations 
MTD shall mean Materials and Tests Division 
CMEC shall mean Construction Materials Engineering Council 
FHWA shall mean Federal Highway Administration 
HMA shall mean Hot-Mix Asphalt 
HMAC shall mean Hot-Mix Asphalt Center 
IA shall mean Independent Assurance 
L-A-B shall mean Laboratory Accreditation Bureau
MPL shall mean Material Producer List
QAP shall mean Quality Assurance Program
QAT shall mean Quality Assurance Test
QC shall mean Quality Control
SM shall mean SiteManager
TXAPA shall mean Texas Asphalt Pavement Association
TxDOT shall mean Texas Department of Transportation



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical 
Consultants  for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT C 
SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE ENGINEER 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The services designated herein as “Services provided by the Engineer” shall include the performance of all 
engineering services for the following described facility: 

County/HCRMA: Hidalgo County   

CSJ number:  0921-02-368 

Project/Description:   Provide construction materials testing to assure the materials incorporated into 12.23 miles 
of Segment 1 and 2 [From Anzalduas Highway east to US Hwy 281] on Phase II of 365 Toll highway 
construction project are subject to_verification sampling and testing when required and meet project plans an 
specifications; and administering Quality Monitoring and Quality Assurance Program.  

Length:   12.23 Miles (Approx) 

Highway: 

Limits:  

  365TOLL (Segment 1 & 2)  

 From Anzalduas Highway east to  US 281 Military Hwy (See Location Map Attached) 

Contract is for “indefinite delivery/indefinite quantity [IDIQ] set for a proposed three (3) year fixed period of 
time, during that period of time the Engineer will be responsible for an unlimited number of separate projects, 
or additional work on a current project to be issued on an individual work order basis. 

The Engineer agency(s) must be accredited by one of the following FHWA- and TxDOT-approved accrediting 
bodies: 
A. AASHTO Accreditation Program (AAP);
B. Construction Materials Engineering Council (CMEC); or
C. Laboratory Accreditation Bureau (L-A-B)

The Engineer shall have Texas Department of Transportation or Toll Authority/Regional Mobility Authority as 
well U.S. Army Corps of Engineers’ construction material testing experience and is expected to work directly 
with the HCRMA Construction Division, namely, the Chief Construction Engineer for the Authority. The 
selected Engineer(s) may also perform certain tasks under the oversight of the HCRMA's General Engineering 
Consultant (Currently HDR Engineering Inc.).  

To avoid an appearance of a conflict of interest, any qualified Engineer agency (laboratory) shall perform only 
one of the following types of testing on the same project: 
A. Quality control testing;
B. Quality acceptance testing;
C. Owner verification testing;
D. Independent assurance testing; or
E. Referee testing.



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical 
Consultants  for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

The selected Engineer(s) shall have adequate experienced staff and a workload free from constraints to provide 
the necessary construction material testing for the HCRMA. Staff expertise is to include a Licensed Professional 
Engineer and certified, experienced staff proficient with TxDOT testing procedures, sampling and testing 
schedule, and the latest ASSHTO, ASTM and ACI testing requirements [Appendix A] performed and executed 
as per 2019 TxDOT Quality Assurance Program (DB-QAP / DBB-QAP) / 2019 Guide Schedule of Sampling & 
Testing for Design Bid-Build Projects. 

Engineer will compose and submit an annual report to the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) 
summarizing the results of HCRMA’s project specific systems approach program. This report identifies: 
A. Number of sampling and testing personnel evaluated by the systems approach IA testing;
B. Number of IA evaluations found to be acceptable;
C. Number of IA evaluations found to be unacceptable; and
D. Summary of any significant system-wide corrective actions taken.

The Engineer will be responsible for maintaining documentation of all individuals qualified under their 
authority who perform required tests for acceptance of materials. A qualification summary listing all tests for 
which an individual is qualified will be available and printed at HCRMA’s request. Documentation to be 
maintained for all qualified personnel includes: 
A. Copies of any certificates issued by ACI and TXAPA ;
B. Original written examinations for test procedures administered to each technician by

the TxDOT qualifying authority, with clear identification of technician’s name, qualifier’s name, score, and date
taken;

C. Original performance examinations for test procedures administered to each technician by the TxDOT qualifying
authority, with clear identification of technician’s name, qualifier’s name, qualification status, and date;

D. Results of annual split/proficiency testing administered by the TxDOT qualifying
authority for each technician.

Engineer shall perform Quality Control / Quality Assurance sampling and testing and comply with  Laboratory 
Qualification Program and will be evaluated under the Independent Assurance Program, as described in the 
2019 QAPDBB [Attachment L]. Quality Control test results will be validated by verification test results 
obtained from independently taken samples. IA personnel or their designated agents will perform Quality 
Assurance verification sampling and testing. 

1. The Engineer shall perform all sampling and testing of components and materials in accordance with the standard
specifications, and all other standard and special specifications and special provisions applicable in this agreement. Meet
the minimum sampling frequencies set out in the TxDOT 2019 Guide Schedule for Sampling and Testing forDesign Bid-
Build Projects. The testing shall include the following materials and all the components of the materials listed. The
estimated number of samples and tests are based on quantities in the executed construction contract.
2. The Engineer shall ensure the testing is completed and input into ProjectWise. NOTE: The General Contractor is
responsible for Quality Control (QC) testing of Item 360, Concrete Paving.  The Engineer shall be responsible for Quality
Assurance (QA) testing of Item 360, Concrete Paving.
3. The Engineer shall provide certified personnel, outlined in their internal, AASHTO-approved, Quality Control
(QC) Manual that are knowledgeable of all materials testing procedures. All personnel performing acceptance tests must
provide certifications and must maintain the certifications throughout the project. The HCRMA reserves the right to
require replacement of any technician during this contract if performance is determined to be unsatisfactory or the
technician fails to maintain appropriate certifications.
4. Engineer's laboratory will be qualified by the HCRMA qualifying authority in accordance with Section 3,
Laboratory Qualification Responsibility of the Texas Department of Transportation
(TxDOT) Quality Assurance Program (Manual Notice: 2005-1), and be AASHTO accredited under the AASHTO
Accreditation Program (AAP) throughout the life of the project. Engineer shall transmit, to the HCRMA, a copy of AAP
accreditation certificate(s) upon receipt by the testing laboratory.



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical 
Consultants  for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

5. The Engineer shall provide technicians certified in accordance with TxDOT Quality Assurance Program for
Construction (QAP) or other State approved programs, such as the Texas Asphalt Pavement Association (TxAPA) for Hot
Mix Asphalt, and the Soils and Base Certification Program, as listed.

6. The Engineer shall provide certified technicians to perform the following tests:
A. Hot Mix Asphalt Testing:

a. Level l-A
b. Level l-B
c. Hot Mix Asphalt Testing • Level II
d. All other tests in the Manual of Testing Procedures 200-F Series or ASTM Procedures not

covered in Level l-A, Level l-B, or Level II
B. Concrete Testing:

a. QAP Program for Concrete Testing
b. Other tests outlined in the Manual of Testing Procedures 400-A Series or ASTM Procedures that

are not included in the QAP Program
7. The Engineer shall perform testing on the project. These tests include all tests listed in State's Guide Schedule
of Sampling and Testing dated 2015. Follow the State’s Guide Schedule of Sampling and Testing to establish
testing frequencies. Testing frequencies may be increased as directed by the HCRMA.
8. The Engineer shall notify the HCRMA, to determine if any tests may be waived
9. The Engineer shall attend preconstruction QA and QC testing meetings prior to beginning work.
10. The Engineer shall:

A. Review and recommend approval or rejection of the Quality Control (QC) sampling and testing
documentation submitted by the General Contractor for compliance with applicable State and Federal regulations,
standards, and contract requirements.
B. Verify all tested materials used meet specifications, or identify materials that do not meet
specifications and recommend action which should be taken.
C. Certify that all tested materials used during construction meet the specifications as outlined in the
Appia Support System.
D. Work closely with the HCRMA to resolve all material discrepancies before the next monthly estimate is
processed by utilizing the Reports in Appia.
E. Enter all test data in Appia.
F. Enter all mix designs, concrete and asphalt, provided by the General Contractor into Appia.
G. The Engineer shall report failing tests to the HCRMA within twenty-four (24) hours.

SUMMARY OF DELIVERABLES: 
The Engineer shall provide the following: 
1. Monthly Progress Reports
2. Quarterly Material Test Reports
3. Sampling and testing personnel qualification
4. Final document file (maintained in project control system during project execution. Final structure of file will be

determined during project implementation, an example of content is provided below)
A. Construction Oversight Documentation

a. Testing reports and Testing documentation as applicable
b. Test Exception Letter
c. Certification Verifications
d. Photographs

B. Project Correspondence File (Design and Construction)
a. E-mail files
b. Letters
c. Memos
d. Meeting Minutes
e. Monthly Deficiency Reports to track material issues (one (1) per month)



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical 
Consultants.  for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

f. Misc. correspondence



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical 
Consultants  for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT E 

FEE SCHEDULE 



TEST
NO.

Geotechnical Services Unit

FINAL 

NEGOTIATED 

RATES 

9/3/2021  COMMENTS 

1 Mobilization/Demobilization each 550.00$             
Drilling, Logging, &Recovering Samples (With TCP) per mile 6.00$                  $6/mile for anything < 67 

2A 1. Depth ≤ 50 feet
Tex-132-E 

(every 5 feet) 27.50$               

2B 2. Depth ≥ 50 feet linear foot 29.50$               
Drilling, Logging, &Recovering Samples (Without TCP)

3A 1. Depth ≤ 50 feet linear foot 25.00$               

3B 2. Depth ≥ 50 feet linear foot 28.00$               

4 Rock Coring (Soft Rock)⁽²⁾ linear foot 12.50$               

5 Rock Coring (Hard Rock)⁽²⁾ linear foot 16.00$               

6 Staking Borings and Utility Locations hour 109.03$             

Standby Time (sampling) hour 250.00$             

7A 1. Hot Mix Asphalt (minumum of one hour) each 80.50$               

7B 2. Concrete (minumum of one hour) each 86.25$               

8 Piezometer - 2 inch (including well completion and installation) linear foot 40.00$               

9 Grouting of Borings linear foot 5.00$                 

10 Traffic Control - Major day 2,500.00$         

Laboratory Test Test Method Unit

11 Volumetric Shrinkage ASTM D427 each 70.00$               

12 Standard Poor Test ASTM D698 each 210.00$             

13 Modified Poor Test ASTM D1557 each 250.00$             

14 Standard Penetration Test (SPT) ASTM D1586 LF 26.00$               

15 California Bearing Ratio (Single Sample without MD Curve) ASTM D1883 test 250.00$             

16 Unconfined Compressive Strength (Soil) ASTM D2166 each 62.00$               

17 Hydraulic Conductivity Permeability ASTM D2434 each 330.00$             

18 One Dimensional Consolidation Properties of Soil ASTM D2435 each 350.00$             

19 Unconfined Compressive Strength (Rock) ASTM D2938 each 70.00$               

20 Direct Shear Test of Soils Under Consolidated Drained Conditions ASTM D3080 set of 3 600.00$             

21 Direct Shear Test of Soils Under Consolidated Drained Conditions, SAND ASTM D3080 set of 3 450.00$             

22 Direct Shear Test of Soils Under Consolidated Drained Conditions, CLAY ASTM D3080 set of 3 600.00$             

23 Splitting Tensile of Intact Rock Core ASTM D3967 each 125.00$             

24 Water Stand Pipes ASTM D4043 each 30.00$               

25 Calcium Carbonate Content of Soils ASTM D4373 LF 50.00$               

26 Hydraulic Conductivity Permeability ASTM D4511 each 260.00$             

27 One Dimensional Swell, Methods A&B ASTM D4546 each 110.00$             

28 One Dimensional Swell, Method B Only ASTM D4546 each 300.00$             

29 One Dimensional Swell, Method C ASTM D4546 each 205.00$             

30 Permeability of Silt and Clays ASTM D5084 each 300.00$             

31 Suction Test (Filter Method) ASTM D5298 each 70.00$               

32 Casagrande Type Piezometers N/A each 350.00$             

33 Casagrande Type Piezometers Installation N/A each 430.00$             

34 Miscellaneous Testing N/A each 250.00$              Item has been eliminated

35 Vertical Inclinometer N/A each 350.00$             

36 Vertical Inclinometer Installation N/A each 600.00$             

37 Vibrating Wire Piezometer N/A each 750.00$             

38 Vibrating Wire Piezometer Installation N/A each 750.00$             

39 Soil Boring with SPT ASTM D1586 LF 25.00$               

Laboratory Test Test Method

Soils & Base Testing

40 Sampling Tex-400-A hour 55.00$               

41 Sample Preparation Tex-101-E each 53.00$               

42 Determining Slaking Time Tex-102-E each 50.00$               

43 Moisture Content Tex-103-E each 13.00$               

44
Atterburg Limits

Tex-
104,105&106-
E

Set of 3
75.00$               

45 Linear Bar Shrinkage (per bar) Tex-107-E each 60.00$               

46 Determining the Specific Gravity of Soils Tex-108-E each 62.00$               

47 Sieve Analysis
Tex-110-E, 
Part I

each 65.00$               

48 Sieve Analysis (Hydrometer with Tex-108-E)
Tex-110-E, 
Part II

each 75.00$               

CMT Firm: Atlas Technical Consultants [ATLAS]
Date: 09/07/2021 2020‐23



49 Hydrometer with Tex-108-E (in conjunctin with Tex-110-E, Part II) Tex-108-E each 50.00$               

50 Percent Passing No. 200 Sieve Tex-111-E each 42.00$               

51 Determining the Amount of Material in Solis Finer than the 75 mi Tex-111-E each 42.00$               

52 Admixing Lime to Reduce Plasticity Index of Soils Tex-112-E each 87.00$               

53 Moisture-Density Relationship Tex-113-E each 240.00$             

54 Moisture-Density Relationship Tex-114-E each 215.00$             

55 Field Density Measurements Tex-115-E hour 50.00$               

56 Wet Ball Mill Test Tex-116-E each 230.00$             

57 Texas Triaxial Compression ⁽⁶⁾
Tex-117-E, 
Part I

each 400.00$             

58 Texas Triaxial Compression ⁽⁶⁾
Tex-117-E, 
Part II

each 1,050.00$         

59 Quality Assurance (QA) Series for Flexible Base ⁽⁷⁾ ⁽⁸⁾
See Foot 
Notes

each 1,800.00$         

60 Soil- Cement Testing ⁽⁷⁾
Tex-120-E, 
Part II

each 300.00$             

61 Soil- Lime Testing ⁽⁷⁾
Tex-121-E, 
Part II

each 400.00$             

61.1 Soil-Lime Testing Determining Stabilization Ability of Lime by Soil pH
Tex-121-E, 
Part III

each 350.00$             

62 Determining the Drainage Factor of Soil Materials (Not Field Test) Tex-123-E ++ each 68.00$               

63 Determining Modulus of Sub-grade Recaction (K Value) (Not Field Test) Tex-125-E ++ each 95.00$               

64 Molding, Testing, and Evaluation Bituminous Black Base Materials Tex-126-E ++ each 250.00$             

65 Lime-Fly Ash Compression ⁽⁷⁾ Tex-127-E each 719.39$             

66 Soil pH Tex-128-E each 41.00$               

67 Resistivity of Soils Tex-129-E each 90.00$               

68 Slurry Testing Tex-130-E each 95.00$               

69 Texas Cone Penetration Tex-132-E each 32.00$               

70 Freezing and Thawing Tests oc Compacted Soil-Cement Mixture Tex-135-E each 240.00$             

71 Thickness of Pavement Layers (4 hour minimum) Tex-140-E hour 50.00$               

72 Manual Procedure for Description and Identification of Soils Tex-141-E each 45.00$               

73 Laboratory Classification os Soils for Engineering Purposes Tex-142-E each 50.00$               

74 Sulfate Content in Soils Tex-145-E each 75.00$               

75 Conductivity Test for Field Detection of Sulfates in Soil Tex-146-E each 65.00$               

75.1 Organic Content Using UV-VIS Method Tex-148-E each 150.00$             

76 Determining Cholride and Sulfate Contents in Soils Tex-620-J each 80.00$               

77 Free Swell Test
EM1110-2-
1906

each 150.00$             

78 Pressure Swell Test
EM1110-2-
1906

each 250.00$             

79 One-Dimensional Swell ASTM D4546 each 110.00$             

80 One-Dimensional Swell (Method B Only) ASTM D4546 each 150.00$             

81 Potential Vertical Rise Calculation Tex-124-E each 65.00$               

82 Volumetric Shrinkage ASTM D4943 each 95.00$               

83 Volumetric Shrinkage ASTM D427 each 50.00$               

84 Unconfined Compression Test (Soil) ASTM D2166 each 50.00$               

85 Unconfined Compression Test (Rock) ASTM D2938 each 70.00$               

86 Unconfined Compression Test (Rock) (Method D) ASTM D7012 each 55.00$               

Unconsolidated Undrained (UU) Triaxial Compression Test

87 1. Set of Three Tex-118-E set 275.00$             

88 2. Multistage Tex-118-E each 250.00$             

Consolidated Undrained (CU) Triaxial Compression Test

89 1. Set of Three
Tex-131-E or 
ASTM D4767

set 1,200.00$         

90 2. Multistage
Tex-131-E or 
ASTM D4767

each 1,000.00$         

Consolidated Drained (CD) Triaxial Compression Test

91 1. Set of Three
Tex-131-E or 
ASTM D4767

set 850.00$             

92 2. Multistage
Tex-131-E or 
ASTM D4767

each 370.00$             

93 Direct Shear Consolidated Drained (CD), sand ASTM D3080 set of 3 425.00$             

94 Direct Shear Consolidated Drained (CD), clay ASTM D3080 set of 3 650.00$             

95 One-Dimensional Consolidation Test (7 load increments) ASTM D2435 each 589.80$             

96 Resilient Modulus (fine-grained soils)
AASHTO 
T307

each 950.00$             

Hot Mix Asphalt Testing

97 Sieve Analysis of Fine and Coarse Aggregates Tex-200-F each 68.33$               

98 Bulk Specific Gravity and Water Absorption of Aggregates Tex-201-F each 75.00$               

99 Apparent Specific Gravity of Material Finer Than 180 µm (No. 80) Sieve Tex-202-F each 48.25$               

100 Sand Equivalent Test Tex-203-F each 85.00$               

101 Labortory Method of Mixing Bituminous Mixtures Tex-205-F Set of 3 85.00$               



102 Compacting Specimens Using the Texas Gyratory Compactor (TG Tex-206-F Set of 3 80.00$               

103 Determining Bulk Specific Gravity of Compacted Bituminuous Mixtures Tex-207-F (I) each 27.00$               

104
Determining In-Place Density of Compacted Bituminuous Mixtures (Nuclear 
Method) Tex-207-F (III) each 40.00$               

105 Asphalt Rolling Pattern (Nuclear Method) Tex-207-F (IV) each 80.00$               

106 Segregation Profile Tex-207-F (V) each 160.00$             

107 Joint Density Tex-207-F (VII) each 160.00$             

108 Test of Stabilometer Value of Bituminous Mixtures Tex-208-F set of 3 110.00$             

109 Determining Asphalt Content of Bituminous Mixtures by Extraction Tex-210-F each 142.00$             

110 Recovery of Asphalt from Bituminou Mixtures by the Abson Pro Tex-211-F each 210.00$             

111 Determining Moisture Content of Bituminous Mixtures Tex-212-F each 43.00$               

112 Determining Hydrocarbon-Volatile Content of Bituminous Mixture Tex-213-F each 105.00$             

113
Determining Deleterious Material and Decantation Test for Coarse 
Aggregates Tex-217-F each 78.84$               

114 Indirect Tensile Strength Test Tex-226-F each 475.00$             

115 Theoretical Maximum Specific Gravity of Bituminous Mixtures Tex-227-F each 90.00$               

116 Determining Asphalt Content of Bituminous Mixtures by the Nuclear Tex-228-F each 60.00$               

117 Combined HMAC Cold-Belt Sampling and Testing Procedure Tex-229-F each 68.33$               

118 Determining Draindown Characteristics in Bituminous Mixtures Tex-235-F each 55.00$               

119
Determining Asphalt Content from Asphalt Paving Mixtures by the Ignition 
Method Tex-236-F each 130.00$             

120 Asphalt Release Agents Tex-239-F each 50.00$               

121 Superpave Gyratory Compacting of Test Specimens of Bituminous Tex-241-F each 125.00$             

122 Hamburg Wheel Tracker Tex-242-F each 380.00$             

123 Tack Coat Adhesion Tex-243-F each 100.00$             

124 Thremal Profile Tex-244-F each 126.14$             

125 Cantabro Loss Tex-245-F each 175.00$             

126 Permeability or Water Flow of Hot Mix Asphalt Tex-246-F each 63.00$               

127 Overlay Test Tex-248-F set of 3 625.00$             

128 Flat and Elongated Particles Tex-280-F each 56.00$               

129 Sampling Bituminous Materials, Pre-Molded Joint Fillers, and Joint Tex-500-C each 55.00$               

130 Asphalt Binder Water in Petroleum 501-C AASHTO each 93.00$               

131 Penetration of Bituminous Materials 502-C AASHTO each 75.00$               

132 Ductility of Asphalt Materials 503-C AASHTO each 110.00$             

133 Flash and Fire Points by Cleveland Open Cup 504-C AASHTO each 60.00$               

134 Softening Point of Bitumen (Riing and Ball Apparatus 505-C AASHTO each 90.00$               

135 Solubility of Bituminous Materials 507-C AASHTO each 100.00$             

136 Specific Gravity 508-C AASHTO each 70.00$               

137 Spot Test of Asphaltic Materials 509-C AASHTO each 155.00$             

138 Effect of Heat and Air on Asphalt Materials (Thin-Film Oven Test) 510-C AASHTO each 63.00$               

139 Flash Point with Tag Open-Cup Apparatus for Use with Material H 512-C AASHTO each 68.00$               

140 Saybolt Viscosity 513-C AASHTO each 75.00$               

141

Cutback Asphalts - Specific Gravity, API Gravity, or Density of Cutback 
Asphalts by Hdyrometer Method; Emulsified Asphalts - Weight per Gallon 
of Emulsified Asphalt

Tex-514-C 
ASTM D3142 
ASTM D244

each
130.00$             

142 Distillation of Cutback Asphalt Products 515-C AASHTO each 170.00$             

143 Float Test for Bituminous Materials 519-C AASHTO each 70.00$               

144 Standard Test Method for Emulsified Asphalts 521-C AASHTO each 190.00$             

145 Viscosity of Asphalts by Vacuum Capillary Viscometer 528-C AASHTO each 35.00$               

146 Kinematic Viscosity of Asphalts (Bitumens) 529-C AASHTO each 75.00$               

147 Boil Test (Effect of Water on Paving Mix) Tex-530/531-C each 125.00$             

148 Field Coring - ACP Thickness ASTM D3549 each 100.00$             

149 Pavement Thickness Determin. (Full Depth) ASTM D3549 each 125.00$             

150 Determining Polymer Additive Percentages in Polymer Modified Tex-533-C each 60.00$               

151 Calculating Viscosity from Penetration Tex-535-C each 75.00$               

152 Elastic Recovery of Tensile Deformation Using a Ductilometer Tex-539-C each 65.00$               

153 Measurement of Polymer Separation on Heating in Modified Asphalat Tex-540-C each 55.00$               

154 Rolling Thin Film Oven Test for Asphalt Binders 541-C ASSHTO each 100.00$             

155 Flexural Creep Stiffness Using the Bending Beam Rheometer AASHTO T313 each 110.00$             

156 Determining Rheological Properties of Asphalt Binder Using a Dy AASHTO T315 each 120.00$             

157 Determining Breaking Index for Asphalt Emulsions Tex-542-C each 215.00$             

158 Resilience Test for Sealants and Repair Materials Tex-547-C each 200.00$             

159 Tensile Strain to Failure Tex-548-C each 60.00$               

160 Cone Flow Test Tex-549-C each 55.00$               

161 Flexibility Test for Sealants and Repair Materials Tex-550-C each 190.00$             

162 Settlement of Sealants and Repair Materials Tex-551-C each 88.00$               

Concrete & Aggregate Testing

163 Sieve Analysis for Conc. Agg Tex-401-A each 73.58$               

164 Fineness Modulus for Conc. Agg Tex-402-A each 18.00$               

165 SSD Specific Gravity / Absorption Conc. Agg Tex-403-A each 70.00$               



166 Unit Weight of Conc. Agg Tex-404-A each 40.00$               

167 Determining Pecent Voids and Solids in Concrete Tex-405-A each 65.00$               

168 Decantation for Conc. Agg Tex-406-A each 50.00$               

169 Organic Impurities for Conc. Agg Tex-408-A each 44.00$               

170 Free Moisture and Water Absorption in Aggregate for Concrete Tex-409-A each 55.00$               

171 L.A. Abrasion Tex-410-A each 300.00$             

172 5 Cycle Magnesium Soundness Tex-411-A each 450.00$             

173 Deleterious Material for Conc. Agg Tex-413-A each 60.00$               

174 Air Content of Fresh Concrete by Volumeteric Tex-414-A each 30.00$               

175 Slump of Fresh Concrete Tex-415-A each 40.00$               

176 Air Content of Fresh Concrete by Pressure Tex-416-A each 26.28$               

177 Unit Weight, Yield and Air Content (Gravimetric) of Concrete Tex-417-A each 30.00$               

178 Comp. Strength of Cyl. Conc. Specimen Tex-418-A each 20.00$               

179 Measure Temp. of Fresh Conc. Tex-422-A each 20.00$               

180 Obtaining & Testing Drilled Conc. Cores Tex-424-A each 250.00$             

181 Absorption and Dry Bulk Specific Gravity of Lightweight Coarse Tex-433-A each 80.00$               

182 Test Flow of Grout Mixtures (Flow Cone Method) Tex-437-A each 65.00$               

183 Accelerated Polish Test for Coarse Aggregate Tex-438-A each 875.00$             

184 Det. Comp. Strength of Grouts Tex-442-A each 18.00$               

185 Making & Curing Conc. Test Specimen Tex-447-A each 14.00$               

186 Flexural Strength of Concrete Using Simple Beam Third-Point Load Tex-448-A each 40.00$               

187 Capping Cyl. Conc. Specimen Tex-450-A each 25.00$               

188 Degradation of Coarse Aggregate by Micro-Devel Abrasion Tex-461-A each 266.50$             

189 Uniformity of Concrete Tex‐472‐A each 110.00$             

Additional Testing Test Method Unit

190 Geogrid Testing Tex-621-J each 740.00$             

191 Water Quality Testing Tex-619-J each 145.00$             

192 Lime Testing Tex-600-J each 300.00$             

193 Operating Inertial Profilers and Evaluating Pavement Profiles Tex-1001-S each 1,800.00$         

194 Vane Shear Testing ASTM D2573 each 300.00$             

Miscellaneous Testing Test Method Unit

195  Structural Field Welding NA hour 150.00$             

Equipmemt & Supplies for MT & UT day 150.00$             

Other Direct Expenses Unit

Photocopies B/W (8 1/2" X 11") each 0.15$                 

Photocopies B/W (11" X 17") each 0.20$                 

Photocopies Color (8 1/2" X 11") each 0.70$                 

Photocopies Color (11" X 17") each 1.25$                 

Digital Ortho Plotting sheet 2.00$                 

CADD Plotting linear foot 1.00$                 

Plots (B/W on Bond) linear foot 0.75$                 

Plots (Color on Bond) linear foot 1.75$                 

Plots (Color on Photgraphic Paper) linear foot 2.00$                 

Reproduction of CD/DVD each 5.00$                 

 Atlas Personnel Classificatio
Hourly Base 

Rate 

Contract 
Rate

FY 2020

FINAL 

NEGOTIATED 

RATES 

9/14/2021

Senior Project Manager / Principal 80.00$             240.29$         186.90$             

Senior Geotechnical Engineer 68.00$             204.25$         148.10$             

Geotechnical Engineer 60.00$             180.22$         117.96$             

Project Engineer 55.00$             165.20$         133.98$             

Engineering Lab Manager 43.00$             129.16$         86.38$               

Utility Coordinator 40.00$             120.14$         91.74$               

Senior Project Inspector 40.00$             120.14$         99.75$               

Project Inspector 32.00$             96.12$           73.92$               

EIT 30.00$             90.11$           88.00$               

Engineer Tech / GIS 28.00$             84.10$           76.70$               

Logger 23.00$             69.08$           52.81$               

Field Technician (Soils, Aggr, Asph, Conc) 23.00$             69.08$           62.34$               

CADD Operator  23.00$             69.08$           71.00$               

Admin/Clerical  22.00$             66.08$           61.95$               



ATTACHMENT E: FEE SCHEDULE [SPECIFIED RATE / LUMP SUM PAYMENT BASIS]

Atlas Personnel Classification
Hourly 

Base Rate 

Contract 
Rate

FY 2020

HCRMA 

counter 

9/7/2021

Atlas

Counter

9/14/21

FINAL 

HCRMA 

counter 

9/14/2021

Senior Project Manager / Principal 72.00$   204.4 170.80$   195.00$          186.90$         

Senior Geotechnical Engineer 62.58$   202.81 148.10$   accept 148.10$         

Geotechnical Engineer 48.56$   157.37 117.96$   accept 117.96$         

Project Engineer 54.00$   187.37 126.59$   142.00$          133.98$         

Engineering Lab Manager 33.00$   90.94 86.38$     accept 86.38$           

Utility Coordinator 40.91$   116.14 91.74$     accept 91.74$           

Senior Project Inspector 42.00$   115.74 93.79$     110.00$          99.75$           

Project Inspector 33.00$   90.94 70.48$     85.00$            73.92$           

EIT 36.00$   102.2 84.45$     91.00$            88.00$           

Engineer Tech / GIS 31.75$   90.13 69.76$     79.00$            76.70$           

Logger 18.80$   60.93 52.81$     accept 52.81$           

Field Technician (Soils, Aggr, Asph, Conc) 24.50$   67.52 62.34$     accept 62.34$           

CADD Operator  30.00$   85.17 71.00$     accept 71.00$           

Admin/Clerical  24.56$   69.72 57.40$     Recommend 61.95$           



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical 
Consultants  for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT E-1 

FEE SCHEDULE 



    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants 

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT E-1 

 Final Cost Proposal Form 

This attachment provides the basis of payment and fee schedule.  The basis of payment for this Work 

Authorization is indicated by an “X” in the applicable box. The basis shall be supported by the Final Cost 

Proposal (FCP) shown below and should identify maximum amount payable and basis of payment. If more than 

one basis of payment is used, each one must be supported by a separate FCP.  The basis of payment will be 

determined by Work Authorization and may be by any of the methods listed below.   

“X” Basis 

Lump Sum 

The lump sum shall be equal to the maximum amount payable. The lump sum includes 

all direct and indirect costs and fixed fee.  The Engineer shall be paid pro rata based on 

the percentage of work completed.  For payment the Engineer is not required to provide 

evidence of actual hours worked, travel, overhead rates or other evidence of cost. 

__X_ Unit Cost 

The unit cost(s) for each type of unit and number of units are shown in the FCP. The 

unit cost includes all direct and indirect costs and fixed fee.  The Engineer shall be paid 

based on the type and number of units fully completed and the respective unit cost.  For 

payment, the Engineer is not required to provide evidence of actual hours worked, 

travel, overhead rates or any other cost data. The FCP may include special items, such as 

equipment which are not included in the unit costs.  Documentation of these special 

costs may be required.  The maximum amount payable equals the total of all units times 

their respective unit cost plus any special direct items shown. 

__X 

Specified 

Rate Basis 

The specified rates for each type of labor are shown in the FCP below. The FCP may 

include special items, such as equipment which are not included in the specified rates.  

Payment shall be based on the actual hours worked multiplied by the specified rate for 

each type of labor plus other agreed to special direct cost items. The specified rate 

includes direct labor and indirect cost and fixed fee.  The Authority may request 

documentation of reimbursable direct costs including hours worked. Documentation of 

special item costs may be required.  The specified rate is not subject to audit. 

____ 

Cost Plus 

Fixed Fee 

Payment shall be based on direct and indirect costs incurred plus a pro rata share of the 

fixed fee based on the ratio of labor and overhead cost incurred to total estimated labor 

and overhead cost in the FCP or the percentage of work completed. The invoice must 

itemize labor rates, hours worked, other direct costs and indirect costs.  The Engineer 

may be required to provide documentation of hours worked and any eligible direct costs 

claimed.  The provisional overhead rate charged is subject to audit and adjustment to 

actual rates incurred. The FCP below shows the hourly rates for labor, other direct 

expenses including but not limited to travel and allowable materials, provisional 

overhead rate and the fixed fee. 

__A. Actual Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Actual wages are paid (no minimum, no 

maximum.   

__B. Range of Cost Plus Fixed Fee – Actual wages must be within the 

allowable range shown on the Final Cost Proposal. 

A. REFER TO ATTACHMENT E-2 FOR HOURLY SPECIFIED / LUMP SUM RATE SCHEDULE

FOR EACH FIRM



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical 
Consultants Kistner, Inc.  for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

EXHIBIT D 

ESTIMATE OF MAN -HOURS AND 

TEST BREAKDOWN

MariaAlaniz
Cross-Out



 Calendar Year  Calendar Year 
2021-2022 218,588.16$           

2023 92,144.64$             
2024 92,144.64$             
Total 402,877.44$           

Calendar Year: 2021-2022
 Personnel 

Classification  Contract Rate  Unit Quantity Total

Senior Project 
Manager / Principal 186.90$                   Hour 256 47,846.40$           

Project Engineer 133.98$                   Hour 512 68,597.76$           
Senior Project 

Inspector 99.75$                     Hour 1024 102,144.00$        
218,588.16$        

Calendar Year: 2023
 Personnel 

Classification  Contract Rate  Unit Quantity Total

Senior Project 
Manager / Principal 186.90$                   Hour 128 23,923.20$           

Project Engineer 133.98$                   Hour 128 17,149.44$           
Senior Project 

Inspector 99.75$                     Hour 512 51,072.00$           
92,144.64$           

Calendar Year: 2021-2024
 Personnel 

Classification  Contract Rate  Unit Quantity Total

Senior Project 
Manager / Principal 186.90$                   Hour 128 23,923.20$           

Project Engineer 133.98$                   Hour 128 17,149.44$           
Senior Project 

Inspector 99.75$                     Hour 512 51,072.00$           
92,144.64$           

CMT Firm: PaveTex [ATLAS]

Subtotal

CMT Firm: PaveTex [ATLAS]

CMT Firm: PaveTex [ATLAS]

Subtotal

CMT Firm: PaveTex [ATLAS]

Subtotal



EXHIBIT F
WORK SCHEDULE



HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical 
Consultants Kistner, Inc.  for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

ATTACHMENT F 

WORK SCHEDULE 

HCRMA Construction & Materials Testing Services 
TOLL365 (SH 365) 

Task Name Start Finish 

Material Testing 11/1/2021 12/13/2025 
Geotechnical 11/1/2021 12/13/2025 
Other Analyses 11/1/2021 12/13/2025 
All sampling and testing of components and materials 11/1/2021 12/13/2025 

  Hot Mix Asphalt Testing 11/1/2021 12/13/2025 
  Concrete Testing 111/2021 12/13/2025 
  Construction Oversight Documentation 11/1/2021 12/13/2025 
 Project Correspondence File (Design and Construction) 11/1/2021 12/13/2025 



 

    HCRMA Construction Material Testing Laboratory Services Agreement for Atlas Technical Consultants  

 for 365 Tollway Project / Segment 1 &2 

 

ATTACHMENT H-2 

Subprovider Monitoring System Commitment Agreement 

This commitment agreement is subject to the award and receipt of a signed contract from the Hidalgo County 

Regional Mobility Authority (Authority).  NOTE: Attachment H-2 is required to be attached to each contract 

that does not include work authorizations.  Attachment H-2 is required to be attached with each work 

authorization.  Attachment H-2 is also required to be attached to each supplemental work authorization.  If 

DBE/HUB Subproviders are used, the form must be completed and signed.  If no DBE/HUB Subproviders are 

used, indicate with “N/A” on this line: __________ and attach with the work authorization or supplemental 

work authorization.   

Contract #:              Assigned Goal: 6.0%   Prime Provider  Atlas Technical Consultants LLC    

Work Authorization (WA)#:              WA Amount:         $0             Date:          

Supplemental Work Authorization (SWA) #: _____ to WA #:                         SWA Amount:                            

Revised WA Amount:                          

Description of Work 

(List by category of work or task description.  Attach additional pages, if 

necessary.) 

Dollar Amount 

(For each category of work or task 

description shown.) 

FC  $0 

FC  $0 

Total Commitment Amount (Including all additional pages.) $0 

IMPORTANT: The signatures of the prime and the DBE/HUB and Second Tier Subprovider, if any (both DBE and Non-

DBE) and the total commitment amount must always be on the same page. 

Provider Name:  Atlas Technical Consultants LLC 

Address:  1959 Saratoga Blvd., Bld. 12 

                  Corpus Christi, TX 78417 

VID Number:  

PH: & FAX: 361-510-9317 

Email:  marvin.garcia@oneatlas.com 

 

Name:   Marvin Garcia P.E.                

(Please Print) 

Title: Senior Vice President-Regional Director of Operations.  

 

       

Signature                             Date 

DBE/HUB Sub Provider 

Subprovider Name:   

VID Number:  

Address:  

PH:  

Email:  

 

Name:  ____________________   

(Please Print) 

Title:                            ______ 

 

       

Signature                             Date 

Second Tier Sub Provider 

Subprovider Name: 

VID Number: 

Address: 

Phone #& Fax #: 

Email: 

 

Name:       

(Please Print) 

Title:       

 

       

Signature                             Date 

VID Number is the Vendor Identification Number issued by the Comptroller.  If a firm does not have a VID Number, please 

enter the owner’s Social Security or their Federal Employee Identification Number (if incorporated). 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



Item 3E 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
               BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                     3E                    

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           10/20/21                    
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        10/26/21  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2021-49 – APPROVAL OF WORK AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 8 

TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH BLANTON & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
FOR ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES FOR DEVELOPMENT OF SITE SOILS AND PLANTING 
STRATEGIES (INCLUDING MONITORING) FOR THE 365 TOLLWAY WETLAND 
MITIGATION SITE.                                  _______________________________________   

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and Approval of Resolution 2020-29 for WA No. 8 for the 365 Tollway.                     
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:       X  Yes           No       _   N/A 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2021-49 – Approval of Work 

Authorization Number 8 to the Professional Service Agreement with Blanton & 
Associates, Inc. for environmental services for development of site soils and planting 
strategies (including monitoring) for the 365 Tollway Wetland Mitigation site, as 
presented.    _________ ____________                                        

 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   _   Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
11.  Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved        _  None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved         X   None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved        _  None 

 
 
 

 



 

 

 

 

 

THIS ITEM WILL BE 

SENT UNDER 

SEPERATE COVER 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



Item 3F 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
               BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                     3F                    

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           10/20/21                    
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        10/26/21  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 

1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2021-50 – APPROVAL OF CONTRACT AMENDMENT NUMBER 
7 WITH BLANTON & ASSOCIATES, INC. TO INCREASE THE MAXIMUM PAYABLE 
AMOUNT DUE WORK AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 8._   ______                                

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and Approval of Resolution 2020-30 for CA No. 7 for WA No. 8.                              
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:       X  Yes           No       _   N/A 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2020-50 – Approval of Contract 

Amendment No. 7 with Blanton & Associates, Inc. to increase the maximum payable 
amount due Work Authorization No. 8, as presented.________________________    

 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   _   Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
11.  Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved        _  None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved         X   None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved        _  None 

 
 
 

 



 

 

 

 

 

THIS ITEM WILL BE 

SENT UNDER 

SEPERATE COVER 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



Item 3G 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                   3G                    

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED          10/20/2021                  
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE       10/26/2021 
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2021-51 – APPROVAL OF WORK AUTHORIZATION 5 TO THE 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH HDR ENGINEERING FOR ENGINEERING 
SUPPORT FOR THE DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF THE 365 TOLLWAY WETLAND 
MITIGATION SITE.                                                                                ____________________                     

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and Approval of WA 5 to PSA with HDR Engineering, Inc. to provide support for 

design and construction for the 365 Tollway Project.                                            
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:        X  Yes           No          N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to Approve Resolution 2021-51 – Approval of Work 

Authorization 5 to the Professional Service Agreement with HDR Engineering for 
engineering support for the design and construction of the 365 Tollway Wetland 
Mitigation site. as presented.___________                                                                          ____                   

 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   _   Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
11.  Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X_  None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved           None 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 

 

 

THIS ITEM WILL BE 

SENT UNDER 

SEPERATE COVER 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



Item 3H 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
               BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                   3H                    

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED          10/20/2021                  
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE       10/26/2021 
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2021-52 – APPROVAL OF CONTRACT AMENDMENT 3 TO THE 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH HDR ENGINEERING TO INCREASE THE 
MAXIMUM PAYABLE AMOUNT DUE TO WORK AUTHORIZATION 5.                                         

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and Approval of CA 3 to PSA with HDR Engineering, Inc. to provide engineering 

support for the 365 Toll Project.                                                                                                               
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:        X  Yes           No          N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to Approve Resolution 2021-52 – Approval of Contract  

Amendment 3 to the Professional Service Agreement with HDR Engineering to increase 
the maximum payable amount due to Work Authorization 5, as presented.       _                     

 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   _   Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
11.  Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X_  None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved           None 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 

 

 

THIS ITEM WILL BE 

SENT UNDER 

SEPERATE COVER 


	Notice of Agenda 
	Agenda Item Workshop 1 - Review of proposed Fiscal Year 2022 Operating and Capital Budget
	Agenda Item Workshop 2 -  Review of Quarterly Investment Report for Period Ending September 30, 2021 
	Agenda Item 1A - Report on Program Manager Activity for 365 Tollway Project and IBTC Environmental Clearance Document – Eric Davila, HCRMA
	Agenda Item 1B - Report on 365 Tollway Project Financing Activities – Richard Ramirez, Hilltop Securities
	Agenda Item 2A - Approval of Minutes for the Regular Meeting held September 28, 2021
	Agenda Item 2B - Approval of Project & General Expense Report for the period from September 9, 2021, to October 6, 2021
	Agenda Item 2C - Approval of Financial Reports for September 2021
	Agenda Item 2D - Approval of the Quarterly Investment Report for Period Ending September 30, 2021
	Agenda Item 3A - Resolution 2021 – 40 – Approval of Award of Contract with Raba Kistner, Inc. for Construction Material Testing Services for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
	Agenda Item 3B - Resolution 2021 – 41 – Approval of Work Authorization 1 with Raba Kistner, Inc. for Material Testing in the 365 Tollway Project.
	Agenda Item 3C - Resolution 2021 – 47 – Approval of Award of Contract with Atlas Technical Consultants for Construction Material Testing Services for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
	Agenda Item 3D - Resolution 2021 – 48 - Approval of Work Authorization 1 with Atlas Technical Consultants for material testing in the 365 Tollway Project
	Agenda Item 3E - Resolution 2021 – 49 – Approval of Work Authorization 8 with Blanton & Associates, Inc. for Environmental Services for Development of Site Soils and Planting Strategies (including monitoring) for the 365 Tollway Wetland Mitigation site
	Agenda Item 3F -  Resolution 2021- 50 – Approval of Contract Amendment 7 to the Professional Service Agreement with Blanton & Associates, Inc. to Increase the Maximum Payable Amount for Work Authorization Number 8
	Agenda Item 3G - Resolution 2021- 51 – Approval of Work Authorization 5 with HDR Engineering, Inc. for Engineering Support for the Design and Construction of the 365 Tollway Wetland Mitigation Site
	Agenda Item 3H -  Resolution 2021 – 52 - Approval of Contract Amendment 3 to the Professional Service Agreement with HDR Engineering, Inc. to Increase the Maximum Payable Amount for Work Authorization Number 5



